
REGULAR MEETING  
AGENDA 

 
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. § 38-431.02, NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN TO THE MEMBERS 
OF THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL AND TO THE GENERAL PUBLIC THAT THE 
FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL WILL HOLD A MEETING OPEN TO THE PUBLIC ON 
MONDAY, AUGUST 17, 2015, AT 6:00 P.M., IN THE CHAMBERS OF TOWN HALL, 
LOCATED AT 775 NORTH MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
2. ROLL CALL:     Rankin __, Walter__, Woolridge__, Hawkins__,  

Guilin__, Anderson__, Wall____. 
 
3. MOMENT OF SILENCE 

 
4. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
5. CALL TO THE PUBLIC  

Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the jurisdiction of the 
Town Council.  Council rules limit public comment to three minutes.  
Individual Councilmembers may respond to criticism made by those 
commenting, may ask staff to review a matter raised or may ask that a matter 
be put on a future agenda.  However, members of the Council shall not 
discuss or take action on any matter during an open call to the public unless 
the matters are properly noticed for discussion and legal action. 
 

6. PRESENTATIONS 
 

a. Presentation of the 2015 Arizona Parks and Recreation Association’s 
Outstanding Facility Award for Padilla Park. 
 

b. Update of the Library/Recreation Complex Project. 
 
c. Presentation by the Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce recognizing 

Main Street Family Practice as the Business of the Month. 
 

7. CONSENT: All items on the consent agenda will be handled by a single vote as 
part of the consent agenda, unless a Councilmember or a member of the 
public objects at the time the agenda item is called.  
 
a. Resolution No. 1529-15:  Adoption of A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF 

FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, ADOPTING THE PARKS AND 
RECREATION 2015 MISSION, VISION AND VALUES FOR THE PARKS AND 
RECREATION DEPARTMENT OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, ARIZONA. 

 

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight



b. Resolution No. 1534-15: Adoption of A RESOLUTION OF TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING 
MAYOR TOM J. RANKIN, INTERIM TOWN MANAGER LISA GARCIA, AND 
FINANCE DIRECTOR GABRIEL GARCIA TO ACT AS SIGNATORIES FOR 
THE TRANSACTION OF BUSINESS ON THE TOWN OF FLORENCE 
BANKING ACCOUNTS, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 
 

c. Issuance of a Proclamation declaring August 2015 as Child Support 
Awareness Month. 

 
d. Approval of Change Order Requests 1 through 4, with Currier Construction, 

Inc., for a total of $14,998.87, for a total project cost not to exceed 
$1,564,182.87. 

 
e. Approval of Change Order No. 2 with Low Mountain Construction, Inc., to 

increase the number of days for completion to 294 days for the 
Library/Recreation Complex design-build contract.  There is no increased 
fiscal impact.  
 

f. Approval of Change Order No. 2 with Garney Construction, for a credit of 
$32,084.00, for a total project cost reduced to $1,691,358, and extending the 
project completion date to October 30, 2015. 
 

g. Approval of Change Order Requests 1, 2, 5, 7, 8 and 9 with McCain 
Construction, LLC, for a total of $33,840, for a total project cost not to 
exceed $717,434. 
 

h. Approval of Change Order No. 1 to Visus Engineering Construction, for the 
additional work associated with Change Order Requests during 
construction of the Main Street Extension Temporary Access Road, for a 
total of $13,500, for a total project cost not to exceed $252,500.   

 
i. Approval of a lease agreement with the Florence Mosaic Church of the 

Nazarene, owner of the Florence Fudge Co., for Suite 101, in the Silver King 
Market Place. 
 

j. Approval of a lease with Victor Fimbres, dba as Silver King,  for Suite 201, 
in the Silver King Market Place. 
 

k. Approval of the July 6, July 13, July 20, and July 27, 2015 Council minutes. 
 

l. Receive and file the following board and commission minutes: 
i. June 24, 2015 Historic District Advisory Board minutes. 

ii. June 18, 2015 Planning and Zoning Commission minutes. 
 
 

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight



8. NEW BUSINESS 
 

a. Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of regulating the Farmers Market vendors 
under Ordinance No. 549-11. 
 

b. Ordinance No. 633-15: Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of AN 
ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
RESCINDING ORDINANCE NO. 619-14 WITH REGARD TO MAGIC RANCH 
ANNEXATION PETITION NO. 2013-01; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 
AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 
 

c. Resolution No. 1535-15: Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of A 
RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 1431-14 WITH REGARD TO THE PRE-
ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH SEVILLE 
INVESTMENTS, LLC (“OWNER”); PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND 
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 
 

d. Resolution No. 1536-15: Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of A 
RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 1453-14 WITH REGARD TO THE PRE-
ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH PALMS-MAGIC 
LAKE 80, LLC (“OWNER”); PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND 
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 
 

e. Resolution No. 1537-15: Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of A 
RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 1454-14 WITH REGARD TO THE PRE-
ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH SFD MAGIC 
RANCH, LLC (“OWNER”); PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND 
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 
 

f. Resolution No. 1538-15: Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of A 
RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 1458-14 WITH REGARD TO THE PRE-
ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH GEM LAND & 
CATTLE, LLC AND EMPIRE WEST TITLE AGENCY LLC (“OWNERS”); 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 

 
g. Resolution No. 1539-15: Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of A 

RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 1459-14 WITH REGARD TO THE PRE-
ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH RMG ARIZONA 
PROPERTIES HOLDING XVII, LLC, (“OWNER”); PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 
 

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight



h. Resolution No. 1540-15: Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of A 
RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 1460-14 WITH REGARD TO THE PRE-
ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH RMG 
RESIDENTIAL 2010, LLLP (“OWNER”); PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 
AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 
 

i. Resolution No. 1541-15: Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of A 
RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 1463-14 WITH REGARD TO THE PRE-
ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH RMG LUCKY HUNT 
65, LLC, (“OWNER”); PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND DECLARING 
AN EMERGENCY. 
 

j. Resolution No. 1542-15: Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of A 
RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 1464-14 WITH REGARD TO THE PRE-
ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH MAGIC LAKE 80, 
LLC, (“OWNER”); PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND DECLARING AN 
EMERGENCY. 
 

k. Resolution No. 1543-15: Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of A 
RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 1465-14 WITH REGARD TO THE PRE-
ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH BARCLAY 
HOLDINGS XLIII, LLC, (“OWNER”); PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND 
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 
 

l. Resolution No. 1544-15: Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of A 
RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 1466-14 WITH REGARD TO THE PRE-
ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH CHI 
CONSTRUCTION COMPANY (“OWNER”); PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 
AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 
 

m. Resolution No. 1545-15: Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of A 
RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 1467-14 WITH REGARD TO THE PRE-
ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH D. R. HORTON, 
INC, (“OWNER”); PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND DECLARING AN 
EMERGENCY. 
 

n. Resolution No. 1546-15: Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of A 
RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 1470-14 WITH REGARD TO THE PRE-
ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH CMG 900, LLC 

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight



(“OWNER”); PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND DECLARING AN 
EMERGENCY. 
 

o. Resolution No. 1547-15: Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of A 
RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 1468-14 WITH REGARD TO THE PRE-
ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH EL DORADO 
ARIZONA FARMS, LLC (“OWNER”); PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND 
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 
 

p. Resolution No. 1548-15: Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of A 
RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 1472-14 WITH REGARD TO THE PRE-
ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH SMITH’S FOOD 
AND DRUG CENTERS, INC., (“OWNER”); PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 
AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 
 

q. Resolution No. 1549-15: Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of A 
RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 1475-14 WITH REGARD TO THE PRE-
ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH GENERAL HUNT 
PROPERTIES, INC., (“OWNER”); PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND 
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 

 
r. Resolution No. 1550-15: Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of A 

RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 1476-14 WITH REGARD TO THE PRE-
ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH OASIS SOLID 
WASTE, LLC (“OWNER”); PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND 
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 
 

s. Resolution No. 1551-15: Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of A 
RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 1477-14 WITH REGARD TO THE PRE-
ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH THE CLUB AT 
OASIS, LLC (“OWNER”); PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND 
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 
 

t. Resolution No. 1552-15: Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of A 
RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 1478-14 WITH REGARD TO THE PRE-
ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH JOHNSON 
UTILITIES, LLC (“OWNER”); PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND 
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 
 

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight



u. Ordinance No. 634-15: Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of AN 
ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
RESCINDING ORDINANCE NO. 620-14 WITH REGARD TO ARIZONA FARMS 
ANNEXATION PETITION NO. 2013-02; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 
AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 
 

v. Resolution No. 1553-15: Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of A 
RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 1418-14 WITH REGARD TO THE PRE-
ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH DQCRESTFIELD, 
LLC, (“OWNER”); PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND DECLARING AN 
EMERGENCY. 
 

w. Resolution No. 1554-15: Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of A 
RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 1443-14 WITH REGARD TO THE PRE-
ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH MP FLORENCE, 
LLC, (“OWNER”); PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND DECLARING AN 
EMERGENCY. 
 

x. Resolution No. 1555-15: Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of A 
RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 1446-14 WITH REGARD TO THE PRE-
ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH HOWARD L. 
HAWKS (“OWNER”); PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND DECLARING 
AN EMERGENCY. 
 

y. Resolution No. 1556-15: Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of A 
RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 1461-14 WITH REGARD TO THE PRE-
ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH Superstition 
Springs R-14 ASSOCIATES, WOLFY'S R.E. HOLDINGS, LLC, AND  DAVID C. 
PHILLIPS, (“OWNERS”); PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND 
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 
 

z. Resolution No. 1557-15: Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of A 
RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 1462-14 WITH REGARD TO THE PRE-
ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH RES-AZ 
CRESTVIEW, LLC (“OWNER”); PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND 
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 
 

aa. Resolution No. 1558-15: Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of A 
RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 1471-14 WITH REGARD TO THE PRE-
ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH EL DORADO 

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight



ARIZONA FARMS LLC AND LANGLEY ARIZONA FARMS 150, LLC 
(“OWNERS”); PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND DECLARING AN 
EMERGENCY. 

 
9. MANAGER’S REPORT 

10. CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
 
11. CALL TO THE COUNCIL 

 
12. ADJOURNMENT 

 
Council may go into Executive Session at any time during the meeting for the 
purpose of obtaining legal advice from the Town’s Attorney(s) on any of the 
agenda items pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3). 
 
POSTED ON AUGUST 14, 2015, BY LISA GARCIA, TOWN CLERK, AT 775 NORTH 
MAIN STREET, 1000 SOUTH WILLOW STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA, AND AT 
WWW.FLORENCEAZ.GOV. 
 
***PURSUANT TO TITLE II OF THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA), 
THE TOWN OF FLORENCE DOES NOT DISCRIMINATE ON THE BASIS OF 
DISABILITY REGARDING ADMISSION TO PUBLIC MEETINGS.  PERSONS WITH A 
DISABILITY MAY REQUEST REASONABLE ACCOMMODATIONS BY 
CONTACTING THE TOWN OF FLORENCE ADA COORDINATOR, AT (520) 868-
7574 OR (520) 868-7502 TDD. REQUESTS SHOULD BE MADE AS EARLY AS 
POSSIBLE TO ALLOW TIME TO ARRANGE THE ACCOMMODATION.***  

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
6a. 

MEETING DATE:  August 17, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Parks and Recreation  
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Bryan C. Hughes 
                                      Parks and Recreation Director 
 
SUBJECT:    Arizona Parks and Recreation Association’s 
                     2015 Outstanding Facility Award – Padilla Park. 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject: Recognition of APRA Award – Padilla Park                       Meeting Date: August 17, 2015 
Page 1 of 2 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Recognition of the 2015 Arizona Parks and Recreation Association’s Outstanding 
Facility Award (population 25,000-100,000) for Padilla Park. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
Each year at the Arizona Parks and Recreation Association (APRA) Conference and 
Expo, the Annual Awards Ceremony recognizes excellence in the field of Parks, 
Recreation, Cultural and Community Services. 
 
This year, Padilla Park was nominated and selected for the Outstanding Facility Award 
for communities with populations between 25,000-100,000.  The APRA Awards 
Committee scored over 70 nominations in various categories this year.  To be eligible 
for this award, parks and facilities must be new construction, completed and open 
between the period June 2014 to May 2015. 
 
The award was presented on Tuesday, August 11, 2015, at the Awards Ceremony held 
at the historic Fox Tucson Theatre.  Bryan Hughes, Parks and Recreation Director; 
Mark Eckhoff, Community Development Director; and Gilbert Olgin, Senior Planner, 
accepted the award on behalf of the Town of Florence. 
 
The award will be displayed in the Parks and Recreation Department at the new Library 
and Community Center. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
None 



Subject: Recognition of APRA Award – Padilla Park                       Meeting Date: August 17, 2015 
Page 2 of 2 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Presentation Only 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
APRA Award Nomination – Padilla Park  



 
 

Arizona Parks and Recreation Association 
2015 Annual Awards Nomination 

 
Complete form and submit along with nomination documentation. 

 
Contact Information for Nominating Agency or Individual: 

 

Agency:     
 

Contact:     
 

Email: Phone:     
 

Street Address:     
 

City, State, Postal Code:     
 

Nomination Information: 
 

Name of Nominee, Program, or Facility:     
 

Please check the appropriate category and sub-category, when appropriate. 
 

1. Citation of Merit Award 
2. Media Award 
3. Natural Resources Award 
4. Outstanding Facility Award 

Population Categories: 
a. Under 25,000 
b. 25,000 - 100,000 
c. 100,000+ 

5. Outstanding Program Award 
a. Aquatics Program 
b. Active Adult 50+ Program 
c. Adaptive Program 
d. Cultural Awareness Program 
e. Educational Program 
f. Sports Program 
g. Youth Enrichment Program (formerly Youth at Risk and After School Programs) 
h. Community or Neighborhood Special Event 

Population Categories (for this category only): 
i. Under 25,000 

ii. 25,000 - 100,000 
iii. 100,000+ 

6. Outstanding Public Official Award 
7. Partnership Award 
8. Professional Emeritus Award 
9. Professional Award 
10. Parks Professional Award 
11. Volunteer of the Year Award 
12. Young Professional Award 

 
Questions? 
Chris Gallagher, Chairman - APRA Awards & Citations Committee, (623) 882-7536 or chris.gallagher@goodyearaz.gov  

Town of Florence Parks and Recreation

bryan.hughes@florenceaz.gov 520-868-7582

P.O. Box 2670

Florence, AZ 85132

Padilla Park

Bryan Hughes



ARIZONA PARKS AND RECREATION ASSOCIATION 
2015 OUTSTANDING FACILITY AWARD – POPULATION 25,000-100,000 

TOWN OF FLORENCE – PADILLA PARK 
 
Introduction: 
Florence’s Padilla Park was officially dedicated to the citizens of Florence on October 23, 
2014. The Town of Florence’s newest addition to the municipal park system, Padilla Park 
is a 1-acre facility that includes open turf areas, performance pad, splash pad, modular 
restroom building, picnic tables, connecting sidewalks, welcoming entryways, area 
lighting, low maintenance landscaping, informative signage and accessible parking. 
 
Construction on Padilla Park, anticipated to be completed in 45 days, began on June 19, 
2014, but was quickly halted when neatly arranged formations of old bottles forming 
pathways, with maker’s marks dating to the 1870’s, were discovered. Given the possible 
historic significance since the park and adjacent buildings are in a designated historic 
district, both the Arizona State Museum and the State Historic Preservation Office were 
notified. The Arizona State Museum promptly advised the Town to have an approved 
archeologist survey the site and local preservationists echoed this sentiment. The general 
contractor, Haydon Building Corp, quickly hired an approved archeologist who utilized 
historical records, interviews and sensitive site excavations to determine the historical 
significance of the artifacts uncovered. During this process, the project was highlighted in 
the local media and in a Fox 10 news story. All parties agreed upon a plan to minimize 
impacts to the site and to preserve most of the archeological findings in place, which 
meant plan revisions and added costs. Following a seven week delay to survey the site, 
develop a preservation plan and request additional funding, the project was completed in 
October 2014. 
 
Criteria: 
 
Impact and Need: 
The Town of Florence has only four municipal parks, all of which are in the original core 
area of Florence, which includes the historic downtown.  Heritage Park, the Town’s most 
used park, is considered an active park with amenities designed for organized sports and 
other recreational activities.  Main Street Park and Little League Park are a mixture of 
both passive and active recreational uses. 
 
Padilla Park, although one of the smallest of the Town’s four parks, has become one of 
the busiest. This unique park is in the heart of the historic downtown business district, 
making it an ideal location for events in the downtown area. Its proximity to Main Street 
helps attract out-of-town visitors that are exploring downtown or enjoying lunch at one of 
the Town’s popular restaurants, such as the Florence Fudge Company located in the 
adjacent Silver King Marketplace. Many residents are discovering the new park and have 
been pleasantly surprised with all it has to offer. This park, with its urban plaza feel, also 
introduced the first public splash pad feature to Florence, which provides endless 
enjoyment for younger children in the community. 
 



Functionality: 
The park is essentially divided into two main sections: the west end with sloped turf and a 
performance pad and the east end with a smaller turf area and paver patio with picnic 
tables. The two areas are separated by a splash pad and restroom building. 
 
In character with the historic downtown and to establish a physical edge, an attractive 
wrought iron fence surrounds the park site. This also helps secure the park after hours and 
is ideal for hosting events requiring an extra layer of security. Sidewalks connect all the 
different areas of the interior of the park and link to sidewalks along the public streets 
surrounding the park. Landscaping elements, area lighting, benches and interpretive 
signage bring the whole design together making it a very user friendly park. 
 
The park has already hosted several Concerts in the Park, Movies in the Park and 
wedding ceremonies and will be the site of a revived Cinco de Mayo Celebration. 
 
Innovation, Conservation, Environmentalism: 
While presenting challenges during the design and construction phases, the site contains 
several foundations of historic structures that the Town wished to preserve and describe 
with interpretive signage highlighting the many uses of the site prior to becoming a 
municipal park. The focus on preservation and education was expanded with the 
discovery of the historic bottles on the site. A previously stabilized historic adobe 
structure on the site and the adjacent magnificent 2-story brick Silver King Hotel building 
help establish a comfortable scale for the park and communicate the rich story of the site.   
 
The entire park is setup to be irrigated with effluent water in the near future, saving 
thousands of dollars annually on potable water. Landscaping elements were designed to 
minimize water usage and to reduce maintenance requirements. Project lighting, which 
incorporated timers for greater efficiency, was done with an appropriate design to 
minimize the number of light fixtures on the site and to comply with dark sky 
requirements. In addition, LED technology was selected to minimize energy usage, as 
well as the light quality benefits. Whenever possible, vandal resistant products, such as 
the modular restroom facility, were used to minimize maintenance costs. 
 
Financing: 
The park originally consisted of two separate parcels separated by an alley. The Town 
already owned the parcel that included the historic Silver King Hotel building, now a 
retail incubator for the Town. The other parcel was owned by the family of Ophelia 
Padilla, whose family, after her passing, agreed to sell the parcel to the Town at a greatly 
reduced price, because Ms. Padilla was a huge supporter of the Town. 
 
Funding was approved over two fiscal years. The Town Council initially agreed to fund 
up to $500,000 for the project from the Capital Improvement Fund.  As a result of the 
archeological find, the project required an additional $172,000 for plan modifications and 
archeological services. The Town Council, very supportive of this project, agreed to the 
additional funding and the park was successfully completed in time for planned Fall and 
Winter events.  



ARIZONA PARKS AND RECREATION ASSOCIATION 
2015 OUTSTANDING FACILITY AWARD – POPULATION 25,000-100,000 

TOWN OF FLORENCE – PADILLA PARK 
 

 
Looking west prior to construction in April 2014. 

 

 
Archeologist discusses artifacts with Town Council. 

 

 
Picnic tables behind Silver King Market Place. 

 

 
Residents arrive for the first Concert in the Park. 

 

 
Whiskey bottles halt construction of park. 

 

 
View of the splash pad and restroom. 

 

 
Looking west after construction in October 2014 

 

 
Park dedication on October 23, 2014. 



From First Things First
Halloween can be a fun time 

of year, but for infants, toddlers 
and preschoolers - who often 
can’t distinguish between fan-
tasy and reality - scary experi-
ences can ruin the holiday and 
create long-term fears. Below 
are tips for minimizing anxiety 
and helping young kids enjoy 
Halloween. 

####Teach kids the difference 
between real and imaginary. 
One way to do this is to con-
nect to something kids already 
do - like playing dress-up or 
pretend. Talk with your child 
leading up to Halloween about 
how people will be dressed up 
and how some costumes - while 

scary -aren’t real. 
#####Choose costumes and 

decorations carefully. Some-
thing may be cute or funny to 
us, but uncomfortable, scary or 
downright dangerous to young 
kids. Consider how long your 
child will wear a costume. Avoid 
masks, which can be scary and 
restrict vision; try face-paint-
ing instead. If your child is old 
enough, let her help choose a 
costume. 

######Practice for trick-or-
treating. This is more than just 
what to say to get candy. Talk 
about holding hands when cross-
ing the street and going only to 
well-lit homes. Remind kids that 
some people will be strangers, 

but that you will be with them 
the entire time.  

######On the big night. Go 
trick-or-treating early in the eve-
ning. Stay with your children 
always. If your child is fearful, 
don’t tell them to not be afraid. 
This invalidates their concerns 
and may prevent them from 
expressing anxieties later on. 
Remind them that you are there 
to protect them. 

#######Choose treats wisely. 
Hard candies, gummy snacks 
and caramels get stuck in tiny 
teeth and can cause tooth decay. 
The best selection of treats is 
plain chocolate, which melts 
easily. In addition, look out for 
very small treats or toys with 

small parts, which can be chok-
ing hazards.

#####Make holiday learning 
fun. Engage your child in family 
traditions, like baking seasonal 
favorites or carving pumpkins. 
Read books about Halloween. 
Talk about your past Halloweens 
and ask kids to share what they 
like about the holiday. 

By following these simple 
tips, we can make this time of 
year fun for the entire family, 
especially those new to Hal-
loween.

About First Things First
First Things First is a voter-

created, statewide organization 
that funds early education and 
health programs to help kids 
be successful once they enter 
kindergarten. Decisions about 
how those funds are spent are 
made by local councils staffed 
by community volunteers. To 
learn more, visit azftf.gov.

Sam Leyvas is the chief execu-
tive officer of First Things First. 
He can be reached at sleyvas@
azftf.gov.

12 — Florence, Ariz. FLORENCE REMINDER AND BLADE-TRIBUNE  Thursday,  October 30, 2014

Villalobos left the match early in the first game 
with a foot injury and was held out of the remain-
der of the match as a precaution.

“I was proud of the way the girls stepped up 
in games two and three,” Simon said. “It was an 
opportunity for having some kids step up into a 
key role for us, and we need that. We need every-
one to have the confidence to take big swings 

when they get the ball.”

FLORENCE SWEEPS COMBS
Florence traveled to San Tan Valley on Oct. 22 

and completed a three-game sweep of Combs — 
25-11, 25-20, 25-16. 

Alexis Villalobos had 12 of Florence’s 31 kills, 
followed by Mikayla Flores with eight. Cassy Wil-
liams registered 31 assists, and Patricia Giddens-
Acuna had 11 digs and two aces. Flores and Jay-
cee Johnson had nine and eight digs, respectively, 
and Payton Cap had five digs.

Continued from Page 10

Volleyball

PADILLA PARK — 
Padilla family members 
and friends join town 
officials last Thursday 
night for the dedica-
tion of the new Padilla 
Park behind Silver King 
Marketplace.
Below, park visitors 
check out the “splash 
pad” feature, and 
Tequila Highways per-
forms.

Photos by 

Mark Cowling/Florence Reminder

From the Pinal County
Sheriff’s Office

In Pinal County, there are 754 
registered sex offenders, and 
we want you to know where 
they reside so that your chil-
dren can avoid the homes when 
trick-or-treating. Arizona law 
requires sex offenders to notify 
law enforcement agencies where 
they reside. Our detectives send 
out notifications to our Pinal 
County residents so they are 
aware if a prior sex offender 
moves into their neighborhood. 
Citizens can also visit our web-
site 

http://www.icrimewatch.net/
index.php?AgencyID=55023, 
to see who the registered sex 
offenders are and where they are 
living. Citizens are encouraged 
to check any addresses where 
they or their family spend time. 
The mapping and address fea-
ture found on the website pin-
points exactly where an offender 
lives. 

You will also find many other 
beneficial tools such as the abil-
ity to sign up for free automatic 
email notifications informing 
you if an offender moves within 
a specified radius of any address 

you register. If you aren’t plan-
ning on trick-or-treating in your 
neighborhood, but will be in a 
different neighborhood, register 
that address beforehand so you 
know which houses to avoid. 
You can register any and all 
addresses where your children 
spend time; for example: friends, 
grandparents, or babysitters’ 
addresses. The alerts are in real-
time and sent out via e-mail 
as soon as a new offender has 
registered with the Pinal County 
Sheriff’s Office. 

Sheriff Paul Babeu stated, 
“The benefit of registering for 
this free confidential email alert 
service is that it allows us to 
monitor important addresses for 
you, thereby keeping you up to 
date of newly registered offend-
ers and making it unnecessary 
for you to have to check impor-
tant addresses daily or even 
weekly.” 

The Pinal County Sheriff’s 
Office has the below listed tips 
to make Halloween 2014 a safe 
and enjoyable holiday. 

• Wear light colored clothing 
that’s short enough to prevent 
tripping and, if possible, add 
reflective tape to the sides, front 

and back of the costume. 
• Make sure your child can 

see well through a face mask, 
or use cosmetics to create fun or 
scary faces. 

• Adults should accompany 
young children. 

• Have a flashlight and glow 
sticks available. 

• Stay within the neighbor-
hood and only visit the homes of 
friends and relatives. 

• Watch traffic.
• Only give and receive 

wrapped or packaged candy. 
• Examine all candy before 

allowing children to eat it. 
• Keep costumed children 

away from pets. The pet may not 
recognize the child and become 
frightened. 

• Avoid hard plastic or wood 
props such as daggers or swords. 
Substitute with foam rubber 
which is soft and flexible. 

• Only go to homes with a 
porch light on. 

• Never enter a stranger’s 
home or vehicle for a treat. 

Have children wait until they 
are at home and after the treat 
has been examined by an adult 
before consuming it. 

Email alerts tell parents
where sex offenders live

Take care that Halloween isn’t 
too scary for its youngest fans Keep the name?

Neither is Homan convinced 
that “San Tan Valley” should be 
the new city’s name.

“We have been asked if we 
plan to push for a name change 
from San Tan Valley. As many 
know, the naming ordeal around 
San Tan Valley was an ugly pro-
cess, mainly due to the time 
restraints given with the last zip 
code change and then later also 
found that there was a conflict 
of interest with the selection of 
the name to which web domain 
was already owned by someone 
sourcing the online poll.

“If this conflict of interest was 
brought forward at the time of 
decision, the online poll should 
have been discarded, leaving 
only the paper poll results which 
favored another name with a sig-
nificant margin, but a result that 
would not be questioned. For this 
reason only, in my personal opin-
ion, it would be best to actually 
bring the vote to the people with 
a process that does not need to 
bring a question of authenticity 
to the equation, despite if the 

online results were accurate or 
not.

“Regardless of how this pro-
cess was done, we would need 
to take into consideration the 
impacts both positive and nega-
tive in changing the name. One 
factor could be the size of the 
area that incorporates.”

Residents for a New Valley 
Town haven’t been making a lot 
of noise so far, but they’re work-
ing toward their goals, Homan 
said.

“Overall, our committee efforts 
have been quiet in comparison to 
the 2010 effort which first started 
with a signature campaign. But 
rest assured efforts are in action 
and are being done to prevent 
‘last hour’ surprises that bring 
lots of effort to an end quickly.

“Once we get all the town 
managers on the same page with 
our boundary goals, we would 
then seek resolutions from the 
council members and then start 
the education process to the resi-
dents via public ‘Town Hall’ ses-
sions and seek additional help to 
drive the signature campaign to 
bring the option to vote.”

Continued from Page 1

San Tan Valley

Find a bargain in the Classifieds
p. 11.

We Are A Full-Service Auto Repair Shop

See The Experts...
 and sink your teeth 
into these savings!

Serving Pinal County For Over 30 Years

Auto Care
Service 
Center

South Arizona Blvd.  •  Coolidge

“Your Complete 
Auto Center”

Manatee Tire & Auto Inc.
THE TIRE FACTORY 723-7840

$$27277070
Includes Tax and up to 5 qts. of Oil, Includes Tax and up to 5 qts. of Oil, 
Filter & Lube. Excludes SyntheticFilter & Lube. Excludes Synthetic

Convenience • Expertise • Performance
•  Check Belts And 

Hoses
• Check For Leaks
• Inspect A/C

Air
Conditioning

$3995 $5895

PASSENGER 
CARS & MOST 

LIGHT
 TRUCKS, PLUS 
PARTS & SHIMS

Wheel 
Alignment

FREEFREE
ENGINE LIGHTENGINE LIGHT

CHECKCHECK

FREEFREE
BRAKEBRAKE
CHECKCHECK

• Air conditioning
• Alignments
• Batteries
• Belts & hoses
•  Brakes & 

suspension

• Differentials
• Electrical
• Exhaust system
• Fuel pumps
• Oil changes
• Radiators

• Shocks & struts
• Tires
• Tune-ups & more

We Carry Most Brands!



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
6b. 

MEETING DATE: August 17, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT: Parks and Recreation  
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Bryan Hughes, Parks & Recreation 
                                     Director  
 
SUBJECT: Library/Recreation Complex Project Update 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject: Library/Recreation Complex Project Update  Meeting Date: August 17, 2015 
Page 1 of 2 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Information only 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
On September 15, 2014, the Town Council approved a design-build contract with Low 
Mountain Construction, Inc., for the design and construction of the Library and 
Recreation Complex. 
 
A formal ground breaking for the project was held on October 30, 2014, attended by 
Town staff, Boards and Commission members, special guests and residents.  A Notice 
to Proceed was issued in November and work commenced on November 24, 2014. 
 
On July 4, 2015, the Aquatic Center opened following a ribbon cutting by the Mayor and 
Town Council. 
 
The remainder of the project is scheduled to be complete in early September.  A change 
order formalizing a contract extension is on the agenda for Council action. 
 
The Library and Community Center is scheduled to open to the public on Monday, 
August 31, 2015, or sooner, depending on the time needed to setup the Library. 
 
A grand opening celebration for the entire complex is scheduled for Saturday, October 
3, 2015.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The Library and Community Center, Aquatic Center and Athletic Fields and Sport 
Courts will cost $13,139,225 for design services and construction. 
 



Subject: Library/Recreation Complex Project Update  Meeting Date: August 17, 2015 
Page 2 of 2 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Information only 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
None 



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
7a. 

MEETING DATE:  August 17, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT: Parks and Recreation  
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Bryan C. Hughes 
                                     Parks and Recreation Director 
 
SUBJECT:    Resolution No. 1529-15: adopting the Parks and 
                      Recreation Mission, Vision and Values. 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject: Resolution No. 1529-15 Parks and Recreation 2015 Mission, Vision & Values                
Meeting Date: August 17, 2015 
Page 1 of 2 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 1529-15:  A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, ADOPTING THE PARKS AND 
RECREATION 2015 MISSION, VISION AND VALUES FOR THE PARKS AND 
RECREATION DEPARTMENT OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, ARIZONA. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
In June 2014, a parks and recreation staff and Parks and Recreation Advisory Board 
retreat was held at the Holiday Inn Express.  The retreat focused on team building; a 
SWOT analysis (strengths, weaknesses, opportunities and threats); setting goals for the 
upcoming year; and developing a mission statement, a vision statement and a set of 
values for the Department. 
 
Over the past year, staff and the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board has revisited the 
draft mission, vision and values that came from the retreat and continued to modify and 
enhance what was discussed.  The result is the Parks and Recreation 2015 Mission, 
Vision and Values presented in Exhibit A, which were approved by the Board on June 
25, 2015. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
While there are no direct costs associated with adopting the Parks and Recreation 2015 
Mission, Vision and Values, the annual budget will allow the Department to implement 
the statements and values set forth. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends adoption of Resolution No. 1529-15.    
 



Subject: Resolution No. 1529-15 Parks and Recreation 2015 Mission, Vision & Values                
Meeting Date: August 17, 2015 
Page 2 of 2 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Resolution No. 1529-15 
Exhibit A - Parks and Recreation 2015 Mission, Vision and Values 



 
RESOULUTION NO. 1529-15 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, ADOPTING PARKS AND RECREATION 2015 MISSION, 
VISION AND VALUES FOR THE PARKS AND RECREATION 
DEPARTMENT OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, ARIZONA. 

 
WHEREAS, the Town of Florence Parks and Recreation Department has begun 

the process of strategically planning for the future of the department; and 
 

WHEREAS, critical components include formulating a mission statement that 
defines the department’s purpose; and formulating a vision statement that determines 
what the department will look like if it achieves its true potential; and 
 

WHEREAS, another critical component of the strategic planning process include 
defining the values that guide the department’s interaction within the Town government, 
the business community, other private and public sector entities, and most importantly, 
the citizens we serve; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Parks and Recreation 2015 Mission, Vision and Values will be 
used as a guide for establishing strategic priorities. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the Town of Florence, 
Arizona, as follows: The Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence hereby adopt 
Exhibit A as the Parks and Recreation 2015 Mission, Vision and Values for the Parks 
and Recreation Department of the Town of Florence, Arizona. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY the Mayor and Town Council of the Town of 
Florence, Arizona, this 17th day of August 2015. 
 
 
             
       Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
             
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk    Clifford L. Mattice, Town Attorney 



 

Tow

Miss
 

Miss
The m
and f
 

Visio
The T
Parks
role i
prog
provi
conti

Valu
Exce
We a
 
Profe
We a
educ
 
Partn
We a
servi
 
Healt
We a
 
Qual
We a
 
Fun! 
We a
parks
 
Histo
We a
 
Integ
We a
 

wn of Florenc

sion, Vision 

sion Stateme
mission of the
facilities that 

on Statemen
Town of Flore
s and Recreat
in providing q
ramming and
ide complete
inue to be a m

ues 
ptional Custo

are committe

essionalism 
are committe
cation, trainin

nerships 
are committe
ces and facili

th and Welln
are committe

ity 
are committe

are committe
s and facilitie

ory 
are committe

grity 
are committe

ce Parks and

and Values 

ent 
e Florence Pa
enrich the qu

nt 
ence, Arizona
tion Departm
quality of life 
d events, as w
 recreation ce

major partner

omer Service 
d to providin

d to parks an
ng and certific

d to working 
ties and prev

ness 
d to providin

d to providin

d to helping o
s. 

d to rememb

d to being th

d Recreation

arks and Recre
uality of life fo

 has a rich an
ent recognize
experiences f

well as picture
enters, new a
r in tourism o

g you, our res

d recreation 
cations. 

with organiza
vent duplicatio

g programs, p

g high quality

our residents

bering the hist

e best, doing 

E

n Departme

eation Depart
or all resident

nd diverse hist
es the town’s
for our citizen

e perfect park
and expanded
opportunities 

sidents and v

and strive to 

ations that al
on. 

parks and fac

y programs, p

 and visitors h

tory of Floren

our best, acc

EXHIBIT A

ent 

tment is to p
ts. 

tory while se
s heritage and
ns and visitor

ks and other p
d parks and sa
as well as eco

visitors, with t

be the best p

ign with our 

ilities that im

parks and faci

have fun, wh

nce and comm

cepting nothin

rovide progra

rving as the c
d emergence 
rs.  We will co
park and recr
afe, develope
onomic and c

the level of se

professionals 

Mission, Visio

mprove the he

lities at a rea

ile participati

memorating t

ng less and h

ams, services

county seat fo
as a regional

ontinue to pro
eation faciliti

ed trails.  Park
cultural prosp

ervice you de

we can be th

on and Value

ealth and wel

asonable cost 

ing in our pro

that in our pr

olding oursel

 

or Pinal Coun
 leader, and e
ovide quality,
ies.  The Depa
ks and Recrea
pects.  

eserve. 

hrough contin

s to provide p

lness of our r

for residents

ograms or visi

ograms and p

lves accounta

ty.  Florence 
embraces ou
, affordable 
artment will 
ation will 

nuing 

programs, 

residents. 

s and visitors.

iting our 

planning. 

able. 

 

r 

 



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
7b. 

MEETING DATE:  August 17, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Finance 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Lisa Garcia, Interim Town Manager 
 
SUBJECT:   Resolution No. 1534-15:  Signatory for all Town  
                     bank accounts. 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject:  Resolution No. 1534-15 Bank Signatories                                  Meeting Date:  August 17, 2015 
Page 1 of 2 
 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Adopt Resolution 1534-15:  A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL 
COUNTY, ARIZONA, AUTHORIZING MAYOR TOM J. RANKIN, INTERIM TOWN 
MANAGER LISA GARCIA AND FINANCE DIRECTOR GABRIEL GARCIA TO ACT AS 
SIGNATORIES FOR THE TRANSACTION OF BUSINESS ON ALL TOWN OF 
FLORENCE BANK ACCOUNTS, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
A resolution must be adopted naming staff authorized to sign on the Town’s bank 
accounts.  New signature cards need to be completed. 
 
Currently the Mayor, Interim Town Manager and Interim Finance Director are authorized 
signers.  This resolution removes Interim Finance Director Marcia Goerdt and adds the 
Finance Director Gabriel Garcia to the appointed signatories for banking functions. 
 
The following accounts are included: National Bank of Arizona General Checking 
Account, National Bank of Arizona Payroll Account, Local Governmental Investment 
Pool #7, Local Governmental Investment Pool #5, Stifel, Nicolaus & Company Inc. 
Investment Account. 
 
This resolution will be effective immediately.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
None  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Adopt Resolution No. 1534-15 
 



Subject:  Resolution No. 1534-15 Bank Signatories                                  Meeting Date:  August 17, 2015 
Page 2 of 2 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Resolution No. 1534-15 



RESOLUTION NO. 1534-15 
 

A RESOLUTION OF TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING MAYOR TOM J. RANKIN, 
INTERIM TOWN MANAGER LISA GARCIA, AND FINANCE DIRECTOR 
GABRIEL GARCIA TO ACT AS SIGNATORIES FOR THE 
TRANSACTION OF BUSINESS ON THE TOWN OF FLORENCE 
BANKING ACCOUNTS, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 

 
 WHEREAS, the Finance Director has been hired effective July 31, 2015, and it is 
therefore necessary to approve new signature authorizations for the Town’s bank 
accounts. 
 
 BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED, that Mayor Tom J. Rankin, Interim Town Manager 
Lisa Garcia, and Finance Director Gabriel Garcia are authorized as signatories for the 
following bank accounts: 
 

1. National Bank of Arizona - General Checking and Investment Account  
2. National Bank of Arizona Payroll Checking Account 
3. State of Arizona Local Governmental Investment Pool-All Accounts 
4. Stifel, Nicolaus & Company, Inc. Investment Account 
 

The immediate operation of this resolution is necessary for preservation of the public 
peace, health and safety of the Town of Florence and an emergency is hereby declared 
to exist; and this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from the offer of its passage 
and approval by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence with an effective date of 
August 17, 2015. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY the Mayor and Town Council of the Town of 
Florence, Arizona, this 17th day of August 2015. 
 
 
       __________________________ 
       Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
___________________________  __________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk    Clifford L. Mattice, Town Attorney 



 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 

 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
7c. 

MEETING DATE:  August 17, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Lisa Garcia, Interim Town Manager 
 
SUBJECT:    Proclamation declaring August 2015 as Child  
                     Support Awareness Month. 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 
Subject:  Child Support Awareness Month Proclamation Meeting Date: August 17, 2015 
Page 1 of 2 

 
Governor Doug Ducey, along with the Arizona Department of Economic Security - 
Division of Child Support Services, has asked that the Town of Florence proclaim 
August 2015 as Child Support Awareness Month.   
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The Division of Child Support Services is committed to serving Arizona families and 
fosters the philosophy that both parents need to be an integral part of a child’s life in 
order to allow the child to reach his/her full potential.   
 
The Division of Child Support Enforcement has changed its name to The Division of 
Child Support Services, which better identifies that they are a support service with an 
emphasis on positive customer engagement.   
 
Tasked with being the fiduciary for determining legal parentage and establishing and 
enforcing support orders, their ultimate goal is to improve the lives of the children and 
families they serve.  They work with several organizations to assist with parental 
responsibility to ensure that the children receive support from both parents, even though 
they live in separate households.   
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
None 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Proclaim August 2015 as Child Support Awareness Month. 
 
 
 



Subject:  Child Support Awareness Month Proclamation Meeting Date: August 17, 2015 
Page 2 of 2 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Proclamation 
State Proclamation 
 



TOWN OF FLORENCE 
Office of the Mayor   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CHILD SUPPORT AWARENESS MONTH 
AUGUST 2015 

 
WHEREAS, Since 1995, the United States has been honoring Child Support 

Awareness Month during the month of August; and Past President Bill Clinton stated 
that providing for our children is one of humanity’s worthiest and most fundamental 
endeavors. Children are the best part of ourselves – the sum of our past and the 
promise of our future, the guarantee that our lives and values and dreams will flourish 
long after we are gone; and  

 
WHEREAS, Child Support Awareness Month is a time to salute parents who 

work hard to ensure their children grow up in stable homes and look forward to a bright 
future; and 

 
WHEREAS, Child Support Awareness Month is aimed at spotlighting the 

important role parents play in supporting their children physically, mentally, and 
emotionally; and is also aimed at recognizing the many parents and child support 
professionals that work hard to improve the lives of children affected by parental 
separation; and  

 
WHEREAS, with the focus of partnering being of great importance, the 

Department of Economic Security is changing the name of the Division of Child Support 
Enforcement to the Division of Child Support Services, with the division taking the steps 
to effectively educate and train all child support staff and partners to provide positive 
customer engagement and having available quality supportive services within the 
community to effectively aid parents as they work to meet the physical development, 
emotional growth, and economic stability of Arizona’s children.   

 
NOW, THEREFORE, I, Tom J. Rankin, Mayor of the Town of Florence, Arizona, 

do hereby proclaim August as CHILD SUPPORT AWARENESS MONTH in the Town of 
Florence, Arizona, and urge all citizens to come forward and do something positive that 
will help support those children care. 
 

Dated this 17th day of August 2015. 
 
________________________________ 
Tom J. Rankin, Mayor  

 
ATTEST:       
 
_________________________________  
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk   





  

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
7d. 

MEETING DATE:  August 17, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Public Works Department  
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Wayne J. Costa P.E.  
                                      Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Approval of Change Order Requests with Currier 
                    Construction, Inc., for improvements to the South 
                    Wastewater Treatment Plant Reuse Pump  
                    Station and Chlorine Facility Upgrades Project.   

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject: Approval of Change Orders with Currier Construction, Inc.   Meeting date: August 17, 2015 
Page 1 of 4  
 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to approve Change Order Requests Nos. 1 through 4 with Currier Construction, 
Inc., for addition and deletion of several Change Order Requests at the South 
Wastewater Treatment Plant (SWWTP) during the construction of the reuse pump 
station, chlorine facility upgrade and operations building, for a total of $14,998.87, for a 
total project cost not to exceed $1,564,182.87. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
  
Currier Construction, Inc. is in the process of completing the work for the SWWTP.  
Several change orders have been requested that were completed and one will be 
completed upon the action taken on these Change Order Requests.  The Change Order 
Requests exist as follows: 
 
         Amount   Council Approval 
Contract Awarded:       $1,549,184.00  September 2, 2014 
Change Order No. 1 (Requested)  $          999.02  Pending Council Approval 
Change Order No. 2 (Requested)  $       5,710.67  Pending Council Approval 
Change Order No. 3 (Requested)  $     13,604.18  Pending Council Approval 
Change Order No. 4 (Requested)  $     (5,315.00)  Pending Council Approval 
Amended Amount     $1,564,182.87  
 
On September 2, 2014, Council approved the contract with Currier Construction, Inc., to 
construct improvements at the SWWTP, including the construction of the reuse pump 
station, upgrading the chlorine facility and expansion of the operations building.  The 
amount of the award was $1,549,184. 
 
The following Change Order Requests, as noted above, detail the unforeseen 
conditions, work outside the scope of their contract or extra items that were not 
rendered necessarily by any fault of the Contractor: 



Subject: Approval of Change Orders with Currier Construction, Inc.  Meeting date: August 17, 2015 
Page 2 of 4 
 
 

  
  
 

Change Order Request No. 1 
The sample pump controls from the contract documents call for it to have 
a 120-Volt phase motor to be controlled from a Motor Control Center 
(MCC) bucket, per the specifications.  A change was requested to alter the 
power to 3-Phase requiring a motor change; thus, voiding the 
manufacturer’s warranty while the additional pump costs would be $3,044; 
notwithstanding the fact that the singe phase pumps were delivered.  In 
lieu of changing the sample pump to 3-Phase, the Contractor has 
proposed and performed the necessary labor, materials and equipment to 
change the power feed to a lighting panel, which modifies the bucket to 
make it a spare while installing a 40-amp breaker in the lighting panel and 
the appropriate on/off control at the sample pump.  This work was 
completed on June 9, 2015. 
 
This Change Order Request work was recommended by the Engineer 
(Water Works Engineers) who provides support to the Owner’s 
Representative, the former Utilities Director, who verbally agreed to the 
Town authorizing the Change Order Request.  
 

 Change Order Request No. 2 
The initial design for the instrumentation and controls was necessary to 
provide the design of the chlorination system and basically was from the 
piping and instrumentation diagram/drawing (P&ID) which shows the 
interconnection of the process equipment with its instrumentation to 
control the process. 
 
The P&ID were prepared prior to Arizona Department of Environmental 
Quality’s (ADEQ) Consent Order; hence, ADEQ’s feedback was to provide 
a more automated system to enhance system reliability, especially after 
hours when no operators are available.  The higher automation allows for 
remote monitoring and reduces possibilities of violating permit 
requirements; thus, enhancing the data acquisition and supervisory control 
for the system.  The RTUs’, originally providing the monitoring at a remote 
location now provides the appropriate monitoring signal and control to the 
disinfection panel.  This work was completed on May 28, 2015. 
 
This Change Order Request work was recommended by the Engineer 
(Water Works Engineers) who provides support to the Owner’s 
Representative, the former Utilities Director, who verbally agreed to the 
Town authorizing the Change Order Request.  

 
 
 



Subject: Approval of Change Orders with Currier Construction, Inc.  Meeting date: August 17, 2015 
Page 3 of 4 
 
 

 Change Order Request No. 3 
Plans were submitted to the Community Development Department on 
March 17, 2014.  No comments were received during this process 
regarding the fire alarm system.  Upon a field walk by the fire inspector, it 
was determined that a fire alarm control panel, interior strobes and other 
minor items would be required prior to Certificate of Occupancy.  As a 
result, it was necessary to complete this item to receive the Certificate of 
Occupancy for the Operations Building.  The work was completed on May 
7, 2015.   
 
Additionally, a shade canopy was needed to be installed to accommodate 
installation of Motor Control Center (MCC) equipment which requires 
protection of the Variable Frequency Drives needing protection from direct 
heat. Additional modification to the MCC Pad was required to 
accommodate the canopy structure as well as the MCC provided. 
 
The work on the Fire Alarm Panel was completed on May 7, 2015, while 
the work on the MCC panel extension was completed on June 22, 2015.  
 
This Change Order Request work was recommended by the Engineer 
(Water Works Engineers) who provides support to the Owner’s 
Representative, the former Utilities Director, who verbally agreed to the 
Town authorizing the Change Order Request. 

 
Change Order Request No. 4 

In lieu of a cast-in-place vault for the Reuse Vault, a precast vault was 
installed; thus, resulting in a cost savings of $5,315.  This work was 
completed on May 14, 2015, and was the result of a requested change 
from the Contractor to the Engineer to provide a savings.  This work was 
completed on May 18, 2015. 

 
This Change Order Request work was recommended by the Engineer 
(Water Works Engineers) who provides support to the Owner’s 
Representative, the former Utilities Director, who verbally agreed to the 
Town authorizing the Change Order Request.  

 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The costs associated with Change Order Request Nos. 1 through 4 are $14,998.87, and 
the funding is available in three projects that were eliminated, that being SU-05, SU-06 
and SU-11, as noted in the Request for Council Action of September 2, 2014; and 
hence, their accepted elimination. 
 
 
 
 



Subject: Approval of Change Orders with Currier Construction, Inc.  Meeting date: August 17, 2015 
Page 4 of 4 
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends the approval of all four Change Order Requests for work completed 
with Currier Construction, Inc., for the Reuse Pump Station and Chlorine Facility 
Upgrades Project with costs as recommended by the Consultant Resident Engineer for 
each Change Order Requested. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
September 2, 2014 Council Action Form 
Change Order No. 1 
Change Order Request No. 1 dated June 25, 2015  
Change Order Request No. 2 dated June 26, 2015  
Change Order Request No. 3 dated June 26, 2015  
Change Order Request No. 4 (a.k.a. Cast-in-Place vs. Precast Vault Credit) dated June 
28, 2015. 
  
 







































































 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
7e. 

MEETING DATE:  August 17, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Parks and Recreation  
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Bryan C. Hughes 
                                      Parks and Recreation Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Library/Recreation Complex Design-Build 
                    Contract Change Order No. 2 with Low Mountain  
                    Construction, Inc.   

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
Subject: Library/Recreation Complex Change Order No. 2 Meeting Date: August 17, 2015 
Page 1 of 2 

 
Motion to approve Change Order No. 2 to the Library/Recreation Complex design-build 
contract with Low Mountain Construction, Inc., increasing the number of days for 
completion to 294 days. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
In September 2014, the Town Council approved a design-build contract with Low 
Mountain Construction, Inc., for design development and construction of a new 
Library/Recreation Center/Aquatic Complex.  The contract included 240 days for 
construction from the time the Notice to Proceed was issued.  Staff issued the Notice to 
Proceed on November 24, 2014; therefore, completion was to be July 22, 2015. 
 
Due to significant delays related to coordinating with San Carlos Irrigation Project 
(SCIP) and San Carlos Irrigation and Drainage District (SCIDD) and their consultants, 
as well as delays in delivery of key materials from suppliers and subcontractors, Low 
Mountain Construction Inc., requested additional time to complete the project.  The 
Project Manager and Town staff agreed to additional time to complete the project based 
on the circumstances presented.  An additional 54 days were suggested by Town staff 
and will give Low Mountain the time necessary to complete the project.  This would 
change the substantial completion date to September 15, 2015.  The change will not 
prevent the Parks and Recreation Department or the Library from moving into the 
Library and Community Center and opening later this month. 
 
Low Mountain Construction, Inc. has gone above and beyond on the project and Town 
staff is requesting the Town Council approve the new completion date with a formal 
change order. 
 



Subject: Library/Recreation Complex Change Order No. 2 Meeting Date: August 17, 2015 
Page 2 of 2 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The additional time necessary for completion does not increase the cost of the project.  
In fact, the Town may realize savings in the facility budget from the delayed opening. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of the motion as presented. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Change Order No. 2 



08-10-15



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
7f. 

MEETING DATE:  August 17, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Public Works Department  
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Wayne J. Costa, P.E. 
                                      Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Approval of Change Order No. 2 with Garney  

Construction for the North Florence Reservoir 
and Pump Station. 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject: Approval of CO No. 2 with Garney Construction  Meeting date: August 17, 2015 
Page 1 of 3  
 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Approval of Change Order No. 2 with Garney Construction, for a credit of $32,084.00, 
for a total project cost reduced to $1,691,358, and extending the project completion date 
to October 30, 2015. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
  
On February 2, 2015, Council authorized a Notice of Award to Garney Construction, for 
the North Florence Reservoir and Pump Station for an amount not to exceed 
$1,716,000.   On June 22, 2015, the Council authorized Change Order No. 1, which 
resulted in an increase to the contract amount by $7,442, making the total price not to 
exceed $1,723,442.  
 
Garney Construction is in the process of completing the work for the North Florence 
Reservoir and Pump Station.  Several Change Order requests were evaluated, as noted 
below.  The requested change requests had been reviewed by the Water Works 
Resident Engineer and the Town has found them to be acceptable.  
 
          Amount  Council Approval 
Current Contract:        $1,723,442  February 2, 2015  
Change Order No. 1            7,442  June 22, 2015 
Change Order No. 2   ($   32,084)   Council Pending 
New Contract Amount    $1,691,358  

 
Change Order No. 1 was made up of Change Order Request No. 1, No. 2, No 3, and 
No. 4. 
 
Change Order No. 2 is made up of Change Order Request No. 5, No. 6, No. 7, No. 8 
and No. 9.  

 
Change Order Request No. 5 

It is noted that Change Order Request No. 5 was installed on May 5, 
2015, and was not included in Change Order No. 1 presented for Council 



Subject: Approval of CO No. 2 with Garney Construction  Meeting date: August 17, 2015 
Page 2 of 3 
 
 

Action on June 22, 2015, by the former Utilities Director even though the 
requested Change Order Request No. 5 was submitted on May 20, 2015.  
It is my understanding that this construction occurred in order to meet the 
milestone schedule date in order to isolate the new water tank discharge 
system at the tie-in location. 

 
 Change Order Request No. 6  
  Change order No. 6 was deleted because work was not required.  
 

Change Order Request Nos. 7, 8 and 9 
Subsequently, Council also asked the question on June 22, 2015, as to 
who made the error in regards to the topographic survey issue.  The 
following information was determined: 
 

a. The Town Engineer made the following comments when the 
Town Engineer reviewed the 60% design drawings.  
“Provide benchmark to a Town of Florence benchmark 
datum” (document attached). 
 

b. The designer added the information shown on the cover 
sheet for the bid documents.  (Sheet attached and comment 
noted.) 
 

c. The Town of Florence acting/Interim Public Works Director 
reviewed and approved the cover sheet and approved the 
benchmark information on as part of the bid documents.  It is 
also noted that the site plan was also provided as part of the 
bid comments approved by the former Utilities Director on 
December 9, 2014. 
 

d. As a result the grading information presented in the design 
and in response to several RFI’s resulted in erroneous 
information as being a basis of design. 
 

e. Subsequently the Town Engineer assumed the project on 
July 1, 2015; and immediately noted the discrepancies when 
addressing various Requests for Change Requests.  These 
requests were the results of the ripple effect due to the 
“topographic” survey error within the bid documents.  In 
conjunction with the Engineer, the effects of the causes of 
the “topographic” error were minimized by: 
 

1) Eliminating a new drainage structure with 12-inch 
piping and substituting a drainage swale.  This 
attributed to a savings of approximately $14,026 
proposed in Change Order Request No. 6 (previously 
submitted).  
 



Subject: Approval of CO No. 2 with Garney Construction  Meeting date: August 17, 2015 
Page 3 of 3 
 
 

2) Eliminating a new retaining wall along the North 
entrance road to the west of the entrance gate 
approximately 70’ long with additional height to the 
entrance gate wall as proposed in the original Change 
Order Request No. 7 for $23,649.  This attributed to a 
net savings of due to the cost of the wall; however, a 
cost of it’s needed to the entrance gate wall for gate 
support at its’ left abutment for $1,386. 
 
A more proper approach for such matters is to 
regrade and feather in the northern side of the access 
road to a reasonable fill slope allowing access to the 
existing landscaped vehicular path while 
accommodating the landscaped walkway path within 
the Vista Hermosa Homeowner’s Association (HOA) 
common space area.  The Town Engineer had also 
noted this item in the 60% review comments in 
regards to the criticality of interfacing with the HOA. 
 
3) Deletion of asphalt and its associated curb and 
gutter at a point 50 feet beyond the gate entrance.  
This is not needed as the normal trip to the well site 
on a daily basis is one trip for maintenance and 
operational control.  Monthly trips are typically made 
by Cell Tower personnel.  This amounted to a savings 
of $37,677. 

 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The credit for Change Order No. 2 is $32,084.00 and should be returned to the 
budgetary fund. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approval of Change Order No. 2 with Garney Construction, for a credit of $32,084.00, 
for a total project cost reduced to $1,691,358, and extending the project completion date 
to October 30, 2015. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
• North Florence 1 MG Reservoir Comments Volume 2 of 2 (60%) dated June 2014 
• Sheet C100 dated 12/9/14 
• Change Order No. 2 
• Change Order Request No. 5 dated May 20, 2015 
• Change Order Request No. 7 dated July 15, 2015 
• Change Order Request No. 8 dated July 29, 2015 
• Change Order Request No. 9 dated July 29, 2015 















































 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
7g. 

MEETING DATE:  August 17, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Public Works Department  
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Wayne J. Costa, P.E. 
                                      Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Approval of Change Order Requests to McCain  
                    Construction, LLC, for work associated with the  
                    construction of the Well #4 to Well #5  
                    Transmission Main Project. 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject: Approval of CO’s with McCain Construction  Meeting date: August 17, 2015 
Page 1 of 4  
 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to approve Change Order Requests No. 1, 2, 5, 7, 8 and 9 with McCain 
Construction, LLC, for a total of $33,840, for a total project cost not to exceed $717,434. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
  
The Well #4 to Well #5 Transmission Main Project had been designed to enhance water 
supply and availability to downtown Florence by providing a direct line between the new 
Well #3 to the Well #5 reservoir.  This project is a precursor to future improvements to 
the Well #5 booster pump station and reservoir, as noted previously. 
 
McCain Construction, LLC, has completed the work for the Well #4 to Well #5 
Transmission Main Project.  Several Change Orders Requests were all completed.  
These Change Orders are as follows: 
 
          Amount   Council Approval 
Contract Awarded:        $683,594  April 20, 2015  
Change Order No. 1 (Requested)   $    2,774  Pending Council Approval 
Change Order No. 2 (Requested)   $    5,496  Pending Council Approval 
Change Order No. 3    N/A  Deleted 
Change Order No. 4   N/A  Deleted 
Change Order No. 5 (Requested)   $    4,582  Pending Council Approval 
Change Order No. 6   N/A  Deleted 
Change Order No. 7 (Requested)   $    6,384  Pending Council Approval 
Change Order No. 8 (Requested)   $    2,216  Pending Council Approval 
Change Order No. 9 (Requested)   $  12,388  Pending Council Approval 
Amended Amount      $717,434  
 
The various Change Order Requests are enumerated in the following paragraphs 
depicting the needs for the Change Order, primarily due to unforeseen conditions 
encountered by the contractor and agreement by the Owner’s Project Manager (the 
former Utilities Director) to pay extra either by his words, conduct or documentation.    



Subject: Approval of CO’s with McCain Construction  Meeting date: August 17, 2015 
Page 2 of 4 
 
 

 
Most of the Change Order Requests notes are a result of a constructive change 
whereby the Contractor was forced to expend additional sums because of defective 
plans and/or specifications.  The reason for each Change Order Request is explicitly 
provided based upon available information from the Engineer who, by Task Order, is 
required to review and approve Requests for Information (RFI’s). 
 
The reason for the Change Orders are as follows: 
 

Change Order Request No. 1 
Change Request No. 1 is to remove unforeseen concrete located at Ruggles 
Street, specifically at two locations.  Institutional knowledge existed for this 
possibility that the underlying concrete existed and was noted in discussions with 
the Project Manager during initial design phases of the Project; and thus, it 
should have been included as an allowance.  Based upon reasonable evaluation 
of the quantity and location involved, it is our opinion that the costs are typical of 
similar unforeseen conditions of subsurface feature known to the Contractor.  
This work was completed on May 7, 2015. 

 
The Change Request No. 1 was recommended by the Engineer in accordance 
with Request for Information (RFI) No. 5 who provided support to the Owner’s 
Representative, the former Utilities Director, who had directed McCain 
Construction, LLC, to apply for payment in the Final Application for payment. 

 
Change Order Request No. 2 
Change Request No. 2 is for the sewer services not typically shown on the plans, 
especially locations that were installed years ago.  As mentioned, institutional 
knowledge in preparation of the plans would have prevented such an occurrence.  
These were seen as unforeseen conditions and were not blue staked for the 
Contractor who encountered eight sewer services requiring relocation of the 
waterlines in vertical alignment.  Based upon a reasonable evaluation of the 
number of services involved and the elevation changes required, it is our opinion 
that the costs are typical of similar unforeseen conditions.  This work was 
completed from the period May 7 through May 18, 2015. 

 
Change Request No. 2 was recommended by the Engineer in accordance with 
Request for Information (RFI) No. 7 who provided support to the Owner’s 
Representative, the former Utilities Director, who had directed McCain 
Construction, LLC, to apply for payment in the Final Application for payment. 
 
Change Order Request No. 5 
Change Request is for adjustment of a vertical realignment of the waterline at 8th 
Street and its angle in order to cross an existing storm drain which substantiated 
the need to reroute the line to accommodate the storm drain line.  The existing 
location of the storm drain required the vertical realignment of the pipe.  An 
immediate adjustment due to existing field conditions of the storm drain required 
relocation of the pipe.  This work was completed on May 19 and May 20, 2015.   
 



Subject: Approval of CO’s with McCain Construction  Meeting date: August 17, 2015 
Page 3 of 4 
 
 

Change Request No. 5 was recommended by the Engineer without a Request for 
Information (RFI) who provided support to the Owner’s Representative, the 
former Utilities Director, who had directed McCain Construction, LLC, to apply for 
payment in the Final Application for payment. 
 
Change Order Request No. 7 
Change Request No. 7 is for the necessary replacement of asphalt that was 
removed and eventually replaced due to poor existing pavement condition and 
also the Contractor’s encounter with an abandoned wood waterline.  The 
combination of the existing abandoned waterline and the sluffing of the asphalt 
caused by the adjacent waterline increased the pavement quantities necessary 
to patch the area in question.  This work was completed on June 12, 2015. 

 
Change Request No. 7 was recommended by the Engineer in accordance with 
Request for Information (RFI) No. 10 who provided support to the Owner’s 
Representative, the former Utilities Director, who had directed McCain 
Construction, LLC, to apply for payment in the Final Application for payment. 
 
Change Order Request No. 8 
Change Request No. 8 is for the adding of a tapping sleeve and valve instead of 
cutting in a mechanical joint tee on an existing 8-inch waterline.  This is due to 
the fact that the tie in of the 12-inch line could not be made since the 8-inch water 
main could not be isolated for shut down.  This is due to the unforeseen 
conditions in locking a water shutdown located at Adamsville and Quartz.  This 
work was completed on June 3, 2015. 
 
Change Request No. 8 was recommended by the Engineer in accordance with 
Request for Information (RFI) No. 13 who provided support to the Owner’s 
Representative, the former Utilities Director, who had directed McCain 
Construction, LLC, to apply for payment in the Final Application for payment. 
 
Change Order Request No. 9 
The Engineer requested the additional of extra asphalt placement due to a 
vertical realignment adjustment since the storm drain was not per plan and it was 
also blue staked improperly resulting in unforeseen conditions being encountered 
as well as additional asphalt since the relocated waterline was located more so in 
the road.  The storm drain was routed between Butte and 8th Street.  This work 
was completed on June 20, 2015. 
 
The Change Request No. 9 was recommended by the Engineer without a 
Request for Information (RFI), who provided support to the Owner’s 
Representative, the former Utilities Director, who had directed McCain 
Construction, LLC, to apply for payment in the Final Application for payment. 

 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The costs associated with Change Order Request No.  1, 2, 5, 7, 8 and 9 are 
$33,840.00 and the funding is available due to the completion of WU-38 in Fiscal Year 
2014/2015 and anticipated budgetary underruns from WU-26, which is near completion. 



Subject: Approval of CO’s with McCain Construction  Meeting date: August 17, 2015 
Page 4 of 4 
 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends the approval of all six Change Order Requests for work completed by 
McCain Construction, LLC, for the Well #4 to Well #5 Transmission Main Project with 
costs as recommended herein for each Change Order Request. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Change Order No. 1 
Change Order Request No. 1 
Change Order Request No. 2 
Change Order Request No. 5 
Change Order Request No. 7 
Change Order Request No. 8 
Change Order Request No. 9 
Construction Meeting Notes dated June 22, 2015 (excerpt) 
Emails dated July 23, July 29 and August 3, 2015 
 
 



 Change Order No. 1 

 
Date of Issuance: August 17, 2015 Effective Date: August 17, 2015 

Owner: Town of Florence Owner's Contract No.: WU-69 

Contractor: McCain Construction  Contractor’s Project No.: N/A 

Engineer: EPS Engineer's Project No.: N/A 

Project: Well #4 to Well #5 Transmission Main Contract Name: Well #4 to Well #5 
Transmission Main 

  
The Contract is  modified as follows upon execution of this Change Order: 

Description: Construction changes due to unforeseen conditions such as subsurface materials, sewer services, 
existing storm drain locations, valuing adjustments and additional asphalt. 
 

 

Attachments:  [List documents supporting change]  
Change Request Nos. 1, 2, 5, 7, 8 and 9 

CHANGE IN CONTRACT PRICE CHANGE IN CONTRACT TIMES  

[note changes in Milestones if applicable] 
Original Contract Price: Original Contract Times: 

 Substantial Completion:    

$ 683,594.00  Ready for Final Payment:    

 days or dates 

[Increase] [Decrease]  from previously approved Change 

Orders No.        to No.      : 

[Increase] [Decrease] from previously approved Change 

Orders No.        to No.       : 

 Substantial Completion:    

$   Ready for Final Payment:     

 days 

Contract Price prior to this Change Order: Contract Times prior to this Change Order: 

 Substantial Completion:    

$ 683,594.00  Ready for Final Payment:    

 days or dates 

[Increase] of this Change Order: [Increase] [Decrease] of this Change Order: 

 Substantial Completion:    

$ 33,840.00  Ready for Final Payment:     

 days or dates 

Contract Price incorporating this Change Order: Contract Times with all approved Change Orders: 

 Substantial Completion:    

$ 717,434.00  Ready for Final Payment:    

 days or dates 

RECOMMENDED: ACCEPTED: ACCEPTED: 

By:  By:  By:  

 Engineer (if required)  Owner (Authorized Signature)  Contractor (Authorized Signature) 

Title:  Title

: 
 Title

: 
 

Date:  Date

:  

 Date

: 

 

 
Approved by Town  

By:    Date:  

Title:      

 



Phone:
Fax:

To: John Mitchell Cr # 1
520-251-1514
john.mitchell@florenceaz.gov Date : 5/13/2015

Job : 1678 - Well 4 to Well 5 Florence

Issued by: Kirk Hanna
Description: 602 904-2085

Kirk@McCainConstruction.com

Date

We are pleased to offer the following specifications and pricing to make the following changes:

CHANGE REQUEST

www.McCainConstruction.com

Total amount to provide this work ……………………………………………………………….

Print Name Company
                                               /

Cost to include labor and equipment to remove a layer of concrete under asphalt for approximately 20 LF. Remove 
concrete width of trench only at STA 28+00 and again at STA 17+50.

$2,774

Remove approximately 80 square feet of 
concrete, under asphalt.

Signature Title
Approved by                                                /                                                /

McCain Construction LLC
3120 W Carefree Hwy Ste 1-690
Phoenix, Az 85086

623 465-1151
623 465-1161



JOB: 1678 - Well 4 to Well 5 Florence
CHANGE REQUEST #: 1
DATE:
DESCRIPTION:

QTY HRS RATE Cost OH & P Price
15%

EQUIPMENT

CREW TRUCK/ SMALL TOOLS 1 3 20.00$                 60.00$                  10.59$                    70.59$                    
950 LOADER 1 3 105.00$               315.00$                55.59$                    370.59$                  
200 EXCAVATOR 1 3 95.00$                 285.00$                50.29$                    335.29$                  
E80 EXCAVATOR W/HAMMER 1 3 150.00$               450.00$                79.41$                    529.41$                  
EQUIPMENT TOTAL 1,110$                  196$                       1,306$                    

LABOR

FOREMAN 1 3 50.00$                 150.00$                26.47$                    176.47$                  
OPERATOR 3 3 40.00$                 360.00$                63.53$                    423.53$                  
LABORER 1 3 36.00$                 108.00$                19.06$                    127.06$                  

LABOR TOTAL #REF! 618$                     109$                       727$                       

MATERIALS
-$                      -$                        -$                        
-$                      -$                        -$                        
-$                      -$                        -$                        
-$                      -$                        -$                        
-$                      -$                        -$                        
-$                      -$                        -$                        
-$                      -$                        -$                        
-$                      -$                        -$                        
-$                      -$                        -$                        

MATERIALS TOTAL -$                      -$                        -$                        

SUBCONTRACTORS
HAUL OFF 1 2 80.00$                 160.00$                28.24$                    188.24$                  
MOBE FOR HAMMER 2 EA 150.00$               300.00$                52.94$                    352.94$                  

-$                      -$                        -$                        

SALES TAX 1 LS 145.56$               145.56$                -$                        145.56$                  
BOND 1 LS 54.40$                 54.40$                  54.40$                    
SUBCONTRACTORS TOTAL 660$                     81$                         741$                       

TOTALS 2,388$                  386$                       2,774$                    

5/13/2015
Remove approximately 80 square 
feet of concrete, under asphalt.



PRICING BREAKDOWN
DATE: 5/13/2015

Qty U.O.M. Labor Equipment Material Subcontractor Price
1 LS $727 $1,306 $0 $741 $2,774

$0
$0
$0

Total $2,774

Remove approximately 80 square feet of concrete, under asphalt.DESCRIPTION OF WORK:

Description
CATEGORY BREAKDOWN

JOB NAME: 1678 - Well 4 to Well 5 Florence

CHANGE REQUEST: 1



Phone:
Fax:

To: John Mitchell Cr # 2
520-251-1514
john.mitchell@florenceaz.gov Date : 5/13/2015

Job : 1678 - Well 4 to Well 5 Florence

Issued by: Kirk Hanna
Description: 602 904-2085

Kirk@McCainConstruction.com

DateSignature Title
Approved by                                                /                                                /

McCain Construction LLC
3120 W Carefree Hwy Ste 1-690
Phoenix, Az 85086

623 465-1151
623 465-1161

We are pleased to offer the following specifications and pricing to make the following changes:

CHANGE REQUEST

www.McCainConstruction.com

Total amount to provide this work ……………………………………………………………….

Print Name Company
                                               /

Cost to include labor and equipment to locate and excavate around existing utilities not shown on plans. Sewer 
Service STA 28+00, 26+00 and 25+50 all Sewer abandoned in place with concrete cap, Sewer Service STA 27+00 
and 25+00 located 6" Sewer Service and raised pipe over. STA 23+50, 23+00 and 21+50 all sewer services we 
were able to maintain 5' of cover and go below

$5,496

Pot hole existing utilities not shown on 
plans.

mailto:john.mitchell@florenceaz.gov


JOB: 1678 - Well 4 to Well 5 Florence
CHANGE REQUEST #: 2
DATE:
DESCRIPTION:

QTY HRS RATE Cost OH & P Price
15%

EQUIPMENT

CREW TRUCK/ SMALL TOOLS 1 10 20.00$                 200.00$                30.00$                    230.00$                  
200 EXCAVATOR 1 10 95.00$                 950.00$                142.50$                  1,092.50$               
VAC TRAILER 1 10 85.00$                 850.00$                127.50$                  977.50$                  
EQUIPMENT TOTAL 2,000$                  300$                       2,300$                    

LABOR

FOREMAN 1 10 50.00$                 500.00$                75.00$                    575.00$                  
OPERATOR 3 10 40.00$                 1,200.00$             180.00$                  1,380.00$               
LABORER 2 10 36.00$                 720.00$                108.00$                  828.00$                  

LABOR TOTAL #REF! 2,420$                  363$                       2,783$                    

MATERIALS
-$                      -$                        -$                        
-$                      -$                        -$                        
-$                      -$                        -$                        
-$                      -$                        -$                        
-$                      -$                        -$                        
-$                      -$                        -$                        
-$                      -$                        -$                        

TAX 1 EA 305.37$               305.37$                -$                        305.37$                  
BOND 1 EA 107.76$               107.76$                -$                        107.76$                  

MATERIALS TOTAL 413$                     -$                        413$                       

SUBCONTRACTORS
-$                      -$                        -$                        
-$                      -$                        -$                        

SUBCONTRACTORS TOTAL -$                      -$                        -$                        

TOTALS 4,833$                  663$                       5,496$                    

5/13/2015
Pot hole existing utilities not shown 
on plans.



PRICING BREAKDOWN
DATE: 5/13/2015

2

Qty U.O.M. Labor Equipment Tax & Bond Subcontractor Cost 15% Price
1 LS $2,420 $2,000 $413 $0 $4,833 $663 $5,496

$0 $0 $0
$0 $0 $0
$0 $0 $0

Total $5,496

JOB NAME: 0

CHANGE REQUEST:

DESCRIPTION OF WORK: Pot hole existing utilities not shown on plans.

Description
CATEGORY BREAKDOWN



Phone:
Fax:

To: John Mitchell Cr # 5
520-251-1514
john.mitchell@florence.gov Date : 5/19/2015

Job : 1678 - Well 4 to Well 5 Florence

Issued by: Kirk Hanna
Description: 602 904-2085

Kirk@McCainConstruction.com

Date

We are pleased to offer the following specifications and pricing to make the following changes:

CHANGE REQUEST

www.McCainConstruction.com

Total amount to provide this work ……………………………………………………………….

Print Name Company
                                               /

Cost to include labor, equipment and materials to adjust vertical realignment at 8th Street. Storm drain runs more to 
the south than plans show so the vertical realignment will have to start more to the north than plan and run a little 
longer because of the angle we are crossing sstorm drain pipes. Request that 1 day gets added to schedule.

$4,582

Adjust vertical realignment at 8th Street.

Signature Title
Approved by                                                /                                                /

McCain Construction LLC
3120 W Carefree Hwy Ste 1-690
Phoenix, Az 85086

623 465-1151
623 465-1161

mailto:john.mitchell@florence.gov


JOB: 1678 - Well 4 to Well 5 Florence
CHANGE REQUEST #: 5
DATE:
DESCRIPTION:

QTY HRS RATE Cost OH & P Price
15%

EQUIPMENT

CREW TRUCK/ SMALL TOOLS 1 8 20.00$                 160.00$                28.24$                    188.24$                  
200 EXCAVATOR 1 8 95.00$                 760.00$                134.12$                  894.12$                  
EQUIPMENT TOTAL 920$                     162$                       1,082$                    

LABOR

FOREMAN 1 8 50.00$                 400.00$                70.59$                    470.59$                  
OPERATOR 1 8 40.00$                 320.00$                56.47$                    376.47$                  
PIPELAYER 1 8 38.00$                 304.00$                53.65$                    357.65$                  
LABORER 1 8 36.00$                 288.00$                50.82$                    338.82$                  

LABOR TOTAL #REF! 1,312$                  232$                       1,544$                    

MATERIALS
12" MJ 45 BEND 1 EA 170.94$               170.94$                30.17$                    201.11$                  
12" MEGA LUG 2 EA 71.97$                 143.94$                25.40$                    169.34$                  
12" DIP 25 LF 42.67$                 1,066.75$             188.25$                  1,255.00$               

-$                      -$                        -$                        
-$                      -$                        -$                        
-$                      -$                        -$                        
-$                      -$                        -$                        
-$                      -$                        -$                        
-$                      -$                        -$                        

MATERIALS TOTAL 1,382$                  244$                       1,625$                    

TAX 1 LS 240.39$               240.39$                -$                        240.39$                  
BOND 1 LS 89.84$                 89.84$                  -$                        89.84$                    

-$                      -$                        -$                        
-$                      -$                        -$                        

SUBCONTRACTORS TOTAL 330$                     -$                        330$                       

TOTALS 3,944$                  638$                       4,582$                    

5/19/2015
Adjust vertical realignment at 8th 
Street.



PRICING BREAKDOWN
DATE: 5/19/2015

5

Qty U.O.M. Labor Equipment Material Subcontractor Cost 15% Price
1 LS $1,312 $920 $1,382 $330 $3,944 $638 $4,582

$0 $0 $0
$0 $0 $0
$0 $0 $0

Total $4,582

DESCRIPTION OF WORK: Adjust vertical realignment at 8th Street.

Description
CATEGORY BREAKDOWN

JOB NAME: 1678 - Well 4 to Well 5 Florence

CHANGE REQUEST:



Phone:
Fax:

To: John Mitchell Cr # 7
520-251-1514
john.mitchell@florence.gov Date : 6/2/2015

Job : 1678 - Well 4 to Well 5 Florence

Issued by: Kirk Hanna
Description: 602 904-2085

Kirk@McCainConstruction.com

DateSignature Title
Approved by                                                /                                                /

McCain Construction LLC
3120 W Carefree Hwy Ste 1-690
Phoenix, Az 85086

623 465-1151
623 465-1161

We are pleased to offer the following specifications and pricing to make the following changes:

CHANGE REQUEST

www.McCainConstruction.com

Total amount to provide this work ……………………………………………………………….

Print Name Company
                                               /

Cost to include labor, equipment and materials to replace extra asphalt caused by poor existing pavement 
conditions and abandoned wood water line we encountered during water line excavation.

$6,384

Extra Asphalt Replacement

mailto:john.mitchell@florence.gov


JOB: 1678 - Well 4 to Well 5 Florence
CHANGE REQUEST #: 7
DATE:
DESCRIPTION:

QTY HRS RATE Cost OH & P Price
15%

EQUIPMENT

EQUIPMENT TOTAL -$                      -$                        -$                        

LABOR

LABOR TOTAL #REF! -$                      -$                        -$                        

TAX & BOND
TAX            1 LS 335.00$               335.00$                -$                        335.00$                  
BOND 1 LS 125.18$               125.18$                -$                        125.18$                  

-$                      -$                        -$                        
-$                      -$                        -$                        
-$                      -$                        -$                        
-$                      -$                        -$                        
-$                      -$                        -$                        
-$                      -$                        -$                        
-$                      -$                        -$                        

MATERIALS TOTAL 460$                     -$                        460$                       

SUBCONTRACTORS
EXTRA PAVING 202 SY 25.50$                 5,151.00$             772.65$                  5,923.65$               

-$                      -$                        -$                        
-$                      -$                        -$                        

-$                      -$                        -$                        

SUBCONTRACTORS TOTAL 5,151$                  773$                       5,924$                    

TOTALS 5,611$                  773$                       6,384$                    

6/2/2015

Extra Asphalt Replacement



PRICING BREAKDOWN
DATE: 6/2/2015

7

Qty U.O.M. Labor Equipment Tax & Bond Subcontractor Cost 15% Price
1 LS $0 $0 $460 $5,151 $5,611 $773 $6,384

$0 $0 $0
$0 $0 $0
$0 $0 $0

Total $6,384

JOB NAME: 1678 - Well 4 to Well 5 Florence

CHANGE REQUEST:

DESCRIPTION OF WORK: Extra Asphalt Replacement

Description
CATEGORY BREAKDOWN



Phone:
Fax:

To: John Mitchell Cr # 8
520-251-1514
john.mitchell@florence.gov Date : 6/1/2015

Job : 1678 - Well 4 to Well 5 Florence

Issued by: Kirk Hanna
Description: 602 904-2085

Kirk@McCainConstruction.com

Date

We are pleased to offer the following specifications and pricing to make the following changes:

CHANGE REQUEST

www.McCainConstruction.com

Total amount to provide this work ……………………………………………………………….

Print Name Company
                                               /

Cost to include labor, equipment and materials to add 8x8 Tapping Sleeve and Valve instead of cutting in a 12x8 
MJ Tee.

$2,216

Add Tapping Sleeve instead of cut in Tee.

Signature Title
Approved by                                                /                                                /

McCain Construction LLC
3120 W Carefree Hwy Ste 1-690
Phoenix, Az 85086

623 465-1151
623 465-1161

mailto:john.mitchell@florence.gov


JOB: 1678 - Well 4 to Well 5 Florence
CHANGE REQUEST #: 8
DATE:
DESCRIPTION:

QTY HRS RATE Cost OH & P Price
15%

EQUIPMENT

EQUIPMENT TOTAL -$                      -$                        -$                        

LABOR

LABOR TOTAL #REF! -$                      -$                        -$                        

MATERIALS
DEDUCT 12"X8" TEE 1 EA (285.45)$              (285.45)$               (42.82)$                   (328.27)$                 
8"X8" TAPPING SLEEVE 1 EA 777.87$               777.87$                116.68$                  894.55$                  
8" MJXFLG GATE VALVE 1 EA 834.31$               834.31$                125.15$                  959.46$                  
12"X8" MJ REDUCER 1 EA 102.93$               102.93$                15.44$                    118.37$                  

-$                      -$                        -$                        
-$                      -$                        -$                        
-$                      -$                        -$                        

TAX 1 LS 116.27$               116.27$                -$                        116.27$                  
BOND 1 LS 43.44$                 43.44$                  -$                        43.44$                    

MATERIALS TOTAL 1,589$                  214$                       1,804$                    

SUBCONTRACTORS
8" HOT TAP 1 EA 350.00$               350.00$                61.76$                    411.76$                  

-$                      -$                        -$                        

SUBCONTRACTORS TOTAL 350$                     62$                         412$                       

TOTALS 1,939$                  276$                       2,216$                    

6/1/2015
Add Tapping Sleeve instead of cut 
in Tee.



PRICING BREAKDOWN
DATE: 6/1/2015

8

Qty U.O.M. Labor Equipment Material Subcontractor Cost 15% Price
1 LS $0 $0 $1,589 $350 $1,939 $276 $2,216

$0 $0 $0
$0 $0 $0
$0 $0 $0

Total $2,216

DESCRIPTION OF WORK: Add Tapping Sleeve instead of cut in Tee.

Description
CATEGORY BREAKDOWN

JOB NAME: 1678 - Well 4 to Well 5 Florence

CHANGE REQUEST:



Phone:
Fax:

To: John Mitchell Cr # 9
520-251-1514
john.mitchell@florence.gov Date : 6/16/2015

Job : 1678 - Well 4 to Well 5 Florence

Issued by: Kirk Hanna
Description: 602 904-2085

Kirk@McCainConstruction.com

DateSignature Title
Approved by                                                /                                                /

McCain Construction LLC
3120 W Carefree Hwy Ste 1-690
Phoenix, Az 85086

623 465-1151
623 465-1161

We are pleased to offer the following specifications and pricing to make the following changes:

CHANGE REQUEST

www.McCainConstruction.com

Total amount to provide this work ……………………………………………………………….

Print Name Company
                                               /

Cost to include labor, equipment and materials for extra asphalt replacement due to vertical realignment adjustment 
because storm drain was not in per plan on Willow & 8th Street, and poor existing asphalt conditions on Willow and 
20th Street. Andrew added 72 SY on 6/16/15 that he wanted removed because of poor asphalt conditions not 
related to our work.

$12,388

Extra asphalt replacement ON Willow & 
20th Street

mailto:john.mitchell@florence.gov


JOB: 1678 - Well 4 to Well 5 Florence
CHANGE REQUEST #: 9
DATE:
DESCRIPTION:

QTY HRS RATE Cost OH & P Price
15%

EQUIPMENT

EQUIPMENT TOTAL -$                      -$                        -$                        

LABOR

LABOR TOTAL #REF! -$                      -$                        -$                        

TAX & BOND
TAX           1 LS 650.04$               650.04$                -$                        650.04$                  
BOND 1 LS 242.90$               242.90$                -$                        242.90$                  

-$                      -$                        -$                        
-$                      -$                        -$                        
-$                      -$                        -$                        
-$                      -$                        -$                        
-$                      -$                        -$                        
-$                      -$                        -$                        
-$                      -$                        -$                        

MATERIALS TOTAL 893$                     -$                        893$                       

SUBCONTRACTORS
EXTRA PAVING 392 SY 25.50$                 9,996.00$             1,499.40$               11,495.40$             

-$                      -$                        -$                        

SUBCONTRACTORS TOTAL 9,996$                  1,499$                    11,495$                  

TOTALS 10,889$                1,499$                    12,388$                  

6/16/2015
Extra asphalt replacement ON 
Willow & 20th Street



PRICING BREAKDOWN
DATE: 6/16/2015

9

Qty U.O.M. Labor Equipment Tax & Bond Subcontractor Cost 15% Price
1 LS $0 $0 $893 $9,996 $10,889 $1,499 $12,388

$0 $0 $0
$0 $0 $0
$0 $0 $0

Total $12,388

JOB NAME: 1678 - Well 4 to Well 5 Florence

CHANGE REQUEST:

DESCRIPTION OF WORK: Extra asphalt replacement ON Willow & 20th Street

Description
CATEGORY BREAKDOWN













 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
7h. 

MEETING DATE:  August 17, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Public Works Department  
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Wayne J. Costa, P.E. 
                                      Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Approval of Change Order No. 1 to Visus  
                    Engineering Construction, for work associated  
                    with the construction of the Main Street  
                    Extension Temporary Access Road.  

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject: Approval of CO No. 1 with Visus Engineering Construction  Meeting date: August 17, 2015 
Page 1 of 3  
 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to approve Change Order No. 1 to Visus Engineering Construction, for the 
additional work associated with Change Order Requests during construction of the Main 
Street Extension Temporary Access Road, for a total of $13,500, for a total project cost 
not to exceed $252,500.   
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
  
The Main Street Extension Temporary Access Road had been designed to provide an 
alternate route for vehicular traffic to downtown Florence by providing a direct line 
between the new State Route 79 and the existing Main Street.  This project is a 
precursor to future improvements to Territory Square.  
 
Visus Engineering Construction has completed the work for the Main Street Extension 
Temporary Access Road Project.  Several requests for change orders were made as 
follows: 
 
          Amount  Council Approval 
Contract Awarded:        $ 239,000  April 20, 2015 
Change Order No. 1    $   13,500  Pending Council Approval 
Amended Amount      $ 252,500  
 
The various requests for change orders are enumerated in the following paragraphs 
depicting their needs for the Change Order, primarily due to conditions encountered by 
the Contractor and Agreement by the Owner’s Project Manager (the former Utilities 
Director) to reimburse the Contractor either by his words, conduct or documentation.   
 

Request No. 1 
 
This request is for the shouldering up of the shoulder adjacent to the Main Street 
Access Road which was not definitive in the plans as to what was to be done.  
The Town’s Project Manager (at the time) reviewed the request and supported a  



Subject: Approval of CO No. 1 with Visus Engineering Construction  Meeting date: August 17, 2015 
Page 2 of 3 
 
 

quantity of 430 cubic yards (cy) of aggregate base course (ABC) that was placed, 
the Contractor requested 557 cy.  Based upon reasonable evaluation of the 
quantity involved, it is our opinion that the costs are typically unforeseen 
conditions anticipated by the Contractor.  It is noted that the Contractor’s 
requested amount appears to be low as the unit weight of ABC used in their 
calculation is high and more comparable to asphalt and near concrete unit 
weights versus an aggregate base course, typically about 115 pounds per cubic 
foot. 
 
We are recommending a partial reimbursement to settle the disputed amount of 
material quantity requested which was $11,697.00.  A unit price provided with the 
Bid Schedule was an acceptable unit price for this week. 
 
Request No. 2 
 
This request is for the replacement of base course material associated with the 
installation of the base course as part of the structural section of the street 
section.  Typically this provides most of the structural integrity when interacting 
with the asphalt section of the street section.  The Town’s former Project 
Manager did not review this request by the Contractor; the Town’s Inspector, the 
Town’s Street Superintendent, and the Town’s Field Foreman all indicated that it 
was the responsibility of the Contractor to make the repairs to the base course.  
The Town’s Inspection Report dated May 13, 2015 (attached) to the Project 
Manager clearly indicated that the ABC base course was pumping and had a 
washboard finish and it should be removed and replaced. 
 
The Contractor’s position was that it was the subgrade that failed; however, the 
subgrade had passed the proof roll and testing requirements, while the base 
course did not.  Nevertheless, the Contractor removed the existing base course, 
geotextile fabric and prepared the subgrade for reinstallation of the base course. 
 
The Town’s Project Manager sent a Change Order No. 1 to Visus on May 19, 
2015, for their execution; however, this was never brought to Council and 
occurred after the fact.  Based upon inspection of the rehabilitation of the base 
course, it is our opinion that the costs are typical of a base course installation 
quantity and personnel/equipment involved.  This work was completed on May 
13, 2015. 
 
We are recommending the payment of to settle the disputed costs which was 
$4,128. 

 
Request No. 3 
 
This request was for interest payments to Visus for belated payment of their 
Application for Payment No. 1 as well as the change order noted in Request No. 
2 above. 
 
The Town’s Project Manager received an Application for Payment on June 2, 
2015 and approved said document.  He did not take any action on the 



Subject: Approval of CO No. 1 with Visus Engineering Construction  Meeting date: August 17, 2015 
Page 3 of 3 
 
 

aforementioned document; that is he retained the document unbeknown to 
anyone.  The current Public Works Director was given the responsibility of 
completing uncompleted projects but may not be privy to all the circumstances of 
the Projects.  On July 7, 2015, the Public Work’s Director received a copy of an 
email from Visus and immediately responded and took action to resolve the issue 
of Application for Payment No. 1. 
 
Payment of a revised Application for Payment No. 1 as agreed to via offer and 
acceptance by Visus based upon their email dated July 9, 2015.  Contract 
Section 8, entitled “Payment” is cited by the Contractor in their email stated that 
the Town owed Visus interest payments on the belated payments made. 
 
The basis for the Town not accepting the interest due on past due amount is 
based upon the following: 
 

a. The Application for Payment was incorrect in that the amount of retainage 
was non-compliant with the Contract; we found no documentation to 
indicate the Town’s Project Manager agreed to a 1% retainage as alleged 
by Visus. 

 
We are not recommending the payment for any interest to settle any amounts 
requested. 
 
Summary 
This is a lump sum contract and as such we are addressing a lump sum cost for 
Change Order No. 1 comprising of the components from Request Nos. 1 and 2 
only.  We had originally offered a fee of $11,608 for these efforts which was 
rejected on July 30, 2015.  After internal discussions with the Town Attorney we 
raised our offer to $13,500 which they accepted on August 6, 2015. 
 
The Total requested by the Contractor was $18,012.36 of which interest of 
$2,186.74 (plus “growing daily”) was requested. 

 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The costs associated with Change Order No. 1 are $13,500.00 and the funding is 
available due to the completion of this Fiscal Year 2014/2015 Project and anticipated 
budgetary underruns from WU-26, which is near completion. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends the approval of Change Order No. 1 for work completed by Visus 
Engineering Construction, for the Main Street Temporary Access Road Project.   
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Change Order No. 1 
Email dated May 19, 2015  
Daily Construction Report dated May 13, 2015 













 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
7i. 

MEETING DATE:  August 17, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Jennifer Evans, Management Analyst 
 
SUBJECT:    Silver King Marketplace Lease Agreement  
                      Renewal with the Florence Mosaic Church of  
                      the Nazarene (Florence Fudge Co.) for Suite  
                      101. 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject: Silver King Market Place Lease Agreement                                                   Meeting Date:  August 17, 2015 
with Florence Mosaic Church of the Nazarene (Florence Fudge Co.)  
Page 1 of 2 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
A motion to approve a lease agreement with Florence Mosaic Church of the Nazarene, 
owner of the Florence Fudge Co., for Suite 101 in the Silver King Market Place. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
Florence Mosaic Church of the Nazarene seeks to renew the lease for Suite 101, 
located on the ground floor of the Silver King Marketplace.  The lease also includes 
space in the Carriage House that the Florence Fudge Co. uses for storage.  Florence 
Mosaic Church of the Nazarene has operated Florence Fudge Co. since the business 
was purchased from Door County Fudge Company, LLC, in February 2010. 
 
There has been discussion about whether or not Florence Mosaic Church of the 
Nazarene should remit Transaction Privilege Tax on the revenue generated through 
sales at the Florence Fudge Co.  While the Arizona Department of Revenue may 
choose to exempt some non-profit organizations from collecting state Transaction 
Privilege Tax, municipalities have a separate tax structure and may choose to collect 
Transaction Privilege Tax.  The Town Attorney’s Office has determined that Florence 
Mosaic Church of the Nazarene is required to remit Transaction Privilege Tax to the 
Town of Florence on income generated from retail sales unrelated to their exempt 
purpose.  The current Transaction Privilege Tax rate for Florence is 2% of gross sales. 
Florence Mosaic Church of the Nazarene has indicated they will collect and remit Town 
of Florence Transaction Privilege Tax on sales made at the Florence Fudge Co.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The term of the lease is from September 1, 2015 to August 31, 2016.  The rent will be 
$142.50 per month.  The tenant will pay for utilities as invoiced each month by the 
Town.   



Subject: Silver King Market Place Lease Agreement                                                   Meeting Date:  August 17, 2015 
with Florence Mosaic Church of the Nazarene (Florence Fudge Co.)  
Page 2 of 2 

 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of the lease with Florence Mosaic Church of the Nazarene, 
owner of the Florence Fudge Co.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Silver King Market Place Lease Agreement 



Page 1 of 18 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SILVER KING MARKET PLACE LEASE AGREEMENT 
 
 
 
 
 

TOWN OF FLORENCE, ARIZONA, 
an Arizona municipal corporation 

 
AND 

 
FLORENCE MOSAIC CHURCH OF THE NAZARENE, INC. 

an Arizona non-profit corporation 
 

(Florence Fudge Company) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 18 

SILVER KING MARKET PLACE LEASE AGREEMENT 
 
This Silver King Market Place Lease Agreement (this "Lease") is made and entered into 
as of the 1st day of September, 2015 by Town of Florence, an Arizona municipal 
corporation, hereinafter called "Landlord", and Florence Mosaic Church of the 
Nazarene, Inc., an Arizona non-profit corporation, hereinafter called “Tenant". 
 
1. LEASED PREMISES 
 
For and in consideration of the rent to be paid and of the covenants and agreements of 
Tenant as hereinafter set forth, Landlord does hereby lease 570 square feet to Tenant 
of the premises located at 440 N. Main Street, Suite 101, Florence, Arizona, also known 
as the Silver King Market Place, and hereinafter referred to as the “Premises”, or, the 
“Leased Premises”. The Leased Premises are also described as Suite 101, which is 
located at the south end of the building in which the Premises are located (the 
“Building”) on the ground floor. Tenant shall also have access to the central unit of the 
“Carriage House”, adjacent to the Premises. The Carriage House is leased to Tenant in 
as-is condition; Tenant understands and agrees that the Landlord will not provide any 
interior improvements or maintenance services for the Carriage House. Further, the 
Landlord will provide only such exterior maintenance on the general structure of the 
Carriage House as to maintain the integrity of the overall structure. Tenant may only use 
the central unit of the Carriage House for storage. Any other use of the Carriage House 
must be approved by Landlord. 
 
2. TERM 
  
The Lease term shall begin on the 1st day of September, 2015 and end on the 31st 
day of August, 2016 (the “Initial Term”). Landlord shall use commercially reasonable 
efforts to put Tenant in possession of the Leased Premises at the beginning of the Initial 
Term. If Landlord is unable to timely provide the Leased Premises for occupancy by 
Tenant, rent shall abate for the period of delay. Tenant agrees it shall make no other 
claim against Landlord for any such delay. 
 
3. EXTENSIONS  
 
The parties hereto may elect to extend the Initial Term upon such terms and conditions 
as may be agreed upon in writing and signed by the parties at the time of any such 
election; provided that Tenant gives notice of its request to extend the Initial Term no 
later than sixty (60) days prior to the expiration of the Initial Term. If Tenant does not 
elect to extend the Initial Term in accordance with this paragraph, this Lease shall end 
on the 31st day of August, 2016 (the “Expiration Date”) and thereafter Tenant may 
only occupy the Premises on a month-to-month basis. Such month-to-month tenancy 
may be terminated by Landlord upon thirty (30) days notice to Tenant. Landlord’s 
acceptance of rent payments after the Expiration Date shall not constitute a renewal of 
this Lease Agreement.  
 



Page 3 of 18 

4. RENTS 
 
Rent shall be paid at the rate of one hundred forty two dollars and fifty cents 
($142.50) per month for the duration of this Lease. In addition to the rent, Tenant is 
responsible for any commercial property lease transaction privilege tax and government 
property lease excise tax. Each monthly payment of rent due thereafter shall be payable 
on the first day of each calendar month for the balance of the Initial Term, together with 
such taxes. Payment of rent shall be made to Landlord at Town of Florence, P.O. Box 
2670, 775 North Main Street, Florence, Arizona 85132, or at such other place 
designated by written notice from Landlord. The rental payment amount for any partial 
calendar months included in the Lease term shall be prorated on a daily basis. If rent is 
not received by the close of the 5th business day then a late fee of $25.00 will be added 
to Tenant’s account and past-due rent shall bear interest at the rate of ten per cent 
(10%) per annum from the date due (i.e., the first day of each month) until paid. 
 
5. SECURITY DEPOSIT 
 
Tenant has deposited with Landlord the sum of five hundred dollars ($500.00) as 
security for the full and faithful performance by Tenant of all the terms of this Lease 
required to be performed by Tenant. Such sum shall be returned to Tenant after the 
expiration of this Lease; provided Tenant has fully and faithfully carried out all of its 
terms. At the expiration of this Lease or such other time as Tenant may properly  
request the return of the Security Deposit, Landlord shall make an inspection of the 
Leased Premises and deduct from the Security Deposit such sums as are necessary to 
repair and refurbish the Leased Premises to the condition which existed prior to 
Tenant’s occupancy thereof. In the event of a bona fide sale of the Building of which the 
Leased Premises are a part, Landlord shall have the right to transfer the security to the 
purchaser to be held under the terms of this lease, and Landlord shall be released from 
all liability for the return of such security to Tenant.  
 
6. PURPOSE 
 
A. Landlord is maintaining the Silver King Market Place for the development of new 
businesses within the historical/downtown area of the Town of Florence. It is Landlord’s 
desire to endeavor to assist in the creation of new businesses by providing a leasing  
environment contemplated to assist such new businesses. 
 
B. Tenant shall use the Leased Premises for the purpose of conducting the 
business of a fudge and sandwich shop and for no other purpose without Landlord’s 
express prior written consent. This use also must be and remain consistent with Exhibit 
“A”. In the event Tenant desires to use the Leased Premises for a different business 
purpose not described above, Tenant shall first apply, in writing, for approval for such 
use to the Town of Florence. As a further condition of this Lease, Tenant must also 
maintain regular business hours and be open for at least thirty five (35) hours per week 
with exception of holidays.  When business enhancement classes are offered, free of 



Page 4 of 18 

charge, Tenant shall make every effort to send one or more representatives to attend 
these programs. 
 
C. If Tenant fails to meet any of these requirements, then Landlord may terminate 
this Lease after providing Tenant no less than thirty (30) days written notice of 
Landlord’s intent to terminate this Lease. If Tenant does not satisfy the above conditions 
or otherwise cure the deficiencies indicated in the notice within thirty (30) days, Landlord 
may terminate this Lease as provided in Section 17 below. 
 
The Premises shall not be used in violation of this Lease, any zoning laws applicable to 
the Premises, or in violation of any federal, state or local laws or regulations. 
 
7. PROHIBITED USES 
 
Notwithstanding the forgoing, Tenant shall not use the Leased Premises for the 
purposes of storing, manufacturing or selling any explosives, flammables or other 
inherently dangerous substance, chemical, thing or device. All uses must conform to the 
zoning code of the Town of Florence and the Landlord’s Property Lease Policy, both as 
promulgated by Town from time to time.   
 
8. SUBLEASE AND ASSIGNMENT 
 
A. Tenant shall not sublet or assign this Lease without Landlord's consent. To 
assign this Lease to a business with which Tenant may merge or consolidate, to any 
subsidiary of Tenant, to any corporation under common control with Tenant, or to a 
purchaser of substantially all of Tenant's assets Tenant must receive either written 
consent from Landlord (not to be unreasonably withheld) or enter into a new lease 
agreement reasonably satisfactory to both parties.  
 
B. Except as set forth above, neither Tenant nor any assignee may sublease all or 
any part of the Leased Premises, or assign this Lease in whole or in part, without 
Landlord's written consent.  
 
9. REPAIRS 
 
During the Lease term, Tenant shall make, at Tenant's expense, all necessary repairs 
and refurbishment of the Leased Premises. Repair and refurbishment shall include, but 
is not limited to, the repair and refurbishment of normal wear and tear to floors, walls, 
ceilings, and other parts of the Leased Premises caused by Tenant’s use and 
enjoyment of the Leased Premises, except for major mechanical systems or the roof 
[(so long as damage thereto is not caused, in whole or in part, by the acts or omissions 
of Tenant, its invitees or those under Tenant’s direction and control), subject to the 
obligations of the parties as may otherwise be set forth in this Lease.] 
 
 
 



Page 5 of 18 

10. TENANT IMPROVEMENTS  
 
A. Tenant, at Tenant's expense, shall have the right to remodel, redecorate, or 
make additions, improvements and replacements to all or any part of the Leased 
Premises from time to time as Tenant may deem desirable (the “Tenant Modifications”); 
provided the same are made in a workmanlike manner, lien free, in accordance with all 
codes and utilizing good quality materials. Tenant must obtain the written consent of 
Landlord prior to undertaking any such Tenant Modifications. Tenant shall have the right 
to place and install personal property, trade fixtures, equipment and other temporary 
installations in and upon the Leased Premises, and fasten the same to the Leased 
Premises. All personal property, equipment, machinery, trade fixtures and temporary 
installations, whether acquired by Tenant at the commencement of the Lease term or 
placed or installed on the Leased Premises by Tenant thereafter, shall remain Tenant's 
property free and clear of any claim by Landlord. Tenant shall have the right to remove 
the same at any time during the term of this Lease but not after ten (10) days after the 
expiration thereof, provided that such removal does not cause any damage to the 
Premises. Any damage caused by the removal of Tenant’s personal property shall be 
repaired by Tenant at Tenant's expense. If Tenant fails to repair any such damage 
Landlord may repair the damage and deduct the costs thereof from Tenant’s security 
deposit, with Tenant remaining liable for the excess, if any, over the security deposit. At 
the expiration of this Lease, at Landlord’s direction, Tenant shall remove any such 
personal property from the Leased Premises at Tenant’s sole cost and expense, 
repairing any damage to the Leased Premises occasioned thereby.  
 
B. Tenant may have prepared plans and specifications for the construction of 
Tenant Modifications, and, if so, such plans and specifications are attached hereto as 
Exhibit "B" and incorporated herein by reference. Tenant shall obtain all certificates, 
permits, licenses and other authorizations of governmental bodies or authorities which 
are necessary to permit the construction of the improvements on the Leased Premises 
and shall keep the same in full force and effect at Tenant's cost.  
 
C. Tenant shall negotiate, let and supervise all contracts for the furnishing of 
services, labor, and materials for the construction of Tenant Modifications on the 
Leased Premises at its sole cost and expense. All such contracts shall require the 
contracting party to guarantee performance and all workmanship and materials installed 
by it for a period of one year following the date of completion of construction.  Tenant 
shall cause all contracts to be fully and completely performed in a good and 
workmanlike manner and lien free, all to the effect that the improvements shall be fully 
and completely constructed and installed in accordance with good engineering and 
construction practice. Tenant shall include in any contract for the construction of Tenant 
Modifications a requirement that bonds in the full amount of the contract sum be 
furnished guaranteeing the faithful performance of the contract requirements and the 
payment of any and all subcontractors. 
 
D. During the course of Tenant Modifications, Tenant shall, at its cost, keep in full 
force and affect a policy of builder's risk and liability insurance in a sum equal to three 



Page 6 of 18 

times the amount expended for construction of the improvements. All risk of loss or 
damage to the improvements during the course of construction shall be on Tenant with 
the proceeds from insurance thereon payable to Landlord.  
 
E. Nothing herein shall alter the intent of the parties that Tenant shall be fully and 
completely responsible for all aspects pertaining to the construction of Tenant 
Modifications to Leased Premises and for the payment of all costs associated therewith. 
Landlord shall be under no duty to investigate or verify Tenant's compliance with the 
provisions contained herein. Moreover, neither Tenant nor any third party may construe 
the permission granted Tenant hereunder to create any responsibility on the part of 
Landlord to pay for any improvements, alterations or repairs occasioned by Tenant.  
 
11. UTILITIES 
 
Landlord shall pay the amount due for charges for water, sewer, gas, and electricity and 
separately invoice Tenant for Tenant's share of the charges as determined by Landlord 
in its reasonable judgment utilizing any reasonable method of apportionment. Tenant 
shall pay the utilities invoice upon the due date for the monthly payment of this Lease or 
the first of the month, whichever comes first. Tenant shall be responsible for all of its 
own telecommunications/cable/Internet charges. 
 
Tenant acknowledges that the Leased Premises are designed to provide standard office 
or retail use electrical facilities and standard office lighting. Tenant shall not use any 
equipment or devices that utilize excessive electrical energy or which may, in Landlord's 
reasonable opinion, overload the wiring or interfere with electrical services to other 
tenants.  
 
12. SIGNAGE 
 
A. Exterior Signs.  Landlord will provide one exterior sign located on the east side of 
the Building. Tenant shall have the right, at its sole risk and expense and in conformity 
with applicable laws and ordinances, to erect and thereafter, to repair or replace, if it 
shall so elect, signs on any portion of the Leased Premises, provided that Tenant shall 
remove any such signs upon termination of this Lease, and repair all damage 
occasioned thereby to the Leased Premises, all at Tenant’s sole cost and expense. 
 
B. Interior Signs.  Tenant shall have the right, at its sole risk and expense and in 
conformity with applicable laws and ordinances, to erect, maintain, place and install its 
usual and customary signs and fixtures in the interior of the Leased Premises.  
 
C. A fee of seventy five dollars ($75.00) will be charged at the time of the security 
deposit. This deposit is non-refundable and will be used for the sign hanging from the 
east side of the building. Tenant will provide Landlord with the business name and if 
necessary, the services they will provide. 
 
 



Page 7 of 18 

13. ENTRY 
 
Landlord shall have the right to enter upon the Leased Premises at reasonable hours 
(absent emergency [during which Landlord may enter to inspect/endeavor to abate 
emergency]) to inspect the same, provided Landlord shall not thereby unreasonably 
interfere with Tenant's business on the Leased Premises. 
 
14.  PARKING 
 
During the term of this Lease, Tenant shall have the non-exclusive use in common with 
Landlord, other tenants of the Premises, their guests and invitees, of the non-reserved 
common automobile parking areas, driveways, and footways, subject to rules and 
regulations for the use thereof as prescribed from time to time by Landlord. Landlord 
reserves the right to designate parking areas within the Premises or in reasonable 
proximity thereto, for Tenant and Tenant's agents and employees or for others within or 
utilizing the Building. 
 
15. MECHANIC’S AND OTHER LIENS 
 
Tenant shall pay before delinquent all sums of money which, if unpaid, would entitle any 
person to a mechanic’s or material supplier’s or laborer’s lien against the Leased 
Premises, or on Tenant’s interest under this Lease. Tenant agrees that it will neither do 
any act, nor fail to do any act, which would result in the recordation of any lien against 
the Leased Premises, the Building or the Silver King Market Place as a whole. 
 
16.  INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION 
  
A. INDEMNIFICATION 
 
(i) To the fullest extent permitted by law, Tenant shall defend, indemnify and hold 
harmless Landlord (i.e., the Town of Florence), its agents, officers, officials (whether 
elected or not), attorneys and employees (collectively, the “Indemnified Parties”) from, 
of and against all claims, damages, losses and expenses (including, but not limited to, 
attorneys’ fees [whether or not suit is brought], court costs, and the cost of appellate 
proceedings), relating to, arising out of, or alleged to have resulted either wholly or in 
part from the acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, work or services of Tenant, its agents, 
employees, contractors, subcontractors or business invitees in the performance of this 
Agreement, and regardless of whether or not such claim, damages, loss or expenses 
are caused in part by Landlord.  
 
(ii) Tenant’s duty to defend, hold harmless and indemnify the Indemnified Parties 
and each of them shall arise in connection with any claims, damages, losses or 
expenses that are attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease, death, or injury to, 
impairment, or destruction of property including loss of use resulting therefrom, caused 
either wholly or in part by Tenant’s acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, work or services in 
the performance of this Agreement including any employee or business invitee of 



Page 8 of 18 

Tenant or any other person for whose acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, work or 
services Tenant may be legally liable, and regardless of whether or not such claim, 
damages, losses or expenses are caused in part by Landlord. 
 
(iii) The amount and type of insurance coverage requirements set forth herein will in 
no way be construed as limiting the scope of the indemnity in this paragraph 16A. 
 
(iv) Landlord reserves the right to amend the requirements herein at any time during 
the Lease subject to at least 30 days written notice. Coverage provided by the Tenant 
shall not be limited to the liability assumed under the Indemnification provision of this 
Lease. To the extent permitted by law, Tenant waives all rights of subrogation or similar 
rights against Landlord. Landlord reserves the right to require complete copies of all 
insurance policies required by this Lease at any time. Failure to maintain the insurance 
policies required by this Lease, or to provide evidence of renewal, is a material breach 
of contract. 
 
B. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
(i) Tenant, at Tenant’s own expense, shall purchase and maintain the herein 
stipulated minimum insurance with companies duly licensed, possessing a current A.M. 
Best, Inc. rating of “A”, or approved and licensed to do business in the State of Arizona 
with policies and forms satisfactory to Landlord. 
 
(ii) All insurance required herein shall be maintained in full force and effect during 
any term of this Lease; failure to do so may, at the sole discretion of Landlord, constitute 
a material breach of this Lease. 
 
(iii) Tenant’s insurance shall be primary insurance, and any insurance or self-
insurance maintained by Landlord shall not contribute to it.  Any failure to comply with 
the claim reporting provisions of the policies or any breach of an insurance policy 
warranty shall not affect coverage afforded under the policy to protect Landlord. 
 
(iv) The insurance policies required by this Agreement shall name Landlord and any 
other Indemnified Parties designated by Landlord as Additional Insured(s). 
 
C. REQUIRED COVERAGES 
 
(i) General Liability/Contractual Indemnity 
 
(a) Tenant shall, at Tenant’s expense, maintain a policy of comprehensive  public  
liability insurance with a limit of not less than $1,000,000 for each occurrence and with a 
$1,000,000 General Aggregate Limit.  The policy shall include coverage for bodily injury, 
broad form property damage, personal injury, and blanket contractual coverage 
including, but not limited to, the liability assumed under the indemnification provisions of 
this Agreement, which coverage will be at least as broad as Insurance Service Office, 



Page 9 of 18 

Inc. Policy Form CG 000211093(October 2001 version).  The coverage shall not 
exclude X, C, U.  
 
(b)  Such policy shall contain a severability of interest provision, and shall not contain 
a sunset provision or commutation clause, nor any provision, which would serve to limit 
third party action over claims. 
 
(c) The Commercial General Liability additional insured endorsement shall be at 
least as broad as the Insurance Service Office, Inc.’s, Additional Insured, Form B, 
CG2O101185 (October 2001 version). 
 
(ii) Property Insurance 
 
(a) Landlord shall obtain and keep in force during any term of this Lease, a policy or 
policies of insurance covering loss or damage to the Leased Premises, in the amount of 
the full replacement value thereof, providing protection against all perils included within 
the classification of fire, flood, extended coverage, vandalism, malicious mischief and 
special extended perils. 
 
(b) Tenant shall obtain and keep in force during any term of this Lease, a policy or 
policies of insurance covering loss or damage to the contents of the Leased Premises. 
Tenant agrees that Landlord shall not be liable for injury to Tenant’s business or any 
loss of income there from, or for loss or damage to goods, wares, merchandise or other 
property in or on the Leased Premises owned or belonging to Tenant, Tenant’s 
employees, invitees, customers, or any other person in or about the Leased Premises; 
nor shall Landlord be liable for injury to the person of Tenant, Tenant’s employees, 
invitees, agents or contractors, whether such damage or injury to persons or property is 
caused by or results from fire, steam, electricity,  gas, water or rain, or from the 
breakage, leakage, obstruction, or other defects of pipes, sprinklers, wires, appliances, 
plumbing, air conditioning, or light fixtures or from any other cause; or whether the said 
damage or injury to person or property results from conditions arising upon the Leased 
Premises or from other sources or places, and regardless of whether the cause of such 
damage or injury or the means of repairing the same is inaccessible to Tenant. 
 
(iii) Certificates of Insurance 
 
(a) Prior to delivery of possession of the Leased Premises to Tenant, Tenant shall 
furnish Landlord with proof of payment acceptable to Landlord of any required 
coverages hereunder, together with Certificates of Insurance, or formal endorsements 
as required by this Lease, issued by Tenant’s insurer(s), as evidence that policies 
providing the required coverage, conditions and limits required by this Lease are in full 
force and effect. 
 
(b) In the event any insurance policy (ies) required by this Lease is (are) written on a 
“claims made" basis, coverage shall extend for two years past the expiration of any term 
of this Lease as evidenced by annual Certificates of Insurance. 



Page 10 of 18 

 
(c) If a policy does expire during any term of this Lease, a renewal certificate must 
be sent to Landlord fifteen (15) days prior to the expiration date. 
 
17. DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES 
 
A. DEFAULTS 
 
 The occurrence of any one or more of the following events shall constitute a 
material default and breach of this Lease by Tenant: 
 
(i) The vacating or abandonment of the Leased Premises by Tenant; 
 
(ii) The failure by Tenant to make any payment of rent or any other payment 
required to be made by Tenant hereunder, as and when due; 
 
(iii) The failure by Tenant to observe or perform any of the covenants, conditions, or 
provisions of this Lease to be observed or performed by Tenant, other than described in 
subsection (ii) above, where such failure shall continue for a period of fifteen (15) days 
after written notice hereof from Landlord to Tenant; provided, however, that if the nature 
of Tenant’s default is such that more than fifteen (15) days are reasonably required for 
its cure, then Tenant shall not be deemed to be in default if Tenant commenced such 
cure within said fifteen (15) day period and thereafter diligently prosecutes such cure to 
completion, such additional time to complete not to exceed thirty (30) additional days. 
(iv) The making by Tenant of any general arrangement for the benefit of creditors; 
the filing by or against Tenant of a petition to have Tenant adjudged a bankrupt or a 
petition for reorganization or arrangement under any law relating to bankruptcy (unless, 
in the case of a petition filed against Tenant, the same is dismissed within sixty (60) 
days); the appointment of a trustee or receiver to take possession of substantially all of 
Tenant’s assets, located at the Leased Premises, or, of Tenant’s interest in this Lease, 
where possession is not restored to Tenant within thirty (30) days; or, the attachment, 
execution, or other judicial seizure of substantially all of Tenant’s assets located at the 
Leased Premises or of Tenant’s interest in this Lease where such seizure is not 
discharged within thirty (30) days; or  
 
(v)  The filing or recordation of a lien against the Leased Premises, the Building or 
the Silver King Market Place as a whole due to any action or inaction of Tenant. 
 
B.  REMEDIES 
 
(i) In the event of any such default or breach by Tenant, Landlord may at any time 
thereafter, with or without notice or demand and without limiting Landlord in the exercise 
of any right or remedy which Landlord may have by reason of such default or breach: 
 
(ii) Terminate Tenant’s right to possession of the Leased Premises by any lawful 
means, in which case this Lease shall terminate and Tenant shall immediately 



Page 11 of 18 

surrender possession of the Leased Premises to Landlord. In such event Landlord shall 
be entitled to recover from Tenant all damages incurred by Landlord by reason of 
Tenant’s default, including but not limited to, the cost or recovering possession of the 
Premises; expenses of reletting, including necessary renovation and alteration of the 
Premises; reasonable attorneys’ fees; any real estate commission actually paid; and the 
worth at the time of award by the court having jurisdiction thereof of the amount by 
which the unpaid rent for the balance of the term after the time of such award exceeds 
the amount of such rental loss for the same period that Tenant provides could be 
reasonably avoided. In the event Tenant shall have abandoned the Premises, Landlord 
shall have the option of: 1) retaking possession of the Premises and recovering from 
Tenant the amount specified in this paragraph; or 2) proceeding under subsection (iii) 
immediately below. 
 
(iii) Maintain Tenant’s right to possession, in which case this Lease shall remain in 
effect whether or not Tenant shall have abandoned the Premises. In such event, 
Landlord shall be entitled to enforce all of Landlord’s rights and remedies under this 
Lease, including the right to recover the rent as it becomes due hereunder. 
 
(iv) Pursue any other remedy now or hereafter available to Landlord under the laws 
or judicial decisions of the State of Arizona, including the right to declare a landlord’s 
lien on Tenant’s personal property located on the Leased Premises. Where a landlord’s 
lien is declared by Landlord, Landlord may, without notice or demand to Tenant, 
terminate Tenant’s right to possession of the premises until Landlord has secured 
sufficient personal property or full payment of rent to satisfy the amount of rent owed. 
Should Landlord declare a landlord’s lien on the Leased Premises pursuant to this 
paragraph, this Lease shall not be considered terminated, and Landlord shall have a 
right to recover rent as it becomes due. 
 
C. DEFAULT BY LANDLORD 
 
Landlord shall not be in default unless Landlord fails to perform obligations required of 
Landlord within a reasonable time, but in no event later than fifteen (15) days after 
written notice by Tenant to Landlord and to the holder of any first mortgage or deed of 
trust covering the Premises whose name and address shall have theretofore been 
furnished to Tenant in writing, specifying wherein Landlord has failed to perform such 
obligations; provided however, that if the nature of Landlord’s obligation is such that 
more than fifteen (15) days are required for performance, then Landlord shall not be in 
default if Landlord commences performance within such thirty day period and thereafter 
diligently prosecutes the same to completion. If Landlord does not perform, the holder of 
any first mortgage may perform in Landlord’s place and Tenant must accept such 
performance. 
 
D. HOLDOVER BY TENANT 
 
If Tenant shall hold over after expiration of the Initial Term, or any extension of the Initial 
Term, such tenancy shall be from month-to-month only upon such terms, covenants, 



Page 12 of 18 

and conditions as set forth herein except for those relating to the term of the Lease. Any 
such month-to-month tenancy may be terminated by Landlord upon thirty (30) days 
notice to Tenant. However, nothing herein shall be construed as or deemed a waiver of 
any rights of Landlord to take such action in law or equity as Landlord may have under 
the provisions of this Lease or otherwise.  
 
E. BANKRUPTCY OF TENANT 
 
If Tenant should make a general assignment for the benefit of creditors, or file a 
voluntary petition in bankruptcy, or be adjudicated bankrupt or insolvent, or permit a 
receiver to be appointed to take possession of a substantial portion of the Tenant’s 
assets or of this leasehold, and such bankruptcy, insolvency or receivership 
proceedings not be dismissed within thirty days, then Lessor may, without notice or 
demand, terminate this Lease and forthwith re-enter and repossess the demised 
premises and remove all persons, and under no circumstances shall this Lease be 
assigned or transferred by operation of law. 
 
18. DAMAGE AND DESTRUCTION 
 
Subject to the Insurance provisions contained herein, if the Leased Premises or any 
part thereof or any appurtenance thereto is so damaged by fire, casualty or structural 
defects that the same cannot be used for Tenant's purposes, then Tenant shall have the 
right within ninety (90) days following damage to elect by notice to Landlord to terminate 
this Lease as of the date of such damage. In the event of minor damage to any part of 
the Leased Premises, and if such damage does not render the Leased Premises 
unusable for Tenant's purposes, Landlord shall promptly repair such damage at the cost 
of Landlord. In making the repairs called for in this paragraph, Landlord shall not be 
liable for any delays resulting from strikes, governmental restrictions, inability to obtain 
necessary materials or labor or other matters which are beyond the reasonable control 
of Landlord. Tenant shall be relieved from paying rent and other charges during any 
portion of the Lease term that the Leased Premises are inoperable or unfit for 
occupancy, or use, in whole or in part, for Tenant's purposes. Rentals and other 
charges paid in advance for any such periods shall be credited on the next ensuing 
payments, if any, but if no further payments are to be made, any such advance 
payments shall be refunded to Tenant subject to the provisions of this Lease which may 
permit Landlord to retain such payments. The provisions of this paragraph extend not 
only to the matters aforesaid, but also to any occurrence which is beyond Tenant's 
reasonable control and which renders the Leased Premises, or any appurtenance 
thereto, inoperable or unfit for occupancy or use, in whole or in part, for Tenant's 
purposes. 
 
19. TITLE 
 
A.   Subordination.  Tenant shall, upon the request of Landlord in writing, 
subordinate this Lease to the lien of any present or future institutional mortgage/deed of 
trust upon the Leased Premises irrespective of the time of execution or the time of 



Page 13 of 18 

recording of any such mortgage; provided, however, that as a condition to such 
subordination, the holder of any such encumbrance shall enter first into a written 
agreement with Tenant reasonably satisfactory to such encumbrancer in form suitable 
for recording to the effect that: 
 
(i)  In the event of foreclosure or other action taken under the encumbrance by the 
holder thereof, this Lease and the rights of Tenant hereunder shall not be disturbed but 
shall continue in full force and effect so long as Tenant shall not be in default hereunder; 
and  
 
(ii)  Such holder shall permit insurance proceeds and condemnation proceeds to be 
used for any restoration and repair required by the Damage and Insurance provisions of 
this Lease.  Tenant agrees that if the encumbrancer or any person claiming under the 
encumbrancer shall succeed to the interest of Landlord in this lease, Tenant will attorn 
to and recognize said encumbrancer or person as its Landlord under the terms of this 
Lease; provided that said encumbrancer or person for the period during which said 
encumbrancer or person respectively shall be in possession of the Leased Premises 
and thereafter their respective successors in interest shall assume all of the obligations 
of Landlord hereunder, but shall not be liable for prior defaults of Landlord hereunder. 
The word "mortgage", as used herein includes mortgages, deeds of trust or other similar 
instruments, and modifications, and extensions thereof. The term "institutional 
mortgage" means a mortgage securing a loan from a bank (commercial or savings) or 
trust company, insurance company or pension trust or any other lender institutional in 
nature and constituting a lien upon the Leased Premises.  
 
B.   Quiet Enjoyment.  Landlord covenants and agrees that upon Tenant paying the 
rent and observing and performing all of the terms, covenants and conditions on 
Tenant's part to be observed and performed hereunder, that Tenant may peaceably and 
quietly have, hold, occupy and enjoy the Leased Premises in accordance with the terms 
of this Lease without hindrance or molestation from Landlord or any persons lawfully 
claiming through Landlord. 
 
20. ATTORNEYS’ FEES 
 
In the event of any legal action between Landlord and Tenant to enforce any of the 
provisions and/or rights hereunder, the unsuccessful party to such action agrees to pay 
to the other party all costs and expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees incurred 
in prosecuting or defending such action, and if judgment is recovered in such action or 
proceeding, such costs, expenses and attorney’s fees shall be included in and as a part 
of such judgment. 
 
21. NOTICES 
 
Any notice required to be given by or to either Landlord or Tenant pursuant to this 
Lease, shall be in writing and shall be forwarded by certified mail, postage prepaid, 
addressed as follows: 



Page 14 of 18 

 
For Landlord:              For Tenant: 
        
Town of Florence             Pastor 
Town Manager             Florence Mosaic Church of the Nazarene 
P.O. Box 2670             2363 N. Smithsonian Dr. 
775 North Main Street             Florence, AZ 85132 
Florence, AZ 85132      
 
22. WAIVER 
 
 A waiver of any breach of this Lease, or of any of the terms or conditions by 
either party hereto, shall not be deemed a waiver of any repetition of such breach or in 
any way affect any other terms or conditions hereof. No waiver shall be valid or binding 
unless it shall be in writing and signed by the parties. 
 
23. CANCELLATION OF AGREEMENT  
 
Pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-511, the provisions of which are incorporated herein by 
reference, all parties are hereby put on notice that this Lease is subject to cancellation 
by Landlord if any person significantly involved in initiating, negotiating, securing, 
drafting or creating this Lease on behalf of Landlord is, at any time while this Lease or 
any extension of this Lease is in effect, an employee or agent of Tenant in any capacity 
or a consultant to Tenant with respect to the subject matter of this Lease. 
 

{BALANCE OF THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY; SIGNATURES AND 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS APPEAR ON PAGE FOLLOWING] 

 
 
  



Page 15 of 18 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Landlord and Tenant have executed this Lease as of 
the day and year first written above. 
 
LANDLORD: 
 
TOWN OF FLORENCE, an Arizona municipal corporation 
 
 
            
Tom J. Rankin, Mayor   Date 
 
    
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
            
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk   Clifford L. Mattice, Town Attorney 



Page 16 of 18 

TENANT: 
 
__________________________, an Arizona non-profit corporation 
 
By:       
 
Its:    __________________________ 
 
Date:         
 
 
 
STATE OF ARIZONA  ) 
    )  ss. 
County of Pinal   ) 
 
On this ____ day of    , 2015, before me, the undersigned Notary Public, 
personally appeared ____________________, the ________________ of Florence 
Mosaic Church of the Nazarene, an Arizona non-profit corporation, and that as such, 
being authorized so to do, executed the foregoing instrument for the purpose therein 
contained on behalf of the said company. 
 
(Seal and Expiration Date) 
 
             
      Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: 
 
 
      
 
 
 
 
 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



Page 17 of 18 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Business Summary 
 
Florence Fudge Co. is a fudge and sandwich shop located in Suite 101 of the Silver 
King Market Place in downtown Florence. The focus is on fast, quality lunches and 
fudge. By preparing menu items using a quick-service system, presenting a simple 
menu, and offering delivery to the downtown area, the Fudge Co. gives its customers a 
solution to their lunch desires. A variety of different fudges, up to 12 flavors, are offered 
each day. The restaurant is open Monday through Friday, from 8:00 a.m. until 4:00 p.m. 
during the winter months and from 10:00 a.m. until 3:00 p.m. during the summer 
months. On Saturdays, the restaurant is open from 10:00 a.m. until 2:00 p.m.  
 
The Florence Church of the Nazarene purchased Door County Fudge Co. and changed 
the business name to Florence Fudge Co. in 2010.  The Florence Fudge Co. is 
governed by the Board of Directors of Florence Mosaic Church of the Nazarene. Pastor 
Kevin McGuinness is the Chairman and the Board includes Merritt Strunk, Dee Jones, 
John MacKenzie, Fred MacKenzie, Gerrit Griffieon, Chris Terhaar, Jim Popp, Susan 
Kerestes, and Doretta Allison. General Manager is Doretta Allison who, as a volunteer, 
does the purchasing, payroll, financial records and helps out occasionally in the shop as 
needed. The Operations Manager is Cory Ecenbarger. Christin Kemplin and Emily Allee 
are employees.  
 
Public relations, press releases, event promotions, fundraisers, and catering promotion 
are the core of the marketing strategy. The restaurant focuses on social media, public 
relations, and local events for lunch sales to the business target market. Advertising and 
sales incentives have been used with our target markets and loyal customers. Word of 
mouth has been the most important part of the marketing strategy because the target 
markets have become familiar with the restaurant and credibility has definitely been 
established.  A website has been set up and is used as a sales tool to communicate the 
menu offerings, catering options, restaurant location, and concept. Business cards that 
feature a discount also are used to promote the business. 
 
The Florence Fudge Co. is a ministry of the Florence Mosaic Church of the Nazarene. A 
percentage of the revenues go to help fund the Downtown Ministry of the Florence 
Mosaic Church that operates under the 501(c)3 non-profit status of the General Board 
of the Church of the Nazarene. Revenues generated by the Florence Fudge Co. funds 
virtually the entire annual budget of Love Works Pregnancy Resource Center which 
supplies clothing and provides education classes, etc. to the citizens of Florence who 
need help. Revenues also fund the Diaper Pantry that is an extension of Love Works. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 18 of 18 

EXHIBIT B 
 

Tenant Modifications 
 

[PLACE HOLDER FOR ALL PERMANENT TENANT IMPROVEMENTS] 
  
 
 

.  



 

 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
7j.  

MEETING DATE:  August 17, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Jennifer Evans 
                                     Management Analyst 
 
SUBJECT:    Silver King Market Place Lease Agreement with  
                      Victor Fimbres (Silver King) for Suite 201. 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
Subject: Silver King Lease Agreement with Victor Fimbres (Silver King)     Meeting Date: August 17, 2015 
Page 1 of 1 

 
A motion to approve a lease agreement with Mr. Victor Fimbres, dba Silver King, for 
Suite 201 in the Silver King Market Place. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
Mr. Fimbres seeks to lease Suite 201 for use as a hair salon called Silver King. Suite 
201 is the south suite on the second floor of the Silver King Market Place.  Mr. Fimbres 
is the son of Ms. Carol Johnson, owner of the Silver King Hair Co., who has occupied 
the space since 2011.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The term of the lease is from September 1, 2015 to August 31, 2016.  The rent will be 
$182 per month.  The tenant will pay for utilities as invoiced each month by the Town.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of the lease with Victor Fimbres, owner of Silver King.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Silver King Market Place Lease Agreement  
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SILVER KING MARKET PLACE LEASE AGREEMENT 
 
 
 
 
 

TOWN OF FLORENCE, ARIZONA, 
an Arizona municipal corporation 

 
AND 

 
VICTOR FIMBRES, 

a married man, on his own behalf 
 

(Silver King) 
 
 
 

DATE:   As of September 1, 2015 
 



 

Page 2 of 18 
 

SILVER KING MARKET PLACE LEASE AGREEMENT 
 
This Silver King Market Place Lease Agreement (this "Lease") is made and entered into 
as of the 1st day of September, 2015 by Town of Florence, an Arizona municipal 
corporation, hereinafter called "Landlord", and Victor Fimbres, a married man on his 
own behalf, hereinafter called “Tenant". 
 
1. LEASED PREMISES 
 
For and in consideration of the rent to be paid and of the covenants and agreements of 
Tenant as hereinafter set forth, Landlord does hereby lease 728 square feet to Tenant 
of the premises located at 440 N. Main Street, Suite 201, Florence, Arizona, also known 
as the Silver King Market Place, and hereinafter referred to as the “Premises”, or, the 
“Leased Premises”. The Leased Premises are also described as Suite 201, which is 
located at the south end of the building in which the Premises are located (the 
“Building”) on the second floor. 
  
2. TERM 
 
The Lease term shall begin on the 1st day of September, 2015 and end on the 31st 
day of August, 2016 (the “Initial Term”). Landlord shall use commercially reasonable 
efforts to put Tenant in possession of the Leased Premises at the beginning of the Initial 
Term. If Landlord is unable to timely provide the Leased Premises for occupancy by 
Tenant, rent shall abate for the period of delay. Tenant agrees it shall make no other 
claim against Landlord for any such delay. 
 
3. EXTENSIONS  
 
The parties hereto may elect to extend the Initial Term upon such terms and conditions 
as may be agreed upon in writing and signed by the parties at the time of any such 
election; provided that Tenant gives notice of its request to extend the Initial Term no 
later than sixty (60) days prior to the expiration of the Initial Term. If Tenant does not 
elect to extend the Initial Term in accordance with this paragraph, this Lease shall end 
on the 31st day of August, 2016 (the “Expiration Date”) and thereafter Tenant may 
only occupy the Premises on a month-to-month basis. Such month-to-month tenancy 
may be terminated by Landlord upon thirty (30) days notice to Tenant. Landlord’s 
acceptance of rent payments after the Expiration Date shall not constitute a renewal of 
this Lease Agreement.  
 
4. RENTS 
 
Rent shall be paid at the rate of one hundred eighty two dollars ($182.00) per month 
for the duration of this Lease. In addition to the rent, Tenant is responsible for any 
commercial property lease transaction privilege tax and government property lease 
excise tax. Each monthly payment of rent due thereafter shall be payable on the first 
day of each calendar month for the balance of the Initial Term, together with such taxes. 



 

Page 3 of 18 
 

Payment of rent shall be made to Landlord at Town of Florence, P.O. Box 2670, 775 
North Main Street, Florence, Arizona 85132, or at such other place designated by 
written notice from Landlord. The rental payment amount for any partial calendar 
months included in the Lease term shall be prorated on a daily basis. If rent is not 
received by the close of the 5th business day then a late fee of $25.00 will be added to 
Tenant’s account and past-due rent shall bear interest at the rate of ten per cent (10%) 
per annum from the date due (i.e., the first day of each month) until paid. 
 
5. SECURITY DEPOSIT 
 
Tenant has deposited with Landlord the sum of one hundred eighty two dollars 
($182.00) as security for the full and faithful performance by Tenant of all the terms of 
this Lease required to be performed by Tenant. Such sum shall be returned to Tenant 
after the expiration of this Lease; provided Tenant has fully and faithfully carried out all 
of its terms. At the expiration of this Lease or such other time as Tenant may properly  
request the return of the Security Deposit, Landlord shall make an inspection of the 
Leased Premises and deduct from the Security Deposit such sums as are necessary to 
repair and refurbish the Leased Premises to the condition which existed prior to 
Tenant’s occupancy thereof. In the event of a bona fide sale of the Building of which the 
Leased Premises are a part, Landlord shall have the right to transfer the security to the 
purchaser to be held under the terms of this lease, and Landlord shall be released from 
all liability for the return of such security to Tenant.  
 
6. PURPOSE 
 
A. Landlord is maintaining the Silver King Market Place for the development of new 
businesses within the historical/downtown area of the Town of Florence. It is Landlord’s 
desire to endeavor to assist in the creation of new businesses by providing a leasing  
environment contemplated to assist such new businesses. 
 
B. Tenant shall use the Leased Premises for the purpose of conducting the 
business of a hair salon and for no other purpose without Landlord’s express prior 
written consent. This use also must be and remain consistent with Exhibit “A”. In the 
event Tenant desires to use the Leased Premises for a different business purpose not 
described above, Tenant shall first apply, in writing, for approval for such use to the 
Town of Florence. As a further condition of this Lease, Tenant must also maintain 
regular business hours and be open for at least thirty five (35) hours per week with 
exception of holidays. When business enhancement classes are offered, free of charge, 
Tenant shall make every effort to send one or more representatives to attend these 
programs. 
 
C. If Tenant fails to meet any of these requirements, then Landlord may terminate 
this Lease after providing Tenant no less than thirty (30) days written notice of 
Landlord’s intent to terminate this Lease. If Tenant does not satisfy the above conditions 
or otherwise cure the deficiencies indicated in the notice within thirty (30) days, Landlord 
may terminate this Lease as provided in Section 17 below. 



 

Page 4 of 18 
 

 
The Premises shall not be used in violation of this Lease, any zoning laws applicable to 
the Premises, or in violation of any federal, state or local laws or regulations. 
 
7. PROHIBITED USES 
 
Notwithstanding the forgoing, Tenant shall not use the Leased Premises for the 
purposes of storing, manufacturing or selling any explosives, flammables or other 
inherently dangerous substance, chemical, thing or device. All uses must conform to the 
zoning code of the Town of Florence and the Landlord’s Property Lease Policy, both as 
promulgated by Town from time to time.   
 
8. SUBLEASE AND ASSIGNMENT 
 
A. Tenant shall not sublet or assign this Lease without Landlord's consent. To 
assign this Lease to a business with which Tenant may merge or consolidate, to any 
subsidiary of Tenant, to any corporation under common control with Tenant, or to a 
purchaser of substantially all of Tenant's assets Tenant must receive either written 
consent from Landlord (not to be unreasonably withheld) or enter into a new lease 
agreement reasonably satisfactory to both parties.  
 
B. Except as set forth above, neither Tenant nor any assignee may sublease all or 
any part of the Leased Premises, or assign this Lease in whole or in part, without 
Landlord's written consent.  
 
9. REPAIRS 
 
During the Lease term, Tenant shall make, at Tenant's expense, all necessary repairs 
and refurbishment of the Leased Premises. Repair and refurbishment shall include, but 
is not limited to, the repair and refurbishment of normal wear and tear to floors, walls, 
ceilings, and other parts of the Leased Premises caused by Tenant’s use and 
enjoyment of the Leased Premises, except for major mechanical systems or the roof 
[(so long as damage thereto is not caused, in whole or in part, by the acts or omissions 
of Tenant, its invitees or those under Tenant’s direction and control) subject to the 
obligations of the parties as may otherwise be set forth in this Lease.] 
 
10. TENANT IMPROVEMENTS  
 
A. Tenant, at Tenant's expense, shall have the right to remodel, redecorate, or 
make additions, improvements and replacements to all or any part of the Leased 
Premises from time to time as Tenant may deem desirable (the “Tenant Modifications”); 
provided the same are made in a workmanlike manner, lien free, in accordance with all 
codes and utilizing good quality materials. Tenant must obtain the written consent of 
Landlord prior to undertaking any such Tenant Modifications. Tenant shall have the right 
to place and install personal property, trade fixtures, equipment and other temporary 
installations in and upon the Leased Premises, and fasten the same to the Leased 



 

Page 5 of 18 
 

Premises. All personal property, equipment, machinery, trade fixtures and temporary 
installations, whether acquired by Tenant at the commencement of the Lease term or 
placed or installed on the Leased Premises by Tenant thereafter, shall remain Tenant's 
property free and clear of any claim by Landlord. Tenant shall have the right to remove 
the same at any time during the term of this Lease but not after ten (10) days after the 
expiration thereof, provided that such removal does not cause any damage to the 
Premises. Any damage caused by the removal of Tenant’s personal property shall be 
repaired by Tenant at Tenant's expense. If Tenant fails to repair any such damage 
Landlord may repair the damage and deduct the costs thereof from Tenant’s security 
deposit, with Tenant remaining liable for the excess, if any, over the security deposit. At 
the expiration of this Lease, at Landlord’s direction, Tenant shall remove any such 
personal property from the Leased Premises at Tenant’s sole cost and expense, 
repairing any damage to the Leased Premises occasioned thereby.  
 
B. Tenant may have prepared plans and specifications for the construction of 
Tenant Modifications, and, if so, such plans and specifications are attached hereto as 
Exhibit "B" and incorporated herein by reference. Tenant shall obtain all certificates, 
permits, licenses and other authorizations of governmental bodies or authorities which 
are necessary to permit the construction of the improvements on the Leased Premises 
and shall keep the same in full force and effect at Tenant's cost.  
 
C. Tenant shall negotiate, let and supervise all contracts for the furnishing of 
services, labor, and materials for the construction of Tenant Modifications on the 
Leased Premises at its sole cost and expense. All such contracts shall require the 
contracting party to guarantee performance and all workmanship and materials installed 
by it for a period of one year following the date of completion of construction.  Tenant 
shall cause all contracts to be fully and completely performed in a good and 
workmanlike manner and lien free, all to the effect that the improvements shall be fully 
and completely constructed and installed in accordance with good engineering and 
construction practice. Tenant shall include in any contract for the construction of Tenant 
Modifications a requirement that bonds in the full amount of the contract sum be 
furnished guaranteeing the faithful performance of the contract requirements and the 
payment of any and all subcontractors. 
 
D. During the course of Tenant Modifications, Tenant shall, at its cost, keep in full 
force and affect a policy of builder's risk and liability insurance in a sum equal to three 
times the amount expended for construction of the improvements. All risk of loss or 
damage to the improvements during the course of construction shall be on Tenant with 
the proceeds from insurance thereon payable to Landlord.  
 
E. Nothing herein shall alter the intent of the parties that Tenant shall be fully and 
completely responsible for all aspects pertaining to the construction of Tenant 
Modifications to Leased Premises and for the payment of all costs associated therewith. 
Landlord shall be under no duty to investigate or verify Tenant's compliance with the 
provisions contained herein. Moreover, neither Tenant nor any third party may construe 



 

Page 6 of 18 
 

the permission granted Tenant hereunder to create any responsibility on the part of 
Landlord to pay for any improvements, alterations or repairs occasioned by Tenant.  
 
11. UTILITIES 
 
Landlord shall pay the amount due for charges for water, sewer, gas, and electricity and 
separately invoice Tenant for Tenant's share of the charges as determined by Landlord 
in its reasonable judgment utilizing any reasonable method of apportionment. Tenant 
shall pay the utilities invoice upon the due date for the monthly payment of this Lease or 
the first of the month, whichever comes first.Tenant shall be responsible for all of its 
own telecommunications/cable/Internet charges 
 
Tenant acknowledges that the Leased Premises are designed to provide standard office 
or retail use electrical facilities and standard office lighting. Tenant shall not use any 
equipment or devices that utilize excessive electrical energy or which may, in Landlord's 
reasonable opinion, overload the wiring or interfere with electrical services to other 
tenants.  
 
12. SIGNAGE 
 
A. Exterior Signs.  Landlord will provide one exterior sign located on the east side of 
the Building. Tenant shall have the right, at its sole risk and expense and in conformity 
with applicable laws and ordinances, to erect and thereafter, to repair or replace, if it 
shall so elect, signs on any portion of the Leased Premises, provided that Tenant shall 
remove any such signs upon termination of this Lease, and repair all damage 
occasioned thereby to the Leased Premises, all at Tenant’s sole cost and expense. 
 
B. Interior Signs.  Tenant shall have the right, at its sole risk and expense and in 
conformity with applicable laws and ordinances, to erect, maintain, place and install its 
usual and customary signs and fixtures in the interior of the Leased Premises.  
 
C. A fee of seventy five dollars ($75.00) will be charged at the time of the security 
deposit. This deposit is non refundable and will be used for the sign hanging from the 
east side of the building. Tenant will provide Landlord with the business name and if 
necessary, the services they will provide. 
 
13. ENTRY 
 
Landlord shall have the right to enter upon the Leased Premises at reasonable hours 
(absent emergency [during which Landlord may enter to inspect/endeavor to abate 
emergency]) to inspect the same, provided Landlord shall not thereby unreasonably 
interfere with Tenant's business on the Leased Premises. 
 
14.  PARKING 
 



 

Page 7 of 18 
 

During the term of this Lease, Tenant shall have the non-exclusive use in common with 
Landlord, other tenants of the Building, their guests and invitees, of the non-reserved 
common automobile parking areas, driveways, and footways, subject to rules and 
regulations for the use thereof as prescribed from time to time by Landlord. Landlord 
reserves the right to designate parking areas within the Premises or in reasonable 
proximity thereto, for Tenant and Tenant's agents and employees or for others within or 
utilizing the Building. 
 
15. MECHANIC’S AND OTHER LIENS 
 
Tenant shall pay before delinquent all sums of money which, if unpaid, would entitle any 
person to a mechanic’s or material supplier’s or laborer’s lien against the Leased 
Premises, or on Tenant’s interest under this Lease. Tenant agrees that it will neither do 
any act, nor fail to do any act, which would result in the recordation of any lien against 
the Leased Premises, the Building or the Silver King Market Place as a whole. 
 
16.  INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION 
 
A. INDEMNIFICATION 
 
(i) To the fullest extent permitted by law, Tenant shall defend, indemnify and hold 
harmless Landlord (i.e., the Town of Florence), its agents, officers, officials (whether 
elected or not), attorneys and employees (collectively, the “Indemnified Parties”) from, 
of and against all claims, damages, losses and expenses (including, but not limited to, 
attorneys’ fees [whether or not suit is brought], court costs, and the cost of appellate 
proceedings), relating to, arising out of, or alleged to have resulted either wholly or in 
part from the acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, work or services of Tenant, its agents, 
employees, contractors, subcontractors or business invitees in the performance of this 
Agreement, and regardless of whether or not such claim, damages, loss or expenses 
are caused in part by Landlord.  
 
(ii) Tenant’s duty to defend, hold harmless and indemnify the Indemnified Parties 
and each of them shall arise in connection with any claims, damages, losses or 
expenses that are attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease, death, or injury to, 
impairment, or destruction of property including loss of use resulting therefrom, caused 
either wholly or in part by Tenant’s acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, work or services in 
the performance of this Agreement including any employee or business invitee of 
Tenant or any other person for whose acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, work or 
services Tenant may be legally liable, and regardless of whether or not such claim, 
damages, losses or expenses are caused in part by Landlord. 
 
(iii) The amount and type of insurance coverage requirements set forth herein will in 
no way be construed as limiting the scope of the indemnity in this paragraph 16A. 
 
(iv)  Landlord reserves the right to amend the requirements herein at any time during 
the Lease subject to at least 30 days written notice. Coverage provided by the Tenant 



 

Page 8 of 18 
 

shall not be limited to the liability assumed under the Indemnification provision of this 
Lease. To the extent permitted by law, Tenant waives all rights of subrogation or similar 
rights against Landlord. Landlord reserves the right to require complete copies of all 
insurance policies required by this Lease at any time. Failure to maintain the insurance 
policies required by this Lease, or to provide evidence of renewal, is a material breach 
of contract. 
 
B. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
(i) Tenant, at Tenant’s own expense, shall purchase and maintain the herein 
stipulated minimum insurance with companies duly licensed, possessing a current A.M. 
Best, Inc. rating of “A”, or approved and licensed to do business in the State of Arizona 
with policies and forms satisfactory to Landlord. 
 
(ii) All insurance required herein shall be maintained in full force and effect during 
any term of this Lease; failure to do so may, at the sole discretion of Landlord, constitute 
a material breach of this Lease. 
 
(iii) Tenant’s insurance shall be primary insurance, and any insurance or self-
insurance maintained by Landlord shall not contribute to it.  Any failure to comply with 
the claim reporting provisions of the policies or any breach of an insurance policy 
warranty shall not affect coverage afforded under the policy to protect Landlord. 
 
(iv) The insurance policies required by this Agreement shall name Landlord and any 
other Indemnified Parties designated by Landlord as Additional Insured(s). 
 
C. REQUIRED COVERAGES 
 
(i) General Liability/Contractual Indemnity 
 
(a) Tenant shall, at Tenant’s expense, maintain a policy of comprehensive  public  
liability insurance with a limit of not less than $1,000,000 for each occurrence and with a 
$1,000,000 General Aggregate Limit.  The policy shall include coverage for bodily injury, 
broad form property damage, personal injury, and blanket contractual coverage 
including, but not limited to, the liability assumed under the indemnification provisions of 
this Agreement, which coverage will be at least as broad as Insurance Service Office, 
Inc. Policy Form CG 000211093(October 2001 version).  The coverage shall not 
exclude X, C, U.  
 
(b)  Such policy shall contain a severability of interest provision, and shall not contain 
a sunset provision or commutation clause, nor any provision, which would serve to limit 
third party action over claims. 
 
(c) The Commercial General Liability additional insured endorsement shall be at 
least as broad as the Insurance Service Office, Inc.’s, Additional Insured, Form B, 
CG2O101185 (October 2001 version). 



 

Page 9 of 18 
 

 
(ii) Property Insurance 
 
(a) Landlord shall obtain and keep in force during any term of this Lease, a policy or 
policies of insurance covering loss or damage to the Leased Premises, in the amount of 
the full replacement value thereof, providing protection against all perils included within 
the classification of fire, flood, extended coverage, vandalism, malicious mischief and 
special extended perils. 
 
(b) Tenant shall obtain and keep in force during any term of this Lease, a policy or 
policies of insurance covering loss or damage to the contents of the Leased Premises. 
Tenant agrees that Landlord shall not be liable for injury to Tenant’s business or any 
loss of income there from, or for loss or damage to goods, wares, merchandise or other 
property in or on the Leased Premises owned or belonging to Tenant, Tenant’s 
employees, invitees, customers, or any other person in or about the Leased Premises; 
nor shall Landlord be liable for injury to the person of Tenant, Tenant’s employees, 
invitees, agents or contractors, whether such damage or injury to persons or property is 
caused by or results from fire, steam, electricity,  gas, water or rain, or from the 
breakage, leakage, obstruction, or other defects of pipes, sprinklers, wires, appliances, 
plumbing, air conditioning, or light fixtures or from any other cause; or whether the said 
damage or injury to person or property results from conditions arising upon the Leased 
Premises or from other sources or places, and regardless of whether the cause of such 
damage or injury or the means of repairing the same is inaccessible to Tenant. 
 
(iii) Certificates of Insurance 
 
(a) Prior to delivery of possession of the Leased Premises to Tenant, Tenant shall 
furnish Landlord with proof of payment acceptable to Landlord of any required 
coverages hereunder, together with Certificates of Insurance, or formal endorsements 
as required by this Lease, issued by Tenant’s insurer(s), as evidence that policies 
providing the required coverage, conditions and limits required by this Lease are in full 
force and effect. 
 
(b) In the event any insurance policy (ies) required by this Lease is (are) written on a 
“claims made" basis, coverage shall extend for two years past the expiration of any term 
of this Lease as evidenced by annual Certificates of Insurance. 
 
(c) If a policy does expire during any term of this Lease, a renewal certificate must 
be sent to Landlord fifteen (15) days prior to the expiration date. 
 
17. DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES 
 
A. DEFAULTS 
 
 The occurrence of any one or more of the following events shall constitute a 
material default and breach of this Lease by Tenant: 



 

Page 10 of 18 
 

 
(i) The vacating or abandonment of the Leased Premises by Tenant; 
 
(ii) The failure by Tenant to make any payment of rent or any other payment 
required to be made by Tenant hereunder, as and when due; 
 
(iii) The failure by Tenant to observe or perform any of the covenants, conditions, or 
provisions of this Lease to be observed or performed by Tenant, other than described in 
subsection (ii) above, where such failure shall continue for a period of fifteen (15) days 
after written notice hereof from Landlord to Tenant; provided, however, that if the nature 
of Tenant’s default is such that more than fifteen (15) days are reasonably required for 
its cure, then Tenant shall not be deemed to be in default if Tenant commenced such 
cure within said fifteen (15) day period and thereafter diligently prosecutes such cure to 
completion, such additional time to complete not to exceed thirty (30) additional days. 
 
(iv) The making by Tenant of any general arrangement for the benefit of creditors; 
the filing by or against Tenant of a petition to have Tenant adjudged a bankrupt or a 
petition for reorganization or arrangement under any law relating to bankruptcy (unless, 
in the case of a petition filed against Tenant, the same is dismissed within sixty (60) 
days); the appointment of a trustee or receiver to take possession of substantially all of 
Tenant’s assets, located at the Leased Premises, or, of Tenant’s interest in this Lease, 
where possession is not restored to Tenant within thirty (30) days; or, the attachment, 
execution, or other judicial seizure of substantially all of Tenant’s assets located at the 
Leased Premises or of Tenant’s interest in this Lease where such seizure is not 
discharged within thirty (30) days; or  
 
(v)  The filing or recordation of a lien against the Leased Premises, the Building or 
the Silver King Market Place as a whole due to any action or inaction of Tenant. 
 
B.  REMEDIES 
 
(i) In the event of any such default or breach by Tenant, Landlord may at any time 
thereafter, with or without notice or demand and without limiting Landlord in the exercise 
of any right or remedy which Landlord may have by reason of such default or breach: 
 
(ii) Terminate Tenant’s right to possession of the Leased Premises by any lawful 
means, in which case this Lease shall terminate and Tenant shall immediately 
surrender possession of the Leased Premises to Landlord. In such event Landlord shall 
be entitled to recover from Tenant all damages incurred by Landlord by reason of 
Tenant’s default, including but not limited to, the cost or recovering possession of the 
Premises; expenses of reletting, including necessary renovation and alteration of the 
Premises; reasonable attorneys’ fees; any real estate commission actually paid; and the 
worth at the time of award by the court having jurisdiction thereof of the amount by 
which the unpaid rent for the balance of the term after the time of such award exceeds 
the amount of such rental loss for the same period that Tenant provides could be 
reasonably avoided. In the event Tenant shall have abandoned the Premises, Landlord 



 

Page 11 of 18 
 

shall have the option of 1) retaking possession of the Premises and recovering from 
Tenant the amount specified in this paragraph; or 2) proceeding under subsection (iii) 
immediately below. 
 
(iii) Maintain Tenant’s right to possession, in which case this Lease shall remain in 
effect whether or not Tenant shall have abandoned the Premises. In such event, 
Landlord shall be entitled to enforce all of Landlord’s rights and remedies under this 
Lease, including the right to recover the rent as it becomes due hereunder. 
 
(iv) Pursue any other remedy now or hereafter available to Landlord under the laws 
or judicial decisions of the State of Arizona, including the right to declare a landlord’s 
lien on Tenant’s personal property located on the Leased Premises. Where a landlord’s 
lien is declared by Landlord, Landlord may, without notice or demand to Tenant, 
terminate Tenant’s right to possession of the premises until Landlord has secured 
sufficient personal property or full payment of rent to satisfy the amount of rent owed. 
Should Landlord declare a landlord’s lien on the Leased Premises pursuant to this 
paragraph, this Lease shall not be considered terminated, and Landlord shall have a 
right to recover rent as it becomes due. 
 
C. DEFAULT BY LANDLORD 
 
Landlord shall not be in default unless Landlord fails to perform obligations required of 
Landlord within a reasonable time, but in no event later than fifteen (15) days after 
written notice by Tenant to Landlord and to the holder of any first mortgage or deed of 
trust covering the Premises whose name and address shall have theretofore been 
furnished to Tenant in writing, specifying wherein Landlord has failed to perform such 
obligations; provided however, that if the nature of Landlord’s obligation is such that 
more than fifteen (15) days are required for performance, then Landlord shall not be in 
default if Landlord commences performance within such thirty day period and thereafter 
diligently prosecutes the same to completion. If Landlord does not perform, the holder of 
any first mortgage may perform in Landlord’s place and Tenant must accept such 
performance. 
 
D. HOLDOVER BY TENANT 
 
If Tenant shall hold over after expiration of the Initial Term, or any extension of the Initial 
Term, such tenancy shall be from month-to-month only upon such terms, covenants, 
and conditions as set forth herein except for those relating to the term of the Lease. Any 
such month-to-month tenancy may be terminated by Landlord upon thirty (30) days 
notice to Tenant. However, nothing herein shall be construed as or deemed a waiver of 
any rights of Landlord to take such action in law or equity as Landlord may have under 
the provisions of this Lease or otherwise.  
 
E. BANKRUPTCY OF TENANT 
 



 

Page 12 of 18 
 

If Tenant should make a general assignment for the benefit of creditors, or file a 
voluntary petition in bankruptcy, or be adjudicated bankrupt or insolvent, or permit a 
receiver to be appointed to take possession of a substantial portion of the Tenant’s 
assets or of this leasehold, and such bankruptcy, insolvency or receivership 
proceedings not be dismissed within thirty days, then Landlord may, without notice or 
demand, terminate this Lease and forthwith re-enter and repossess the demised 
premises and remove all persons, and under no circumstances shall this Lease be 
assigned or transferred by operation of law. 
 
18. DAMAGE AND DESTRUCTION 
 
Subject to the Insurance provisions contained herein, if the Leased Premises or any 
part thereof or any appurtenance thereto is so damaged by fire, casualty or structural 
defects that the same cannot be used for Tenant's purposes, then Tenant shall have the 
right within ninety (90) days following damage to elect by notice to Landlord to terminate 
this Lease as of the date of such damage. In the event of minor damage to any part of 
the Leased Premises, and if such damage does not render the Leased Premises 
unusable for Tenant's purposes, Landlord shall promptly repair such damage at the cost 
of Landlord. In making the repairs called for in this paragraph, Landlord shall not be 
liable for any delays resulting from strikes, governmental restrictions, inability to obtain 
necessary materials or labor or other matters which are beyond the reasonable control 
of Landlord. Tenant shall be relieved from paying rent and other charges during any 
portion of the Lease term that the Leased Premises are inoperable or unfit for 
occupancy, or use, in whole or in part, for Tenant's purposes. Rentals and other 
charges paid in advance for any such periods shall be credited on the next ensuing 
payments, if any, but if no further payments are to be made, any such advance 
payments shall be refunded to Tenant subject to the provisions of this Lease which may 
permit Landlord to retain such payments. The provisions of this paragraph extend not 
only to the matters aforesaid, but also to any occurrence which is beyond Tenant's 
reasonable control and which renders the Leased Premises, or any appurtenance 
thereto, inoperable or unfit for occupancy or use, in whole or in part, for Tenant's 
purposes. 
 
19. TITLE 
 
A.   Subordination.  Tenant shall, upon the request of Landlord in writing, 
subordinate this Lease to the lien of any present or future institutional mortgage/deed of 
trust upon the Leased Premises irrespective of the time of execution or the time of 
recording of any such mortgage; provided, however, that as a condition to such 
subordination, the holder of any such encumbrance shall enter first into a written 
agreement with Tenant reasonably satisfactory to such encumbrancer in form suitable 
for recording to the effect that: 
 
(i)  In the event of foreclosure or other action taken under the encumbrance by the 
holder thereof, this Lease and the rights of Tenant hereunder shall not be disturbed but 



 

Page 13 of 18 
 

shall continue in full force and effect so long as Tenant shall not be in default hereunder; 
and  
 
(ii)  Such holder shall permit insurance proceeds and condemnation proceeds to be 
used for any restoration and repair required by the Damage and Insurance provisions of 
this Lease.  Tenant agrees that if the encumbrancer or any person claiming under the 
encumbrancer shall succeed to the interest of Landlord in this lease, Tenant will attorn 
to and recognize said encumbrancer or person as its Landlord under the terms of this 
Lease; provided that said encumbrancer or person for the period during which said 
encumbrancer or person respectively shall be in possession of the Leased Premises 
and thereafter their respective successors in interest shall assume all of the obligations 
of Landlord hereunder, but shall not be liable for prior defaults of Landlord hereunder. 
The word "mortgage", as used herein includes mortgages, deeds of trust or other similar 
instruments, and modifications, and extensions thereof. The term "institutional 
mortgage" means a mortgage securing a loan from a bank (commercial or savings) or 
trust company, insurance company or pension trust or any other lender institutional in 
nature and constituting a lien upon the Leased Premises.  
 
B.   Quiet Enjoyment.  Landlord covenants and agrees that upon Tenant paying the 
rent and observing and performing all of the terms, covenants and conditions on 
Tenant's part to be observed and performed hereunder, that Tenant may peaceably and 
quietly have, hold, occupy and enjoy the Leased Premises in accordance with the terms 
of this Lease without hindrance or molestation from Landlord or any persons lawfully 
claiming through Landlord. 
 
20. ATTORNEYS’ FEES 
 
In the event of any legal action between Landlord and Tenant to enforce any of the 
provisions and/or rights hereunder, the unsuccessful party to such action agrees to pay 
to the other party all costs and expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees incurred 
in prosecuting or defending such action, and if judgment is recovered in such action or 
proceeding, such costs, expenses and attorney’s fees shall be included in and as a part 
of such judgment. 
 
21. NOTICES 
 
Any notice required to be given by or to either Landlord or Tenant pursuant to this 
Lease, shall be in writing and shall be forwarded by certified mail, postage prepaid, 
addressed as follows: 
 
For Landlord:      For Tenant: 
        
Town of Florence     Victor Fimbres 
Town Manager     Silver King  
P.O. Box 2670     P. O. Box 355 
775 North Main Street     Florence, AZ 85132 



 

Page 14 of 18 
 

Florence, AZ 85132      
 
22. WAIVER 
 
 A waiver of any breach of this Lease, or of any of the terms or conditions by 
either party hereto, shall not be deemed a waiver of any repetition of such breach or in 
any way affect any other terms or conditions hereof. No waiver shall be valid or binding 
unless it shall be in writing and signed by the parties. 
 
23. CANCELLATION OF AGREEMENT  
 
Pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-511, the provisions of which are incorporated herein by 
reference, all parties are hereby put on notice that this Lease is subject to cancellation 
by Landlord if any person significantly involved in initiating, negotiating, securing, 
drafting or creating this Lease on behalf of Landlord is, at any time while this Lease or 
any extension of this Lease is in effect, an employee or agent of Tenant in any capacity 
or a consultant to Tenant with respect to the subject matter of this Lease. 
 

{BALANCE OF THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY; SIGNATURES AND 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS APPEAR ON PAGE FOLLOWING] 

 
 
  
 
 
  



 

Page 15 of 18 
 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Landlord and Tenant have executed this Lease as of 
the day and year first written above. 
 
LANDLORD: 
 
TOWN OF FLORENCE, an Arizona municipal corporation 
 
 
            
Tom J. Rankin, Mayor   Date 
 
    
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
            
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk   Clifford L. Mattice, Town Attorney 



 

Page 16 of 18 
 

TENANT: 
 
VICTOR FIMBRES, a married man on his own behalf 
 
By:       
 
Its:    ___________________________ 
 
Date:         
 
 
 
STATE OF ARIZONA  ) 
    )  ss. 
County of Pinal  ) 
 
On this ____ day of    , 2015, before me, the undersigned Notary Public, 
personally appeared ____________________, the owner of Silver King, and that as 
such, being authorized so to do, executed the foregoing instrument for the purpose 
therein contained on behalf of the said company. 
 
(Seal and Expiration Date) 
 
             
      Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: 
 
 
      
 
 
 
 
 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Page 17 of 18 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Business Summary 
 
Victor Fimbres is a licensed cosmotologist who works at the Silver King Hair Co. 
currently located in Suite 201 of the Silver King Market Place. Victor Fimbres, dba Silver 
King, is a sole proprietor who will take over the hair salon from the Silver King Hair Co. 
owner, Carol Johnson, on September 1, 2015. The Silver King Hair Co. has an 
established clientele and has been open since 2011. The hair salon provides a range of 
services that include hair cuts, hair styling, and nails. 
 
The salon is fully equipped with three stations for hair and nails. The business is open 
Wednesday through Saturday from 9:00 a.m. until 5:00 p.m. during the summer months. 
During the winter months, the salon will be open additional days and hours by 
appointment.  
 
Victor Fimbres, a fifth generation cosmotologist, will own and operate the salon. Two 
other cosmotologists work in the salon. There is space for additional cosmotologists to 
operate as the business expands its customer base. The salon has a steady clientele of 
local residents.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Page 18 of 18 
 

EXHIBIT B 
 

Tenant Modifications  
 

[PLACEHOLDER FOR ALL PERMANENT TENANT MODIFICATIONS] 



MINUTES OF THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL MEETING HELD ON MONDAY, 
JULY 6, 2015, AT 5:00 PM, IN THE CHAMBERS OF TOWN HALL, LOCATED AT 775 
NORTH MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA. 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Rankin called the meeting to order at 5:03 pm. 

 
ROLL CALL:    
 
Present:  Rankin, Walter, Woolridge, Hawkins, Guilin, Anderson, Wall 
 
WORK SESSION ON TOWN LEASING POLICY 
 

Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 6, 2015 
Page 1 of 16 
 
 

Ms. Jennifer Evans, Management Analyst, stated that at the June 15, 2015 Town 
Council meeting, staff presented a draft Property Lease Policy.  At that meeting, 
questions were raised regarding current lease rates for commercial properties on Main 
Street, operating costs for the Silver King Marketplace and conservation easements 
associated with the Silver King Marketplace and the Brunenkant building. 
 
Ms. Evans stated that the average lease rate for properties on North Main Street is 
$5.80 per square foot and the average lease rate for a suite at the Silver King 
Marketplace is $3.00 per square foot.  She stated that if the Town raised the lease rate 
it would experience up to a 36% increase in Suite 101 and an increase up to a 17% for 
Suite 201 based on the new rate.  She stated that the average utility cost in 2014 for the 
Silver King Marketplace was $955.27 and is averaging $1,004.08 for 2015.  The Town 
pays for the phone line that is required for the fire suppression system, which increased 
the Town’s monthly utility costs to an average of $1,093.84 in 2014 and $1,143.98 in 
2015, with the tenants contributing $791.78 each month.  The Town has been 
subsidizing the monthly utility costs at the Silver King Marketplace.  Beginning this 
month, each suite has its own utility meter that tracks their actual usage and the tenants 
will be billed accordingly. 
 
Ms. Evans stated that the Arizona State Parks Board places restriction on properties 
that benefit from Arizona Heritage Fund grants for historic preservation projects.  Upon 
execution of the participant agreement, a conservation easement is recorded that runs 
with the property for a certain period of time.  She stated that there are several deed 
restrictions in place on the Silver King Marketplace: one is for 15 years that will expire in 
November 2015 and there are two that were grouped together from 1993 and 1994 
requiring a 30-year easement that was executed in 1995 and set to expire in 2025.  She 
stated that the Brunenkant Building has two conservation easements with one 
easement expiring in December 2017 and the other in October 2025.  She stated that 
the easements do not hinder the Town from selling the properties as the easements run 
with the land and would convey to the new owners. 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 6, 2015 
Page 2 of 16 
 
 

 
Ms. Evans stated that staff is looking for a directive from Council if they would like to sell 
the buildings or to continue pursuing tenants and update the lease policy.   
 
Councilmember Anderson inquired as to what is meant by not allowing non-retail 
businesses on the second floor of the Silver King Marketplace. 
 
Ms. Evans explained that retail businesses are permitted on the first and second floors 
of the Silver King Marketplace and non-retail businesses are only permitted on the 
second floor, encouraging a greater amount of foot traffic to the building. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired as to what is considered normal for lease rates in the downtown 
area and along Highway 79. 
 
Ms. Evans stated that the average lease rate in the downtown area is $5.80 per square 
foot and the average lease rate along Highway 79 ranges from $10.00 to $12.00 per 
square foot.  She stated that the leases along Highway 79 are triple-net leases which 
are not typically seen in the downtown area. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired as to how long the suites have been empty at the Silver King 
Marketplace. 
 
Ms. Evans stated that Suite 102 had been vacant since March 2013 and Suite 202 has 
been vacant since January 2014. 
 
Mayor Ranking inquired if there has been any interest in the suites. 
 
Ms. Evans stated that there have been five to ten different businesses interested in the 
suites and two to three have inquired into the Brunenkant Building. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired if perspective tenants are being required to submit a business 
plan when they submit their request to lease and if this requirement is hindering leasing 
of the suites. 
 
Ms. Evans stated that the lease requirements do request a business plan.  She stated 
that only two interested parties, The Fudge Shop, and Bucks 4 Style, LLC, have 
reached the discussion phase of the lease and submitted a plan. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired if any other property owners are requesting a business plan from 
perspective tenants.  He also inquired if the Town’s Lease Agreement is too strict. 
 
Ms. Evans stated that she did not have that information regarding requirements of other 
property owners in the downtown area.  She stated that she does not believe the lease 
requirements are too strict.  She explained that by developing a business plan it allows 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 6, 2015 
Page 3 of 16 
 
 

a business owner to look at all the details of their business and plan how they are going 
to maintain and grow it.   
 
Councilmember Woolridge stated that she agreed with Ms. Evans as the development 
of a business plan allows the individual to look at their business and to make sure the 
leasing of the space is the right thing to do at that time and for the longevity of the 
business they have or will be starting. 
 
Ms. Evans stated that she has worked with small businesses for the past 15 year and 
the two weaknesses she has seen are the lack of market research and understanding 
their market and finances.   
 
Mayor Rankin inquired if the utilities have been properly divided per suite. 
 
Ms. Evans stated that there are five electrical meters at the Silver King Marketplace 
which allows for usage billing for each suite.  There are now separate water meters for 
Suites 101, 201 and 102.  She stated that there is no water access for suite 202. 
 
Mayor Rankin stated that the Silver King has two leasers and they are paying $0.61 per 
square foot for utilities and the Town is currently picking up a large portion of the utility 
bills for this building.   
 
Ms. Evans stated that Mayor Rankin was correct as the Town is currently paying an 
average of $352.20 per month for utilities at the Silver King Marketplace. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired if the 2,682 square feet for the Brunenkant Building included the 
loft and if the flooding issues in the basement had been rectified. 
 
Ms. Evans stated that the 2,682 square feet includes the second floor and the basement 
as the basement is finished.  She stated that she was not aware of any water collection 
issues in the basement and requested Mr. Costa to address that issue. 
 
Mr. Wayne Costa, Public Works Director, stated that the basement has been sealed 
during the last restoration project on the building and there had not been any leakage 
since that time. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired if the basement was viable for business use or more appropriate 
for storage. 
 
Ms. Evans stated that the basement space of the Brunenkant Building is climate 
controlled and could be utilized for a business but it is not ADA compliant as the access 
to the area is from a very steep staircase.  She stated that it is functional and could be 
leased separately but would not recommend it as it would hinder the leasing of the main 
floor. 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 6, 2015 
Page 4 of 16 
 
 

 
Mayor Rankin inquired if the basement is fire compliant as a stand-a-lone rental area.   
 
Mr. David Strayer, Interim Fire Chief, stated that depending on the occupancy, you 
would need to have more than 50 people before a second ingress and egress would be 
required.  The building would need to be inspected before he could provide a 100% 
accurate assessment of the Brunenkant Building with regards to ADA and other 
requirements. 
 
Councilmember Hawkins inquired what the lengths of the leases were at the Silver King 
Marketplace. 
 
Ms. Evans stated that the lease for the initial rental period is for one year with the option 
for two one-year renewals. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired if Ms. Evans had received comments from realtors regarding the 
lease fees. 
 
Ms. Evans stated that she had not received any comments lately but had received 
comments in the past from property owners who are not happy with the low lease rates 
the Town is offering as it is perceived that the low rates are lowering the average market 
rate for the area and undermining the rate the owner can request for their building.  She 
stated that the lease rates for downtown range from $2 per square foot to $9 per square 
foot. 
 
Vice-Mayor Walter inquired as to what the monthly tax revenue is for the tenants at the 
Silver King Marketplace. 
 
Ms. Evans stated that she would need to research the monthly tax revenue from the 
tenants and forward the information to the Council. 
 
Councilmember Woolridge inquired if all the suites were filled, would the Town no 
longer need to subsidize the Silver King Marketplace on a monthly basis. 
 
Ms. Evans stated that when the Town started renting out spaces at the Silver King 
Marketplace, it was with the philosophy that the space would be used to incubate 
businesses that would then move on to other locations to grow their businesses.  She 
stated that the reality is that the Town has two stable tenants who have been there for 
several years.  She stated that Council needs to determine if they want to continue with 
the incubator philosophy or continue with long-term rental goals and raise the lease 
rate. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired if the Town is subsidizing the utility use of the current tenants. 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 6, 2015 
Page 5 of 16 
 
 

Ms. Evans stated that the current lease states that the tenants will pay the Town a 
specific cost per square foot of the suite they lease. The proposed lease changes would 
allow for each suite to pay the Town their actual usage of utilities as individual meters 
have been installed.  She stated that the Town will continue to pay utility costs for all 
common areas and for the fire suppression system. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired as to how well the building is insulated. 
 
Ms. Evans stated that the building is constructed of brick and has minimal insulation. 
 
Councilmember Hawkins stated that the ceiling is insulated and the suites have double-
pane windows.  He stated that he believes the lease policy should remain on a yearly 
basis. 
 
Ms. Evans stated that there is a weight capacity on the floors as the building has wood 
joists which limit what can be placed on them.  She stated that one potential tenant 
wanted to operate a decorative tile business but the pallets of tiles would be too heavy 
for the floors.  She stated another concern has been the dimension or size of the suite. 
 
Councilmember Wall stated that she would like to see all tenants pay fair market lease 
rate and pay their actual usage of the utilities.  She stated that she would like to see the 
rental philosophy for the Silver King Marketplace change from a business incubator 
subsidy program to a for-profit/break even business plan. 
 
Mayor Rankin stated that he started the conversation on possibly selling the two 
historical buildings as they are costing the Town money to sustain them. He inquired if 
the cost outweighs the historical value of the buildings.  
 
Councilmember Hawkins stated that both businesses have proven they are viable and it 
is time to negotiate a higher lease rate that will allow the Town to recoup its expenses 
and to make it more equitable with the other businesses in the area.   
 
Councilmember Anderson stated that he would like to see the current and future tenants 
pay a competitive rate. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired if the current tenants were notified of the meeting this evening 
regarding the lease rate work session. 
 
Ms. Evans stated that she did not specifically notify the tenants of the meeting as she 
was uncertain on how the conversation with Council would evolve and if their 
participation would be needed. 
 
Mayor Rankin stated that he would like to speak with the tenants regarding lease rates 
and the length of the lease before any decision is made. 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 6, 2015 
Page 6 of 16 
 
 

 
Vice-Mayor Walter stated that she agreed with Mayor Rankin and would like to have the 
information regarding tax revenues before a decision is made. 
 
Councilmember Guilin stated that the Town cannot disclose what a tax payer is paying 
as it is against the law and comes with heavy fines. 
 
Ms. Garcia stated that staff can verify if the tenants are paying taxes but cannot disclose 
the actual dollar amount collected by the tenants of the Silver King Marketplace as that 
would not be permitted by law.  She reminded Council that the common area and 
corridors of the Silver King Marketplace are required to be open to the public, and as 
such, the Town is obligated to pay the expenses for those areas. 
 
Councilmember Wall inquired if the Town’s Attorney had reviewed the Property Lease 
Policy. 
 
Ms. Evans stated that the Town’s prior Attorney, Mr. Jim Mannato, had reviewed the 
policy when it was first drafted late last year. 
 
Councilmember Wall stated that she believed staff was in a better position to negotiate 
lease increases with the tenants than Council. 
 
Ms. Garcia stated that all leases are currently expired and are currently on a month-to-
month contract with the Town pending approval of the new Property Lease Policy for 
which negotiations would be done in accordance with that policy.  
 
Ms. Evans stated that the intent of the Property Lease Policy is to provide staff with 
general parameters on how Council would like staff to approach leases as it is in 
everyone’s best interest that the businesses stay profitable and that the Town recoup 
their expenses, as stated in the lease. 
 
Mayor Rankin stated that this is why he would like to speak with the tenants to 
determine if the businesses would need to relocate if the fees were raised.  
 
Councilmember Woolridge stated that she can understand wanting to work with the 
tenants but also thinks it is Council’s duty to ensure the Town is properly being paid for 
the space and the utilities based on the fair market rate. 
 
Mayor Rankin stated that he agreed with Councilmember Woolridge but is concerned 
that an empty building is more of a concern than raising lease rates.  He stated that 
losing two businesses on Main Street would not be in the best interest of the Town. 
 
Councilmember Woolridge suggested that staff should have a conference with the 
tenants and report back to Council on what the positive and/or negative ramifications 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 6, 2015 
Page 7 of 16 
 
 

would be to increasing the lease rates for Town owned properties.  She stated that 
financial discussion pertaining to the profitability of the businesses is not a conversation 
that should occur during a Council meeting but during a one-on-one meeting with staff. 
 
Ms. Garcia stated that the tenants are aware that the Town is working on updating the 
lease policy.   The tenants are on a month-to-month lease until such time as a renewal 
of an annual lease can be provided. 
 
Councilmember Anderson inquired if there would be any issues with scheduling another 
work session on this topic. 
 
Ms. Garcia stated that a work session can be scheduled. 
 
Mayor Rankin stated that a work session will be added to the agenda for July 20, 2015 
with the meeting starting at 5:00 p.m. 
 
MOMENT OF SILENCE 
 
Mayor Rankin called for a moment of silence. 

 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Mayor Rankin led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the jurisdiction of the 
Town Council.  Council rules limit public comment to three minutes.  Individual 
Councilmembers may respond to criticism made by those commenting, may ask 
staff to review a matter raised or may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda.  
However, members of the Council shall not discuss or take action on any matter 
during an open call to the public unless the matters are properly noticed for 
discussion and legal action. 
 
Ms. Denise Kollert, Florence resident, stated that she had a chance to tour the new 
Aquatic Center and wanted to thank all those who fought for it as it is a beautiful facility 
that the Town can be proud of.  She stated that the pool usage has been great and that 
there were people waiting in line on July 4th as the pool reached capacity.    
 
Mr. Damon Anderson, General Manager of the Holiday Inn Express, stated that Hunt 
Highway will soon be a four lane expressway leading up to Copper Basin.  The East 
Valley is growing and will soon reach the levels experienced prior to the 2008 economic 
crisis.  He congratulated Council for their ability to balance the preservation of historic 
Florence with the inevitable growth of the Town by identifying buildings and spaces that 
have significant historical value.  He stated that Council is making the decision needed 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 6, 2015 
Page 8 of 16 
 
 

to manage growth that will soon be knocking on the Town’s front door.  The community 
wants to preserve the small-town historical attributes of Florence and believes the 
beautification of Main Street, paving of roadways and building a regional aquatic center 
and heavy involvement by organizations planning the growth is exactly where the Town 
needs to be focused.  He stated that the separation of population in Town is real and 
has been for so many years.  The separation is quickly going to close as the Town will 
be contending with east valley residents and San Tan Valley.  By preparing for building 
infrastructure today is key for when the expansion arrives.  He commended Council and 
staff for preparing the Town for future growth and preserving the historical value of 
Florence. 
 
Ms. Ruth Harrison, Florence resident, congratulated Council on a successful opening of 
the Aquatic Center.  She stated that she would like to see the Town work with APS 
during their electrical pole replacement project to ensure the poles in the historic district 
are replaced with wood poles instead of metal poles, which is the intent of APS.  She 
stated that HDAC Commissioners stated in their last meeting that they would like to see 
the Town take a more pro-active approach in preserving the historical buildings by 
taking the necessary steps to improve their condition and require owners to maintain 
them and resolve any deficiencies. 
 
Mr. Gem Cox, Florence resident, stated that it is a pleasure to see the Town coming 
together and moving the Town forward.  He stated that he was impressed with the quick 
opening of the Aquatic Center and the successful grand opening over the 4th of July.  
He recommended Council keep the lease rates low at the Silver King Marketplace as it 
is more beneficial to everyone that the businesses stay profitable and successful,.  An 
empty building is never a good thing for anyone.   He stated that he has a tenant for the 
grocery store building on Main Street and thanked Council and Town staff for all of their 
help in getting the project to this point. 
 
PRESENTATIONS 
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk, read the proclamation for the 
record. 
 

Proclamation declaring July 2015 as Parks and Recreation Month in the Town of 
Florence, Arizona.  
 
Mr. Brian Hughes, Parks and Recreation Director, had Ms. Alison Feliz, Recreational 
Programmer, accept the award on behalf of the Department. 
 
Mayor Rankin stated that the timing of the Proclamation could not be better with the 
opening of the Aquatic Center.  The staff’s marketing efforts for the facility was shown in 
the attendance numbers on 4th of July.  He stated that the region knows about the 
Aquatics Center and is making Florence a destination for water recreation.  He stated it 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 6, 2015 
Page 9 of 16 
 
 

is not only the Aquatic Center but the programming that the Department is doing 
throughout Town.  The programs are improving the lifestyle of the citizens, our 
neighbors and guests and this raising the Town above all others. 
 
Mayor Rankin proclaimed July 2015 as Parks and Recreation Month in the Town of 
Florence, Arizona.  
 
Presentation highlighting the designation of the Town of Florence as a Playful 
City USA Community. 
 
Mr. John Nixon, Recreation Coordinator, stated that the Playful City USA is a program 
sponsored by the Humana Foundation, in partnership with KaBoom!, a national non-
profit dedicated to children receiving balanced, daily active play.  He stated that since 
1996, KaBoom! has built, opened or improved 16,300 playgrounds nationwide and 
honors communities that make play a priority and demonstrates a commitment to 
ensuring all kids get the balance of play necessary to their physical and social 
development.  He stated that selection criteria focused on community partnerships, 
infrastructure investments and a dedication to the social and physical benefits of active 
play for children. 
 
Mr. Nixon stated that the national recognition as a Playful City USA community makes 
the Town eligible to apply for local and national grants and awards programs, funding 
support from KaBoom! and the Humana Foundation.  KaBoom! also provides marketing 
recognition to the general public, national organizations and potential funders and the 
website provides educational and networking opportunities.  He stated that one of the 
submittal requirements was to submit letters of support for which staff collected six.  
 
Mr. Nixon read a letter to Council, on behalf of Mrs. Tracey Celaya, which spoke to the 
depth and breadth of activities offered by the Parks and Recreation Department for the 
citizens, neighbors and guests of Florence.   
 
Mr. Nixon recognized the continued support from Council, Town staff and the citizens, 
stating that the Parks and Recreation Department is one of 14 Arizona communities and 
241 national communities to receive this recognition.  
 
Mayor Rankin congratulated the Parks and Recreation Department and stated that 
government is more than police and fire services; it is about providing a lifestyle for all 
members and ages of the community.  He stated that he looks forward to seeing what 
new opportunities this recognition provides the Town to further enhance our facilities 
and services.    
 
CONSENT: All items on the consent agenda will be handled by a single vote as 
part of the consent agenda, unless a Councilmember or a member of the public 
objects at the time the agenda item is called.  



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 6, 2015 
Page 10 of 16 
 
 

 
a. Approval to ratify the Map of Dedication to allow the widening of the 

Adamsville Road right-of-way in accordance with Resolution No. 1517-15, 
adopted on April 20, 2015, thereby accepting non-exclusive public road 
right-of-way from the Florence Unified School District.  
 

b. Approval of accepting a $10,000 donation from Mr. Arnold Salazar and 
proceed with Phase II of the cemetery expansion. 
 

c. Approval of accepting the register of demands ending May 31, 2015, in the 
amount of $5,258,051.73. 

 
On motion of Councilmember Hawkins, seconded by Councilmember Guilin, and carried 
to approve the Consent Agenda, as written, with the exception of items 8b.  
 

b. Approval of accepting a $10,000 donation from Mr. Arnold Salazar and 
proceed with Phase II of the cemetery expansion. 

 
Councilmember Anderson stated that he is so pleased that the Salazar family made the 
donation to the Town’s cemetery and wanted to recognize them for their generous 
donation. 
 
Mayor Rankin stated that the Salazar family is a long-time member of the community.  
 
On motion of Councilmember Anderson, seconded by Vice-Mayor Walter, and carried to 
approve item 8b of the Consent Agenda.  

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk read Ordinance No. 630-15 by title 
only. 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
LEVYING THE ASSESSED VALUATION OF THE PROPERTY WITHIN THE TOWN 
OF FLORENCE SUBJECT TO TAXATION OF CERTAIN SUM UPON EACH $100 OF 
VALUATION SUFFICIENT TO RAISE THE AMOUNT ESTIMATED TO BE RECEIVED 
FROM FUNDS FOR GENERAL MUNICIPAL EXPENSES FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 
ENDING THE 30th DAY OF JUNE 2016, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 
 
Mr. Charles Montoya, Town Manager, stated that the proposed property tax rate of 
$1.1182 per $100 of Net Assessed Valuation (NAV) is the same as what was levied last 
year.  He stated that the Arizona Department of Revenue has calculated a rate of 
$1.0982 per $100 NAV and because the Town is recommending a higher rate, a Truth-
in-Taxation (TNT) hearing is required.  He stated that the TNT hearing will be held on 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 6, 2015 
Page 11 of 16 
 
 

July 13, 2015, at the current rate of $1.1182, the proposed property tax levy for the 
2015-2016 Fiscal Year is $893,721. 
 
Mr. Montoya stated that the Town levies a secondary property tax for the Merrill Ranch 
Streetlight Improvement Districts No. 1, No. 2, and No. 3, but due to adequate funding 
at this time, there will be no levy this year. 
 
Councilmember Anderson stated that the advertisement that ran in the paper for the 
TNT hearing stated that there will be an increase.  He explained that the increase will be 
over what the State has calculated; however, there will not be an increase over last 
year.   He stated that he believes the advertisement is confusing to the citizens. 
 
Mr. Montoya stated Councilmember Anderson is correct but by law the notice has to 
show that the Town will be charging a rate higher than the rate that was calculated by 
the State. 
 
Mayor Rankin stated that the rate is staying the same but it is higher than what the 
State calculated.  He stated if the value of one’s property has increased then the owner 
would see an increase in their property tax bill. 
 
Mr. Jess Knudson, Assistant Town Manager, stated that the State Statute clearly 
defines how the Truth-in-Taxation advertisement is to read and the municipality 
basically fills in the blanks.   
 
Mayor Rankin stated that he is probably guilty for not clearly stating that the rate is not 
increasing and requested Mr. Knudson to place a notice clearly stating that the rate is 
not increasing. 
 
MOTION TO ADJOURN TO MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITY DISTRICT 
NO. 1 BOARD.  
 
On motion of Vice-Mayor Walter, seconded by Councilmember Guilin, and carried to 
adjourn to the Merrill Ranch Community Facility District No. 1 Board. 
 
Ordinance No. MRCFD1 112-15: 
 
Ms. Garcia, District Clerk, read Ordinance No. MRCFD1 112-15 by title only. 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1, 
PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, LEVYING THE ASSESSED VALUATION OF THE 
PROPERTY WITHIN THE COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT SUBJECT TO 
TAXATION OF CERTAIN SUM UPON EACH $100 OF VALUATION SUFFICIENT TO 
RAISE THE AMOUNT ESTIMATED TO BE RECEIVED FROM FUNDS FOR 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 6, 2015 
Page 12 of 16 
 
 

COMMUNITY FACILITIES EXPENSES FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING THE 30th 
DAY OF JUNE 2016, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 
 
Mr. Montoya, District Manager, stated that the District Board has authorized a 
secondary property tax levy for the payment of debt service, infrastructure and 
operations and maintenance of the District.  He stated that the current rate is $3.55 per 
$100 NAV, totaling $602,400. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired if the rate is the same as last year. 
 
Mr. Montoya stated that the rate is the same as last year. 
 
Vice-Mayor Walter requested that an expenditure report be provided for the Community 
Facilities District (CFD) showing revenues versus expenses. 
 
Councilmember Guilin stated that monthly expenditures can be located in the warrant 
register provided in Council’s monthly packet. 
 
Vice-Mayor Walter stated that she would like a separate report specific to the CFD that 
would be easy for citizens to identify CFD revenues and expenses. 
 
Mr. Montoya stated that staff had previously requested a CFD work session to set up 
policies and procedures and specific reports can be created as a part of that directive. 
 
MOTION TO ADJOURN FROM MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITY DISTRICT 
NO. 1 BOARD.  
 
On motion of Boardmember Woolridge, seconded by Vice-Chairman Walter, and carried 
to adjourn from the Merrill Ranch Community Facility District No. 1 Board. 
 
MOTION TO ADJOURN TO MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITY DISTRICT                        
NO. 2 BOARD.  
 
On motion of Councilmember Woolridge, seconded by Councilmember Guilin, and 
carried to adjourn to the Merrill Ranch Community Facility District No. 2 Board. 
 
Ordinance No. MRCFD2 212-15: 
 
Ms. Garcia, District Clerk, read Ordinance No. MRCFD2 212-15 by title only. 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2, 
PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, LEVYING THE ASSESSED VALUATION OF THE 
PROPERTY WITHIN THE COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT SUBJECT TO 
TAXATION OF CERTAIN SUM UPON EACH $100 OF VALUATION SUFFICIENT TO 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 6, 2015 
Page 13 of 16 
 
 

RAISE THE AMOUNT ESTIMATED TO BE RECEIVED FROM FUNDS FOR 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES EXPENSES FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING THE 30th 
DAY OF JUNE 2016, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 
 
Mr. Montoya stated that this levy is the same as that of District No. 1 with the property 
tax rate being $3.55 per $100 of NAV, with a total of $564,800 levied on the District. 
 
Councilmember Anderson inquired as to why the Town is declaring an emergency 
regarding this ordinance. 
 
Ms. Garcia stated that the law requires that the Town submit all tax information and 
valuations by a certain date to Pinal County and by declaring an emergency, it allows 
the Town a better timeline for a public hearing and two readings of the ordinance before 
adoption. 
 
MOTION TO ADJOURN FROM MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITY       
DISTRICT NO. 2 BOARD.  
 
On motion of Boardmember Woolridge, seconded by Boardmember Wall, and carried to 
adjourn from the Merrill Ranch Community Facility District No. 2 Board. 
 
DEPARTMENT REPORTS 

Manager’s Report 
Department Reports 

Community Development 
Courts 
Finance 
Fire 
Library 
Parks and Recreation 
Police 
Public Works 

 
Vice-Mayor Walter inquired as to when the islands on Hunt Highway, in front of Anthem 
at Merrill Ranch, will be landscaped and is concerned that the trees that are currently 
being planted may interfere with the underground utility lines in the same location. 
 
Mr. Costa stated that Pulte is responsible for landscaping the islands and the 
landscaping should be completed by September.  He stated he would look into the 
concerns regarding the trees and report back to Council. 
 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 6, 2015 
Page 14 of 16 
 
 

Ms. Delaine Coleman, Florence resident, submitted a list of questions for Council and 
staff and asked that she receive a response to her questions.   
 
CALL TO THE COUNCIL 
  
Councilmember Anderson expressed his appreciation to the Parks and Recreation staff 
for their hard work with the opening of the Aquatics Center and the success they had 
with their programming throughout Town. He stated that he appreciated the citizens 
who regularly attend and participate in the Council meetings.  
 
Councilmember Guilin stating the Town has spent many years planning and saving for 
such a facility along with the library.  She thanked staff for seeing the plans come to 
fruition and for Mayor Rankin promoting and not giving up on facility plans. 
 
Councilmember Hawkins thanked Parks and Recreation for a great 4th of July 
celebration. 
 
Councilmember Wall stated that as a new Councilmember, Ms. Garcia arranged for a 
tour of all Town facilities to allow her the opportunity to become familiar with the assets 
and responsibilities of the Town and obtain direct knowledge from each of the 
Department Heads.  She expressed her gratitude to Wayne Costa, Public Works 
Director, Bryan Hughes, Parks and Recreation Director, Mark Eckhoff, Community 
Development Director, Dan Bennington, IT Director, Interim Fire Chief David Strayer 
and Police Chief Daniel Hughes. 
 
Councilmember Woolridge agreed with all that had been said by Council. 
 
Vice-Mayor Walter stated that the 4th of July festivities were delightful and well 
executed.  She stated that at previous meetings she had expressed concerns regarding 
the employee structure and job classifications and asked that Council consider having 
an independent company review the departmental structure and employee classification 
for the betterment of the Town employees.  She stated that the cost would be 
approximately $30,000.  She recommended that an Advisory Board be put in place for 
each CFD to allow the citizens and businesses living within a CFD to have a voice as to 
how the CFD business is handled. 
 
Mayor Rankin stated that when you have a dream and you see it come to fruition, it is 
quite an amazing feeling.  He stated that when people heard about the Aquatic Center 
project they could only envision a swimming pool but working with Mr. Montoya and 
together seeing the need of the Town, the center became a reality.  He stated that the 
Main Street extension was also a dream that he had wanted to see completed for many 
years and having the connection to Highway 79 will serve the Town and it citizens as it 
provides an additional access route to Historic Downtown and Territory Square.  He 
thanked staff and Council for supporting the Main Street Extension Project and the 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 6, 2015 
Page 15 of 16 
 
 

Aquatic Center.  He stated that the center will bring new visitors to Town who will 
support local businesses which will then increase tax revenues for the Town and 
provide for new business opportunities and growth.  He thanked staff for their hard work 
and the Aquatic staff for their excellent training and dedication ensuring the facility is as 
safe as possible for the patrons.  He did ask that the umbrellas for the lifeguards be 
expedited. 

 
ADJOURN TO EXECUTIVE SESSION 
An Executive Session, pursuant to A.R.S. Section 38-431.03(A)(1)(3) and (4) to 
discuss the following:  

1. Effluent Agreement 
2. Position of Town Attorney 
3. Position of Town Magistrate 
4. Position of Town Manager 

 
On motion of Councilmember Hawkins, seconded by Councilmember Woolridge, and 
carried to adjourn to Executive Session. 

 
ADJOURN FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
On motion of Councilmember Wall, seconded by Councilmember Anderson, and carried 
to adjourn from Executive Session. 

 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
Council may go into Executive Session at any time during the meeting for the 
purpose of obtaining legal advice from the Town’s Attorney(s) on any of the 
agenda items pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3). 
 
On motion of Councilmember Anderson, seconded by Councilmember Hawkins, and 
carried to adjourn the meeting at 9:32 pm.  
 
 
 
________________________________ 
Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 6, 2015 
Page 16 of 16 
 
 

 
I certify that the following is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Florence Town 
Council meeting held on July 6, 2015, and that the meeting was duly called to order and 
that a quorum was present. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
 
 
 



MINUTES OF THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL MEETING HELD ON MONDAY, 
JULY 13, 2015, AT 5:00 PM, IN THE CHAMBERS OF TOWN HALL, LOCATED AT 
775 NORTH MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA. 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Rankin called the meeting to order at 5:00 pm. 

 
ROLL CALL:     
 
Present:  Rankin, Walter, Woolridge, Hawkins, Guilin, Anderson, Wall 
 
ADJOURN TO EXECUTIVE SESSION 
An Executive Session, pursuant to A.R.S. Section 38-431.03(A)(1)(3) and (4) to 
discuss the following:  
Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 13, 2015 
Page 1 of 12 
 

1. Position of Town Attorney 
2. Position of Town Manager 

 
On motion of Councilmember Hawkins, seconded by Vice-Mayor Walter, and carried to 
adjourn to Executive Session. 

 
ADJOURN FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
On motion of Councilmember Woolridge, seconded by Vice-Mayor Walter, and carried 
to adjourn from Executive Session. 
 
Call to the Public 
 
There were no comments. 

 
MOTION TO ADJOURN TO MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT 
NO. 1 BOARD.  
 
On motion of Councilmember Woolridge, seconded by Councilmember Guilin, and 
carried to adjourn to the Merrill Ranch Community Facility District No. 1 Board. 

 
Public hearing to receive public comment on the Merrill Ranch Community 
Facilities District No. 1 Budget; and for Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of 
Resolution No. MRCFD1 130-15:   
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, District Clerk, read Resolution No. MRCFD1 130-15 by title only.  
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT 
NO. 1, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, ADOPTING THE BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 
2015-2016. 
 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 13, 2015 
Page 2 of 12 
 

Chairman Rankin opened the public hearing.   
 
Mr. Bruce Fenstermaker, Florence resident, inquired if there was a breakdown available 
for the tax that is being levied.  He stated that he believes the Homeowner’s Association 
(HOA) is paying for a majority of the items that would be covered by the levy and would 
like see a full accounting of the District.  
 
Mayor Rankin stated that that the flood dike for Merrill Ranch is controlled by the Merrill 
Ranch Flood Control District which is a separate entity from the Merrill Ranch 
Community District No. 1.  He requested staff to provide a report showing the revenues 
and expenses for District No. 1.  He stated that the Board has not raised the tax levy on 
the District since it began. 
 
Mr. Fenstermaker stated that it is an accounting trick to gain revenues by maintaining 
the same tax rate but increasing the value of a property. 
 
Mayor Rankin stated that the District sets a levy rate and Pinal County set the valuation 
of the property.    
 
Boardmember Guilin stated that the $0.30 per $100 Net Assessed Valuation (NAV) 
collected is to cover the costs of operations and maintenance of the District and the 
$3.25 per $100 NAV pays for the general obligation bonds for regional improvements, 
principal and interest. 
 
Mr. Fenstermaker inquired if it is normal protocol to establish a Community Facilities 
District within new developments such as the master planned community Mr. Johnson 
will be developing south of Town. 
 
Councilmember Guilin stated that if Mr. Johnson requests to have a Community 
Facilities District established then he would need to negotiate that with the Town of 
Florence. She stated that a request has not been made. 
 
Mr. Fenstermaker inquired as to how the District can be disbanded to be fair and 
equitable to all members of the Town of Florence. 
 
Councilmember Guilin stated that the $3,500 can be paid in full at the time of closing on 
a home in the District.  The $3,500 is a special assessment to pay for the improvements 
of that specific unit in which the lot is located in.   
 
Vice-Mayor Walter stated that it is her understanding if the $3,500 is not paid at the time 
of closing and the buyer chooses to make payments, the total cost can be 
approximately $25,000. 
 
Councilmember Guilin stated that the buyer has the option to pay the $3,500 up front at 
closing and then their obligation to the District is paid.  If the buyer choses to finance the 
$3,500 for 25 years, it will cost them up to $25,000.  She stated that a buyer can pay off 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 13, 2015 
Page 3 of 12 
 

the amount at any time but many chose to finance it as the assessment goes with the 
land and will transfer to the next owner. 
 
Vice-Mayor Walter requested clarification on what the amount would be if the 
assessment is financed for a full 25 years. 
 
Ms. Garcia stated that staff would provide Council with the clarification on what the full 
assessment amount would be if financed for a full 25 years after the meeting. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired as to how much of the $0.30 per $100 NAV goes to the Public 
Works Department. 
 
Mr. Wayne Costa, Public Works Director, stated that a portion of the $0.30 per $100 
NAV is used for the maintenance of the District.  He stated a couple of years ago there 
was approximately $100,000 in the maintenance fund for Sun City, in which $86,000 
was recently used for the pavement preservation in Units 4 and 6.  He stated that no 
funds have been expensed on the Parkside portion of the community. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired if any additional tax payer funds or HURF funds were used for 
the project. 
 
Mr. Costa stated that the Town has a one year warranty on the roads once they are 
turned over from Pulte.  Approximately 24 units have been accepted by the Town.  At 
the end of the warranty period, HURF funds are used for repairs such as repairing 
cracks and raised sidewalks.  
 
Mr. Fenstermaker stated that he never sees Town vehicles in the Anthem Community 
completing maintenance work other than the street sweeper.  He inquired as to whom is 
doing the maintenance of the roads and sidewalks.  He also inquired as to what the levy 
amount covers. 
 
Mr. Costa stated that a portion of Hunt Highway is located within the District and that 
any sidewalk, curb, gutter or crack sealing that is past the one-year warranty period is 
the responsibility of the District. 
 
Mr. Fenstermaker stated that many sidewalks are lifting, roads are in need of repair and 
there is no sign of the District addressing these issues. 
 
Mr. Costa stated that the landscaping located within the common areas and right-of-
ways is the responsibility of Pulte and the HOA.  He stated that the Town has spoken 
with the HOA and Pulte regarding the proper pruning and maintenance of these areas 
to ensure motorist visibility is not hindered.  He stated that there is approximately 46 
miles of roadway in the Anthem community and at the time of turnover, the Town 
reviews every section of sidewalk, all curbs, gutters and the streets to ensure they have 
been constructed properly.  He stated once that turnover is completed, inspections are 
periodically done; however, they are not done on a daily basis due to limited resources.  
He stated that staff addresses concerns as they are received.   



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 13, 2015 
Page 4 of 12 
 

 
Ms. Garcia stated as a procedural reminder that during a public hearing, the Board is 
looking for input from citizens without a response.  If the Board would like to have a 
work session at a later date to address the items brought up during the public hearing, a 
work session can be scheduled which would allow staff to provide accurate information 
regarding the specific items. 
 
Mayor Rankin requested that a work session be held in the future in the Anthem area to 
allow for more citizens to attend regarding the Community Facilities Districts (CFDs). 
 
Mr. Fenstermaker stated the citizens of the CFDs are confused and angry that they do 
not know how the money is being spent. 
 
Mayor Rankin stated that the $3.25 per $100 NAV is for bond obligations and is 
returned to Pulte to pay off the bonds.  He stated the Town receives the $0.30 per $100 
NAV for operation and maintenance of the CFD.   
 
Boardmember Guilin clarified that the $3.25 per $100 NAV goes to the CFD Debt 
Services Fund that pays off the bond obligations.  Pulte did obtain the bonds but the 
CFD is a political subdivision of the Town, and as such, the Town pays the bank for the 
bonds. 
 
Ms. Janet Ford, Florence resident, stated that she wanted to know what the increased 
funds are going to be used for. 
 
Chairman Rankin stated that the District is not raising the levy of $3.55 per $100 NAV, 
which is the same amount that has been charged in past years. 
 
Ms. Ford inquired as to why the Town is declaring an emergency on the ordinance.   
 
Chairman Rankin explained that by stating there is an emergency, it allows the District 
to have two readings of the ordinance and a public hearing before the adoption, as well 
as forwarding the information to Pinal County.   
 
Boardmember Woolridge stated that it is a timing issue for submission to Pinal County. 
 
Boardmember Walter stated that she had received concerns that tax bills are increasing 
due to home valuations increasing based on Pinal County.  She inquired if there is a 
way to lower the levy rate to offset home valuations from Pinal County to keep the end 
tax amount the same. 
 
Boardmember Guilin stated that the bonding company prepares an amortization 
schedule for the bond that projects what fees will be needed to pay off the bond during 
its lifespan utilizing the rate set by the Board and the assessed value of the property 
which is set by Pinal County.  
 
Boardmember Walter inquired as to what specific projects is the CFDs paying for. 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 13, 2015 
Page 5 of 12 
 

 
Ms. Garcia asked Mr. Michael Cafiso, Attorney with Greenburg Traurig, to address the 
questions regarding the CFDs, the bonds and what the fees are covering.  She 
recommended that a work session be scheduled to discuss the business of the CFDs in 
more detail. 
 
Mr. Michael Cafiso, Attorney with Greenburg Traurig, stated that the $0.30 per $100 
NAV collected per lot in the CFD which equates to an estimated $47,000 a year total, is 
used to pay for the administrative costs associated with operating the CFD and the 
maintenance of the infrastructure within the CFD which includes; roads, curb, gutters 
and sidewalks.   He stated that the $3.25 that is collected goes towards the payment of 
the bonds or the debt services that were issued at the time the project was 
conceptualized for which those projects have been completed but still need to be paid 
for.  Those projects could include major roadways and infrastructure in the existing units 
within the CFD.  He stated that the interest rates on the bonds are usually low, ranging 
from 5% to 6%, and similar to a home loan, a majority of the early payments go towards 
the interest on the bonds which will over time level out and start paying more of the 
principle. 
 
Chairman Rankin inquired as to how many miles of roadway there are in the CFD and 
how many roads have been accepted by the Town. 
 
Mr. Costa stated that there is an estimated 43 miles of roadway of which 35 miles have 
been accepted by the Town that are past their one-year warranty. 
 
Chairman Rankin stated that eventually those roads will need to be sealed and the 
funds are needed to complete those projects.  The cost will exceed the amount in the 
CFD accounts. 
 
Mr. Costa stated that Chairman Rankin is correct, and based on the urgency of the 
project; maintenance and repairs are priorities and are paid for by the CFD funds and 
HURF funds if they qualify. 
 
Chairman Rankin requested a report from the CFD showing what projects have been 
completed, what projects are pending and what additional funds have been used to 
complete those projects. 
 
Mr. Costa stated that a cost analysis will be forwarded to the Board. 
 
Boardmember Anderson stated that the streets in Anthem need to be fixed and they are 
not getting the attention that they need. 
 
Mr. Costa stated that currently road maintenance projects have not been planned due to 
budget constraints. 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 13, 2015 
Page 6 of 12 
 

Boardmember Woolridge stated that she believes Ms. Garcia’s recommendation for a 
work session would be the best way to answer the questions regarding the CFDs 
allowing staff to provide complete and accurate information. 
 
Boardmember Walter stated that she requested information regarding the revenue and 
expenses of the CFDs and would have liked to have seen the information prior to 
adopting a budget. 
 
Chairman Rankin closed the public hearing. 
 
On motion of Boardmember Woolridge, seconded by Boardmember Hawkins and 
carried to adopt Resolution No. MRCFD1 130-15.  

 
Public hearing to receive public comment on Merrill Ranch Community Facilities 
District No. 1 Property Tax Levy; and second reading of Ordinance No. MRCFD1 
112-15:   
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, District Clerk, read Ordinance No. MRCFD1 112-15 by title only.  
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT 
NO. 1, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, LEVYING THE ASSESSED VALUATION OF THE 
PROPERTY WITHIN THE COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT SUBJECT TO 
TAXATION OF CERTAIN SUM UPON EACH $100 OF VALUATION SUFFICIENT TO 
RAISE THE AMOUNT ESTIMATED TO BE RECEIVED FROM FUNDS FOR 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES EXPENSES FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING THE 30th 
DAY OF JUNE, 2016, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. (First reading on July 6, 
2015) 
 
Chairman Rankin opened the public hearing.   
 
There were no comments. 
 
Chairman Rankin closed the public hearing.  

 
MOTION TO ADJOURN FROM MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES 
DISTRICT NO. 1 BOARD.  
 
On motion of Boardmember Woolridge, seconded by Boardmember Hawkins, and 
carried to adjourn from the Merrill Ranch Community Facility District No. 1 Board. 
 
MOTION TO ADJOURN TO MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT 
NO. 2 BOARD.  
 
On motion of Vice-Mayor Walter, seconded by Councilmember Hawkins, and carried to 
adjourn to the Merrill Ranch Community Facility District No. 2 Board. 

 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 13, 2015 
Page 7 of 12 
 

Public hearing to receive public comment on the Merrill Ranch Community 
Facilities District No. 2 Budget; and for Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of   
Resolution No. MRCFD2 228-15:   
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, District Clerk, read Resolution No. MRCFD2 228-15 by title only.  
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT 
NO. 2, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, ADOPTING THE BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 
2015-2016. 
 
Boardmember Walter requested that Mr. Cafiso explain the difference between General 
Obligation GO) Bonds and Special Assessment Lien Bonds. 
 
Mr. Cafiso stated that General Obligation Bonds are backed by a credit and taxing 
power of the issuing jurisdiction rather than the revenue from a given project.  He stated 
that Special Assessment Bonds are used to fund a development project where interest 
owed to lenders is paid by taxes levied on the community benefiting from the particular 
bond-funded project.  He stated that GO Bonds are paid by all property owners within 
the District and Special Assessment Bonds are paid by a lump sum assessment that is 
levied on a lot and will run with the land until paid. 
 
Mr. Cafiso stated that there are agreements in place that specify how funds will be 
used, how payments will be collected and how the administration of the bond will be 
done.  He stated that a feasibility report is completed prior to obtaining a bond and 
those reports can be found at Town Hall and are available for public review. 
 
Chairman Rankin opened the public hearing.  

There were no comments.  

Chairman Rankin closed the public hearing.  

On motion of Boardmember Woolridge, seconded by Boardmember Guilin to adopt 
Resolution No. MRCFD2 228-15. 

Roll Call: 

Boardmember Woolridge:  Yes 
Boardmember Hawkins:  Yes 
Boardmember Guilin:  Yes 
Boardmember Anderson:  No 
Boardmember Wall:  Yes 
Boardmember Walter:  No 
Chairman Rankin:  Yes 
 
Motion Passed: Yes: 5; No: 2 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 13, 2015 
Page 8 of 12 
 

Public hearing to receive public comment on Merrill Ranch Community Facilities 
District No. 2 Property Tax Levy; and second reading of Ordinance No. MRCFD2 
212-15:   
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, District Clerk, read Resolution No. MRCFD2 212-15 by title only.  
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT 
NO. 2, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, LEVYING THE ASSESSED VALUATION OF THE 
PROPERTY WITHIN THE COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT SUBJECT TO 
TAXATION OF CERTAIN SUM UPON EACH $100 OF VALUATION SUFFICIENT TO 
RAISE THE AMOUNT ESTIMATED TO BE RECEIVED FROM FUNDS FOR 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES EXPENSES FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING THE 30th 
DAY OF JUNE 2016, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.  (First reading on July 6, 
2015) 
 
Chairman Rankin opened the public hearing. 
 
There were no comments.   
 
Chairman Rankin closed the public hearing.  

 
MOTION TO ADJOURN FROM MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES 
DISTRICT NO. 2 BOARD. 
 
On motion of Boardmember Woolridge, seconded by Boardmember Guilin, and carried 
to adjourn from the Merrill Ranch Community Facility District No. 2 Board. 
 
NEW BUSINESS  
 
Public hearing to receive citizen comments on the property tax levy of the Town 
of Florence, and second reading of Ordinance No. 630-15:  
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Interim Town Manager, read Ordinance No. 630-15 by title only.  
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
LEVYING THE ASSESSED VALUATION OF THE PROPERTY WITHIN THE TOWN 
OF FLORENCE SUBJECT TO TAXATION OF CERTAIN SUM UPON EACH $100 OF 
VALUATION SUFFICIENT TO RAISE THE AMOUNT ESTIMATED TO BE RECEIVED 
FROM FUNDS FOR GENERAL MUNICIPAL EXPENSES FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 
ENDING THE 30th DAY OF JUNE 2016, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY; and 
roll call vote to consider a motion to levy the increased property tax on July 27, 
2015.  (First reading on July 6, 2015) 
 
Vice-Mayor Walter stated that Ordinance No. 630-15 is regarding the primary property 
tax that all residents of the Town of Florence pay verses the Special Property Tax that 
the residents residing within the CFD areas pay in additional to the primary property tax. 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 13, 2015 
Page 9 of 12 
 

Mayor Rankin stated that Council has been able to keep the levy rate low in comparison 
to other cities and towns in the region.  He stated that the $1.1182 per $100 of 
assessed value will provide the Town $893,721 in property tax revenue whereas the 
budgeted expenses are $45,000,000.   He stated that Council has done a great job 
keeping the levy rate low but if the value of the home goes up which is determined by 
Pinal County, a citizen’s tax bill could go up. 
 
Councilmember Guilin stated that the property tax revenues go directly into the General 
Fund which helps pay for police and fire services, and general government 
expenditures.  She stated that there is a State cap on the percentage a municipality can 
levy, which is 2% yearly. 
 
Councilmember Anderson stated that the Town is currently operating in a deficit and 
both rates and revenues will need to be increased or services and budgets will have to 
be reduced. 
 
Mayor Rankin opened the public hearing.   
 
There were no comments. 
 
Mayor Rankin closed the public hearing.  
 
On motion of Vice-Mayor Walter, seconded by Councilmember Hawkins, to place 
Ordinance No. 630-15 for adoption on the July 27, 2015 agenda.  
 
Roll Call: 
 
Vice-Mayor Walter:  Yes 
Councilmember Hawkins:  Yes 
Councilmember Anderson:  Yes 
Councilmember Wall:  Yes 
Councilmember Woolridge:  Yes 
Councilmember Guilin:  Yes 
Mayor Rankin:  Yes 
 
Motion Passed:  Yes:  7; No:  0 
 
Public hearing to receive citizen comments on the Fiscal Year 2015-2016 Budget; 
and for Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of Resolution No. 1528-15: A 
RESOLUTION OF THE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
ADOPTING THE BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016.  
 
Mayor Rankin opened the public hearing.   

There were no comments. 

Mayor Rankin closed the public hearing.  



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 13, 2015 
Page 10 of 12 
 

On motion of Councilmember Hawkins, seconded by Councilmember Anderson, to 
adopt Resolution No. 1528-15. 

Roll Call: 

Councilmember Hawkins:  Yes 
Councilmember Anderson:  Yes 
Councilmember Wall:  Yes 
Councilmember Guilin:  Yes 
Councilmember Woolridge:  Yes 
Vice-Mayor Walter:  No 
Mayor Rankin: Yes 
 
Motion Passed: Yes: 6; No: 1 
 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval to enter into an employment agreement with 
Clifford L. Mattice for the position of Town Attorney. 
 
On motion of Councilmember Woolridge, seconded by Councilmember Hawkins, and 
carried to approve entering into an employment agreement with Clifford L. Mattice for 
the position of Town Attorney. 

Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of entering into a separation agreement and the 
terms thereof with the Town Manager.  
 
On motion of Councilmember Anderson, seconded by Councilmember Woolridge, to 
enter into a separation agreement and the terms thereof with the Town Manager.  
 
Roll Call:   
 
Councilmember Anderson:  Yes 
Councilmember Woolridge:  Yes 
Councilmember Wall:  Abstained 
Councilmember Guilin:  Yes 
Councilmember Hawkins:  Yes 
Vice-Mayor Walter:  No 
Mayor Rankin:  No 

 
Motion Passed:  Yes: 4; No: 2; Abstained: 1  
 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of appointing an Interim Town Manager.  
 
Vice-Mayor Walter stated that she is concerned with the cost associated with searching 
for a new Town Manager and would like those expenses reviewed as to how they will 
impact the budget and how an Interim Town Manager will be compensated during the 
search and hiring process. 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 13, 2015 
Page 11 of 12 
 

Mayor Rankin stated he would like to appoint Ms. Garcia as the interim Town Manager.  
He requested staff to forward to Council a plan in two weeks on how the recruitment 
process of hiring a Town Manager, including a cost analysis of the process in relation to 
the budget.  
 
On motion of Mayor Rankin, seconded by Councilmember Guilin, and carried to appoint 
Lisa Garcia as interim Town Manager. 
 
Call to the Public 
 
There were no comments. 

 
MOTION TO ADJOURN TO MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT 
NO. 1 AND 2 BOARD. 
 
On motion of Councilmember Woolridge, seconded by Councilmember Hawkins, and 
carried to adjourn to Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 1 and 2 Board. 

 
ADJOURN TO EXECUTIVE SESSION 
An Executive Session, pursuant to A.R.S. Section 38-431.03(A)(3) and (4) for 
discussion with the Community Facilities District Attorney related to contract 
matters. 
 
On motion of Boardmember Woolridge, seconded by Boardmember Hawkins, and 
carried to adjourn to Executive Session. 

 
ADJOURN FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
On motion of Boardmember Walter, seconded by Boardmember Guilin, and carried to 
adjourn from Executive Session. 

 
MOTION TO ADJOURN FROM MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES 
DISTRICT NO. 1 AND 2 BOARD.  
 
On motion of Boardmember Walter, seconded by Boardmember Hawkins, and carried 
to adjourn from the Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 1 and 2 Board. 

 
MOTION TO ADJOURN TO EXECUTIVE SESSION 
For the purpose of discussion and consultation with the Town’s attorneys for 
legal advice and to consider the Town’s position and instruct its attorneys in 
regard to pending litigation in Maricopa County Superior Court:  Town of Florence 
v. Florence Copper, Inc. CV 2015-0000325. 
 
On motion of Vice-Mayor Walter, seconded by Councilmember Guilin and carried to 
adjourn to Executive Session. 

 
MOTION TO ADJOURN FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 13, 2015 
Page 12 of 12 
 

 
On motion of Councilmember Hawkins, seconded by Councilmember Anderson, and 
carried to adjourn from Executive Session. 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Council may go into Executive Session at any time during the meeting for the 
purpose of obtaining legal advice from the Town’s Attorney(s) on any of the 
agenda items pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3). 
 
On motion of Councilmember Hawkins, seconded by Councilmember Anderson, and 
carried to adjourn the meeting at 9:30 pm.  
 
 
 
________________________________ 
Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
I certify that the following is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Florence Town 
Council meeting held on July 13, 2015, and that the meeting was duly called to order 
and that a quorum was present. 
 
 
________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
 



MINUTES OF THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL MEETING HELD ON MONDAY, 
JULY 20, 2015, AT 5:00 PM, IN THE CHAMBERS OF TOWN HALL, LOCATED AT 
775 NORTH MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA. 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Rankin called the meeting to order at 5:03 pm. 

 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Present:  Rankin, Walter, Woolridge, Hawkins, Guilin, Anderson, Wall 
 
WORK SESSION ON TOWN LEASE POLICY 
 
Ms. Evans, Management Analyst, stated the proposed Lease Policy addresses the 
Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 20, 2015 
Page 1 of 11 

concerns of Council that were previously stated at the prior work sessions.  She stated 
that the lease rate range is from $2.50 to $6.00 per square foot for retail space and 
$6.00 to $10.00 per square foot for non-retail use, which are the same rates as those 
listed in the Silver King Marketplace Lease Policy.  The proposed policy would have the 
Town continue to maintain the utility accounts and bill the tenants accordingly on a 
monthly basis.  She stated that the Town will continue to pay for the costs associated 
with the common areas and for the telephone line needed for the fire suppression 
system.  The tenants will contact and pay for their own cable and telephone.   
 
Mayor Rankin inquired who were the tenants in Suites 102 and 202 in 2013. 
 
Ms. Evans stated that Second Hand Rose was in Suite 102 and RZN8 Media, LLC, was 
in Suite 202. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired what the total loss has been year-to-date for the Silver King 
Marketplace. 
 
Ms. Evans stated that the year-to-date loss for the Silver King Marketplace is $3,200. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired if there was a tenant pending for Suite 102. 
 
Ms. Evans stated that there is a tenant ready to sign a lease for Suite 102. 
 
Councilmember Woolridge stated that utility bills are now being metered allowing for 
tenants to pay for their exact usage. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired what the anticipated increase would be for the tenant of each 
suite.  
 
Ms. Evans stated that it is too early to track the water usage, but the electrical could 
increase or decrease, depending on the nature of their business.  



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 20, 2015 
Page 2 of 11 

Mayor Rankin asked if the HVAC unit can be shut off in Suite 202 while it is vacant. 
Ms. Evans stated that the unit can be shut off but staff does keep the temperature 
raised in the suite which is averaging an electric bill of $25 per month.  
 
Mayor Rankin inquired if staff has spoken with the tenants of the Silver King 
Marketplace in regards to their utility bills increasing. 
 
Ms. Evans stated that she has spoken to the manager of The Fudge Shop and will be 
speaking with the owner of Silver King Hair Salon in the near future.  She stated that the 
utility bill may or may not increase depending on the individual suite usage now that 
each suite will have its own meter so they will be billed according to usage and not 
square footage.  
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Interim Town Manager/Town Clerk, stated that the leases for the 
tenants at the Silver King Marketplace are on a month-to-month basis at this time due to 
the following reasons: to allow for the new Lease Policy to be approved, to allow for the 
new meters to be in place, and to allow for a billing cycle to occur to allow the tenants to 
see what a monthly cycle would be.  She stated the metered program allows for 
accurate billing based on usage. 
 
Councilmember Hawkins inquired if staff had received any positive feedback on the new 
metered program. 
 
Ms. Garcia stated that the tenants are still operating under the square-footage billing 
program as that is what the current lease requires.  She stated the meters are in place 
and operating but they are not being used for billing purposes until the new Lease 
Policy is approved by Council and the new leases are in effect.  
 
Ms. Doretta Allison, Manager of The Fudge Shop, stated that they have been tenants of 
the Silver King Marketplace for three years and only became fully sustainable this 
summer.  She stated that they operate on a very small margin as 10% of all sales are 
donated to the Love Works Pregnancy Center servicing the citizens of Florence.  She 
believes that Padilla Park is a great asset to the Silver King Marketplace and though the 
events are great at the park, the patronage to their establishment has not been 
profitable.  She is confident the next season of events will prove to be a benefit to all 
businesses in the area. 
 
Mayor Rankin thanked Ms. Allison for her continued support of the Town and the great 
work she and her team are doing at The Fudge Shop.   
 
Ms. Kathy Adam, Florence resident, stated that she believes the two businesses 
currently in the Silver King Marketplace are they best businesses on Main Street.  She 
stated that she is concerned about the health and wellbeing of Main Street.  She is also 
concerned that the businesses stay successful as the Silver King Marketplace is the 
most desirable building on Main Street.  She inquired if the shortfall currently being 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 20, 2015 
Page 3 of 11 

experienced is due to the two suites not being leased out or is the Town not charging 
enough per suite. 
 
Ms. Evans stated that the downfall is due to the two suites standing empty. 
 
Ms. Adam inquired if the new utility meter billing program is direct billing or does it 
include a surcharge. 
 
Ms. Evans stated that the meter program is billing exactly what the suite uses and is 
under control of the tenant. 
 
Mayor Rankin asked Ms. Evans to explain the common area expense of $2,400 year-to-
date. 
 
Ms. Evans stated that the common area is estimated at 800 square feet which multiplied 
by $0.61 per square foot equals the Town’s portion of the utilities for those areas which 
includes the bathrooms and the small hallway. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired if the common areas are being metered separately. 
 
Ms. Evans stated that the common areas are being metered separately.  She said that 
currently the common areas have the second highest utility bill without the meter 
reading. 
 
Ms. Kim Ehlebracht, Owner for Bucks 4 Style, LLC, stated that she is the new tenant for 
Suite 102 and looks forward to the opportunities the Silver King Marketplace will afford 
her business.  She hopes the lease rates will remain low as her business is new.  She 
stated that the businesses work together and support each other’s efforts and unique 
business offerings. 
 
Ms. Carol Johnson, Owner of the Silver King Salon, stated that she was eager to switch 
over to the metered utility program as it will be a fair and equitable program for all 
tenants in the building.  She stated that she was concerned about the handicap parking 
for the building as it is located by the dumpster corral and is far from the front doors for 
the businesses. 
 
Mayor Rankin requested that Public Works look into the parking and determine if there 
is a better option for handicap parking. 
 
MOMENT OF SILENCE 
 
Mayor Rankin called for a moment of silence. 

 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Mayor Rankin led the Pledge of Allegiance. 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 20, 2015 
Page 4 of 11 

CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the jurisdiction of the 
Town Council.  Council rules limit public comment to three minutes.  Individual 
Councilmembers may respond to criticism made by those commenting, may ask 
staff to review a matter raised or may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda.  
However, members of the Council shall not discuss or take action on any matter 
during an open call to the public unless the matters are properly noticed for 
discussion and legal action. 
 
Ms. Ruth Harrison, Florence resident, suggested that Council have the meeting minutes 
transcribed by an outside agency to allow for the minutes to be approved by Council 
quicker and posted for the public in a timely fashion. 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS AND PRESENTATION 
 
Public Hearing on an application received from Piero Buccellato for a zone 
change on approximately .36 acres, located at 680 East 1st Street, Florence, 
Arizona, from Neighborhood Multi-Family Zoning District to Highway Business 
Commercial Zoning District; and first reading of Ordinance No. 631-15. 
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Interim Town Manager/Town Clerk read Ordinance No. 631-15 by title 
only. 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
APPROVING A ZONE CHANGE ON .36 ACRES, FROM NEIGHBORHOOD 
MULTIPLE FAMILY ZONING DISTRICT TO HIGHWAY BUSINESS COMMERCIAL 
ZONING DISTRICT (APN 200-47-001B). 
 
Mr. Mark Eckhoff, Community Development Director, stated that the intent of the 
application is to rezone the subject lot from Neighborhood Multi-Family Zoning District 
(R-2) to Highway Business Commercial Zoning District (B-2).  He said they would then 
expand onto the existing development on the B-2 lot by adding parking, landscaping 
and other needed improvements.  The combination of the lots is vital to the proposed 
commercial/retail uses in order to accommodate site improvements, setbacks and 
Arizona Department of Transportation (ADOT) required right-of-way.  The subject 
parcels are designated s Highway mixed Use (HMU) in the Town 2020 General Plan. 
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that the Town is starting to see movement in revitalization in the 
older areas of Town with this application and the recently approved Taco Bell rezoning 
a few blocks south of these lots. 
 
Mayor Rankin stated that the addition of the traffic light on Highway 79 in this area 
should aid in making the lots safer and easier to access.  
 
Chairman Rankin opened the public hearing. 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 20, 2015 
Page 5 of 11 

There were no comments.   
 
Chairman Rankin closed the public hearing. 
 
Public Hearing on an application for a zone change to change existing zoning 
from Neighborhood Office, Highway Business Commercial and Multi-Family 
Residential to Downtown Commercial in an area bounded by Ruggles Street to 
the north, Butte Avenue to the south, Quartz Street to the west and Pinal Street to 
the east; and first reading of Ordinance No. 632-15.    
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Interim Town Manager/Town Clerk read Ordinance No. 632-15 by title 
only. 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
APPROVING THE DOWNTOWN COMMERCIAL (DC) ZONE CHANGE LOCATED IN 
AN AREA GENERALLY BOUND BY RUGGLES STREET TO THE NORTH, BUTTE 
AVENUE TO THE SOUTH, QUARTZ STREET TO THE WEST AND PINAL STREET 
TO THE EAST (PZ-15-37 ZC/PZC-37-14-ZC).   
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that that in 2013 Council approved changes to the Downtown 
Commercial Zoning District (DC) to improve reinvestment opportunities and enhance 
economic development in the District.  These changes included; allowing hotels, bed 
and breakfast facilities, movie theaters and grocery stores as principally permitted uses 
in the DC zone; providing consistency in setback requirements for commercial and 
residential uses; and eliminating most on-site parking requirements in the District. 
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that a range of uses permitted within the DC Zoning District are 
intended to encourage and promote pedestrian-oriented specialty retail by encouraging 
the improvement of the pedestrian environment, delineating the appropriate land uses 
within the District and ensuring that new buildings are designed to be compatible with 
the historic fabric of the area and development continues to occur at the appropriate 
scale. 
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that the requested changes to the DC District are in line with the 
goals of the 2020 General Plan and Redevelopment Plan and mirror the core of the 
Downtown Historic Business District.  He stated that staff has been working with 
property owners to expand the DC District.  The Town is sponsoring the application for 
a zone change which includes five private property owners, four Pinal County owned 
properties and one Town owned property. 
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that staff had presented the zone change to the Historic District 
Advisory Commission and they were supportive of this proposed rezoning.  Public 
hearings were held on June 10, 2014, and at the Planning and Zoning Commission 
meeting held on June 18, 2015.  He stated that the planning and Zoning Commission 
found that the DC zoning change request was in compliance with the Town’s 2020 
General Plan and is in the interest of general welfare, health and safety of the public 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 20, 2015 
Page 6 of 11 

and forwarded a unanimous favorable recommendation on this zone change to the 
Mayor and Town Council, subject to the following conditions: 

• The development of the subject sites shall be in conformance to any applicable 
Town Codes, Guidelines and Ordinances. 
 

• Property owners agree to waive claims for diminution in value pursuant to 
Proposition 207 [A.R.S.  §12-1134].  
 

Mayor Rankin inquired if the value of a property increases or decreases if located within 
the Downtown Commercial Zoning District. 
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that in his opinion, the work that has been done in the downtown 
area and along Main Street have generated interest in the area and the Town is seeing 
positive growth opportunities.  He stated that Main Street promotes pedestrian traffic 
and the environment is conducive to assist new or smaller boutique type businesses 
where as Highway 79 is geared for high-traffic vehicular businesses which both areas 
are seeing an increase in interest by business owners. 
 
Mayor Rankin stated that he is concerned if a homeowner is in the Historic District and 
wanted to make improvements to their home, they would have additional requirements 
to follow then a home that is not in the Historic District. 
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that Mayor Rankin was correct that if a residential home in the 
Historic District wanted to exterior changes or changes that would change or alter the 
appearance of the building, the owner would have to go through HDAC to receive 
approval to ensure the historic validity of the building is preserved. 
 
Chairman Rankin opened the public hearing.   
 
There were no comments. 
 
Chairman Rankin closed the public hearing. 

 
a. Presentation by the Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce recognizing 

American Legion Post #9 as the Business of the Month. 
 
Mr. Jim Gilloon, Office Manager, Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce, recognized 
the American Legion Post #9 as the Business of the Month for the continued service to 
the community, their youth programs and supporting homeless veterans. 
 
Mr. David Wall, Commander of the American Legion Post #9 received the award and 
thanked the Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce and the community for their 
continued support of their programs and donations.  He stated that this was the first in 
many years they have been able to sponsor a junior and senior baseball team.  He 
stated that the organization will be sponsoring teen dance nights sporadically 
throughout the year for the high school students in the community. 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 20, 2015 
Page 7 of 11 

Mayor Rankin thanked the American Legion for their service to our country and 
extended Councils support for the Armed Services. 

 
CONSENT: All items on the consent agenda will be handled by a single vote as 
part of the consent agenda, unless a Councilmember or a member of the public 
objects at the time the agenda item is called.  
 
Resolution No. 1530-15: 
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Interim Town Manager/Town Clerk read Resolution No. 1530-15 by 
title only. 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
APPROVING THE MAP OF DEDICATION FOR MAIN STREET AND FIRST STREET 
FOR INSTALLATION AND DEDICATION OF REQUIRED PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS. 
 
Resolution No. 1531-15:   
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Interim Town Manager/Town Clerk read Resolution No. 1531-15 by 
title only. 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
ACCEPTING TRIBAL GAMING FUNDS GRANTED BY THE GILA RIVER INDIAN 
COMMUNITY. 

 
Resolution No. 1532-15:   
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Interim Town Manager/Town Clerk read Resolution No. 1532-15 by 
title only. 
 
A RESOLUTION OF TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING MAYOR TOM J. RANKIN, INTERIM TOWN 
MANAGER LISA GARCIA, AND INTERIM FINANCE DIRECTOR MARCIA GOERDT 
TO ACT AS SIGNATORIES FOR THE TRANSACTION OF BUSINESS ON THE 
TOWN OF FLORENCE BANKING ACCOUNTS, AND DECLARING AN 
EMERGENCY. 

 
Resolution No. 1533-15:   
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Interim Town Manager/Town Clerk read Resolution No. 1533-15 by 
title only. 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING MAYOR TOM J. RANKIN AND INTERIM TOWN 
MANAGER LISA GARCIA TO ACT AS SIGNATORIES FOR THE TRANSACTION OF 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 20, 2015 
Page 8 of 11 

BUSINESS ON THE POLICE EVIDENCE TRUST FUND AT NATIONAL BANK OF 
ARIZONA, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 

 
Approval of the June 1, June 10, June 15, June 18, June 22 and June 22, 2015 
Council minutes. 
 
Receive and file the following board and commission minutes: 

i. April 9 and May 11, 2015 Arts and Culture Commission minutes. 
ii. May 27, 2015 Historic District Advisory Board minutes. 
iii. May 20 and June 17, 2015 Joint Use Library Advisory Board minutes.  
iv. April 23, 2015 Parks and Recreation Advisory Board minutes. 
v. May 7, 2015 Planning and Zoning Commission minutes. 

 
On motion of Councilmember Woolridge, seconded by Councilmember Guilin, and 
carried to approve the Consent Agenda, as written.  

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of the Property Lease Policy. 
 
Ms. Garcia stated that this item was discussed previously in the meeting and staff is 
available to answer any questions. 
 
Councilmember Wall stated that she did not believe the 5% administrative fee is in the 
best interest of all parties involved as the fee is not currently being charged.  It appears 
that the Town is piling on fees to the lease rate.  She stated that the administration and 
management of the leases is a part of staff’s responsibility not an additional 
responsibility. 
 
Mayor Rankin stated that he agreed with Councilmember Wall regarding the 5% 
administrative fee not being appropriate and inquired as to what the monthly amount 
would be if the fee were collected. 
 
Ms. Jennifer Evans, Management Analyst, stated that the monthly administrative fee 
would range from $7 to $17 per month depending on the suite lease rate. 
 
Mayor Rankin stated that he did not believe the accumulative fee amount would be 
something that would make a difference in the fiscal operations of the Silver King 
Marketplace and suggested that the fee be removed. 
 
Vice-Mayor Walter agreed that the fee should be removed. 
 
On motion of Councilmember Wall, seconded by Councilmember Anderson, and carried 
to approve the updates to the Property Lease Policy with the removal of a 5% 
administrative fee assessed on leases based on the lease rate located in Section 5.311. 

 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 20, 2015 
Page 9 of 11 

Discussion/Approval/Disapproval to enter into a Lease Agreement with Bucks 4 
Style, LLC, for Suite 102, in the Silver King Market Place.  
 
Ms. Evans stated that Bucks 4 Style, LLC, is currently located just north of the Silver 
King Marketplace and approached the Town regarding Suite 102. The layout of the 
space better fits here business needs and her current location is going to be changing.  
She stated that a lease rate has been negotiated with Ms. Ehlebracht, and would be a 
welcome addition to the Silver King Marketplace. 
 
On motion of Councilmember Guilin, seconded by Vice-Mayor Walter, and carried to 
enter into a Lease Agreement with Bucks 4 Style, LLC, for Suite 102, in the Silver King 
Marketplace.  
   
MANAGER’S REPORT 

Ms. Garcia introduced Mr. Gabe Garcia as the new Finance Director.  She stated that 
Mr. Garcia grew up and graduated high school in Coolidge earning his Bachelor of 
Science degree in Finance from Arizona State University, and his MBA with an 
accounting emphasis from the University of Phoenix.   She stated that for the past two 
and a half years, Mr. Garcia has worked for the Finance Department in the City of 
Coolidge.  He has also served as a Senior Internal Auditor for the Gila River Indian 
Community, owned his own tax and accounting business, and was  the Fiscal Service 
Manager at the Creighton School District in Phoenix. 

Mr. Gabe Garcia, Finance Director, thanked Council and the Town for the opportunity to 
serve the community.  He stated that he is excited to be a part of Finance Department, 
which has a very strong staff and hopes during his tenor as the Director that Council will 
find the Department excelling in accountability, transparency and accuracy as it 
provides excellent customer service to the citizens of Florence.   He stated that he has 
been a life-long member of Pinal County and currently is a resident of Florence. 

Mayor Rankin welcomed Mr. Garcia to the Town’s staff and looks forward to seeing him 
direct and lead his team. 

Councilmember Guilin stated that she appreciated the spreadsheet that staff put 
together regarding Districts. 

Mr. Garcia stated that Mr. Ernie Feliz, Grants and Assessment Manager, created the 
spreadsheet for Council. 

CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
 
Mr. Fred Rudman, Magic Ranch resident, stated he was concerned that the lifeguards 
at the Aquatic Center have not been furnished with umbrellas that they need to be safe 
in the sun as they perform their duties and hopes they will be installed soon. 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 20, 2015 
Page 10 of 11 

Mayor Rankin requested that Mr. Bryan Hughes, Parks and Recreation Director, to 
speak with Mr. Rudman after the meeting regarding the umbrellas. 
 
CALL TO THE COUNCIL 
 
Councilmember Anderson thanked Council for supporting the Budget Committee and 
the citizens of Florence for attending and participating in the budget work sessions and 
Councilmember Guilin for all her help and assistance.  He stated that through the 
budget process, he learned that the Town has not had a balanced budget for several 
years and the expenditures exceed the revenues in the 2015/2016 Fiscal Year Budget 
by $1,200,000.  He stated that Council promised the citizens to not cut services if they 
approved Council to exceed the expenditure limitation. Council agreed to operate under 
an unbalanced budget with the understanding that next fiscal year the Town would 
balance the budget.  He challenged staff and the Budget Committee to start working 
now to develop a balanced budget that provides adequate revenues identifying new 
revenue streams and addressing the need if applicable to increase fees then looking at 
expenses properly funding the reserves and capital improvement projects.  He stated 
expenses cannot exceed revenues and it is now the time to balance the budget. 
 
Councilmember Guilin stated it was a pleasure working with Councilmember Anderson 
as they had a hard task and many unpleasant recommendation to make but a budget 
was made and yes expenditures do need to be reviewed just as Council and the Budget 
Committee have committed to do.  She thanked the Town staff for their hard work 
helping to develop a budget that allowed the Town to not have to lay anyone off and 
provided a 3% stipend to staff as a small token for all their hard work and efforts.  She 
stated that many municipalities have not been able to provide raises or maintain a 
reasonable benefits plan for their staff.  She stated that the Town’s philosophy has 
always been to not harm the staff and in the benefits plan for staff, the Town picks up 
100% of the employees medical insurance cost and 22% of the dependent cost which 
unusual in today’s employment world. 
 
Vice-Mayor Walter welcomed the Town’s new employees and look forward to working 
with them.  She stated that Parks and Recreation recently completed the Summer 
Camp program at both the Anthem K-8 and Florence K-8 and heard from parents that 
the program was successful.  She stated that she looks forward to the next budget 
season having more opportunity to review the proposed budget and look for ways to 
make the budget balance.   
 
Mayor Rankin agreed with Vice-Mayor Walter encouraging citizens to be careful and 
mindful around school zones watching for children.  He stated that in his opinion the 
Town does have a balanced budget utilizing reserve funds to balance and it will be a 
tight year looking to cut expenditures whenever possible.  He stated that staff is 
committed to the Town of Florence dedicated in making the Town a better place, a 
place to come to and play and invest in.  He stated that there are possibly two new 
entities coming to Town later in the year that they will bring economic development with 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 20, 2015 
Page 11 of 11 

them.  He stated that the old hospital on Adamsville Road has been sold and the new 
owns are engaged in utilizing the facility and what would be the best use of it.  

 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
Council may go into Executive Session at any time during the meeting for the 
purpose of obtaining legal advice from the Town’s Attorney(s) on any of the 
agenda items pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3). 
 
On motion of Councilmember Hawkins, seconded by Councilmember Anderson, and 
carried to adjourn the meeting at 6:32 pm.  
 
 
________________________________ 
Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
 
I certify that the following is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Florence Town 
Council meeting held on July 20, 2015, and that the meeting was duly called to order 
and that a quorum was present. 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 



MINUTES OF THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING HELD ON 
MONDAY, JULY 27, 2015, AT 6:00 PM, IN THE CHAMBERS OF TOWN HALL, 
LOCATED AT 775 NORTH MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA. 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Rankin called the meeting to order at 6:02 pm 

 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Present:  Rankin, Walter, Woolridge, Hawkins, Guilin, Anderson, Wall 
 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the jurisdiction of the 
Town Council.  Council rules limit public comment to three minutes.  Individual 
Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 27, 2015 
Page 1 of 12 

Councilmembers may respond to criticism made by those commenting, may ask 
staff to review a matter raised or may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda.  
However, members of the Council shall not discuss or take action on any matter 
during an open call to the public unless the matters are properly noticed for 
discussion and legal action. 
 
Ms. Ruth Harrison, Florence resident, suggested that the public be involved earlier in 
the budgeting process to provide guidance in prioritizing projects.  She stated that it has 
been a few years since the Town put out a survey to its residents and feels this type of 
information would be valuable in the budget process. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Mayor Rankin led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
MOTION TO ADJOURN TO MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT 
NO. 1 BOARD.  
 
On motion of Vice-Mayor Walter, seconded by Councilmember Guilin, and carried to 
adjourn to the Merrill Ranch Community Facility District No. 1 Board. 
 
Ordinance No. MRCFD1 112-15:  
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, District Clerk read Ordinance No. 112-15 by title only. 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT 
NO. 1, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, LEVYING THE ASSESSED VALUATION OF THE 
PROPERTY WITHIN THE COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT SUBJECT TO 
TAXATION OF CERTAIN SUM UPON EACH $100 OF VALUATION SUFFICIENT TO 
RAISE THE AMOUNT ESTIMATED TO BE RECEIVED FROM FUNDS FOR 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES EXPENSES FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING THE 30th 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 27, 2015 
Page 2 of 12 

DAY OF JUNE 2016, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. (First reading on July 6, 
2015 and second reading on July 13, 2015) 
 
Boardmember Walter requested an itemization of the expenditures for the Merrill Ranch 
Communities Facility District No. 1 (CFD) and requested Ms. Marcia Goerdt, Interim 
District Finance Manager, to provide detail of the expenditures. 
 
Ms. Goerdt stated that the budget primarily has funds being directed to pay off bonds; 
principal and interest along with professional services.  She stated that there have not 
been any expenses for maintenance items. 
 
Boardmember Walter inquired if there were maintenance items budgeted in the 
proposed budget and where could they be reviewed by the public. 
 
Mr. Goerdt stated that the tentative budget sets aside funding for a new bond if needed 
for infrastructure improvements. 
 
Boardmember Walter stated that she is concerned that the budget material for this 
action item is not included in the agenda packet and it would require a member of the 
public to research the item for reference material.   
 
Boardmember Hawkins inquired if the budget was posted on the Town’s website. 
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, District Clerk, stated that the budget is on the website for public 
viewing. 
 
Boardmember Walter inquired if any staff positions are paid for out of the CFD. 
 
Ms. Goerdt stated that there are allocations for staff time in the budget, and in this 
budget, there was a reduction in those allocations.  She stated that the budget last year 
was $21,500 and this year the budget is $4,600 with a majority of those funds covering 
the cost for the Finance Assessment Specialist. 
 
Boardmember Hawkins stated that it is his understanding that Town employees are 
conducting work on behalf of the CFD and as such the CFD pays for those services. 
 
Mr. Garcia stated that a portion of Town employee wages are allocated to the CFD 
which is tracked by the Finance Director based on the work that is performed.  She 
stated that the volume of work performed for the CFD is lessening resulting in a 
decrease in the anticipated budget line item.  She inquired if Council would like an 
itemized listing of these charges in the next Council packet and moving forward. 
 
Chairman Rankin inquired if there were any other maintenance items in the CFD other 
than the streets once they become the Town’s responsibility. 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 27, 2015 
Page 3 of 12 

Mr. Wayne Costa, Public Works Director, stated that once the one-year warranty period 
is completed, the CFD is responsible for the maintenance of the streets, curbs, gutters 
and sidewalks. 
 
Chairman Rankin inquired who is responsible for repairs made during the warranty 
period. 
 
Mr. Costa stated that the developer is responsible for all repair needs with regards to 
the streets, curbs, cutters and sidewalks until the one-year warranty expires.  He stated 
that a few years ago the CFD did expend $86,000 for street maintenance in Units 4 and 
6 as the warranty period had expired. 
 
Chairman Rankin inquired when was the CFD was developed. 
 
Boardmember Walter stated it was established in 2006. 
 
Chairman Rankin inquired how much revenue is collected annually for maintenance and 
operations of the CFD. 
 
Ms. Garcia stated that it is estimated that $50,900 will be collected based on the 
maintenance levy of $0.30 per $100 Net Assessed Value (NAV).  She stated that the 
revenue will be applied to operational costs including bond payments and prioritized 
maintenance items. 
 
Mr. Dan Bonow, Director of Entitlements with Pulte Homes, stated that full assessment 
for the CFD is $3.55 per $100 of NAV of which $0.30 is ear-marked for operations and 
maintenance of the CFD and those funds can be used for street, curb, gutter and 
sidewalk maintenance if the Board chooses. 
 
Ms. Garcia stated that she would be able to provide the Board a historical review of the 
operations and maintenance account later in the week if the Board would like her to do 
so. 
 
Chairman Rankin inquired if any portion of the revenues that were collected for 
operations and maintenance utilized for maintenance projects. 
 
Boardmember Guilin stated that there are two components of a CFD.  The first 
component is the debt service which pays for the principle and interest payments of 
General Obligation Bonds and the Assessment Bonds.  She said the second 
component takes care of the operations and maintenance of the CFD which includes 
incidentals such as audit expenses, wages, Pinal County fees for tax services and bond 
credit rating services. 
 
Chairman Rankin asked that staff provide the Board with a breakdown of expenses for 
the CFD in their mailboxes.  He inquired if any General Fund monies have been used to 
supplement the CFD. 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 27, 2015 
Page 4 of 12 

 
Ms. Garcia stated that the CFD is a separate entity, and as such, Town funds are not 
used for CFD business.   
  
Boardmember Guilin stated that the Town has never supplemented a CFD as they are 
self-sustaining. 
 
Boardmember Hawkins stated that the Town will hold informational meetings in the near 
future in the CFD areas to provide an opportunity for all residents to understand how the 
CFD operates. 
 
Mr. Bonow stated that two information sessions are being planned in the Anthem area 
to get the information out and educate the residents on the business of the CFDs. 
 
On motion of Boardmember Guilin, seconded by Boardmember Woolridge, to adopt 
Ordinance No. MRCFD1 112-15. 
 
Roll Call: 
Boardmember Guilin: Yes 
Boardmember Woolridge: Yes 
Boardmember Anderson: Yes 
Boardmember Wall: Yes 
Boardmember Hawkins: Yes  
Boardmember Walter: Yes 
Chairman Rankin: Yes 
 
Motion passed: Yes: 7; No: 0 

  
MOTION TO ADJOURN FROM MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES 
DISTRICT NO. 1 BOARD.  
 
On motion of Boardmember Woolridge, seconded by Boardmember Hawkins, and 
carried to adjourn from the Merrill Ranch Community Facility District No. 1 Board. 
 
MOTION TO ADJOURN TO MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT 
NO. 2 BOARD.  
 
On motion of Councilmember Woolridge, seconded by Councilmember Hawkins, and 
carried to adjourn to the Merrill Ranch Community Facility District No. 2 Board. 

 
Ordinance No. MRCFD2 212-15:  
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, District Clerk read Ordinance No. 112-15 by title only. 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT 
NO. 2, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, LEVYING THE ASSESSED VALUATION OF THE 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 27, 2015 
Page 5 of 12 

PROPERTY WITHIN THE COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT SUBJECT TO 
TAXATION OF CERTAIN SUM UPON EACH $100 OF VALUATION SUFFICIENT TO 
RAISE THE AMOUNT ESTIMATED TO BE RECEIVED FROM FUNDS FOR 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES EXPENSES FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING THE 30th 
DAY OF JUNE 2016, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.  (First reading on July 6, 
2015 and second reading on July 13, 2015) 
 
Boardmember Walter stated that she would like to see more accountability for the 
expenditures of the CFDs and provide its members with this information in one location 
allowing transparency. 
 
Ms. Garcia stated that the information Boardmember Walter is requesting will be 
available moving forward for all Board meetings and for the informational meetings that 
are being scheduled in the month of October for the CFD residents. 
 
On motion of Boardmember Hawkins, seconded by Boardmember Walter, to adopt 
Ordinance No. MRCFD2 212-15.  
 
Roll Call: 
Boardmember Hawkins: Yes 
Boardmember Walter: Yes 
Boardmember Wall: Yes 
Boardmember Anderson: Yes 
Boardmember Guilin: Yes  
Boardmember Woolridge: Yes 
Chairman Rankin: Yes 
 
Motion passed: Yes: 7; No: 0 

 
MOTION TO ADJOURN FROM MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES 
DISTRICT NO. 2 BOARD. 
 
On motion of Boardmember Woolridge, seconded by Boardmember Walter, and carried 
to adjourn from the Merrill Ranch Community Facility District No. 2 Board. 

 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
Ordinance No. 630-15:  
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Interim Town Manager/Town Clerk read Ordinance No. 630-15 by title 
only. 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
LEVYING THE ASSESSED VALUATION OF THE PROPERTY WITHIN THE TOWN 
OF FLORENCE SUBJECT TO TAXATION OF CERTAIN SUM UPON EACH $100 OF 
VALUATION SUFFICIENT TO RAISE THE AMOUNT ESTIMATED TO BE RECEIVED 
FROM FUNDS FOR GENERAL MUNICIPAL EXPENSES FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 27, 2015 
Page 6 of 12 

ENDING THE 30th DAY OF JUNE 2016, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY; and 
roll call vote to consider a motion to levy the increased property tax on July 27, 
2015.  (First reading on July 6, 2015 and second reading on July 13, 2015) 
 
Vice-Mayor Walter stated that even though the levy rate is being proposed not to 
increase, property values have and as such, residents will see an increase in their tax 
bill.  She stated that the residents in the CFD areas do pay this property tax along with 
the CFD tax and the Merrill Ranch Lighting Districts 1, 2 and 3.  She stated that she has 
received inquiries as to what impact the new Aquatic Center and Library will have the 
NAV of their property.  She requested staff to place information regarding the tax levy  
on the website.  She requested that the tax base for the Town and the secondary tax 
base for Anthem be evaluated to ensure they are fair and equitable for all members of 
Florence. 
 
Mayor Rankin stated that he does believe the tax base for the Town and the Anthem 
areas are fair and equitable and that the Town of Florence has one of the lowest tax 
bases in the region.  He stated that Council has not raised the levy rate since the 
establishment of the CFDs but that tax bills have gone up as property values go up 
which is the goal of property ownership. 
 
On motion of Councilmember Hawkins, seconded by Councilmember Guilin, to adopt 
Ordinance No. 630-15.  
 
Roll Call: 
Councilmember Hawkins: Yes 
Councilmember Guilin: Yes 
Councilmember Anderson: Yes 
Councilmember Wall: Yes 
Councilmember Woolridge: Yes  
Councilmember Walter: Yes 
Mayor Rankin: Yes 
 
Motion passed: Yes: 7; No: 0 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Public hearing on Annexation No. 2015-01, more commonly known as the 
Bonnybrooke Solar Plant Annexation, area encompasses a land area of 
approximately 312.97 acres.  The subject area is generally bound by the 
Bonnybrooke Road alignment to the north, Padilla Road to the west, the Quail 
Run Road alignment to the east and existing irrigation canals and the CAP Canal 
to the south.  
 
Ms. Garcia stated that due to a technical error, the request has been rescinded and will 
be brought back to Council at a later date.   
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 27, 2015 
Page 7 of 12 

Mr. Mark Eckhoff, Community Development Director, stated that the department is 
working on all aspects of the annexation request to ensure the process completes in the 
same time frame. 

 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of entering into a contract with the City of Eloy 
for magistrate services through June 30, 2016, in an amount not to exceed 
$42,000. 
 
Ms. Garcia stated that the Town has negotiated with the City of Eloy to share magistrate 
services, working 2/3 of the week in the Eloy and 1/3 of the week in Florence covering 
bench and jury trials as well as handling prisoners on a daily basis.  She stated that the 
Magistrate will also be available by phone to handle any questions or make any 
decisions or rulings. 
 
Councilmember Anderson thanked Ms. Garcia for her work in negotiating this 
agreement as it does provide the Town with a cost savings and improves our services. 
 
Vice-Mayor Walter stated that an IGA of this type is good for the Town and provides a 
saving to its citizens while not impacting services. 

 
On motion of Councilmember Hawkins, seconded by Vice-Mayor Walter, and carried to 
approve entering into a contract with the City of Eloy for magistrate services through 
June 30, 2016, in an amount not to exceed $42,000. 

 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of authorizing the recruitment process for the 
position of Town Manager and setting a timeline.  
 
Mr. Scott Barber, Human Resource Director, stated that in 2012, the Mayor and Council 
considered two proposals to conduct the last Town Manager recruitment; one from the 
League of Cities and Towns and one from the Mercer Group, an executive recruitment 
firm.  He stated that staff is recommending the recruitment process be done in-house, 
providing job opening notifications to various posting sites.  He stated that Council was 
presented with two timeline options, one with a more aggressive pace through the 
different hiring stages. 
 
Mr. Barber stated that the Mayor and Council have the option to delay the process to 
some point in the future, and continue with the Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk 
acting as interim Town Manager, or move to bring in someone from the outside the 
organization to fill the Town Manager role through a contract with a firm such as Interim 
Public Management. 
 
Councilmember Anderson inquired as to how the posting of the job opening will occur. 
 
Ms. Garcia stated that staff, based on the decision this evening by Council, will place 
job postings through various municipality organizations such as the League of Cities 
and Towns and the Arizona City and Managers Association. 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 27, 2015 
Page 8 of 12 

Mr. Barber stated that there are several local and national sites that have posting 
services. 
 
Vice-Mayor Walter inquired what the cost would be for the recruitment process through 
the League of Cities and Towns. 
 
Mr. Barber stated the League’s Director did reach out to him last week offering their 
services at which time he discussed the various plans with the Director and is confident 
that a cost negotiation would be comparable to that which was negotiated in 2012. 
 
Vice-Mayor Walter stated that she would recommend either holding the position for a 
period of time or to utilize the services of the League of Cities and Towns.  She stated 
that she believes holding the position would be appropriate at this time based on the 
$90,000 severance agreement with the prior Town Manager and with the additional 
compensation to the Interim Town Manager.  The current budget has limited 
contingency funds that may not have adequate funding for the Town to start the hiring 
process.  She stated if the majority of Council would like to start the hiring process; she 
would recommend using the services of the League of Cities and Towns with an open 
till filled clause. 
 
Ms. Garcia stated that if Council chooses to perform the recruitment process in-house, 
the only portion of the process that would change would be that staff would place the 
advertisement of the position with various organizations verses paying an outside 
source to do so.  She stated once the applications are received, Council would be the 
ones to review all applications.  She stated by having staff place the ads, collect the 
applications and forward them to Council, a cost savings would be experienced. 
 
Ms. Garcia stated that four years ago she received a differential when she took on the 
additional responsibilities of being Deputy Town Manager.  She stated has not and will 
not be receiving an additional differential while serving at the Interim Town Manager. 
 
Vice-Mayor Walter inquired if Council would have an opportunity to review the Town 
Manager job description prior to it being released as she would like to have Council 
input prior to posting. 
 
Ms. Garcia stated if Council would like to see the job description prior to posting, staff 
can provide that information to Council with the understanding that it will slow down the 
recruitment process. 
 
Councilmember Hawkins inquired if the Town’s job description for Town Manager is 
consistent with industry standards. 
 
Councilmember Woolridge stated that she supports having staff place the 
advertisements, collect the resumes and provide them to Council.  She said it will save 
the funds that would be spent if using the League of Cities and Towns. 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 27, 2015 
Page 9 of 12 

Mayor Rankin stated that the job description is available upon request at Town Hall.  He 
stated that he would like to see Council approve Option A as it provides more time to 
carefully select the right candidate and to be thorough in our selection process.  He 
reminded Council that the selected candidate will most likely have to provide notice to 
their current employee which would push their start date to late December early 
January. 
 
Councilmember Guilin stated that she has worked with staff that are highly qualified 
professionals knowledgeable in their fields and believes they will provide Council 
excellent support in the hiring process.  She stated that she recommends option A as 
well, as it will provide the time needed to carefully and meticulously select the right 
candidate for the Town. 
 
Councilmember Wall inquired if the Town provides traveling expenses for those 
candidates that currently live outside the State. 
 
Mr. Barber stated that in the past, the Town has covered traveling expenses for 
candidates. 
 
Vice-Mayor Walter stated that the Town did utilize technology to conduct interviews via 
Skype in an effort to save money. 
 
Mayor Rankin stated that he believes it is beneficial to have face-to-face communication 
during an interview as body language and a person’s demeanor is very important. 
 
On motion of Councilmember Anderson, seconded by Councilmember Hawkins, and 
carried to authorize the recruitment process for the position of Town Manager using 
Option A with the search to be nationwide and to stay open until filled.  

 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of using the Budget Committee’s approach to 
the Fiscal Year 2015/2016 formation of the budget. 
 
Ms. Garcia stated that staff is starting to work on the next fiscal year budget process 
and is asking Council if they would like to use the Budget Committee approach to format 
the Fiscal Year 2015/2016 budget or to have a manager’s budget that would come to 
Council for adoption. 
 
Mayor Rankin stated that he believes the committee approach is a good way to develop 
the budget as the Town has been using this process since 2008.  He stated that the 
committee process allows various members of staff and Council to see how the budget 
is put together and provides a well vetted document to Council to review and fine-tune 
before its adoption.  
 
Vice-Mayor Walter stated that in 2012 Council was much more involved in the process 
at an early point allowing for bigger changes than what has been afforded to Council 
since that time.  She stated that her concerns year after year go unaddressed.  She is 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 27, 2015 
Page 10 of 12 

concerned that a decision to utilize a committee for the next fiscal year has already 
been decided.  She stated that she would like to see more citizen and Council 
participation in the process and would like to be considered for serving on the Budget 
Committee for the upcoming fiscal year. 
 
Ms. Garcia stated that the process that was utilized for this fiscal year budget is not 
what staff intends to proceed with in the future.  She stated that staff is starting with the 
CIP process working backwards into the operating budget.  She stated that staff intends 
to bring sections of the budget to Council to review, have updates throughout the 
budget process and develop a budget calendar that will show what steps must be 
completed before we get to the final budget review.  She stated that the calendar will 
also include the expenditure limitation election. 
 
Councilmember Hawkins stated that the process that Ms. Garcia explained is how the 
Town used to develop a budget and it has always worked.  He stated that Council is 
always open and transparent and does not believe there has been a time that it has not 
been. 
 
Ms. Garcia stated that with a new Finance Director joining staff, they will bring new 
ideas and help develop and expand our budgeting practices and policies for the better 
and staff is looking forward to those opportunities. 
 
Councilmember Hawkins stated Councilmember Guilin should be on the Budget 
Committee as she was the Finance Director for many years.  She knows how to 
maneuver through the various operations of the Town and is more than qualified to 
assist in bringing the budget back in line. 
 
Mayor Rankin stated that he made the recommendation to have Councilmember Guilin 
on Budget Committee as she can assist the new incoming Finance Director with the 
nuances of the budget and within the Finance Department.   
 
Councilmember Anderson stated that he enjoyed being on the Budget Committee last 
year and truly enjoyed learning how the budget is developed.  Councilmember Guilin 
was of great assistance in educating him on various topics.  He stated that he has 
spoken with Ms. Garcia regarding the budgeting process and has confidence that going 
forward the process will allow for more citizen involvement and a greater amount of 
transparency. 
 
On motion of Councilmember Woolridge, seconded by Councilmember Hawkins, and 
carried to approve using the Budget Committee’s approach of the Fiscal Year 
2015/2016 formation of the budget. 

 
Mayor’s appointment of Fiscal Year 2015/2016 Budget Committee (2 members of 
Council). 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 27, 2015 
Page 11 of 12 

Mayor Rankin appointed Councilmember Guilin and Councilmember Wall to participate 
on the Budget Committee for Fiscal Year 2015/2016. 

 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
 
There were no comments. 
 
CALL TO THE COUNCIL 
 
Councilmember Anderson stated that he would like to see changes to the budget policy. 
 
Councilmember Guilin stated that she would like to make a clarification regarding a 
statement she made about the portion of dependent insurance the Town actually pays.  
She stated that the employee pays 22% of the costs and the Town pays 78% of the 
cost.   
 
Councilmember Wall thanked Councilmember Guilin and Councilmember Anderson for 
their work on the Budget Committee this year and looks forward to participating on the 
Committee for next fiscal year.  She stated that it may not be known that she has an 
extensive financial background, is detail oriented and is used to crunching numbers. 
 
Vice-Mayor Walter that she is concerned with recent hiring practices and would like to 
have clarification how recent positions were filled in relations to the hiring policy of the 
Town.  She requested to have an Executive Session to discuss Council conduct. 
 
Councilmember Hawkins stated that the Town Manager approves all employees who 
are hired to work for the Town.  He stated that Council only hires the Town Manager, 
the Town Clerk and the Town Magistrate. 
 
Mayor Rankin stated that he always puts the best interest of the Town ahead of 
anything else and believes that Council and staff do the same. 

 
ADJOURN TO EXECUTIVE SESSION 
An Executive Session will be held during the Special Council Meeting for legal 
matters pursuant to A.R.S. Section 38-431.03(A)(3) and (4) as follows: For the 
purpose of discussion and consultation with the Town’s attorneys for legal 
advice and to consider the Town’s position and instruct its attorneys in regard to 
pending consolidated litigation: Hollins v. Town of Florence, et al; Pinal County 
Superior Court Case No. CV2014-02265/02266; Dantico v. Town of Florence, et al; 
Pinal County Superior Court Case No. CV2014-02327. 
 
On motion of Councilmember Hawkins, seconded by Councilmember Anderson, and 
carried to adjourn to Executive Session. 
 
ADJOURN FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
July 27, 2015 
Page 12 of 12 

On motion of Councilmember Anderson, seconded by Vice-Mayor Walter, and carried to 
adjourn from Executive Session. 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Council may go into Executive Session at any time during the meeting for the 
purpose of obtaining legal advice from the Town’s Attorney(s) on any of the 
agenda items pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3). 
 
On motion of Vice-Mayor Walter, seconded by Councilmember Woolridge, and carried 
to adjourn the meeting at 8:30 pm.  
 
 
 
________________________________ 
Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
 
I certify that the following is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Florence Town 
Council meeting held on July 27, 2015, and that the meeting was duly called to order 
and that a quorum was present. 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 





































 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
8a. 

MEETING DATE:  August 17, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Jennifer Evans, Management Analyst 
 
SUBJECT:    Regulating Farmers Market Vendors under  
                     Ordinance No. 549-10.  

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
Subject: Regulation of Farmers Market Vendors under Ordinance No. 549-10           Meeting Date: August 17, 2015 
Page 1 of 2 

 
A motion to approve regulating farmers market vendors under Ordinance No. 549-10. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
Special events held in the Town of Florence are governed by Title XI: Business 
Regulations, Chapter 112 Special Events of the Town Code.  The Code describes the 
permits required and application process that must be followed to hold a special event 
in Florence.  The Deputy Town Manager, or designee, administers the special event 
application process.  Town staff seeks to uniformly enforce the Code for all special 
events held in Florence to promote public health and safety.  
 
The Town Council adopted Ordinance No. 549-10 on January 3, 2011, that regulates 
special events and provides for discounted permit fees for non-profit organizations and 
vendors.  Special event vendors are regulated by the Town at all events open to the 
public with the exception of the farmers market.  Per Ordinance No. 546-10, all vendors 
must complete the special event vendor application and obtain a special event vendor 
permit for $10.  Businesses with valid business licenses, non-profits, religious 
organizations, hospitals, agricultural produce growers, and arts and craft vendors whose 
sales are less than $3,000 annually may receive an exemption from the vendor permit 
fee. 
 
Since 2002, the farmers market has been held weekly on Main Street except during 
summer months.  The Town Code, related to payment of business license fees and 
special event vendor fees, has not been enforced since the market’s inception.  The 
Town Council last waived fees for vendors in 2003, as requested by the Florence 
Chamber of Commerce.   The Chamber of Commerce opted not to be involved in the 
market several years ago so it has been coordinated by a few dedicated vendors since 
that time. 
 
 



Subject: Regulation of Farmers Market Vendors under Ordinance No. 549-10           Meeting Date: August 17, 2015 
Page 2 of 2 

Staff has met with some of the vendors from the existing market to discuss draft rules, 
procedures, and a budget for a new and improved farmers market.  The goal is to 
increase promotional activities and grow the market into a successful, sustainable 
operation.  The vendors prefer to maintain the existing Saturday market with the hours 
of 8:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m. in Arriola Square.  The season runs from the end of 
September through mid-May.  Another option would be to have a farmers market on 
Friday afternoons from 11:00 a.m. until 3:00 p.m. since every Friday is a payday for one 
or more of the major employers in Florence and there are a number of office workers in 
close proximity to the market on a week day.  The risks and benefits will be evaluated of 
having the farmers market on either day to determine the best fit for the community. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The financial impact on the Town is minimal due to most vendors qualifying for a special 
event vendor exemption.   
Revenue generated from stall fees, sponsorships, and merchandise sales will offset 
operating costs of the market and allow it to be self-sustaining. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of regulating farmers market vendors under Ordinance No. 
549-10. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Ordinance No. 549-10 



Florence, AZ Code of Ordinances

CHAPTER 112: SPECIAL EVENTS

Section

General Provisions

   112.01   Definitions

   112.02   Administration

Permits

   112.15   Business license required

   112.16   License fees

   112.17   Required; exemptions

   112.18   Application and fee

   112.19   General application requirements

   112.20   Issuance of permit

   112.21   Prohibited special event conduct; revocation

   112.22   Mistake; collection of correct amount

   112.23   Right of entry

   112.24   Display; identification; permission of property owner; exhibition upon demand

   112.25   Other certificates or permits required

   112.26   Denial, modification, revocation, or suspension; appeal to Town Manager

Requirements

   112.40   General requirements

   112.41   Special provisions related to boutiques

   112.42   Special provisions related to fireworks exhibitions

   112.43   Special provisions related to parades and public assemblies

   112.44   Waiver of special event fees

Penalties

   112.55   Violation of chapter

   112.56   Conviction not to excuse nonpayment of fee

   112.57   Prohibited special event locations

   112.58   Court action

§ 112.01  DEFINITIONS.

   For the purpose of this chapter, the following definitions shall apply unless the context clearly indicates or requires a different



meaning.

   BLOCK PARTY.  A gathering of residents of a neighborhood for social purposes where the gathering is (i) limited to the residents
of the immediate neighborhood and (ii) a public street will be used by the gathering.

   BOUTIQUE.  An event operated by a homeowner, religious organization, or not-for-profit organization for the purpose of selling
local handmade arts and crafts.

   CARNIVAL, LARGE-SCALE.  A temporary event that generally includes activities such as amusement rides, entertainment, game
booths, food stands, exhibitions, and animal displays located on one acre or more.

   CARNIVAL, SMALL-SCALE.  A temporary event that generally includes activities such as amusement rides, entertainment, game
booths, food stands, exhibitions, and animal displays located on less than one acre.

   CIRCUS.  A temporary event or show at which a combination of attractions and exhibitions, such as rides, illusions, freak shows,
eating concessions, and gaming booths, including a main tent attraction along with side shows, are available for the purpose of
amusement and entertainment and at which the public pays either an admittance or participation fee.

   CONDUCT.  To commence, manage, own, solicit, canvass, practice, transact, engage in, or carry on.

   ENGAGING.  The exercise of corporate or franchise powers.

   FIREWORKS EXHIBITION.  An organized event open to the public or to which invitations have been issued to the public where
pyrotechnics are exploded.

   MULTIPLE SPECIAL EVENTS.  More than one special event held at a single location.

   PARADE.  Any march, demonstration, procession, motorcade or race consisting of persons, animals, or vehicles or a combination
thereof upon the streets, parks, or other public grounds within the town intended to attract public attention that interferes with the
normal flow or regulation of pedestrian and/or vehicular traffic upon the streets, parks, or other public grounds.

   PROMOTER.  Any person who produces or conducts a special event.

   PUBLIC ASSEMBLY.  Any meeting, demonstration, picket line, rally, or gathering of more than 50 persons for a common purpose
as a result of prior planning that interferes with the normal flow or regulation of pedestrian or vehicular traffic, exceeds parking
capacity, or occupies any public area in a place open to the general public. PUBLIC ASSEMBLY does not include block parties.

   SHOW.  Any exhibition, display, production, or gathering intended to draw the public, including, but not limited to, musical and
theatrical productions, merchandise booths, games of chance, amusements, flea markets, bazaars, circuses, large-scale carnivals, fairs,
conventions, celebrations, promotions, rallies, and other public gatherings of this nature.

   SIDEWALK.  Any area or way set aside or open to the general public for purposes of pedestrian traffic, whether or not it is paved.

   SPECIAL EVENT.  Means, but is not limited to, events such as a boutique, large-scale carnival, circus, fireworks exhibition,
multiple special events, single event swap meet and auction, parade, public assembly, or show.

   SPECIAL EVENT PERMIT.  A permit required by this chapter.

   SPECIAL EVENT VENDOR.  Any person, other than a show promoter or its employee, who occupies a space, cell, booth or other
temporary structure or location in conjunction with, associated with, or attendant to an organized show.

   STREET.  Any place or way set aside or open to the general public for purposes of vehicular, including bicycle, traffic, including any
berm or shoulder, parkway, right-of-way, or median strip thereof.

   SWAP MEET AND AUCTION, SINGLE EVENT.  Commercial activities held in an open area where one or more licensed
sellers bring goods for auctioning to the public.

   VENDOR.  Any person, other than a promoter or its employee, who occupies a space, booth, or other temporary structure or
location in conjunction with, associated with, or attendant to an organized boutique, single event swap meet and auction.

(Ord. 549-10, passed 1-3-2011)



§ 112.02  ADMINISTRATION.

   (A)   The Deputy Town Manager, or designee, shall uniformly administer the special event application process and consider each
special event permit application upon its merits and shall not discriminate in granting, denying, modifying, revoking, or suspending
permits based upon political, religious, ethnic, racial, disability, sexual orientation, or gender related grounds.

   (B)   Fees and business licenses fall under the jurisdiction of the Finance Director.

(Ord. 549-10, passed 1-3-2011)

PERMITS

§ 112.15  BUSINESS LICENSE REQUIRED.

   It shall be unlawful for any person to participate as a special event vendor in a special event in the town without first obtaining and
maintaining in effect, the proper business license.

(Ord. 549-10, passed 1-3-2011)  Penalty, see § 112.55

§ 112.16  LICENSE FEES.

   Every applicant for a license under this chapter shall pay the fees listed in the Town of Florence Fee Schedule. Any participant not
listed as a special event vendor through the special event organization or organizer permitted by this chapter will pay the license fee
per occupation. This section is for business license fees: see § 112.18 for special event application fees.

      Special event vendor per event $10.

(Ord. 549-10, passed 1-3-2011)

§ 112.17  REQUIRED; EXEMPTIONS.

   (A)   Unless exempted by division (D) below, it shall be unlawful for any person to conduct any special event within the town
without a special event permit.

   (B)   All special events that require a special event permit pursuant to this chapter shall, as a condition of the special event permit,
comply with the requirements of this chapter, the town zoning code, all other applicable codes and ordinances of the town, and all
applicable federal and state laws.

   (C)   The issuance of a special event permit is not deemed evidence or proof that the permittee has complied with the provisions of
this chapter, nor shall it prevent prosecution by the town of any violation of this chapter.

   (D)   A special event permit shall not be required when:

      (1)   The general law of the state or federal government precludes the town from requiring a special event permit for the event; or

      (2)   The event is conducted on property owned or leased by a school district and used for school purposes or is owned or leased
by a religious institution and used for religious purposes. Examples are a school book fair, or Parent Teacher Organization (PTO)
family night.

(Ord. 549-10, passed 1-3-2011)

§ 112.18  APPLICATION AND FEE.

   (A)   All special event permit applications shall be submitted to the Deputy Town Manager, who shall determine whether a special
event permit is required. Except as provided in § 112.43 (Parades and public assemblies), an applicant for a special event permit shall
submit such application at least 60 days prior to the proposed first day of the special event.



   (B)   Every applicant for a special event permit shall:

      (1)   Pay a nonrefundable application fee in an amount established by the town fee schedule. If, after submitting the application, it
is determined that the event is not a special event, the fee shall be refunded. Special event application fee $25; and

      (2)   Complete and submit a special event permit application.

   (C)   The special event permit application shall be forwarded to all appropriate town departments for review and approval. The
application shall be approved or denied within 15 days from the date it is received.

   (D)   If the application is not approved or denied within the applicable review period, excluding completion of any required
inspections which will occur on the date of the events, the reviewing official shall be deemed to have approved the application.

   (E)   Approval by individual town departments to which the application has been referred shall not prevent the application from being
denied for other reasons.

(Ord. 549-10, passed 1-3-2011)

§ 112.19  GENERAL APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS.

   Except public assemblies, which shall comply with § 112.43, all special event permit applications shall include the following
information:

   (A)   The name, address, telephone numbers (including cellular telephone number, if possible), fax number and electronic mail
address of the person or entity seeking to conduct the special event;

   (B)   If applicable, the names, addresses, telephone numbers (including cellular telephone number, if possible), fax number and
electronic mail address of the headquarters of the organization for which the special event is to be conducted, if any, and the
authorized and responsible heads of the organization;

   (C)   The requested date(s) of the special event;

   (D)   The location of the special event;

   (E)   The approximate number of persons or vendors who will participate in or constitute the special event. Large-scale carnivals,
circuses, and shows shall also state the approximate number of and describe the animals and rides that will be included in the large-
scale carnival, circus, or show;

   (F)   The hours when the special event will start and terminate on each day it is held;

   (G)   A site plan showing the location of all permanent and temporary structures (including tents or vendor booths) to be used,
parking areas, public bathroom and trash facilities, and staging areas for the special event. Site plans for large-scale carnivals, circuses,
fireworks exhibitions, or shows shall also indicate, as appropriate, the locations of fireworks detonation areas, spectator areas, and
rides;

   (H)   A traffic and pedestrian circulation and control plan that identifies how many off-duty sheriff's office, police department, or
other law enforcement personnel will be employed;

   (I)   A security plan describing how  (including how many personnel will be used) to control crowds during the special event and
ensure the safety of those who attend;

   (J)   The approximate number of attendees or spectators;

   (K)   A designation of any public facilities or equipment to be utilized; and

   (L)   Any additional information that is reasonably necessary to make a fair determination as to whether a special event permit
should be issued and taking into consideration the proximity to residential uses.

(Ord. 549-10, passed 1-3-2011)

§ 112.20  ISSUANCE OF PERMIT.



   (A)   The town shall issue a permit as provided for herein when, from a consideration of the application and from such other
information as may otherwise be obtained, it finds that:

      (1)   The conduct of the event will not substantially interrupt the safe and orderly movement of pedestrian or vehicular traffic
contiguous to its location;

      (2)   The conduct of the event will not require the diversion of so great a number of town police officers to properly police the
areas contiguous thereto as to prevent normal police protection of the town;

      (3)   The concentration of persons, vehicles, and/or animals at the location of the event will not unduly interfere with public works
operations, proper fire and police protection of, or ambulance service to, areas contiguous to such location;

      (4)   The conduct of the event is not reasonably likely to cause injury to persons or property;

      (5)   Adequate sanitation and other required health facilities are or will be made available in or adjacent to the event location;

      (6)   There are sufficient parking places near or on the site of the event to accommodate the number of vehicles reasonably
expected;

      (7)   The applicant has secured the police protection, if any, as required by Police Chief; and

      (8)   No event(s) is scheduled elsewhere in the town where the police resources required for that event(s) are so great that the
deployment of police services for the proposed event would have an immediate and adverse effect upon the welfare and safety of
persons and property.

   (B)   Immediately upon the issuance of a special event permit, the following will be notified:

      (1)   Town Manager;

      (2)   Code Enforcement Officer;

      (3)   Finance Director;

      (4)   Fire Chief;

      (5)   Chief of Police;

      (6)   Public Works Director/Street Superintendent; and

      (7)   Town Clerk.

   (C)   Each permit shall state the following information:

      (1)   Date(s);

      (2)   Location;

      (3)   Hours of operation; and

      (4)   Such other information as necessary to the enforcement of this chapter.

   (D)   A permittee hereunder shall comply with all permit directions and conditions and with all applicable laws and ordinances.

(Ord. 549-10, passed 1-3-2011)

§ 112.21  PROHIBITED SPECIAL EVENT CONDUCT; REVOCATION.

   (A)   The following prohibitions shall apply to all special events:

      (1)   It shall be unlawful for any person to participate in a special event for which the person knows a permit has not been granted;

      (2)   It shall be unlawful for any person in charge of, or responsible for the conduct of, a duly permitted special event to knowingly
fail to comply with any condition of the permit;

      (3)   It shall be unlawful for any person to engage in any special event activity that would constitute a substantial hazard to the



public safety or that would materially interfere with or endanger the public peace or rights of residents to the quiet and peaceful
enjoyment of their property;

      (4)   It shall be unlawful for any person participating in a special event to utilize sound amplification equipment at decibel levels that
exceed those limits imposed by Title XIII, § 132.02 herein unless specifically authorized by the permit; and

   (B)   The Deputy Town Manager shall have the authority to revoke a special event permit instantly upon violation of the conditions
or standards for issuance as set forth in this section or when a public emergency arises where the police resources required for that
emergency are so great that deployment of police services for the special event would have an immediate and adverse effect upon the
welfare and safety of persons or property.

(Ord. 549-10, passed 1-3-2011)  Penalty, see § 112.55

§ 112.22  MISTAKE; COLLECTION OF CORRECT AMOUNT.

   In no case shall any mistake made in stating, fixing, or collecting the amount of any special event permit fee prevent or prejudice the
town from collecting the correct amount due as provided in this chapter.

(Ord. 549-10, passed 1-3-2011)

§ 112.23  RIGHT OF ENTRY.

   The Code Enforcement Officer, police officers, fire official and Deputy Town Manager shall have and exercise the power to enter,
free of charge, during the special event and to demand the exhibition of the special event permit from any person conducting the
special event. Denial of the right of entry by any person conducting a special event as required under this chapter shall be a civil
violation.

(Ord. 549-10, passed 1-3-2011)

§ 112.24  DISPLAY; IDENTIFICATION; PERMISSION OF PROPERTY OWNER; EXHIBITION UPON DEMAND.

   (A)   Every person having a special event permit under the provisions of this chapter shall keep such permit openly posted and
exhibited in a conspicuous part of such location.

   (B)   Every person having a special event under the provisions of this chapter shall produce and exhibit such permit, and, when
applicable, written permission to conduct the event at the location or personal identification, whenever requested to do so by the
Deputy Town Manager, any police officer, fire official or the Code Enforcement Officer.

(Ord. 549-10, passed 1-3-2011)

§ 112.25  OTHER CERTIFICATES OR PERMITS REQUIRED.

   (A)   When any business is required by federal, state, county, or local law to obtain any other license, permit, certificate, or
examination, a special event permit shall not be issued until the applicant produces proof of such license, permit, certificate, or
examination, including a use permit required by the zoning code of the town or any license, permit, certificate, or examination required
by various health departments, as provided in A.R.S. §§ 36-101 et seq.

   (B)   Obtaining any license, permit, certificate, or examination required by federal, state, county, or local law shall be the sole
responsibility of the applicant.

   (C)   The issuance of a special event permit shall not be evidence that the town knew or should have known that another permit,
certificate, or examination was required or was otherwise improperly issued.

(Ord. 549-10, passed 1-3-2011)



§ 112.26  DENIAL, MODIFICATION, REVOCATION, OR SUSPENSION; APPEAL TO TOWN MANAGER.

   (A)   A special event permit application may be denied or a special event permit may be modified, suspended, or revoked for any of
the following causes.

      (1)   Fraud, misrepresentation, or false statement contained in the permit application.

      (2)   Any violation of this chapter or failure to meet any licensing requirement, including timely payment of fees.

      (3)   Conducting the permitted business in violation of any federal, state, county, or local law.

      (4)   The permittee is convicted of untrue, fraudulent, misleading, or deceptive advertising.

      (5)   The permittee is a corporation or similar entity and is no longer qualified to transact business in the State of Arizona.

   (B)   The applicant shall be notified in writing that the application has been denied or the permit has been modified, revoked, or
suspended. The letter shall be personally delivered or mailed certified and shall specify the grounds or reasons for the denial,
modification, revocation, or suspension.

   (C)   The applicant or permittee or any other aggrieved person may appeal the denial of the application or modification, revocation,
or suspension of the permit to the Town Manager by filing a written statement fully describing the grounds for the appeal with the
Town Clerk within five business days of the date of the denial letter.

   (D)   The Town Clerk shall set a time and place for a hearing to be held before the Town Manager within 15 business days of the
filing of the appeal. A notice setting forth the date, time, and place of the hearing shall be personally delivered or mailed certified by the
Town Clerk to the appellant.

   (E)   The Town Manager shall issue a written decision and mail notice thereof within five business days after the hearing setting
forth the findings and grounds for the decision to the applicant or permittee.

(Ord. 549-10, passed 1-3-2011)

REQUIREMENTS

§ 112.40  GENERAL REQUIREMENTS.

   (A)   Special events to be conducted at a town park shall obtain a permit from the Parks and Recreation Department in addition to a
special event permit.

   (B)   Special events to be conducted on private property shall obtain authorization from the property owner for the use of the
property for such purpose.

   (C)   If the special event will include sale or service of alcohol, a special event liquor license is required.

   (D)   If the special event will include the sale of goods or food, a list of vendors and items to be sold shall be provided with the
application and all applicable laws and regulations regarding transaction privilege taxes, vendor fee and license and the sale of food
shall be complied with.

   (E)   Where a street closure is approved, the applicant must have written permission from the affected property owners.

   (F)   If the application is for the use of any town property or if any town services shall be required for the special event, the applicant
shall pay, in addition to an application fee and prior to the issuance of a permit, the charges for those services in accordance the town
fee schedule.

   (G)   The Deputy Town Manager shall consult with the Chief of Police to determine whether and to what extent additional police
protection will be reasonably necessary for the special event for traffic control and public safety. This decision shall be based on the
size, location, duration, time, and date of the special event; the expected sale or service of alcoholic beverages; the number of streets
and intersections blocked; and the need to detour or preempt citizen travel and use of the streets and sidewalks. If possible, without
disruption of ordinary police services or compromise of public safety, regularly scheduled on-duty personnel will police the special
event. If additional police protection is deemed necessary by the Chief of Police, he or she shall so inform the Deputy Town Manager.
The applicant shall furnish the town with a police special security services agreement to secure the police protection deemed



necessary by the Chief of Police at the sole expense of the applicant.

   (H)   No permit shall be granted that allows for the erection or placement of any structure, whether permanent or temporary, on a
town street, sidewalk, or right-of-way.

(Ord. 549-10, passed 1-3-2011)

§ 112.41  SPECIAL PROVISIONS RELATED TO BOUTIQUES.

   A boutique shall be required to obtain and maintain a special event permit if:

   (A)   The boutique is not carried on wholly within a dwelling unit, a religion related building, or within a commercial structure;

   (B)   The boutique operates for more than 15 days during a calendar year;

   (C)   The boutique produces offensive noise, vibration, smoke, dust, odors, heat, or glare;

   (D)   The boutique and any related activities are not limited to the hours between 8:00 a.m. and 10:00 p.m.

   (E)   The boutique does not provide adequate parking, and the activity generates additional traffic, which would create a traffic or
safety hazard; or

   (F)   The boutique uses more than three off-site temporary signs. Signs may only be used during the hours that the boutique is open.
Placement criteria and all other applicable sign code restrictions shall apply.

(Ord. 549-10, passed 1-3-2011)

§ 112.42  SPECIAL PROVISIONS RELATED TO FIREWORKS EXHIBITIONS.

   The promoter, owner, or operator of a fireworks exhibition, and its employees, agents, and/or subcontractors, shall strictly comply
with all applicable federal, state, county, and local laws, rules, regulations, and ordinances in conducting any fireworks exhibition.

(Ord. 549-10, passed 1-3-2011)

§ 112.43  SPECIAL PROVISIONS RELATED TO PARADES AND PUBLIC ASSEMBLIES.

   (A)   No person shall engage in or conduct any parade or public assembly unless a special event permit is issued by the town.

   (B)   This section shall not apply to the following:

      (1)   Funeral processions;

      (2)   Students going to and from school classes or participating in educational activities, provided that such conduct is under the
immediate direction and supervision of school authorities;

      (3)   A governmental agency acting within the scope of its functions; and

      (4)   Spontaneous events occasioned by news or affairs coming into public knowledge within two days of such public assembly,
provided that the organizer thereof gives written notice to the town at least 24 hours prior to such parade or public assembly.

   (C)   For single, non-recurring parades or public assemblies, an application for a permit shall be filed with the Deputy Town Manager
at least 30 and not more than 180 days before the parade or public assembly is proposed to commence. The Deputy Town Manager
may waive the minimum filing period and accept an application filed within a shorter period if, after due consideration of the date, time,
place, and nature of the parade or public assembly, the anticipated number of participants, and the town services required in connection
with the event, determines the waiver will not present a hazard to public safety.

   (D)   For parades or public assemblies held on a regular or recurring basis at the same location, an application for a permit covering
all such parades or assemblies during that calendar year may be filed with the Deputy Town Manager at least 30 and not more than
180 days before the date and time at which the first such parade or public assembly is proposed to commence. The Deputy Town
Manager may waive the minimum period after due consideration of the factors specified in division (C) of this section.



   (E)   The application for a parade or public assembly permit shall set forth the following information:

      (1)   The name, address, and telephone number of the person seeking to conduct such parade or public assembly;

      (2)   The names, addresses, and telephone numbers of the headquarters of the organization for which the parade or public
assembly is to be conducted, if any, and the authorized and responsible heads of the organization;

      (3)   The requested date(s) of the parade or public assembly;

      (4)   The route to be traveled, including the starting and termination points;

      (5)   The approximate number of persons, animals and vehicles that will constitute such parade or public assembly and the type of
animals and description of the vehicles;

      (6)   The hours when such parade or public assembly will start and terminate;

      (7)   A statement as to whether the parade or public assembly will occupy all or only a portion of the width of the streets proposed
to be traveled;

      (8)   The location by street of any staging or assembly areas for such parade or public assembly;

      (9)   The time at which units of the parade or public assembly will begin to assemble at any such staging or assembly area;

      (10)   The intervals of space to be maintained between units of such parade or public assembly;

      (11)   If the parade or public assembly is designed to be held by, or on behalf of, any person other than the applicant, the applicant
for such permit shall file a letter from that person with the Deputy Town Manager authorizing the applicant to apply for the permit on
his or her behalf;

      (12)   The type of public assembly, including a description of activities planned during the event;

      (13)   A description of any recording equipment, sound amplification equipment, banners, signs, or other attention-getting devices to
be used in connection with the parade or public assembly;

      (14)   The approximate number of participants (spectators are by definition not participants);

      (15)   The approximate number of spectators;

      (16)   A designation of any public facilities or equipment to be utilized; and

      (17)   Any additional information that the town finds reasonably necessary to a fair determination as to whether a permit should
issue.

   (F)   Persons engaging in parades or public assemblies conducted for the sole purpose of political or other speech protected under
the First Amendment of the United States Constitution are not required to pay for any police protection provided by the town.

   (G)   The Deputy Town Manager shall issue a permit as provided for herein when, from a consideration of the application and from
such other information as may otherwise be obtained, he or she finds that:

      (1)   The conduct of the parade or public assembly will not substantially interrupt the safe and orderly movement of other
pedestrian or vehicular traffic contiguous to its route or location;

      (2)   The conduct of the parade or public assembly will not require the diversion of so great a number of town police officers to
properly police the line of movement and the areas contiguous thereto as to prevent normal police protection of the town;

      (3)   The concentration of persons, animals, and vehicles at staging or public assembly points of the parade or public assembly will
not unduly interfere with proper fire and police protection of, or ambulance service to, areas contiguous to such staging and public
assembly areas;

      (4)   The conduct of the parade or public assembly is not reasonably likely to cause injury to persons or property;

      (5)   The parade or public assembly is scheduled to move from its point of origin to its point of termination expeditiously and
without unreasonable delays;

      (6)   Adequate sanitation and other required health facilities are or will be made available in or adjacent to any staging and public
assembly areas;



      (7)   There are sufficient parking places near the site of the parade or public assembly to accommodate the number of vehicles
reasonably expected;

      (8)   The applicant has secured the police protection required, if any;

      (9)   Such parade or public assembly is not for the primary purpose of advertising any product, goods, or event that is primarily for
private profit, and the parade itself is not primarily for profit. The prohibition against advertising any product, goods, or event shall not
apply to signs identifying organizations or sponsors furnishing or sponsoring exhibits or structures used in the parade;

      (10)   No parade or public assembly permit application for the same time and location is already granted or has been received and
will be granted;

      (11)   No parade or public assembly permit application for the same time but not location is already granted or has been received
and shall be granted, and the police resources required for that prior parade or public assembly are so great that in combination with
the subsequent proposed application, the resulting deployment of police services would have an immediate and adverse effect upon the
welfare and safety of persons and property; and

      (12)   No event is scheduled elsewhere in the town where the police resources required for that event are so great that the
deployment of police services for the proposed parade or public assembly would have an immediate and adverse effect upon the
welfare and safety of persons and property.

      (13)   The Deputy Town Manager shall act promptly upon a timely filed application for a parade or public assembly permit but in
no event shall grant or deny a permit less than ten days prior to the event. If the Deputy Town Manager disapproves the application,
s/he shall notify the applicant either by personal delivery or certified mail at least ten days prior to the event of his or her action and
state the reasons for denial.

   (H)   The Deputy Town Manager, in denying an application for a parade or public assembly permit, may authorize the conduct of the
parade or public assembly at a date, time, location, or route different from that named by the applicant. The applicant must, within five
days, file a written notice of acceptance. An alternate parade or public assembly permit shall conform to the requirements of, and shall
have the effect of, a permit issued under this section.

   (I)   Any applicant shall have the right to appeal the denial of a parade or public assembly permit to the Town Manager. The denied
applicant shall make the appeal within five days after receipt of the denial by filing a written notice with the Town Clerk. The Town
Manager shall act upon the appeal within five days of receipt of the notice of appeal.

   (J)   Immediately upon the issuance of a parade or public assembly permit, the Deputy Town Manager shall send a copy thereof to
the following:

      (1)   Town Manager;

      (2)   Finance Director;

      (3)   Fire Chief;

      (4)   Chief of Police;

      (5)   Public Works Director;

      (6)   Town Clerk; and

      (7)   Postmaster.

   (K)   Each permit shall state the following information:

      (1)   Starting and approximate ending time;

      (2)   The portions of the streets that may be occupied by the parade or public assembly; and

      (3)   Such other information as the town shall find necessary to the enforcement of this section.

   (L)   A permittee hereunder shall comply with all permit directions and conditions and with all applicable laws and ordinances. The
parade or public assembly chairman or other person heading such activity shall carry the parade or public assembly permit upon his
person during the conduct of the parade or public assembly.

   (M)   The following prohibitions shall apply to all parades and public assemblies:



      (1)   It shall be unlawful for any person to stage, present, or conduct any parade or public assembly without first having obtained a
permit as herein provided; and

      (2)   It shall be unlawful for any person participating in a parade or public assembly to utilize sound amplification equipment at
decibel levels that exceed those limits imposed by Title XIII, § 132.02 of this code unless expressly authorized by the permit.

   (N)   The public shall conduct itself as follows.

      (1)   No person shall unreasonably hamper, obstruct, impede, or interfere with any parade or public assembly or with any person,
vehicle, or animal participating or used in a parade or public assembly.

      (2)   No driver of a vehicle shall drive between the vehicles or persons comprising a parade or public assembly when such vehicles
or persons are in motion and are conspicuously designated as a parade or public assembly.

(Ord. 549-10, passed 1-3-2011)  Penalty, see § 112.55

§ 112.44  WAIVER OF SPECIAL EVENT FEES.

   The Town Council, by a majority vote, in a regularly scheduled Town Council meeting may waive special event fees, including
business license fees and permit fees, for community-sponsored events. Community-sponsored events are town events or events that
are scheduled by non-profit organizations, open to town-wide citizen participation, that collect vendor fees as part of their special
event.

(Ord. 549-10, passed 1-3-2011)

PENALTIES

§ 112.55  VIOLATION OF CHAPTER.

   (A)   Any person found to be in violation of this chapter is guilty of a Class 3 misdemeanor. The conduct of any special event in
violation of this chapter shall constitute a separate violation for each and every day that such special event is conducted.

   (B)   Any duly authorized officer of the Florence Police Department, the Florence Code Enforcement Officer and the Florence
Town Prosecutor may cause complaints to be filed against persons violating any of the provisions of this chapter.

(Ord. 549-10, passed 1-3-2011)

§ 112.56  CONVICTION NOT TO EXCUSE NONPAYMENT OF FEE.

   The finding of responsibility for a civil violation or the conviction of any person for conducting a special event without a permit, as
required under this chapter, shall not excuse or exempt such person from the payment of any permit fee or penalty due and unpaid at
the time of such conviction.

(Ord. 549-10, passed 1-3-2011)

§ 112.57  PROHIBITED SPECIAL EVENT LOCATIONS.

   No person shall conduct a special event within the town in any structure or area where conducting such special event is prohibited
by the zoning code of the town or is otherwise prohibited by fire or building code regulations.

(Ord. 549-10, passed 1-3-2011)

§ 112.58  COURT ACTION.



   In any action brought under or arising out of any of the provisions of this chapter, the fact that the defendant is a person who
conducted a special event for which a special event permit is required by this chapter, or exhibited a sign, business card, or other
advertisement indicating such business, shall be prima facie evidence of the liability of such defendant to obtain a special event permit
and pay a permit fee under this chapter.

(Ord. 549-10, passed 1-3-2011)



 

 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
8b. 

MEETING DATE:  August 17, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Lisa Garcia, Interim Town Manager 
 
SUBJECT:    Ordinance No. 633-15  rescinding Ordinance 
No. 619-14 with regard to Magic Ranch Annexation Petition 
No. 2013-01; Providing for Severability; and Declaring an 
Emergency 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject: Ordinance No. 633-15  Meeting Date: August 17, 2015 
Page 1 of 2 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to approve Ordinance No. 633-15 of the Town of Florence, Pinal County, 
Arizona rescinding Ordinance No. 619-14 with regard to Magic Ranch Annexation 
Petition No. 2013-01; Providing for Severability; and Declaring an Emergency. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
On September 2, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence passed and 
adopted Ordinance No. 619-14 approving the annexation of the property described in 
the blank Town of Florence Annexation Petition for the “Magic Ranch Annexation,” 
Town of Florence Annexation No. 2013-01.  The Annexation Petition, including 895 
pages of attached signature sheets, regarding the Magic Ranch Annexation was filed 
with the Pinal County Recorder’s Office on September 5, 2014. 
 
Within the statutory 30-day challenge period following adoption of Ordinance 619-14, 
petitions were filed in Pinal County Superior Court challenging the validity of the Magic 
Ranch Annexation, which had been approved by Ordinance No. 619-14. 
 
If the Mayor and Council believe it to be in the best interest of the residents of the Town 
of Florence, as well as, the residents of the unincorporated area included in the Magic 
Ranch Annexation area, the Mayor and Council may rescind Ordinance No. 619-14. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
 
Not applicable. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   
 
There is no staff recommendation for this item. 



 

Subject: Ordinance No. 633-15  Meeting Date: August 17, 2015 
Page 2 of 2 

ATTACHMENTS:  
 
Ordinance No. 633-15 
 



Ordinance No. 633-15 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
RESCINDING ORDINANCE NO. 619-14 WITH REGARD TO MAGIC RANCH 
ANNEXATION PETITION NO. 2013-01; Providing for Severability; and 
Declaring an Emergency. 

 
WHEREAS, on September 2, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of 

Florence passed and adopted Town of Florence Ordinance No. 619-14 
approving the annexation of the property described in the blank Town of Florence 
Annexation Petition for the “Magic Ranch Annexation,” Town of Florence 
Annexation No. 2013-01; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to A.R.S. §9-471(A)(4), an Annexation Petition 

including 895 pages of attached signature sheets regarding the “Magic Ranch 
Annexation” was filed with the Pinal County Recorder’s Office under recording 
number 2014-051352 on September 5, 2014; and 
   

WHEREAS, within the statutory 30-day challenge period following 
adoption of Ordinance No. 619-14, petitions were filed in Pinal County Superior 
Court challenging the validity of the Magic Ranch Annexation, which had been 
approved by Ordinance No. 619-14; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Town Council of Florence believes it is in the best interest 

of the residents of the Town of Florence, as well as the residents of the 
unincorporated area included in the Magic Ranch Annexation area, to rescind 
Ordinance No. 619-14. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council of the 
Town of Florence, Arizona, as follows: 
 

Section 1. That the Magic Ranch final annexation ordinance, Ordinance 
No. 619-14, dated September 2, 2014 (with respect to the 
annexation of the property referenced in Recording Fee 
Number 2014-051352) in the official records of Pinal County is 
hereby rescinded, voided and declared to be of no further 
force or effect.  

 
Section 2.  The Mayor, the Town Manager, the Town Clerk and the 

Town's Attorneys are hereby authorized and directed to take 
all steps and to execute all documents necessary to carry out 
the purpose and intent of this Ordinance. 

 
Section 3.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion 

of this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid, 
unconstitutional, or unenforceable by a court of competent 
jurisdiction in a final non-appealable judgment, such portion 
shall be deemed a separate, distinct and an independent 



provision and such holding shall not affect the validity or 
enforceability of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 

 
Section 4.  That, inasmuch as it is necessity for the peace, health and 

safety of the Town of Florence, that this Ordinance be 
effective immediately upon its passage and approval 
according to A.R.S. §19-142 (B), this Ordinance is hereby 
declared to be an emergency measure and effective upon its 
passage and approval. 

 
Section 5. The Town Clerk is hereby directed to record a certified copy of 

this Ordinance with the Pinal County Recorder’s Office. 
  

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, 

Arizona, this ___ day of August 2015 by ayes and nays: 
 
AYES: ____________     ABSENT: _____________ 
 
NAYS: ____________      ABSTAINED: __________ 
 
 
 

         ___________________________ 
     Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
____________________   ___________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk   Clifford Mattice, Town Attorney  



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
8c. 

MEETING DATE:  August 17, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Lisa Garcia, Interim Town Manager 
 
SUBJECT:    Resolution No. 1535-15:   Rescinding Resolution 
No. 1431-14 with regard to the Pre-Annexation and 
Development Agreement with Seville Investments, LLC; John 
C. Thomson, and Robert C. Mister Providing for Severability; 
and Declaring an Emergency 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 
Subject: Resolution No. 1535-15  Meeting Date:   August 17, 2015 
Page 1 of 2 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to approve Resolution No. 1535-15 of the Town of Florence, Pinal County, 
Arizona rescinding Resolution No. 1431-14 with regard to the Pre-Annexation and 
Development Agreement with Seville Investments, LLC; John C. Thomson, and Robert 
C. Mister. Providing for Severability; and Declaring an Emergency. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
On September 2, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence passed and 
adopted Ordinance No. 619-14 approving the annexation of the property described in 
the blank Town of Florence Annexation Petition for the “Magic Ranch Annexation,” 
Town of Florence Annexation No. 2013-01. 
 
If the Mayor and Council rescind the Magic Ranch Annexation Ordinance, all Pre 
Annexation Development Agreements filed with the Pinal County Recorder must also be 
rescinded.   Adopting Resolution No. 1535-15 will rescind Resolution No. 1431-14 
adopted April 7, 2014, approving a Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement 
between the Town and Seville Investments LLC.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
 
Not applicable. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   
 
If the Town Council rescinds the Magic Ranch Annexation, staff recommends that 
Resolution No. 1535-15 be adopted thereby rescinding Resolution No. 1431-14. 
 



Subject: Resolution No. 1535-15  Meeting Date:   August 17, 2015 
Page 2 of 2 

ATTACHMENTS:  
 
Resolution No. 1535-15 



Resolution No. 1535-15 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 1431-14 WITH REGARD TO THE PRE-
ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH SEVILLE 
INVESTMENTS, LLC, JOHN C. THOMSON, AND ROBERT C. MISTER 
(“OWNER”); PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND DECLARING AN 
EMERGENCY. 

 
WHEREAS, on April 7, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of 

Florence passed and adopted Town of Florence Resolution No. 1431-14 (the 
“Resolution”) approving a Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement between 
the Town and Owner (the “PADA”), for the property described in the Resolution; 
and  

 
WHEREAS, the Resolution, including the attached PADA, was filed with 

the Pinal County Recorder’s Office under Fee Number 2014-020510 on April 9, 
2014; and 

 
WHEREAS, on September 2, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of 

Florence passed and adopted Town of Florence Ordinance No. 619-14 
approving the annexation of the property described in the blank Town of Florence 
Annexation Petition for the “Magic Ranch Annexation,” Town of Florence 
Annexation No. 2013-01; and 
   

WHEREAS, within the statutory 30-day challenge period following 
adoption of Ordinance No. 619-14, petitions were filed in Pinal County Superior 
Court challenging the validity of the Magic Ranch Annexation, which had been 
approved by Ordinance No. 619-14; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Town Council of Florence believes it is in the best interest 

of the residents of the Town of Florence, as well as the residents of the 
unincorporated area included in the Magic Ranch Annexation area, to rescind the 
Resolution along with the rescission of Town of Florence Ordinance No. 619-14. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the 
Town of Florence, Arizona, as follows: 
 

Section 1. Resolution No. 1431-14, dated April 7, 2014 (with respect to 
the Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement referenced 
in Fee Number 2014-020510) in the official records of Pinal 
County is hereby rescinded, voided and declared to be of no 
further force or effect.  

 
Section 2.  The Mayor, the Town Manager, the Town Clerk and the 

Town's Attorneys are hereby authorized and directed to take 
all steps and to execute all documents necessary to carry out 
the purpose and intent of this Resolution. 



 
Section 3.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion 

of this Resolution is for any reason held invalid, 
unconstitutional, or unenforceable by a court of competent 
jurisdiction in a final non-appealable judgment, such portion 
shall be deemed a separate, distinct and an independent 
provision and such holding shall not affect the validity or 
enforceability of the remaining portions of this Resolution. 

 
Section 4.  Inasmuch as it is necessary for the peace, health and safety of 

the Town of Florence  that this resolution be effective 
immediately upon its passage and approval according to 
A.R.S. §19-142 (B), this Resolution is hereby declared to be 
an emergency measure and effective upon its passage and 
approval. 

 
Section 5. The Town Clerk is hereby directed to record a certified copy of 

this Resolution with the Pinal County Recorder’s Office. 
  

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, 

Arizona, this ___ day of August 2015 by ayes and nays: 
 
AYES: ____________     ABSENT: _____________ 
 
NAYS: ____________      ABSTAINED: __________ 
 
 
 

         ___________________________ 
     Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
____________________   ___________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk   Clifford Mattice, Town Attorney  



 

 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
8d. 

MEETING DATE:  August 17, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Lisa Garcia, Interim Town Manager 
 
SUBJECT:    Resolution No. 1536-15  rescinding Resolution 
No. 1453-14 with regard to the Pre-Annexation and 
Development Agreement with Palms Magic Lake 80, LLC, 
Providing for Severability; and Declaring an Emergency 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject:  Resolution No. 1536-15  Meeting Date: August 17,  2015 
Page 1 of 2 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to approve Resolution No. 1536-15 of the Town of Florence, Pinal County, 
Arizona rescinding Resolution No. 1453-14 with regard to the Pre-Annexation and 
Development Agreement with Palms Magic Lake 80, LLC; Providing for Severability; 
and Declaring an Emergency. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
On September 2, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence passed and 
adopted Ordinance No. 619-14 approving the annexation of the property described in 
the blank Town of Florence Annexation Petition for the “Magic Ranch Annexation,” 
Town of Florence Annexation No. 2013-01. 
 
If the Mayor and Council rescind the Magic Ranch Annexation Ordinance, all Pre- 
Annexation Development Agreements filed with the Pinal County Recorder must also be 
rescinded. Adopting Resolution No. 1536-15 will rescind Resolution No. 1453-14 
adopted July 7, 2014, approving a Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement 
between the Town and Palms Magic Lake 80, LLC.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
 
None. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   
 
If the Town Council rescinds the Magic Ranch Annexation, staff recommends that 
Resolution No. 1536-15 be adopted thereby rescinding Resolution No. 1453-14. 
 
 
 



 

Subject:  Resolution No. 1536-15  Meeting Date: August 17,  2015 
Page 2 of 2 

ATTACHMENTS:  
 
Resolution No. 1536-15 



Resolution No. 1536-15 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 1453-14 WITH REGARD TO THE PRE-
ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH PALMS-MAGIC 
LAKE 80, LLC (“OWNER”); PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND 
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 

 
WHEREAS, on July 7, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of 

Florence passed and adopted Town of Florence Resolution No. 1453-14 (the 
“Resolution”) approving a Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement between 
the Town and Owner (the “PADA”), for the property described in the Resolution; 
and  

 
WHEREAS, the Resolution, including the attached PADA, was filed with 

the Pinal County Recorder’s Office under Fee Number 2014-040686 on July 14, 
2014; and 

 
WHEREAS, on September 2, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of 

Florence passed and adopted Town of Florence Ordinance No. 619-14 
approving the annexation of the property described in the blank Town of Florence 
Annexation Petition for the “Magic Ranch Annexation,” Town of Florence 
Annexation No. 2013-01; and 
   

WHEREAS, within the statutory 30-day challenge period following 
adoption of Ordinance No. 619-14, petitions were filed in Pinal County Superior 
Court challenging the validity of the Magic Ranch Annexation, which had been 
approved by Ordinance No. 619-14; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Town Council of Florence believes it is in the best interest 

of the residents of the Town of Florence, as well as the residents of the 
unincorporated area included in the Magic Ranch Annexation area, to rescind the 
Resolution along with the rescission of Town of Florence Ordinance No. 619-14. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the 
Town of Florence, Arizona, as follows: 
 

Section 1. Resolution No. 1453-14, dated July 7, 2014 (with respect to the 
Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement referenced in 
Fee Number 2014-040686) in the official records of Pinal 
County is hereby rescinded, voided and declared to be of no 
further force or effect.  

 
Section 2.  The Mayor, the Town Manager, the Town Clerk and the 

Town's Attorneys are hereby authorized and directed to take 
all steps and to execute all documents necessary to carry out 
the purpose and intent of this Resolution. 

 



Section 3.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion 
of this Resolution is for any reason held invalid, 
unconstitutional, or unenforceable by a court of competent 
jurisdiction in a final non-appealable judgment, such portion 
shall be deemed a separate, distinct and an independent 
provision and such holding shall not affect the validity or 
enforceability of the remaining portions of this Resolution. 

 
Section 4.  Inasmuch as it is necessary for the peace, health and safety of 

the Town of Florence  that this Resolution be effective 
immediately upon its passage and approval according to 
A.R.S. §19-142 (B), this Resolution is hereby declared to be 
an emergency measure and effective upon its passage and 
approval. 

 
Section 5. The Town Clerk is hereby directed to record a certified copy of 

this Resolution with the Pinal County Recorder’s Office. 
  

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, 

Arizona, this ___ day of August 2015 by ayes and nays: 
 
AYES: ____________     ABSENT: _____________ 
 
NAYS: ____________      ABSTAINED: __________ 
 
 
 

         ___________________________ 
     Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
____________________   ___________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk   Clifford Mattice, Town Attorney  



 

 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
8e. 

MEETING DATE:  August 17, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Lisa Garcia, Interim Town Manager 
 
SUBJECT:    Resolution No. 1537-15  rescinding Resolution 
No. 1454-14 with regard to the Pre-Annexation and 
Development Agreement with SFD Magic Ranch, LLC; 
Providing for Severability; and Declaring an Emergency 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject:  Resolution No. 1537-15  Meeting Date: August 17,  2015 
Page 1 of 2 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to approve Resolution No. 1537-15 of the Town of Florence, Pinal County, 
Arizona rescinding Resolution No. 1454-14 with regard to the Pre-Annexation and 
Development Agreement with SFD Magic Ranch, LLC; Providing for Severability; and 
Declaring an Emergency. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
On September 2, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence passed and 
adopted Ordinance No. 619-14 approving the annexation of the property described in 
the blank Town of Florence Annexation Petition for the “Magic Ranch Annexation,” 
Town of Florence Annexation No. 2013-01. 
 
If the Mayor and Council rescind the Magic Ranch Annexation Ordinance, all Pre-
Annexation Development Agreements filed with the Pinal County Recorder must also be 
rescinded. Adopting Resolution No. 1537-15 will rescind Resolution No. 1454-14 
adopted July 7, 2014, approving a Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement 
between the Town and SFD Magic Ranch, LLC.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
 
None  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   
 
If the Town Council rescinds the Magic Ranch Annexation, staff recommends that 
Resolution No. 1537-15 be adopted thereby rescinding Resolution No. 1454-14. 
 
 
 



 

Subject:  Resolution No. 1537-15  Meeting Date: August 17,  2015 
Page 2 of 2 

ATTACHMENTS:  
 
Resolution No. 1537-15 



Resolution No. 1537-15 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 1454-14 WITH REGARD TO THE PRE-
ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH SFD MAGIC 
RANCH, LLC (“OWNER”); PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND 
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 

 
WHEREAS, on July 7, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of 

Florence passed and adopted Town of Florence Resolution No. 1454-14 (the 
“Resolution”) approving a Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement between 
the Town and Owner (the “PADA”), for the property described in the Resolution; 
and  

 
WHEREAS, the Resolution, including the attached PADA, was filed with 

the Pinal County Recorder’s Office under Fee Number 2014-040677 on July 14, 
2014; and 

 
WHEREAS, on September 2, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of 

Florence passed and adopted Town of Florence Ordinance No. 619-14 
approving the annexation of the property described in the blank Town of Florence 
Annexation Petition for the “Magic Ranch Annexation,” Town of Florence 
Annexation No. 2013-01; and 
   

WHEREAS, within the statutory 30-day challenge period following 
adoption of Ordinance No. 619-14, petitions were filed in Pinal County Superior 
Court challenging the validity of the Magic Ranch Annexation, which had been 
approved by Ordinance No. 619-14; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Town Council of Florence believes it is in the best interest 

of the residents of the Town of Florence, as well as the residents of the 
unincorporated area included in the Magic Ranch Annexation area, to rescind the 
Resolution along with the rescission of Town of Florence Ordinance No. 619-14. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the 
Town of Florence, Arizona, as follows: 
 

Section 1. Resolution No. 1454-14, dated July 7, 2014 (with respect to the 
Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement referenced in 
Fee Number 2014-040677) in the official records of Pinal 
County is hereby rescinded, voided and declared to be of no 
further force or effect.  

 
Section 2.  The Mayor, the Town Manager, the Town Clerk and the 

Town's Attorneys are hereby authorized and directed to take 
all steps and to execute all documents necessary to carry out 
the purpose and intent of this Resolution. 

 



Section 3.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion 
of this Resolution is for any reason held invalid, 
unconstitutional, or unenforceable by a court of competent 
jurisdiction in a final non-appealable judgment, such portion 
shall be deemed a separate, distinct and an independent 
provision and such holding shall not affect the validity or 
enforceability of the remaining portions of this Resolution. 

 
Section 4.  Inasmuch as it is necessary for the peace, health and safety of 

the Town of Florence  that this Resolution be effective 
immediately upon its passage and approval according to 
A.R.S. §19-142 (B), this Resolution is hereby declared to be 
an emergency measure and effective upon its passage and 
approval. 

 
Section 5. The Town Clerk is hereby directed to record a certified copy of 

this Resolution with the Pinal County Recorder’s Office. 
  

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, 

Arizona, this ___ day of August 2015 by ayes and nays: 
 
AYES: ____________     ABSENT: _____________ 
 
NAYS: ____________      ABSTAINED: __________ 
 
 
 

         ___________________________ 
     Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
____________________   ___________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk   Clifford Mattice, Town Attorney  



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
8f. 

MEETING DATE:  August 17, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Lisa Garcia, Interim Town Manager 
 
SUBJECT:    Resolution No. 1538-15  rescinding Resolution 
No. 1458-14 with regard to the Pre-Annexation and 
Development Agreement with Gem Land & Cattle, LLC and 
Empire West Title Agency, LLC; Providing for Severability; 
and Declaring an Emergency 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject:  Resolution No. 1538-15  Meeting Date: August 17,  2015 
Page 1 of 2 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to approve Resolution No. 1538-15 of the Town of Florence, Pinal County, 
Arizona rescinding Resolution No. 1458-14 with regard to the Pre-Annexation and 
Development Agreement with Gem Land & Cattle, LLC and Empire West Title Agency, 
LLC; Providing for Severability; and Declaring an Emergency. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
On September 2, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence passed and 
adopted Ordinance No. 619-14 approving the annexation of the property described in 
the blank Town of Florence Annexation Petition for the “Magic Ranch Annexation,” 
Town of Florence Annexation No. 2013-01. 
 
If the Mayor and Council rescind the Magic Ranch Annexation Ordinance, all Pre 
Annexation Development Agreements filed with the Pinal County Recorder must also be 
rescinded. Adopting Resolution No. 1538-15 will rescind Resolution No. 1468-14 
adopted July 7, 2014, approving a Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement 
between the Town and Gem Land & Cattle, LLC and Empire West Title Agency, LLC.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
 
None. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   
 
If the Town Council rescinds the Magic Ranch Annexation, staff recommends that 
Resolution No. 1538-15 be adopted thereby rescinding Resolution No. 1458-14. 
 
 
 



Subject:  Resolution No. 1538-15  Meeting Date: August 17,  2015 
Page 2 of 2 

ATTACHMENTS:  
 
Resolution No. 1538-15 



Resolution No. 1538-15 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 1458-14 WITH REGARD TO THE PRE-
ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH GEM LAND & 
CATTLE, LLC AND EMPIRE WEST TITLE AGENCY LLC (“OWNERS”); 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 

 
WHEREAS, on July 7, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of 

Florence passed and adopted Town of Florence Resolution No. 1458-14 (the 
“Resolution”) approving a Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement between 
the Town and Owners (the “PADA”), for the property described in the Resolution; 
and  

 
WHEREAS, the Resolution, including the attached PADA, was filed with 

the Pinal County Recorder’s Office under Fee Number 2014-040678 on July 14, 
2014; and 

 
WHEREAS, on September 2, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of 

Florence passed and adopted Town of Florence Ordinance No. 619-14 
approving the annexation of the property described in the blank Town of Florence 
Annexation Petition for the “Magic Ranch Annexation,” Town of Florence 
Annexation No. 2013-01; and 
   

WHEREAS, within the statutory 30-day challenge period following 
adoption of Ordinance No. 619-14, petitions were filed in Pinal County Superior 
Court challenging the validity of the Magic Ranch Annexation, which had been 
approved by Ordinance No. 619-14; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Town Council of Florence believes it is in the best interest 

of the residents of the Town of Florence, as well as the residents of the 
unincorporated area included in the Magic Ranch Annexation area, to rescind the 
Resolution along with the rescission of Town of Florence Ordinance No. 619-14. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the 
Town of Florence, Arizona, as follows: 
 

Section 1. Resolution No. 1458-14, dated July 7, 2014 (with respect to the 
Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement referenced in 
Fee Number 2014-040678) in the official records of Pinal 
County is hereby rescinded, voided and declared to be of no 
further force or effect.  

 
Section 2.  The Mayor, the Town Manager, the Town Clerk and the 

Town's Attorneys are hereby authorized and directed to take 
all steps and to execute all documents necessary to carry out 
the purpose and intent of this Resolution. 

 



Section 3.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion 
of this Resolution is for any reason held invalid, 
unconstitutional, or unenforceable by a court of competent 
jurisdiction in a final non-appealable judgment, such portion 
shall be deemed a separate, distinct and an independent 
provision and such holding shall not affect the validity or 
enforceability of the remaining portions of this Resolution. 

 
Section 4.  Inasmuch as it is necessary for the peace, health and safety of 

the Town of Florence  that this Resolution be effective 
immediately upon its passage and approval according to 
A.R.S. §19-142 (B), this Resolution is hereby declared to be 
an emergency measure and effective upon its passage and 
approval. 

 
Section 5. The Town Clerk is hereby directed to record a certified copy of 

this Resolution with the Pinal County Recorder’s Office. 
  

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, 

Arizona, this ___ day of August 2015 by ayes and nays: 
 
AYES: ____________     ABSENT: _____________ 
 
NAYS: ____________      ABSTAINED: __________ 
 
 
 

         ___________________________ 
     Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
____________________   ___________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk   Clifford Mattice, Town Attorney  



 

 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
8g. 

MEETING DATE:  August 17, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Lisa Garcia, Interim Town Manager 
 
SUBJECT:    Resolution No. 1539-15  rescinding Resolution 
No. 1459-14 with regard to the Pre-Annexation and 
Development Agreement with RMG Arizona Properties 
Holding XVII, LLC; Providing for Severability; and Declaring 
an Emergency 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject:  Resolution No. 1539-15  Meeting Date: August 17,  2015 
Page 1 of 2 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to approve Resolution No. 1539-15 of the Town of Florence, Pinal County, 
Arizona rescinding Resolution No. 1459-14 with regard to the Pre-Annexation and 
Development Agreement with RMG Arizona Properties Holding XVII, LLC; Providing for 
Severability; and Declaring an Emergency. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
On September 2, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence passed and 
adopted Ordinance No. 619-14 approving the annexation of the property described in 
the blank Town of Florence Annexation Petition for the “Magic Ranch Annexation,” 
Town of Florence Annexation No. 2013-01. 
 
If the Mayor and Council rescind the Magic Ranch Annexation Ordinance, all Pre-
Annexation Development Agreements filed with the Pinal County Recorder must also be 
rescinded.   Adopting Resolution No. 1539-15 will rescind Resolution No. 1459-14 
adopted July 7, 2014, approving a Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement 
between the Town and RMG Arizona Properties Holding XVII, LLC.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
 
None 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   
 
If the Town Council rescinds the Magic Ranch Annexation, staff recommends that 
Resolution No. 1539-15 be adopted thereby rescinding Resolution No. 1459-14. 
 
 



 

Subject:  Resolution No. 1539-15  Meeting Date: August 17,  2015 
Page 2 of 2 

ATTACHMENTS:  
 
Resolution No. 1539-15 



Resolution No. 1539-15  
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 1459-14 WITH REGARD TO THE PRE-
ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH RMG ARIZONA 
PROPERTIES HOLDING XVII, LLC, (“OWNER”); PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 

 
WHEREAS, on July 7, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of 

Florence passed and adopted Town of Florence Resolution No. 1459-14 (the 
“Resolution”) approving a Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement between 
the Town and Owner (the “PADA”), for the property described in the Resolution; 
and  

 
WHEREAS, the Resolution, including the attached PADA, was filed with 

the Pinal County Recorder’s Office under Fee Number 2014-040679 on July 14, 
2014; and 

 
WHEREAS, on September 2, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of 

Florence passed and adopted Town of Florence Ordinance No. 619-14 
approving the annexation of the property described in the blank Town of Florence 
Annexation Petition for the “Magic Ranch Annexation,” Town of Florence 
Annexation No. 2013-01; and 
   

WHEREAS, within the statutory 30-day challenge period following 
adoption of Ordinance No. 619-14, petitions were filed in Pinal County Superior 
Court challenging the validity of the Magic Ranch Annexation, which had been 
approved by Ordinance No. 619-14; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Town Council of Florence believes it is in the best interest 

of the residents of the Town of Florence, as well as the residents of the 
unincorporated area included in the Magic Ranch Annexation area, to rescind the 
Resolution along with the rescission of Town of Florence Ordinance No. 619-14. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the 
Town of Florence, Arizona, as follows: 
 

Section 1. Resolution No. 1459-14, dated July 7, 2014 (with respect to the 
Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement referenced in 
Fee Number 2014-040679) in the official records of Pinal 
County is hereby rescinded, voided and declared to be of no 
further force or effect.  

 
Section 2.  The Mayor, the Town Manager, the Town Clerk and the 

Town's Attorneys are hereby authorized and directed to take 
all steps and to execute all documents necessary to carry out 
the purpose and intent of this Resolution. 

 



Section 3.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion 
of this Resolution is for any reason held invalid, 
unconstitutional, or unenforceable by a court of competent 
jurisdiction in a final non-appealable judgment, such portion 
shall be deemed a separate, distinct and an independent 
provision and such holding shall not affect the validity or 
enforceability of the remaining portions of this Resolution. 

 
Section 4.  Inasmuch as it is necessary for the peace, health and safety of 

the Town of Florence  that this Resolution be effective 
immediately upon its passage and approval according to 
A.R.S. §19-142 (B), this Resolution is hereby declared to be 
an emergency measure and effective upon its passage and 
approval. 

 
Section 5. The Town Clerk is hereby directed to record a certified copy of 

this Resolution with the Pinal County Recorder’s Office. 
  

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, 

Arizona, this ___ day of August 2015 by ayes and nays: 
 
AYES: ____________     ABSENT: _____________ 
 
NAYS: ____________      ABSTAINED: __________ 
 
 
 

         ___________________________ 
     Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
____________________   ___________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk   Clifford Mattice, Town Attorney  



 

 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
8h. 

MEETING DATE:  August 17, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Lisa Garcia, Interim Town Manager 
 
SUBJECT:    Resolution No. 1540-15  rescinding Resolution 
No. 1460-14 with regard to the Pre-Annexation and 
Development Agreement with RMG Residential 2010, LLLP; 
Providing for Severability; and Declaring an Emergency 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
Subject:  Resolution No. 1547-15  Meeting Date: August 17,  2015 
Page 1 of 2 

 
Motion to approve Resolution No. 1540-15 of the Town of Florence, Pinal County, 
Arizona rescinding Resolution No. 1460-14 with regard to the Pre-Annexation and 
Development Agreement with RMG Residential 2010, LLLP; Providing for Severability; 
and Declaring an Emergency. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
On September 2, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence passed and 
adopted Ordinance No. 619-14 approving the annexation of the property described in 
the blank Town of Florence Annexation Petition for the “Magic Ranch Annexation,” 
Town of Florence Annexation No. 2013-01. 
 
If the Mayor and Council rescind the Magic Ranch Annexation Ordinance, all Pre-
Annexation Development Agreements filed with the Pinal County Recorder must also be 
rescinded.   Adopting Resolution No. 1540-15 will rescind Resolution No. 1460-14 
adopted July 7, 2014, approving a Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement 
between the Town and RMG Residential 2010, LLLP.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
 
None 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   
 
If the Town Council rescinds the Magic Ranch Annexation, staff recommends that 
Resolution No. 1540-15 be adopted thereby rescinding Resolution No. 1460-14. 
 
 
 



 

Subject:  Resolution No. 1547-15  Meeting Date: August 17,  2015 
Page 2 of 2 

ATTACHMENTS:  
 
Resolution No. 1540-15 



Resolution No. 1540-15 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 1460-14 WITH REGARD TO THE PRE-
ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH RMG 
RESIDENTIAL 2010, LLLP (“OWNER”); PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 
AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 

 
WHEREAS, on July 7, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of 

Florence passed and adopted Town of Florence Resolution No. 1460-14 (the 
“Resolution”) approving a Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement between 
the Town and Owner (the “PADA”), for the property described in the Resolution; 
and  

 
WHEREAS, the Resolution, including the attached PADA, was filed with 

the Pinal County Recorder’s Office under Fee Number 2014-040680 on July 14, 
2014; and 

 
WHEREAS, on September 2, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of 

Florence passed and adopted Town of Florence Ordinance No. 619-14 
approving the annexation of the property described in the blank Town of Florence 
Annexation Petition for the “Magic Ranch Annexation,” Town of Florence 
Annexation No. 2013-01; and 
   

WHEREAS, within the statutory 30-day challenge period following 
adoption of Ordinance No. 619-14, petitions were filed in Pinal County Superior 
Court challenging the validity of the Magic Ranch Annexation, which had been 
approved by Ordinance No. 619-14; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Town Council of Florence believes it is in the best interest 

of the residents of the Town of Florence, as well as the residents of the 
unincorporated area included in the Magic Ranch Annexation area, to rescind the 
Resolution along with the rescission of Town of Florence Ordinance No. 619-14. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the 
Town of Florence, Arizona, as follows: 
 

Section 1. Resolution No. 1460-14, dated July 7, 2014 (with respect to the 
Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement referenced in 
Fee Number 2014-040680) in the official records of Pinal 
County is hereby rescinded, voided and declared to be of no 
further force or effect.  

 
Section 2.  The Mayor, the Town Manager, the Town Clerk and the 

Town's Attorneys are hereby authorized and directed to take 
all steps and to execute all documents necessary to carry out 
the purpose and intent of this Resolution. 

 



Section 3.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion 
of this Resolution is for any reason held invalid, 
unconstitutional, or unenforceable by a court of competent 
jurisdiction in a final non-appealable judgment, such portion 
shall be deemed a separate, distinct and an independent 
provision and such holding shall not affect the validity or 
enforceability of the remaining portions of this Resolution. 

 
Section 4.  Inasmuch as it is necessary for the peace, health and safety of 

the Town of Florence  that this Resolution be effective 
immediately upon its passage and approval according to 
A.R.S. §19-142 (B), this Resolution is hereby declared to be 
an emergency measure and effective upon its passage and 
approval. 

 
Section 5. The Town Clerk is hereby directed to record a certified copy of 

this Resolution with the Pinal County Recorder’s Office. 
  

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, 

Arizona, this ___ day of August 2015 by ayes and nays: 
 
AYES: ____________     ABSENT: _____________ 
 
NAYS: ____________      ABSTAINED: __________ 
 
 
 

         ___________________________ 
     Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
____________________   ___________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk   Clifford Mattice, Town Attorney  



 

 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
8i.  

MEETING DATE:  August 17, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Lisa Garcia, Interim Town Manager 
 
SUBJECT:    Resolution No. 1541-15  rescinding Resolution 
No. 1463-14 with regard to the Pre-Annexation and 
Development Agreement with RMG Lucky Hunt 65, LLC; 
Providing for Severability; and Declaring an Emergency 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject:  Resolution No. 1541-15  Meeting Date: August 17,  2015 
Page 1 of 2 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to approve Resolution No. 1541-15. of the Town of Florence, Pinal County, 
Arizona rescinding Resolution No. 1463-14 with regard to the Pre-Annexation and 
Development Agreement with RMG Lucky Hunt 65, LLC; Providing for Severability; and 
Declaring an Emergency. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
On September 2, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence passed and 
adopted Ordinance No. 619-14 approving the annexation of the property described in 
the blank Town of Florence Annexation Petition for the “Magic Ranch Annexation,” 
Town of Florence Annexation No. 2013-01. 
 
If the Mayor and Council rescind the Magic Ranch Annexation Ordinance, all Pre 
Annexation Development Agreements filed with the Pinal County Recorder must also be 
rescinded.   Adopting Resolution No. 1541-15 will rescind Resolution No. 1463-14 
adopted July 21, 2014, approving a Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement 
between the Town and RMG Lucky Hunt 65, LLC.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
 
None. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   
 
If the Town Council rescinds the Magic Ranch Annexation, staff recommends that 
Resolution No. 1541-15 be adopted thereby rescinding Resolution No. 1463-14. 
 
 
 



 

Subject:  Resolution No. 1541-15  Meeting Date: August 17,  2015 
Page 2 of 2 

ATTACHMENTS:  
 
Resolution No. 1541-15 



Resolution No. 1541-15 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 1463-14 WITH REGARD TO THE PRE-
ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH RMG LUCKY HUNT 
65, LLC, (“OWNER”); PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND DECLARING 
AN EMERGENCY. 

 
WHEREAS, on July 21, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of 

Florence passed and adopted Town of Florence Resolution No. 1463-14 (the 
“Resolution”) approving a Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement between 
the Town and Owner (the “PADA”), for the property described in the Resolution; 
and  

 
WHEREAS, the Resolution, including the attached PADA, was filed with 

the Pinal County Recorder’s Office under Fee Number 2014-042564 on July 23, 
2014; and 

 
WHEREAS, on September 2, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of 

Florence passed and adopted Town of Florence Ordinance No. 619-14 
approving the annexation of the property described in the blank Town of Florence 
Annexation Petition for the “Magic Ranch Annexation,” Town of Florence 
Annexation No. 2013-01; and 
   

WHEREAS, within the statutory 30-day challenge period following 
adoption of Ordinance No. 619-14, petitions were filed in Pinal County Superior 
Court challenging the validity of the Magic Ranch Annexation, which had been 
approved by Ordinance No. 619-14; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Town Council of Florence believes it is in the best interest 

of the residents of the Town of Florence, as well as the residents of the 
unincorporated area included in the Magic Ranch Annexation area, to rescind the 
Resolution along with the rescission of Town of Florence Ordinance No. 619-14. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the 
Town of Florence, Arizona, as follows: 
 

Section 1. Resolution No. 1463-14, dated July 21, 2014 (with respect to 
the Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement referenced 
in Fee Number 2014-042564) in the official records of Pinal 
County is hereby rescinded, voided and declared to be of no 
further force or effect.  

 
Section 2.  The Mayor, the Town Manager, the Town Clerk and the 

Town's Attorneys are hereby authorized and directed to take 
all steps and to execute all documents necessary to carry out 
the purpose and intent of this Resolution. 

 



Section 3.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion 
of this Resolution is for any reason held invalid, 
unconstitutional, or unenforceable by a court of competent 
jurisdiction in a final non-appealable judgment, such portion 
shall be deemed a separate, distinct and an independent 
provision and such holding shall not affect the validity or 
enforceability of the remaining portions of this Resolution. 

 
Section 4.  That, inasmuch as it is necessary for the peace, health and 

safety of the Town of Florence, that this Resolution be 
effective immediately upon its passage and approval 
according to A.R.S. §19-142 (B), this Resolution is hereby 
declared to be an emergency measure and effective upon its 
passage and approval. 

 
Section 5. The Town Clerk is hereby directed to record a certified copy of 

this Resolution with the Pinal County Recorder’s Office. 
  

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, 

Arizona, this ___ day of August 2015 by ayes and nays: 
 
AYES: ____________     ABSENT: _____________ 
 
NAYS: ____________      ABSTAINED: __________ 
 
 
 

         ___________________________ 
     Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
____________________   ___________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk   Clifford Mattice, Town Attorney  



 

 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
8j. 

MEETING DATE:  August 17, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Lisa Garcia, Interim Town Manager 
 
SUBJECT:    Resolution No. 1542-15  rescinding Resolution 
No. 1464-14 with regard to the Pre-Annexation and 
Development Agreement with Magic Lake 80, LLC; Providing 
for Severability; and Declaring an Emergency 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject:  Resolution No. 1542-15  Meeting Date: August 17,  2015 
Page 1 of 2 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to approve Resolution No. 1542-15. of the Town of Florence, Pinal County, 
Arizona rescinding Resolution No. 1464-14 with regard to the Pre-Annexation and 
Development Agreement with Magic Lake 80, LLC; Providing for Severability; and 
Declaring an Emergency. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
On September 2, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence passed and 
adopted Ordinance No. 619-14 approving the annexation of the property described in 
the blank Town of Florence Annexation Petition for the “Magic Ranch Annexation,” 
Town of Florence Annexation No. 2013-01. 
 
If the Mayor and Council rescind the Magic Ranch Annexation Ordinance, all Pre 
Annexation Development Agreements filed with the Pinal County Recorder must also be 
rescinded.   Adopting Resolution No. 1542-15 will rescind Resolution No. 1464-14 
adopted July 21, 2014, approving a Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement 
between the Town and Magic Lake 80, LLC.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
 
None. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   
 
If the Town Council rescinds the Magic Ranch Annexation, staff recommends that 
Resolution No. 1542-15 be adopted thereby rescinding Resolution No. 1464-14. 
 
 
 



 

Subject:  Resolution No. 1542-15  Meeting Date: August 17,  2015 
Page 2 of 2 

ATTACHMENTS:  
 
Resolution No. 1542-15 



Resolution No. 1542-15 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 1464-14 WITH REGARD TO THE PRE-
ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH MAGIC LAKE 80, 
LLC, (“OWNER”); PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND DECLARING AN 
EMERGENCY. 

 
WHEREAS, on July 21, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of 

Florence passed and adopted Town of Florence Resolution No. 1464-14 (the 
“Resolution”) approving a Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement between 
the Town and Owner (the “PADA”), for the property described in the Resolution; 
and  

 
WHEREAS, the Resolution, including the attached PADA, was filed with 

the Pinal County Recorder’s Office under Fee Number 2014-042563 on July 23, 
2014; and 

 
WHEREAS, on September 2, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of 

Florence passed and adopted Town of Florence Ordinance No. 619-14 
approving the annexation of the property described in the blank Town of Florence 
Annexation Petition for the “Magic Ranch Annexation,” Town of Florence 
Annexation No. 2013-01; and 
   

WHEREAS, within the statutory 30-day challenge period following 
adoption of Ordinance No. 619-14, petitions were filed in Pinal County Superior 
Court challenging the validity of the Magic Ranch Annexation, which had been 
approved by Ordinance No. 619-14; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Town Council of Florence believes it is in the best interest 

of the residents of the Town of Florence, as well as the residents of the 
unincorporated area included in the Magic Ranch Annexation area, to rescind the 
Resolution along with the rescission of Town of Florence Ordinance No. 619-14. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the 
Town of Florence, Arizona, as follows: 
 

Section 1. Resolution No. 1464-14, dated July 21, 2014 (with respect to 
the Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement referenced 
in Fee Number 2014-042563) in the official records of Pinal 
County is hereby rescinded, voided and declared to be of no 
further force or effect.  

 
Section 2.  The Mayor, the Town Manager, the Town Clerk and the 

Town's Attorneys are hereby authorized and directed to take 
all steps and to execute all documents necessary to carry out 
the purpose and intent of this Resolution. 

 



Section 3.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion 
of this Resolution is for any reason held invalid, 
unconstitutional, or unenforceable by a court of competent 
jurisdiction in a final non-appealable judgment, such portion 
shall be deemed a separate, distinct and an independent 
provision and such holding shall not affect the validity or 
enforceability of the remaining portions of this Resolution. 

 
Section 4.  That, inasmuch as it is necessary for the peace, health and 

safety of the Town of Florence, that this Resolution  be 
effective immediately upon its passage and approval 
according to A.R.S. §19-142 (B), this Resolution is hereby 
declared to be an emergency measure and effective upon its 
passage and approval. 

 
Section 5. The Town Clerk is hereby directed to record a certified copy of 

this Resolution with the Pinal County Recorder’s Office. 
  

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, 

Arizona, this ___ day of August 2015 by ayes and nays: 
 
AYES: ____________     ABSENT: _____________ 
 
NAYS: ____________      ABSTAINED: __________ 
 
 
 

         ___________________________ 
     Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
____________________   ___________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk   Clifford Mattice, Town Attorney  



 

 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
8k. 

MEETING DATE:  August 17, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Lisa Garcia, Interim Town Manager 
 
SUBJECT:    Resolution No. 1543-15  rescinding Resolution 
No. 1465-14 with regard to the Pre-Annexation and 
Development Agreement with Barclay Holdings XLIII, LLC; 
Providing for Severability; and Declaring an Emergency 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject:  Resolution No. 1549-15  Meeting Date: August 17,  2015 
Page 1 of 2 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to approve Resolution No. 1543-15 of the Town of Florence, Pinal County, 
Arizona rescinding Resolution No. 1465-14 with regard to the Pre-Annexation and 
Development Agreement with Barclay Holdings XLIII, LLC; Providing for Severability; 
and Declaring an Emergency. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
On September 2, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence passed and 
adopted Ordinance No. 619-14 approving the annexation of the property described in 
the blank Town of Florence Annexation Petition for the “Magic Ranch Annexation,” 
Town of Florence Annexation No. 2013-01. 
 
If the Mayor and Council rescind the Magic Ranch Annexation Ordinance, all Pre-
Annexation Development Agreements filed with the Pinal County Recorder must also be 
rescinded.   Adopting Resolution No. 1543-15 will rescind Resolution No. 1465-14 
adopted August 4, 2014, approving a Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement 
between the Town and Barclay Holdings XLIII, LLC. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
 
None 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   
 
If the Town Council rescinds the Magic Ranch Annexation, staff recommends that 
Resolution No. 1543-15 be adopted thereby rescinding Resolution No. 1465-14. 
 
 
 



 

Subject:  Resolution No. 1549-15  Meeting Date: August 17,  2015 
Page 2 of 2 

ATTACHMENTS:  
 
Resolution No. 1543-15 



Resolution No. 1543-15 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 1465-14 WITH REGARD TO THE PRE-
ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH BARCLAY 
HOLDINGS XLIII, LLC, (“OWNER”); PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND 
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 

 
WHEREAS, on August 4, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of 

Florence passed and adopted Town of Florence Resolution No. 1465-14 (the 
“Resolution”) approving a Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement between 
the Town and Owner (the “PADA”), for the property described in the Resolution; 
and  

 
WHEREAS, the Resolution, including the attached PADA, was filed with 

the Pinal County Recorder’s Office under Fee Number 2014-045603 on August 
7, 2014; and 

 
WHEREAS, on September 2, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of 

Florence passed and adopted Town of Florence Ordinance No. 619-14 
approving the annexation of the property described in the blank Town of Florence 
Annexation Petition for the “Magic Ranch Annexation,” Town of Florence 
Annexation No. 2013-01; and 
   

WHEREAS, within the statutory 30-day challenge period following 
adoption of Ordinance No. 619-14, petitions were filed in Pinal County Superior 
Court challenging the validity of the Magic Ranch Annexation, which had been 
approved by Ordinance No. 619-14; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Town Council of Florence believes it is in the best interest 

of the residents of the Town of Florence, as well as the residents of the 
unincorporated area included in the Magic Ranch Annexation area, to rescind the 
Resolution along with the rescission of Town of Florence Ordinance No. 619-14. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the 
Town of Florence, Arizona, as follows: 
 

Section 1. Resolution No. 1465-14, dated August 4, 2014 (with respect to 
the Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement referenced 
in Fee Number 2014-045603) in the official records of Pinal 
County is hereby rescinded, voided and declared to be of no 
further force or effect.  

 
Section 2.  The Mayor, the Town Manager, the Town Clerk and the 

Town's Attorneys are hereby authorized and directed to take 
all steps and to execute all documents necessary to carry out 
the purpose and intent of this Resolution. 

 



Section 3.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion 
of this Resolution is for any reason held invalid, 
unconstitutional, or unenforceable by a court of competent 
jurisdiction in a final non-appealable judgment, such portion 
shall be deemed a separate, distinct and an independent 
provision and such holding shall not affect the validity or 
enforceability of the remaining portions of this Resolution. 

 
Section 4.  That, inasmuch as it is necessary for the peace, health and 

safety of the Town of Florence, that this Resolution be 
effective immediately upon its passage and approval 
according to A.R.S. §19-142 (B), this Resolution is hereby 
declared to be an emergency measure and effective upon its 
passage and approval. 

 
Section 5. The Town Clerk is hereby directed to record a certified copy of 

this Resolution with the Pinal County Recorder’s Office. 
  

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, 

Arizona, this ___ day of August 2015 by ayes and nays: 
 
AYES: ____________     ABSENT: _____________ 
 
NAYS: ____________      ABSTAINED: __________ 
 
 
 

         ___________________________ 
     Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
____________________   ___________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk   Clifford Mattice, Town Attorney  



 

 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
8l. 

MEETING DATE:  August 17, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Lisa Garcia, Interim Town Manager 
 
SUBJECT:    Resolution No. 1544-15  rescinding Resolution 
No. 1466-14 with regard to the Pre-Annexation and 
Development Agreement with CHI Construction Company; 
Providing for Severability; and Declaring an Emergency 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
Subject:  Resolution No. 1544-15  Meeting Date: August 17,  2015 
Page 1 of 2 

 
Motion to approve Resolution No. 1544-15 of the Town of Florence, Pinal County, 
Arizona rescinding Resolution No. 1466-14 with regard to the Pre-Annexation and 
Development Agreement with CHI Construction Company; Providing for Severability; 
and Declaring an Emergency. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
On September 2, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence passed and 
adopted Ordinance No. 619-14 approving the annexation of the property described in 
the blank Town of Florence Annexation Petition for the “Magic Ranch Annexation,” 
Town of Florence Annexation No. 2013-01. 
 
If the Mayor and Council rescind the Magic Ranch Annexation Ordinance, all Pre- 
Annexation Development Agreements filed with the Pinal County Recorder must also be 
rescinded.   Adopting Resolution No. 1544-15 will rescind Resolution No. 1466-14 
adopted August 4, 2014, approving a Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement 
between the Town and CHI Construction Company.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
 
None. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   
 
If the Town Council rescinds the Magic Ranch Annexation, staff recommends that 
Resolution No. 1544-15 be adopted thereby rescinding Resolution No. 1466-14. 
 
 
 



 

Subject:  Resolution No. 1544-15  Meeting Date: August 17,  2015 
Page 2 of 2 

ATTACHMENTS:  
 
Resolution No. 1544-15 



Resolution No.  1544-15 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 1466-14 WITH REGARD TO THE PRE-
ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH CHI 
CONSTRUCTION COMPANY (“OWNER”); PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 
AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 

 
WHEREAS, on August 4, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of 

Florence passed and adopted Town of Florence Resolution No. 1466-14 (the 
“Resolution”) approving a Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement between 
the Town and Owner (the “PADA”), for the property described in the Resolution; 
and  

 
WHEREAS, the Resolution, including the attached PADA, was filed with 

the Pinal County Recorder’s Office under Fee Number 2014-045593 on August 
7, 2014; and 

 
WHEREAS, on September 2, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of 

Florence passed and adopted Town of Florence Ordinance No. 619-14 
approving the annexation of the property described in the blank Town of Florence 
Annexation Petition for the “Magic Ranch Annexation,” Town of Florence 
Annexation No. 2013-01; and 
   

WHEREAS, within the statutory 30-day challenge period following 
adoption of Ordinance No. 619-14, petitions were filed in Pinal County Superior 
Court challenging the validity of the Magic Ranch Annexation, which had been 
approved by Ordinance No. 619-14; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Town Council of Florence believes it is in the best interest 

of the residents of the Town of Florence, as well as the residents of the 
unincorporated area included in the Magic Ranch Annexation area, to rescind the 
Resolution along with the rescission of Town of Florence Ordinance No. 619-14. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the 
Town of Florence, Arizona, as follows: 
 

Section 1. Resolution No. 1466-14, dated August 4, 2014 (with respect to 
the Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement referenced 
in Fee Number 2014-045593) in the official records of Pinal 
County is hereby rescinded, voided and declared to be of no 
further force or effect.  

 
Section 2.  The Mayor, the Town Manager, the Town Clerk and the 

Town's Attorneys are hereby authorized and directed to take 
all steps and to execute all documents necessary to carry out 
the purpose and intent of this Resolution. 

 



Section 3.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion 
of this Resolution is for any reason held invalid, 
unconstitutional, or unenforceable by a court of competent 
jurisdiction in a final non-appealable judgment, such portion 
shall be deemed a separate, distinct and an independent 
provision and such holding shall not affect the validity or 
enforceability of the remaining portions of this Resolution. 

 
Section 4.  That, inasmuch as it is necessary for the peace, health and 

safety of the Town of Florence, that this Resolution be 
effective immediately upon its passage and approval 
according to A.R.S. §19-142 (B), this Resolution is hereby 
declared to be an emergency measure and effective upon its 
passage and approval. 

 
Section 5. The Town Clerk is hereby directed to record a certified copy of 

this Resolution with the Pinal County Recorder’s Office. 
  

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, 

Arizona, this ___ day of August 2015 by ayes and nays: 
 
AYES: ____________     ABSENT: _____________ 
 
NAYS: ____________      ABSTAINED: __________ 
 
 
 

         ___________________________ 
     Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
____________________   ___________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk   Clifford Mattice, Town Attorney  



 

 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
8m. 

MEETING DATE:  August 17, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Lisa Garcia, Interim Town Manager 
 
SUBJECT:    Resolution No. 1545-15  rescinding Resolution 
No. 1467-14 with regard to the Pre-Annexation and 
Development Agreement with D.R. Horton, Inc.; Providing for 
Severability; and Declaring an Emergency 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
Subject:  Resolution No. 1537-15  Meeting Date: August 17,  2015 
Page 1 of 2 

 
Motion to approve Resolution No. 1545-15 of the Town of Florence, Pinal County, 
Arizona rescinding Resolution No. 1467-14 with regard to the Pre-Annexation and 
Development Agreement with D.R. Horton, Inc.; Providing for Severability; and 
Declaring an Emergency. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
On September 2, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence passed and 
adopted Ordinance No. 619-14 approving the annexation of the property described in 
the blank Town of Florence Annexation Petition for the “Magic Ranch Annexation,” 
Town of Florence Annexation No. 2013-01. 
 
If the Mayor and Council rescind the Magic Ranch Annexation Ordinance, all Pre-
Annexation Development Agreements filed with the Pinal County Recorder must also be 
rescinded. Adopting Resolution No. 1545-15 will rescind Resolution No. 1467-14 
adopted August 4, 2014, approving a Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement 
between the Town and D.R. Horton, Inc..  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
 
None  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   
 
If the Town Council rescinds the Magic Ranch Annexation, staff recommends that 
Resolution No. 1545-15 be adopted thereby rescinding Resolution No. 1467-14. 
 
 
 



 

Subject:  Resolution No. 1537-15  Meeting Date: August 17,  2015 
Page 2 of 2 

ATTACHMENTS:  
 
Resolution No. 1545-15 



Resolution No. 1545-15 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 1467-14 WITH REGARD TO THE PRE-
ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH D. R. HORTON, 
INC, (“OWNER”); PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND DECLARING AN 
EMERGENCY. 

 
WHEREAS, on August 4, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of 

Florence passed and adopted Town of Florence Resolution No. 1467-14 (the 
“Resolution”) approving a Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement between 
the Town and Owner (the “PADA”), for the property described in the Resolution; 
and  

 
WHEREAS, the Resolution, including the attached PADA, was filed with 

the Pinal County Recorder’s Office under Fee Number 2014-045594 on August 
7, 2014; and 

 
WHEREAS, on September 2, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of 

Florence passed and adopted Town of Florence Ordinance No. 619-14 
approving the annexation of the property described in the blank Town of Florence 
Annexation Petition for the “Magic Ranch Annexation,” Town of Florence 
Annexation No. 2013-01; and 
   

WHEREAS, within the statutory 30-day challenge period following 
adoption of Ordinance No. 619-14, petitions were filed in Pinal County Superior 
Court challenging the validity of the Magic Ranch Annexation, which had been 
approved by Ordinance No. 619-14; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Town Council of Florence believes it is in the best interest 

of the residents of the Town of Florence, as well as the residents of the 
unincorporated area included in the Magic Ranch Annexation area, to rescind the 
Resolution along with the rescission of Town of Florence Ordinance No. 619-14. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the 
Town of Florence, Arizona, as follows: 
 

Section 1. Resolution No. 1467-14, dated August 4, 2014 (with respect to 
the Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement referenced 
in Fee Number 2014-045594) in the official records of Pinal 
County is hereby rescinded, voided and declared to be of no 
further force or effect.  

 
Section 2.  The Mayor, the Town Manager, the Town Clerk and the 

Town's Attorneys are hereby authorized and directed to take 
all steps and to execute all documents necessary to carry out 
the purpose and intent of this Resolution. 

 



Section 3.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion 
of this Resolution is for any reason held invalid, 
unconstitutional, or unenforceable by a court of competent 
jurisdiction in a final non-appealable judgment, such portion 
shall be deemed a separate, distinct and an independent 
provision and such holding shall not affect the validity or 
enforceability of the remaining portions of this Resolution. 

 
Section 4.  That, inasmuch as it is necessary for the peace, health and 

safety of the Town of Florence, that this Resolution be 
effective immediately upon its passage and approval 
according to A.R.S. §19-142 (B), this Resolution is hereby 
declared to be an emergency measure and effective upon its 
passage and approval. 

 
Section 5. The Town Clerk is hereby directed to record a certified copy of 

this Resolution with the Pinal County Recorder’s Office. 
  

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, 

Arizona, this ___ day of August 2015 by ayes and nays: 
 
AYES: ____________     ABSENT: _____________ 
 
NAYS: ____________      ABSTAINED: __________ 
 
 
 

         ___________________________ 
     Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
____________________   ___________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk   Clifford Mattice, Town Attorney  



 

 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
8n. 

MEETING DATE:  August 17, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Lisa Garcia, Interim Town Manager 
 
SUBJECT:    Resolution No. 1546-15  rescinding Resolution 
No. 1470-14 with regard to the Pre-Annexation and 
Development Agreement with CMG 900, LLC; Providing for 
Severability; and Declaring an Emergency 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject:  Resolution No. 1547-15  Meeting Date: August 17,  2015 
Page 1 of 2 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to approve Resolution No. 1546-15 of the Town of Florence, Pinal County, 
Arizona rescinding Resolution No. 1470-14 with regard to the Pre-Annexation and 
Development Agreement with CMG 900, LLC; Providing for Severability; and Declaring 
an Emergency. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
On September 2, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence passed and 
adopted Ordinance No. 619-14 approving the annexation of the property described in 
the blank Town of Florence Annexation Petition for the “Magic Ranch Annexation,” 
Town of Florence Annexation No. 2013-01. 
 
If the Mayor and Council rescind the Magic Ranch Annexation Ordinance, all Pre-
Annexation Development Agreements filed with the Pinal County Recorder must also be 
rescinded.   Adopting Resolution No. 1546-15 will rescind Resolution No. 1470-14 
adopted August 4, 2014, approving a Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement 
between the Town and CMG 900, LLC.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
 
None 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   
 
If the Town Council rescinds the Magic Ranch Annexation, staff recommends that 
Resolution No. 1546-15 be adopted thereby rescinding Resolution No. 1470-14. 
 
 
 



 

Subject:  Resolution No. 1547-15  Meeting Date: August 17,  2015 
Page 2 of 2 

ATTACHMENTS:  
 
Resolution No. 1546-15 



Resolution No. 1546-15 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 1470-14 WITH REGARD TO THE PRE-
ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH CMG 900, LLC 
(“OWNER”); PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND DECLARING AN 
EMERGENCY. 

 
WHEREAS, on August 4, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of 

Florence passed and adopted Town of Florence Resolution No. 1470-14 (the 
“Resolution”) approving a Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement between 
the Town and Owner (the “PADA”), for the property described in the Resolution; 
and  

 
WHEREAS, the Resolution, including the attached PADA, was filed with 

the Pinal County Recorder’s Office under Fee Number 2014-045595 on August 
7, 2014; and 

 
WHEREAS, on September 2, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of 

Florence passed and adopted Town of Florence Ordinance No. 619-14 
approving the annexation of the property described in the blank Town of Florence 
Annexation Petition for the “Magic Ranch Annexation,” Town of Florence 
Annexation No. 2013-01; and 
   

WHEREAS, within the statutory 30-day challenge period following 
adoption of Ordinance No. 619-14, petitions were filed in Pinal County Superior 
Court challenging the validity of the Magic Ranch Annexation, which had been 
approved by Ordinance No. 619-14; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Town Council of Florence believes it is in the best interest 

of the residents of the Town of Florence, as well as the residents of the 
unincorporated area included in the Magic Ranch Annexation area, to rescind the 
Resolution along with the rescission of Town of Florence Ordinance No. 619-14. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the 
Town of Florence, Arizona, as follows: 
 

Section 1. Resolution No. 1470-14, dated August 4, 2014 (with respect to 
the Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement referenced 
in Fee Number 2014-045595) in the official records of Pinal 
County is hereby rescinded, voided and declared to be of no 
further force or effect.  

 
Section 2.  The Mayor, the Town Manager, the Town Clerk and the 

Town's Attorneys are hereby authorized and directed to take 
all steps and to execute all documents necessary to carry out 
the purpose and intent of this Resolution. 

 



Section 3.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion 
of this Resolution is for any reason held invalid, 
unconstitutional, or unenforceable by a court of competent 
jurisdiction in a final non-appealable judgment, such portion 
shall be deemed a separate, distinct and an independent 
provision and such holding shall not affect the validity or 
enforceability of the remaining portions of this Resolution. 

 
Section 4.  Inasmuch as it is necessary for the peace, health and safety of 

the Town of Florence  that this Resolution be effective 
immediately upon its passage and approval according to 
A.R.S. §19-142 (B), this Resolution is hereby declared to be 
an emergency measure and effective upon its passage and 
approval. 

 
Section 5. The Town Clerk is hereby directed to record a certified copy of 

this Resolution with the Pinal County Recorder’s Office. 
  

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, 

Arizona, this ___ day of August 2015 by ayes and nays: 
 
AYES: ____________     ABSENT: _____________ 
 
NAYS: ____________      ABSTAINED: __________ 
 
 
 

         ___________________________ 
     Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
____________________   ___________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk   Clifford Mattice, Town Attorney  



 

 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
8o. 

MEETING DATE:  August 17, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Lisa Garcia, Interim Town Manager 
 
SUBJECT:    Resolution No. 1547-15  rescinding Resolution 
No. 1468-14 with regard to the Pre-Annexation and 
Development Agreement with El Dorado Arizona Farms, LLC; 
Providing for Severability; and Declaring an Emergency 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 
Subject:  Resolution No. 1547-15  Meeting Date: August 17,  2015 
Page 1 of 2 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to approve Resolution No. 1547-15. of the Town of Florence, Pinal County, 
Arizona rescinding Resolution No. 1468-14 with regard to the Pre-Annexation and 
Development Agreement with El Dorado Arizona Farms, LLC; Providing for Severability; 
and Declaring an Emergency. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
On September 2, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence passed and 
adopted Ordinance No. 619-14 approving the annexation of the property described in 
the blank Town of Florence Annexation Petition for the “Magic Ranch Annexation,” 
Town of Florence Annexation No. 2013-01. 
 
If the Mayor and Council rescind the Magic Ranch Annexation Ordinance, all Pre 
Annexation Development Agreements filed with the Pinal County Recorder must also be 
rescinded.   Adopting Resolution No. 1547-15 will rescind Resolution No. 1468-14 
adopted August 4, 2014, approving a Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement 
between the Town and El Dorado Arizona Farms, LLC.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
 
None 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   
 
If the Town Council rescinds the Magic Ranch Annexation, staff recommends that 
Resolution No. 1547-15 be adopted thereby rescinding Resolution No. 1468-14. 
 
 
 



 

Subject:  Resolution No. 1547-15  Meeting Date: August 17,  2015 
Page 2 of 2 

ATTACHMENTS:  
 
Resolution No. 1547-15 



Resolution No. 1547-15 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 1468-14 WITH REGARD TO THE PRE-
ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH EL DORADO 
ARIZONA FARMS, LLC (“OWNER”); PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND 
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 

 
WHEREAS, on August 4, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of 

Florence passed and adopted Town of Florence Resolution No. 1468-14 (the 
“Resolution”) approving a Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement between 
the Town and Owner (the “PADA”), for the property described in the Resolution; 
and  

 
WHEREAS, the Resolution, including the attached PADA, was filed with 

the Pinal County Recorder’s Office under Fee Number 2014-045602 on August 
7, 2014; and 

 
WHEREAS, on September 2, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of 

Florence passed and adopted Town of Florence Ordinance No. 619-14 
approving the annexation of the property described in the blank Town of Florence 
Annexation Petition for the “Magic Ranch Annexation,” Town of Florence 
Annexation No. 2013-01; and 
   

WHEREAS, within the statutory 30-day challenge period following 
adoption of Ordinance No. 619-14, petitions were filed in Pinal County Superior 
Court challenging the validity of the Magic Ranch Annexation, which had been 
approved by Ordinance No. 619-14; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Town Council of Florence believes it is in the best interest 

of the residents of the Town of Florence, as well as the residents of the 
unincorporated area included in the Magic Ranch Annexation area, to rescind the 
Resolution along with the rescission of Town of Florence Ordinance No. 619-14. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the 
Town of Florence, Arizona, as follows: 
 

Section 1. Resolution No. 1468-14, dated August 4, 2014 (with respect to 
the Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement referenced 
in Fee Number 2014-045602) in the official records of Pinal 
County is hereby rescinded, voided and declared to be of no 
further force or effect.  

 
Section 2.  The Mayor, the Town Manager, the Town Clerk and the 

Town's Attorneys are hereby authorized and directed to take 
all steps and to execute all documents necessary to carry out 
the purpose and intent of this Resolution. 

 



Section 3.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion 
of this Resolution is for any reason held invalid, 
unconstitutional, or unenforceable by a court of competent 
jurisdiction in a final non-appealable judgment, such portion 
shall be deemed a separate, distinct and an independent 
provision and such holding shall not affect the validity or 
enforceability of the remaining portions of this Resolution. 

 
Section 4.  Inasmuch as it is necessary for the peace, health and safety of 

the Town of Florence, that this Resolution be effective 
immediately upon its passage and approval according to 
A.R.S. §19-142 (B), this Resolution is hereby declared to be 
an emergency measure and effective upon its passage and 
approval. 

 
Section 5. The Town Clerk is hereby directed to record a certified copy of 

this Resolution with the Pinal County Recorder’s Office. 
  

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, 

Arizona, this ___ day of August 2015 by ayes and nays: 
 
AYES: ____________     ABSENT: _____________ 
 
NAYS: ____________      ABSTAINED: __________ 
 
 
 

         ___________________________ 
     Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
____________________   ___________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk   Clifford Mattice, Town Attorney  



 

 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
8p. 

MEETING DATE:  August 17, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Lisa Garcia, Interim Town Manager 
 
SUBJECT:    Resolution No. 1548-15  rescinding Resolution 
No. 1472-14 with regard to the Pre-Annexation and 
Development Agreement with Smith’s Food and Drug 
Centers, Inc.; Providing for Severability; and Declaring an 
Emergency 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject:  Resolution No. 1548-15  Meeting Date: August 17,  2015 
Page 1 of 2 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to approve Resolution No. 1548-15 of the Town of Florence, Pinal County, 
Arizona rescinding Resolution No. 1472-14 with regard to the Pre-Annexation and 
Development Agreement with Smith’s Food and Drug Centers, Inc.; Providing for 
Severability; and Declaring an Emergency. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
On September 2, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence passed and 
adopted Ordinance No. 619-14 approving the annexation of the property described in 
the blank Town of Florence Annexation Petition for the “Magic Ranch Annexation,” 
Town of Florence Annexation No. 2013-01. 
 
If the Mayor and Council rescind the Magic Ranch Annexation Ordinance, all Pre- 
Annexation Development Agreements filed with the Pinal County Recorder must also be 
rescinded.   Adopting Resolution No. 1548-15 will rescind Resolution No. 1472-14 
adopted August 18, 2014, approving a Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement 
between the Town and Smith’s Food and Drug Centers, Inc.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
 
None. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   
 
If the Town Council rescinds the Magic Ranch Annexation, staff recommends that 
Resolution No. 1548-15 be adopted thereby rescinding Resolution No. 1472-14. 
 
 



 

Subject:  Resolution No. 1548-15  Meeting Date: August 17,  2015 
Page 2 of 2 

ATTACHMENTS:  
 
Resolution No. 1548-15 



Resolution No. 1548-15 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 1472-14 WITH REGARD TO THE PRE-
ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH SMITH’S FOOD 
AND DRUG CENTERS, INC., (“OWNER”); PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 
AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 

 
WHEREAS, on August 18, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of 

Florence passed and adopted Town of Florence Resolution No. 1472-14 (the 
“Resolution”) approving a Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement between 
the Town and Owner (the “PADA”), for the property described in the Resolution; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the Resolution, including the attached PADA, was filed with 

the Pinal County Recorder’s Office under Fee Number 2014-049648 on August 
27, 2014; and 

 
WHEREAS, on September 2, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of 

Florence passed and adopted Town of Florence Ordinance No. 619-14 
approving the annexation of the property described in the blank Town of Florence 
Annexation Petition for the “Magic Ranch Annexation,” Town of Florence 
Annexation No. 2013-01; and 
   

WHEREAS, within the statutory 30-day challenge period following 
adoption of Ordinance No. 619-14, petitions were filed in Pinal County Superior 
Court challenging the validity of the Magic Ranch Annexation, which had been 
approved by Ordinance No. 619-14; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Town Council of Florence believes it is in the best interest 

of the residents of the Town of Florence, as well as the residents of the 
unincorporated area included in the Magic Ranch Annexation area, to rescind the 
Resolution along with the rescission of Town of Florence Ordinance No. 619-14. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the 
Town of Florence, Arizona, as follows: 
 

Section 1. Resolution No. 1472-14, dated August 18, 2014 (with respect 
to the Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement 
referenced in Fee Number 2014-049648) in the official records 
of Pinal County is hereby rescinded, voided and declared to 
be of no further force or effect.  

 
Section 2.  The Mayor, the Town Manager, the Town Clerk and the 

Town's Attorneys are hereby authorized and directed to take 
all steps and to execute all documents necessary to carry out 
the purpose and intent of this Resolution. 

 



Section 3.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion 
of this Resolution is for any reason held invalid, 
unconstitutional, or unenforceable by a court of competent 
jurisdiction in a final non-appealable judgment, such portion 
shall be deemed a separate, distinct and an independent 
provision and such holding shall not affect the validity or 
enforceability of the remaining portions of this Resolution. 

 
Section 4.  Inasmuch as it is necessary for the peace, health and safety of 

the Town of Florence, that this Resolution be effective 
immediately upon its passage and approval according to 
A.R.S. §19-142 (B), this Resolution is hereby declared to be 
an emergency measure and effective upon its passage and 
approval. 

 
Section 5. The Town Clerk is hereby directed to record a certified copy of 

this Resolution with the Pinal County Recorder’s Office. 
  

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, 

Arizona, this ___ day of August 2015 by ayes and nays: 
 
AYES: ____________     ABSENT: _____________ 
 
NAYS: ____________      ABSTAINED: __________ 
 
 
 

         ___________________________ 
     Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
____________________   ___________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk   Clifford Mattice, Town Attorney  



 

 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
8q. 

MEETING DATE:  August 17, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Lisa Garcia, Interim Town Manager 
 
SUBJECT:    Resolution No. 1549-15  rescinding Resolution 
No. 1475-14 with regard to the Pre-Annexation and 
Development Agreement with General Hunt Properties, Inc.; 
Providing for Severability; and Declaring an Emergency 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
Subject:  Resolution No. 1549-15  Meeting Date: August 17,  2015 
Page 1 of 2 

 
Motion to approve Resolution No. 1549-15 of the Town of Florence, Pinal County, 
Arizona rescinding Resolution No. 1475-14 with regard to the Pre-Annexation and 
Development Agreement with General Hunt Properties, Inc.; Providing for Severability; 
and Declaring an Emergency. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
On September 2, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence passed and 
adopted Ordinance No. 619-14 approving the annexation of the property described in 
the blank Town of Florence Annexation Petition for the “Magic Ranch Annexation,” 
Town of Florence Annexation No. 2013-01. 
 
If the Mayor and Council rescind the Magic Ranch Annexation Ordinance, all Pre 
Annexation Development Agreements filed with the Pinal County Recorder must also be 
rescinded.   Adopting Resolution No. 1549-15 will rescind Resolution No. 1475-14 
adopted August 18, 2014, approving a Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement 
between the Town and General Hunt Properties, Inc. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
 
None 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   
 
If the Town Council rescinds the Magic Ranch Annexation, staff recommends that 
Resolution No. 1549-15 be adopted thereby rescinding Resolution No. 1475-14. 
 
 
 



 

Subject:  Resolution No. 1549-15  Meeting Date: August 17,  2015 
Page 2 of 2 

ATTACHMENTS:  
 
Resolution No. 1549-15 



Resolution No. 1549-15 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 1475-14 WITH REGARD TO THE PRE-
ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH GENERAL HUNT 
PROPERTIES, INC., (“OWNER”); PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND 
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 

 
WHEREAS, on August 18, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of 

Florence passed and adopted Town of Florence Resolution No. 1475-14 (the 
“Resolution”) approving a Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement between 
the Town and Owner (the “PADA”), for the property described in the Resolution; 
and  

 
WHEREAS, the Resolution, including the attached PADA, was filed with 

the Pinal County Recorder’s Office under Fee Number 2014-049683 on August 
27, 2014; and 

 
WHEREAS, on September 2, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of 

Florence passed and adopted Town of Florence Ordinance No. 619-14 
approving the annexation of the property described in the blank Town of Florence 
Annexation Petition for the “Magic Ranch Annexation,” Town of Florence 
Annexation No. 2013-01; and 
   

WHEREAS, within the statutory 30-day challenge period following 
adoption of Ordinance No. 619-14, petitions were filed in Pinal County Superior 
Court challenging the validity of the Magic Ranch Annexation, which had been 
approved by Ordinance No. 619-14; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Town Council of Florence believes it is in the best interest 

of the residents of the Town of Florence, as well as the residents of the 
unincorporated area included in the Magic Ranch Annexation area, to rescind the 
Resolution along with the rescission of Town of Florence Ordinance No. 619-14. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the 
Town of Florence, Arizona, as follows: 
 

Section 1. Resolution No. 1475-14, dated August 18, 2014 (with respect 
to the Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement 
referenced in Fee Number 2014-049683) in the official records 
of Pinal County is hereby rescinded, voided and declared to 
be of no further force or effect.  

 
Section 2.  The Mayor, the Town Manager, the Town Clerk and the 

Town's Attorneys are hereby authorized and directed to take 
all steps and to execute all documents necessary to carry out 
the purpose and intent of this Resolution. 

 



Section 3.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion 
of this Resolution is for any reason held invalid, 
unconstitutional, or unenforceable by a court of competent 
jurisdiction in a final non-appealable judgment, such portion 
shall be deemed a separate, distinct and an independent 
provision and such holding shall not affect the validity or 
enforceability of the remaining portions of this Resolution. 

 
Section 4.  Inasmuch as it is necessary for the peace, health and safety of 

the Town of Florence, that this Resolution be effective 
immediately upon its passage and approval according to 
A.R.S. §19-142 (B), this Resolution is hereby declared to be 
an emergency measure and effective upon its passage and 
approval. 

 
Section 5. The Town Clerk is hereby directed to record a certified copy of 

this Resolution with the Pinal County Recorder’s Office. 
  

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, 

Arizona, this ___ day of August 2015 by ayes and nays: 
 
AYES: ____________     ABSENT: _____________ 
 
NAYS: ____________      ABSTAINED: __________ 
 
 
 

         ___________________________ 
     Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
____________________   ___________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk   Clifford Mattice, Town Attorney  



 

 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
8r. 

MEETING DATE:  August 17, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Lisa Garcia, Interim Town Manager 
 
SUBJECT:    Resolution No. 1550-15  rescinding Resolution 
No. 1476-14 with regard to the Pre-Annexation and 
Development Agreement with Oasis Solid Waste LLC,  
Providing for Severability; and Declaring an Emergency 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject:  Resolution No. 1550-15  Meeting Date: August 17,  2015 
Page 1 of 2 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to approve Resolution No. 1550-15 of the Town of Florence, Pinal County, 
Arizona rescinding Resolution No. 1476-14 with regard to the Pre-Annexation and 
Development Agreement with Oasis Solid Waste LLC, Providing for Severability; and 
Declaring an Emergency. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
On September 2, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence passed and 
adopted Ordinance No. 619-14 approving the annexation of the property described in 
the blank Town of Florence Annexation Petition for the “Magic Ranch Annexation,” 
Town of Florence Annexation No. 2013-01. 
 
If the Mayor and Council rescind the Magic Ranch Annexation Ordinance, all Pre- 
Annexation Development Agreements filed with the Pinal County Recorder must also be 
rescinded.   Adopting Resolution No. 1550-15 will rescind Resolution No. 1476-14 
adopted August 18, 2014, approving a Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement 
between the Town and Oasis Solid Waste LLC.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
 
None. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   
 
If the Town Council rescinds the Magic Ranch Annexation, staff recommends that 
Resolution No. 1550-15 be adopted thereby rescinding Resolution No. 1476-14. 
 
 
 



 

Subject:  Resolution No. 1550-15  Meeting Date: August 17,  2015 
Page 2 of 2 

ATTACHMENTS:  
 
Resolution No. 1550-15 



Resolution No. 1550-15 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 1476-14 WITH REGARD TO THE PRE-
ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH OASIS SOLID 
WASTE, LLC (“OWNER”); PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND 
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 

 
WHEREAS, on August 18, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of 

Florence passed and adopted Town of Florence Resolution No. 1476-14 (the 
“Resolution”) approving a Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement between 
the Town and Owner (the “PADA”), for the property described in the Resolution; 
and  

 
WHEREAS, the Resolution, including the attached PADA, was filed with 

the Pinal County Recorder’s Office under Fee Number 2014-049684 on August 
27, 2014; and 

 
WHEREAS, on September 2, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of 

Florence passed and adopted Town of Florence Ordinance No. 619-14 
approving the annexation of the property described in the blank Town of Florence 
Annexation Petition for the “Magic Ranch Annexation,” Town of Florence 
Annexation No. 2013-01; and 
   

WHEREAS, within the statutory 30-day challenge period following 
adoption of Ordinance No. 619-14, petitions were filed in Pinal County Superior 
Court challenging the validity of the Magic Ranch Annexation, which had been 
approved by Ordinance No. 619-14; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Town Council of Florence believes it is in the best interest 

of the residents of the Town of Florence, as well as the residents of the 
unincorporated area included in the Magic Ranch Annexation area, to rescind the 
Resolution along with the rescission of Town of Florence Ordinance No. 619-14. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the 
Town of Florence, Arizona, as follows: 
 

Section 1. Resolution No. 1476-14, dated August 18, 2014 (with respect 
to the Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement 
referenced in Fee Number 2014-049684) in the official records 
of Pinal County is hereby rescinded, voided and declared to 
be of no further force or effect.  

 
Section 2.  The Mayor, the Town Manager, the Town Clerk and the 

Town's Attorneys are hereby authorized and directed to take 
all steps and to execute all documents necessary to carry out 
the purpose and intent of this Resolution. 

 



Section 3.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion 
of this Resolution is for any reason held invalid, 
unconstitutional, or unenforceable by a court of competent 
jurisdiction in a final non-appealable judgment, such portion 
shall be deemed a separate, distinct and an independent 
provision and such holding shall not affect the validity or 
enforceability of the remaining portions of this Resolution. 

 
Section 4.  Inasmuch as it is necessary for the peace, health and safety of 

the Town of Florence, that this Resolution be effective 
immediately upon its passage and approval according to 
A.R.S. §19-142 (B), this Resolution is hereby declared to be 
an emergency measure and effective upon its passage and 
approval. 

 
Section 5. The Town Clerk is hereby directed to record a certified copy of 

this Resolution with the Pinal County Recorder’s Office. 
  

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, 

Arizona, this ___ day of August 2015 by ayes and nays: 
 
AYES: ____________     ABSENT: _____________ 
 
NAYS: ____________      ABSTAINED: __________ 
 
 
 

         ___________________________ 
     Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
____________________   ___________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk   Clifford Mattice, Town Attorney  



 

 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
8s. 

MEETING DATE:  August 17, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Lisa Garcia, Interim Town Manager 
 
SUBJECT:    Resolution No. 1551-15  rescinding Resolution 
No. 1477-14 with regard to the Pre-Annexation and 
Development Agreement with Club at Oasis, LLC; Providing 
for Severability; and Declaring an Emergency 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 
Subject:  Resolution No. 1551-15  Meeting Date: August 17,  2015 
Page 1 of 2 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to approve Resolution No. 1551-15. of the Town of Florence, Pinal County, 
Arizona rescinding Resolution No. 1477-14 with regard to the Pre-Annexation and 
Development Agreement with Club at Oasis, LLC; Providing for Severability; and 
Declaring an Emergency. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
On September 2, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence passed and 
adopted Ordinance No. 619-14 approving the annexation of the property described in 
the blank Town of Florence Annexation Petition for the “Magic Ranch Annexation,” 
Town of Florence Annexation No. 2013-01. 
 
If the Mayor and Council rescind the Magic Ranch Annexation Ordinance, all Pre- 
Annexation Development Agreements filed with the Pinal County Recorder must also be 
rescinded.   Adopting Resolution No. 1551-15 will rescind Resolution No. 1477-14 
adopted August 18, 2014, approving a Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement 
between the Town and Club at Oasis, LLC.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
 
None. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   
 
If the Town Council rescinds the Magic Ranch Annexation, staff recommends that 
Resolution No. 1551-15 be adopted thereby rescinding Resolution No. 1477-14. 
 
 
 



 

Subject:  Resolution No. 1551-15  Meeting Date: August 17,  2015 
Page 2 of 2 

ATTACHMENTS:  
 
Resolution No. 1551-15 



Resolution No. 1551-15 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 1477-14 WITH REGARD TO THE PRE-
ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH THE CLUB AT 
OASIS, LLC (“OWNER”); PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND 
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 

 
WHEREAS, on August 18, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of 

Florence passed and adopted Town of Florence Resolution No. 1477-14 (the 
“Resolution”) approving a Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement between 
the Town and Owner (the “PADA”), for the property described in the Resolution; 
and  

 
WHEREAS, the Resolution, including the attached PADA, was filed with 

the Pinal County Recorder’s Office under Fee Number 2014-049685 on August 
27, 2014; and 

 
WHEREAS, on September 2, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of 

Florence passed and adopted Town of Florence Ordinance No. 619-14 
approving the annexation of the property described in the blank Town of Florence 
Annexation Petition for the “Magic Ranch Annexation,” Town of Florence 
Annexation No. 2013-01; and 
   

WHEREAS, within the statutory 30-day challenge period following 
adoption of Ordinance No. 619-14, petitions were filed in Pinal County Superior 
Court challenging the validity of the Magic Ranch Annexation, which had been 
approved by Ordinance No. 619-14; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Town Council of Florence believes it is in the best interest 

of the residents of the Town of Florence, as well as the residents of the 
unincorporated area included in the Magic Ranch Annexation area, to rescind the 
Resolution along with the rescission of Town of Florence Ordinance No. 619-14. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the 
Town of Florence, Arizona, as follows: 
 

Section 1. Resolution No. 1477-14, dated August 18, 2014 (with respect 
to the Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement 
referenced in Fee Number 2014-049685) in the official records 
of Pinal County is hereby rescinded, voided and declared to 
be of no further force or effect.  

 
Section 2.  The Mayor, the Town Manager, the Town Clerk and the 

Town's Attorneys are hereby authorized and directed to take 
all steps and to execute all documents necessary to carry out 
the purpose and intent of this Resolution. 

 



Section 3.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion 
of this Resolution is for any reason held invalid, 
unconstitutional, or unenforceable by a court of competent 
jurisdiction in a final non-appealable judgment, such portion 
shall be deemed a separate, distinct and an independent 
provision and such holding shall not affect the validity or 
enforceability of the remaining portions of this Resolution. 

 
Section 4.  Inasmuch as it is necessary for the peace, health and safety of 

the Town of Florence, that this Resolution be effective 
immediately upon its passage and approval according to 
A.R.S. §19-142 (B), this Resolution is hereby declared to be 
an emergency measure and effective upon its passage and 
approval. 

 
Section 5. The Town Clerk is hereby directed to record a certified copy of 

this Resolution with the Pinal County Recorder’s Office. 
  

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, 

Arizona, this ___ day of August 2015 by ayes and nays: 
 
AYES: ____________     ABSENT: _____________ 
 
NAYS: ____________      ABSTAINED: __________ 
 
 
 

         ___________________________ 
     Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
____________________   ___________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk   Clifford Mattice, Town Attorney  



 

 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
8t. 

MEETING DATE:  August 17, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Lisa Garcia, Interim Town Manager 
 
SUBJECT:    Resolution No. 1552-15  rescinding Resolution 
No. 1478-14 with regard to the Pre-Annexation and 
Development Agreement with Johnson Utilities, LLC; 
Providing for Severability; and Declaring an Emergency 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject:  Resolution No. 1547-15  Meeting Date: August 17,  2015 
Page 1 of 2 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to approve Resolution No. 1552-15 of the Town of Florence, Pinal County, 
Arizona rescinding Resolution No. 1478-14 with regard to the Pre-Annexation and 
Development Agreement with Johnson Utilities, LLC; Providing for Severability; and 
Declaring an Emergency. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
On September 2, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence passed and 
adopted Ordinance No. 619-14 approving the annexation of the property described in 
the blank Town of Florence Annexation Petition for the “Magic Ranch Annexation,” 
Town of Florence Annexation No. 2013-01. 
 
If the Mayor and Council rescind the Magic Ranch Annexation Ordinance, all Pre-
Annexation Development Agreements filed with the Pinal County Recorder must also be 
rescinded.   Adopting Resolution No. 1552-15 will rescind Resolution No. 1478-14 
adopted August 18, 2014, approving a Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement 
between the Town and Johnson Utilities, LLC.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
 
None 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   
 
If the Town Council rescinds the Magic Ranch Annexation, staff recommends that 
Resolution No. 1552-15 be adopted thereby rescinding Resolution No. 1478-14. 
 
 
 



 

Subject:  Resolution No. 1547-15  Meeting Date: August 17,  2015 
Page 2 of 2 

ATTACHMENTS:  
 
Resolution No. 1552-15 



Resolution No. 1552-15 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 1478-14 WITH REGARD TO THE PRE-
ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH JOHNSON 
UTILITIES, LLC (“OWNER”); PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND 
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 

 
WHEREAS, on August 18, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of 

Florence passed and adopted Town of Florence Resolution No. 1478-14 (the 
“Resolution”) approving a Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement between 
the Town and Owner (the “PADA”), for the property described in the Resolution; 
and  

 
WHEREAS, the Resolution, including the attached PADA, was filed with 

the Pinal County Recorder’s Office under Fee Number 2014-049686 on August 
27, 2014; and 

 
WHEREAS, on September 2, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of 

Florence passed and adopted Town of Florence Ordinance No. 619-14 
approving the annexation of the property described in the blank Town of Florence 
Annexation Petition for the “Magic Ranch Annexation,” Town of Florence 
Annexation No. 2013-01; and 
   

WHEREAS, within the statutory 30-day challenge period following 
adoption of Ordinance No. 619-14, petitions were filed in Pinal County Superior 
Court challenging the validity of the Magic Ranch Annexation, which had been 
approved by Ordinance No. 619-14; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Town Council of Florence believes it is in the best interest 

of the residents of the Town of Florence, as well as the residents of the 
unincorporated area included in the Magic Ranch Annexation area, to rescind the 
Resolution along with the rescission of Town of Florence Ordinance No. 619-14. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the 
Town of Florence, Arizona, as follows: 
 

Section 1. Resolution No. 1478-14, dated August 18, 2014 (with respect 
to the Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement 
referenced in Fee Number 2014-049686) in the official records 
of Pinal County is hereby rescinded, voided and declared to 
be of no further force or effect.  

 
Section 2.  The Mayor, the Town Manager, the Town Clerk and the 

Town's Attorneys are hereby authorized and directed to take 
all steps and to execute all documents necessary to carry out 
the purpose and intent of this Resolution. 

 



Section 3.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion 
of this Resolution is for any reason held invalid, 
unconstitutional, or unenforceable by a court of competent 
jurisdiction in a final non-appealable judgment, such portion 
shall be deemed a separate, distinct and an independent 
provision and such holding shall not affect the validity or 
enforceability of the remaining portions of this Resolution. 

 
Section 4.  Inasmuch as it is necessary for the peace, health and safety of 

the Town of Florence, that this Resolution be effective 
immediately upon its passage and approval according to 
A.R.S. §19-142 (B), this Resolution is hereby declared to be 
an emergency measure and effective upon its passage and 
approval. 

 
Section 5. The Town Clerk is hereby directed to record a certified copy of 

this Resolution with the Pinal County Recorder’s Office. 
  

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, 

Arizona, this ___ day of August 2015 by ayes and nays: 
 
AYES: ____________     ABSENT: _____________ 
 
NAYS: ____________      ABSTAINED: __________ 
 
 
 

         ___________________________ 
     Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
____________________   ___________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk   Clifford Mattice, Town Attorney  



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
8u.  

MEETING DATE:  August 17, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Lisa Garcia, Interim Town Manager 
 
SUBJECT:    Ordinance No. 634-15  rescinding Ordinance 
No. 620-14 with regard to Arizona Farms Annexation Petition 
No. 2013-02; Providing for Severability; and Declaring an 
Emergency 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
Subject: Ordinance No. 634-15  Meeting Date: August 17, 2015 
Page 1 of 2 

 
Motion to approve Ordinance No. 634-15 of the Town of Florence, Pinal County, 
Arizona rescinding Ordinance No. 620-14 with regard to Arizona Farms Annexation 
Petition No. 2013-02; Providing for Severability; and Declaring an Emergency. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
On September 2, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence passed and 
adopted Ordinance No. 620-14 approving the annexation of the property described in 
the blank Town of Florence Annexation Petition for the “Arizona Farms Annexation,” 
Town of Florence Annexation No. 2013-02.  The Annexation Petition, including attached 
signature sheets regarding the Arizona Farms Annexation was filed with the Pinal 
County Recorder’s Office on September 5, 2014. 
 
Within the statutory 30-day challenge period following adoption of Ordinance 620-14, 
petitions were filed in Pinal County Superior Court challenging the validity of the Arizona 
Farms Annexation, which had been approved by Ordinance No. 620-14. 
 
If the Mayor and Council believe it to be in the best interest of the residents of the Town 
of Florence, as well as, the residents of the unincorporated area included in the Arizona 
Farms Annexation area, the Mayor and Council may rescind Ordinance No. 620-14. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
 
Not applicable. 
 



Subject: Ordinance No. 634-15  Meeting Date: August 17, 2015 
Page 2 of 2 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   
 
There is no staff recommendation for this item. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
 
Ordinance No. 634-15 
 



Ordinance No. 634-15 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
RESCINDING ORDINANCE NO 620-14 WITH REGARD TO ARIZONA FARMS 
ANNEXATION PETITION NO. 2013-02; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 
AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 

 
WHEREAS, on September 2, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of 

Florence passed and adopted Town of Florence Ordinance No. 620-14 
approving the annexation of the property described in the blank Town of Florence 
Annexation Petition for the “Arizona  Farms Annexation,” Town of Florence 
Annexation No. 2013-02; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to A.R.S. §9-471(A)(4), an Annexation Petition 

including signature sheets regarding the “Arizona Farms Annexation” was filed 
with the Pinal County Recorder’s Office under recording number 2014-051353 on 
September 5, 2014; and 
   

WHEREAS, within the statutory 30-day challenge period following 
adoption of Ordinance No. 620-14, petitions were filed in Pinal County Superior 
Court challenging the validity of the Arizona Farms Annexation, which had been 
approved by Ordinance No. 620-14; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Town Council of Florence believes it is in the best interest 

of the residents of the Town of Florence, as well as the residents of the 
unincorporated area included in the Arizona Farms Annexation area, to rescind 
Ordinance No. 620-14. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council of the 
Town of Florence, Arizona, as follows: 
 

Section 1. That the Magic Ranch final annexation ordinance, Ordinance 
No. 620-14, dated September 2, 2014 (with respect to the 
annexation of the property referenced in Recording Fee 
Number 2014-051353) in the official records of Pinal County is 
hereby rescinded, voided and declared to be of no further 
force or effect.  

 
Section 2. The Mayor, the Town Manager, the Town Clerk and the Town's 

Attorneys are hereby authorized and directed to take all steps 
and to execute all documents necessary to carry out the 
purpose and intent of this Ordinance. 

 
Section 3.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion 

of this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid, 
unconstitutional, or unenforceable by a court of competent 
jurisdiction in a final non-appealable judgment, such portion 
shall be deemed a separate, distinct and an independent 



provision and such holding shall not affect the validity or 
enforceability of the remaining portions of the Ordinance. 

 
Section 4.  That, inasmuch as it is necessity for the peace, health and 

safety of the Town of Florence, that this Ordinance be 
effective immediately upon its passage and approval 
according to A.R.S. §19-142 (B), this Ordinance is hereby 
declared to be an emergency measure and effective upon its 
passage and approval. 

 
Section 5. The Town Clerk is hereby directed to record a certified copy of 

this Ordinance with the Pinal County Recorder’s Office. 
  

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, 

Arizona, this ___ day of August 2015 by ayes and nays: 
 
AYES: ____________     ABSENT: _____________ 
 
NAYS: ____________      ABSTAINED: __________ 
 
 
 

         ___________________________ 
     Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
____________________   ___________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk   Clifford Mattice, Town Attorney  



 

 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
8v. 

MEETING DATE:  August 17, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Lisa Garcia, Interim Town Manager 
 
SUBJECT:    Resolution No. 1553-15  rescinding Resolution 
No. 1418-14 with regard to the Pre-Annexation and 
Development Agreement with DQCrestfield, LLC; Providing 
for Severability; and Declaring an Emergency 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject:  Resolution No. 1553-15  Meeting Date: August 17,  2015 
Page 1 of 2 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to approve Resolution No. 1553-15 of the Town of Florence, Pinal County, 
Arizona rescinding Resolution No. 1418-14 with regard to the Pre-Annexation and 
Development Agreement with DQCrestfield, LLC; Providing for Severability; and 
Declaring an Emergency. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
On September 2, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence passed and 
adopted Ordinance No. 620-14 approving the annexation of the property described in 
the blank Town of Florence Annexation Petition for the “Arizona Farms Annexation,” 
Town of Florence Annexation No. 2013-02. 
 
If the Mayor and Council rescind the Arizona Farms Annexation Ordinance, all Pre-
Annexation Development Agreements filed with the Pinal County Recorder must also be 
rescinded.   Adopting Resolution No. 1553-15 will rescind Resolution No. 1418-14 
adopted January 21, 2014, approving a Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement 
between the Town and DQCrestfield, LLC.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
 
None 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   
 
If the Town Council rescinds the Arizona Farms Annexation, staff recommends that 
Resolution No. 1553-15 be adopted thereby rescinding Resolution No. 1418-14. 
 
 
 



 

Subject:  Resolution No. 1553-15  Meeting Date: August 17,  2015 
Page 2 of 2 

ATTACHMENTS:  
 
Resolution No. 1553-15 



Resolution No. 1553-15  
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 1418-14 WITH REGARD TO THE PRE-
ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH DQCRESTFIELD, 
LLC, (“OWNER”); PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND DECLARING AN 
EMERGENCY. 

 
WHEREAS, on  January 21, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of 

Florence passed and adopted Town of Florence Resolution No. 1418-14 (the 
“Resolution”) approving a Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement between 
the Town and Owner (the “PADA”), for the property described in the Resolution; 
and  

 
WHEREAS, the Resolution, including the attached PADA, was filed with 

the Pinal County Recorder’s Office under Fee Number 2014-006474 on February 
4, 2014; and 

 
WHEREAS, on September 2, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of 

Florence passed and adopted Town of Florence Ordinance No. 620-14 
approving the annexation of the property described in the blank Town of Florence 
Annexation Petition for the “Arizona Farms Annexation” Town of Florence 
Annexation No. 2013-02; and 
   

WHEREAS, within the statutory 30-day challenge period following 
adoption of Ordinance No. 620-14, petitions were filed in Pinal County Superior 
Court challenging the validity of the Arizona Farms Annexation, which had been 
approved by Ordinance No. 620-14; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Town Council of Florence believes it is in the best interest 

of the residents of the Town of Florence, as well as the residents of the 
unincorporated area included in the Arizona Farms Annexation area, to rescind 
the Resolution along with the rescission of Town of Florence Ordinance No. 620-
14. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the 
Town of Florence, Arizona, as follows: 
 

Section 1. Resolution No. 1418-14, dated January 21, 2014 (with respect 
to the Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement 
referenced in Fee Number 2014-006474) in the official records 
of Pinal County is hereby rescinded, voided and declared to 
be of no further force or effect.  

 
Section 2.  The Mayor, the Town Manager, the Town Clerk and the 

Town's Attorneys are hereby authorized and directed to take 
all steps and to execute all documents necessary to carry out 
the purpose and intent of this Resolution. 



 
Section 3.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion 

of this Resolution is for any reason held invalid, 
unconstitutional, or unenforceable by a court of competent 
jurisdiction in a final non-appealable judgment, such portion 
shall be deemed a separate, distinct and an independent 
provision and such holding shall not affect the validity or 
enforceability of the remaining portions of this Resolution. 

 
Section 4.  Inasmuch as it is necessary for the peace, health and safety of 

the Town of Florence  that this Resolution be effective 
immediately upon its passage and approval according to 
A.R.S. §19-142 (B), this Resolution is hereby declared to be 
an emergency measure and effective upon its passage and 
approval. 

 
Section 5. The Town Clerk is hereby directed to record a certified copy of 

this Resolution with the Pinal County Recorder’s Office. 
  

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, 

Arizona, this ___ day of August 2015 by ayes and nays: 
 
AYES: ____________     ABSENT: _____________ 
 
NAYS: ____________      ABSTAINED: __________ 
 
 
 

         ___________________________ 
     Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
____________________   ___________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk   Clifford Mattice, Town Attorney  



 

 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
8w.  

MEETING DATE:  August 17, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Lisa Garcia, Interim Town Manager 
 
SUBJECT:    Resolution No. 1554-15  rescinding Resolution 
No. 1443-14 with regard to the Pre-Annexation and 
Development Agreement with MP Florence, LLC; Providing 
for Severability; and Declaring an Emergency 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 
Subject:  Resolution No. 1554-15  Meeting Date: August 17,  2015 
Page 1 of 2 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to approve Resolution No. 1554-15 of the Town of Florence, Pinal County, 
Arizona rescinding Resolution No. 1443-14 with regard to the Pre-Annexation and 
Development Agreement with MP Florence, LLC; Providing for Severability; and 
Declaring an Emergency. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
On September 2, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence passed and 
adopted Ordinance No. 620-14 approving the annexation of the property described in 
the blank Town of Florence Annexation Petition for the “Arizona Farms Annexation,” 
Town of Florence Annexation No. 2013-02. 
 
If the Mayor and Council rescind the Arizona Farms Annexation Ordinance, all Pre-
Annexation Development Agreements filed with the Pinal County Recorder must also be 
rescinded.   Adopting Resolution No. 1554-15 will rescind Resolution No. 1443-14 
adopted May 19, 2014, approving a Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement 
between the Town and MP Florence, LLC.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
 
None 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   
 
If the Town Council rescinds the Arizona Farms Annexation, staff recommends that 
Resolution No. 1554-15 be adopted thereby rescinding Resolution No. 1443-14. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  



 

Subject:  Resolution No. 1554-15  Meeting Date: August 17,  2015 
Page 2 of 2 

 
Resolution No. 1554-15 



Resolution No. 1554-15  
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 1443-14 WITH REGARD TO THE PRE-
ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH MP FLORENCE, 
LLC, (“OWNER”); PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND DECLARING AN 
EMERGENCY. 

 
WHEREAS, on  May 19, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of 

Florence passed and adopted Town of Florence Resolution No. 1443-14 (the 
“Resolution”) approving a Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement between 
the Town and Owner (the “PADA”), for the property described in the Resolution; 
and  

 
WHEREAS, the Resolution, including the attached PADA, was filed with 

the Pinal County Recorder’s Office under Fee Number 2014-030498 on May 28, 
2014; and 

 
WHEREAS, on September 2, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of 

Florence passed and adopted Town of Florence Ordinance No. 620-14 
approving the annexation of the property described in the blank Town of Florence 
Annexation Petition for the “Arizona Farms Annexation” Town of Florence 
Annexation No. 2013-02; and 
   

WHEREAS, within the statutory 30-day challenge period following 
adoption of Ordinance No. 620-14, petitions were filed in Pinal County Superior 
Court challenging the validity of the Arizona Farms Annexation, which had been 
approved by Ordinance No. 620-14; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Town Council of Florence believes it is in the best interest 

of the residents of the Town of Florence, as well as the residents of the 
unincorporated area included in the Arizona Farms Annexation area, to rescind 
the Resolution along with the rescission of Town of Florence Ordinance No. 620-
14. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the 
Town of Florence, Arizona, as follows: 
 

Section 1. Resolution No. 1443-14, dated May 19, 2014 (with respect to 
the Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement referenced 
in Fee Number 2014-030498) in the official records of Pinal 
County is hereby rescinded, voided and declared to be of no 
further force or effect.  

 
Section 2.  The Mayor, the Town Manager, the Town Clerk and the 

Town's Attorneys are hereby authorized and directed to take 
all steps and to execute all documents necessary to carry out 
the purpose and intent of this Resolution. 



 
Section 3.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion 

of this Resolution is for any reason held invalid, 
unconstitutional, or unenforceable by a court of competent 
jurisdiction in a final non-appealable judgment, such portion 
shall be deemed a separate, distinct and an independent 
provision and such holding shall not affect the validity or 
enforceability of the remaining portions of this Resolution. 

 
Section 4.  Inasmuch as it is necessary for the peace, health and safety of 

the Town of Florence  that this Resolution be effective 
immediately upon its passage and approval according to 
A.R.S. §19-142 (B), this Resolution is hereby declared to be 
an emergency measure and effective upon its passage and 
approval. 

 
Section 5. The Town Clerk is hereby directed to record a certified copy of 

this Resolution with the Pinal County Recorder’s Office. 
  

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, 

Arizona, this ___ day of August 2015 by ayes and nays: 
 
AYES: ____________     ABSENT: _____________ 
 
NAYS: ____________      ABSTAINED: __________ 
 
 
 

         ___________________________ 
     Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
____________________   ___________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk   Clifford Mattice, Town Attorney  



 

 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
8x. 

MEETING DATE:  August 17, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Lisa Garcia, Interim Town Manager 
 
SUBJECT:    Resolution No. 1555-15  rescinding Resolution 
No. 1446-14 with regard to the Pre-Annexation and 
Development Agreement with Howard L. Hawks; Providing for 
Severability; and Declaring an Emergency 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject:  Resolution No. 1555-15  Meeting Date: August 17,  2015 
Page 1 of 2 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to approve Resolution No. 1555-15 of the Town of Florence, Pinal County, 
Arizona rescinding Resolution No. 1446-14 with regard to the Pre-Annexation and 
Development Agreement with Howard L. Hawks; Providing for Severability; and 
Declaring an Emergency. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
On September 2, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence passed and 
adopted Ordinance No. 620-14 approving the annexation of the property described in 
the blank Town of Florence Annexation Petition for the “Arizona Farms Annexation,” 
Town of Florence Annexation No. 2013-02. 
 
If the Mayor and Council rescind the Arizona Farms Annexation Ordinance, all Pre-
Annexation Development Agreements filed with the Pinal County Recorder must also be 
rescinded.   Adopting Resolution No. 1555-15 will rescind Resolution No. 1446-14 
adopted June 2, 2014, approving a Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement 
between the Town and Howard L. Hawks.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
 
None 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   
 
If the Town Council rescinds the Arizona Farms Annexation, staff recommends that 
Resolution No. 1555-15 be adopted thereby rescinding Resolution No. 1446-14. 
 
 
 



 

Subject:  Resolution No. 1555-15  Meeting Date: August 17,  2015 
Page 2 of 2 

ATTACHMENTS:  
 
Resolution No. 1555-15 



Resolution No. 1555-15  
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 1446-14 WITH REGARD TO THE PRE-
ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH HOWARD L. 
HAWKS (“OWNER”); PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND DECLARING 
AN EMERGENCY. 

 
WHEREAS, on  June 2, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of 

Florence passed and adopted Town of Florence Resolution No. 1446-14 (the 
“Resolution”) approving a Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement between 
the Town and Owner (the “PADA”), for the property described in the Resolution; 
and  

 
WHEREAS, the Resolution, including the attached PADA, was filed with 

the Pinal County Recorder’s Office under Fee Number 2014-033405 on June 10, 
2014; and 

 
WHEREAS, on September 2, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of 

Florence passed and adopted Town of Florence Ordinance No. 620-14 
approving the annexation of the property described in the blank Town of Florence 
Annexation Petition for the “Arizona Farms Annexation” Town of Florence 
Annexation No. 2013-02; and 
   

WHEREAS, within the statutory 30-day challenge period following 
adoption of Ordinance No. 620-14, petitions were filed in Pinal County Superior 
Court challenging the validity of the Arizona Farms Annexation, which had been 
approved by Ordinance No. 620-14; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Town Council of Florence believes it is in the best interest 

of the residents of the Town of Florence, as well as the residents of the 
unincorporated area included in the Arizona Farms Annexation area, to rescind 
the Resolution along with the rescission of Town of Florence Ordinance No. 620-
14. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the 
Town of Florence, Arizona, as follows: 
 

Section 1. Resolution No. 1446-14, dated June 2, 2014 (with respect to 
the Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement referenced 
in Fee Number 2014-033405) in the official records of Pinal 
County is hereby rescinded, voided and declared to be of no 
further force or effect.  

 
Section 2.  The Mayor, the Town Manager, the Town Clerk and the 

Town's Attorneys are hereby authorized and directed to take 
all steps and to execute all documents necessary to carry out 
the purpose and intent of this Resolution. 



 
Section 3.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion 

of this Resolution is for any reason held invalid, 
unconstitutional, or unenforceable by a court of competent 
jurisdiction in a final non-appealable judgment, such portion 
shall be deemed a separate, distinct and an independent 
provision and such holding shall not affect the validity or 
enforceability of the remaining portions of this Resolution. 

 
Section 4.  Inasmuch as it is necessary for the peace, health and safety of 

the Town of Florence  that this Resolution be effective 
immediately upon its passage and approval according to 
A.R.S. §19-142 (B), this Resolution is hereby declared to be 
an emergency measure and effective upon its passage and 
approval. 

 
Section 5. The Town Clerk is hereby directed to record a certified copy of 

this Resolution with the Pinal County Recorder’s Office. 
  

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, 

Arizona, this ___ day of August 2015 by ayes and nays: 
 
AYES: ____________     ABSENT: _____________ 
 
NAYS: ____________      ABSTAINED: __________ 
 
 
 

         ___________________________ 
     Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
____________________   ___________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk   Clifford Mattice, Town Attorney  



 

 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
8y. 

MEETING DATE:  August 17, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Lisa Garcia, Interim Town Manager 
 
SUBJECT:    Resolution No. 1556-15  rescinding Resolution 
No. 1461-14 with regard to the Pre-Annexation and 
Development Agreement with Superstition Springs R-14 
Associates, Wolf’s R.E. Holdings, LLC, and  David C. Phillips; 
Providing for Severability; and Declaring an Emergency 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject:  Resolution No. 1556-15  Meeting Date: August 17,  2015 
Page 1 of 2 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to approve Resolution No. 1556-15 of the Town of Florence, Pinal County, 
Arizona rescinding Resolution No. 1461-14 with regard to the Pre-Annexation and 
Development Agreement with Superstition Springs R-14 Associates, Wolfy’s R.E. 
Holdings, LLC, and  David C. Phillips; Providing for Severability; and Declaring an 
Emergency. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
On September 2, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence passed and 
adopted Ordinance No. 620-14 approving the annexation of the property described in 
the blank Town of Florence Annexation Petition for the “Arizona Farms Annexation,” 
Town of Florence Annexation No. 2013-02. 
 
If the Mayor and Council rescind the Arizona Farms Annexation Ordinance, all Pre-
Annexation Development Agreements filed with the Pinal County Recorder must also be 
rescinded.   Adopting Resolution No. 1556-15 will rescind Resolution No. 1461-14 
adopted July 21, 2014, approving a Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement 
between the Town and Superstition Springs R-14 Associates, Wolfy’s R.E. Holdings, 
LLC, and  David C. Phillips .  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
 
None 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   
 
If the Town Council rescinds the Arizona Farms Annexation, staff recommends that 
Resolution No. 1556-15 be adopted thereby rescinding Resolution No. 1461-14. 



 

Subject:  Resolution No. 1556-15  Meeting Date: August 17,  2015 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
 
Resolution No. 1556-15 



Resolution No. 1556-15  
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 1461-14 WITH REGARD TO THE PRE-
ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH SUPERSTITION 
SPRINGS R-14 ASSOCIATES, WOLFY'S R.E. HOLDINGS, LLC, AND  DAVID 
C. PHILLIPS, (“OWNERS”); PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND 
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 

 
WHEREAS, on July 21, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of 

Florence passed and adopted Town of Florence Resolution No. 1461-14 (the 
“Resolution”) approving a Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement between 
the Town and Owners (the “PADA”), for the property described in the Resolution; 
and  

 
WHEREAS, the Resolution, including the attached PADA, was filed with 

the Pinal County Recorder’s Office under Fee Number 2014-042562 on July 23, 
2014; and 

 
WHEREAS, on September 2, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of 

Florence passed and adopted Town of Florence Ordinance No. 620-14 
approving the annexation of the property described in the blank Town of Florence 
Annexation Petition for the “Arizona Farms Annexation” Town of Florence 
Annexation No. 2013-02; and 
   

WHEREAS, within the statutory 30-day challenge period following 
adoption of Ordinance No. 620-14, petitions were filed in Pinal County Superior 
Court challenging the validity of the Arizona Farms Annexation, which had been 
approved by Ordinance No. 620-14; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Town Council of Florence believes it is in the best interest 

of the residents of the Town of Florence, as well as the residents of the 
unincorporated area included in the Arizona Farms Annexation area, to rescind 
the Resolution along with the rescission of Town of Florence Ordinance No. 620-
14. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the 
Town of Florence, Arizona, as follows: 
 

Section 1. Resolution No. 1461-14, dated July 21, 2014 (with respect to 
the Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement referenced 
in Fee Number 2014-042562) in the official records of Pinal 
County is hereby rescinded, voided and declared to be of no 
further force or effect.  

 
Section 2.  The Mayor, the Town Manager, the Town Clerk and the 

Town's Attorneys are hereby authorized and directed to take 



all steps and to execute all documents necessary to carry out 
the purpose and intent of this Resolution. 

 
Section 3.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion 

of this Resolution is for any reason held invalid, 
unconstitutional, or unenforceable by a court of competent 
jurisdiction in a final non-appealable judgment, such portion 
shall be deemed a separate, distinct and an independent 
provision and such holding shall not affect the validity or 
enforceability of the remaining portions of this Resolution. 

 
Section 4.  Inasmuch as it is necessary for the peace, health and safety of 

the Town of Florence  that this Resolution be effective 
immediately upon its passage and approval according to 
A.R.S. §19-142 (B), this Resolution is hereby declared to be 
an emergency measure and effective upon its passage and 
approval. 

 
Section 5. The Town Clerk is hereby directed to record a certified copy of 

this Resolution with the Pinal County Recorder’s Office. 
  

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, 

Arizona, this ___ day of August 2015 by ayes and nays: 
 
AYES: ____________     ABSENT: _____________ 
 
NAYS: ____________      ABSTAINED: __________ 
 
 
 

         ___________________________ 
     Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
____________________   ___________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk   Clifford Mattice, Town Attorney  



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
8z. 

MEETING DATE:  August 17, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Lisa Garcia, Interim Town Manager 
 
SUBJECT:    Resolution No. 1557-15  rescinding Resolution 
No. 1462-14 with regard to the Pre-Annexation and 
Development Agreement with RES-AZ Crestview, LLC; 
Providing for Severability; and Declaring an Emergency 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 

Subject:  Resolution No. 1557-15  Meeting Date: August 17,  2015 
Page 1 of 2 

Motion to approve Resolution No. 1557-15 of the Town of Florence, Pinal County, 
Arizona rescinding Resolution No. 1462-14 with regard to the Pre-Annexation and 
Development Agreement with RES-AZ Crestview, LLC; Providing for Severability; and 
Declaring an Emergency. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
On September 2, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence passed and 
adopted Ordinance No. 620-14 approving the annexation of the property described in 
the blank Town of Florence Annexation Petition for the “Arizona Farms Annexation,” 
Town of Florence Annexation No. 2013-02. 
 
If the Mayor and Council rescind the Arizona Farms Annexation Ordinance, all Pre-
Annexation Development Agreements filed with the Pinal County Recorder must also be 
rescinded.   Adopting Resolution No. 1557-15 will rescind Resolution No. 1462-14 
adopted July 21, 2014, approving a Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement 
between the Town and RES-AZ Crestview, LLC.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
 
None 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   
 
If the Town Council rescinds the Arizona Farms Annexation, staff recommends that 
Resolution No. 1557-15 be adopted thereby rescinding Resolution No. 1462-14. 
 
 
 
 



Subject:  Resolution No. 1557-15  Meeting Date: August 17,  2015 
Page 2 of 2 

ATTACHMENTS:  
 
Resolution No. 1557-15 



Resolution No. 1557-15  
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 1462-14 WITH REGARD TO THE PRE-
ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH RES-AZ 
CRESTVIEW, LLC (“OWNER”); PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND 
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 

 
WHEREAS, on July 21, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of 

Florence passed and adopted Town of Florence Resolution No. 1462-14 (the 
“Resolution”) approving a Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement between 
the Town and Owner (the “PADA”), for the property described in the Resolution; 
and  

 
WHEREAS, the Resolution, including the attached PADA, was filed with 

the Pinal County Recorder’s Office under Fee Number 2014-043928 on July 30, 
2014; and 

 
WHEREAS, on September 2, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of 

Florence passed and adopted Town of Florence Ordinance No. 620-14 
approving the annexation of the property described in the blank Town of Florence 
Annexation Petition for the “Arizona Farms Annexation” Town of Florence 
Annexation No. 2013-02; and 
   

WHEREAS, within the statutory 30-day challenge period following 
adoption of Ordinance No. 620-14, petitions were filed in Pinal County Superior 
Court challenging the validity of the Arizona Farms Annexation, which had been 
approved by Ordinance No. 620-14; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Town Council of Florence believes it is in the best interest 

of the residents of the Town of Florence, as well as the residents of the 
unincorporated area included in the Arizona Farms Annexation area, to rescind 
the Resolution along with the rescission of Town of Florence Ordinance No. 620-
14. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the 
Town of Florence, Arizona, as follows: 
 

Section 1. Resolution No. 1462-14, dated July  21, 2014 (with respect to 
the Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement referenced 
in Fee Number 2014-043928) in the official records of Pinal 
County is hereby rescinded, voided and declared to be of no 
further force or effect.  

 
Section 2.  The Mayor, the Town Manager, the Town Clerk and the 

Town's Attorneys are hereby authorized and directed to take 
all steps and to execute all documents necessary to carry out 
the purpose and intent of this Resolution. 



 
Section 3.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion 

of this Resolution is for any reason held invalid, 
unconstitutional, or unenforceable by a court of competent 
jurisdiction in a final non-appealable judgment, such portion 
shall be deemed a separate, distinct and an independent 
provision and such holding shall not affect the validity or 
enforceability of the remaining portions of this Resolution. 

 
Section 4.  Inasmuch as it is necessary for the peace, health and safety of 

the Town of Florence  that this Resolution be effective 
immediately upon its passage and approval according to 
A.R.S. §19-142 (B), this Resolution is hereby declared to be 
an emergency measure and effective upon its passage and 
approval. 

 
Section 5. The Town Clerk is hereby directed to record a certified copy of 

this Resolution with the Pinal County Recorder’s Office. 
  

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, 

Arizona, this ___ day of August 2015 by ayes and nays: 
 
AYES: ____________     ABSENT: _____________ 
 
NAYS: ____________      ABSTAINED: __________ 
 
 
 

         ___________________________ 
     Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
____________________   ___________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk   Clifford Mattice, Town Attorney  



 

 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
8aa.  

MEETING DATE:  August 17, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Lisa Garcia, Interim Town Manager 
 
SUBJECT:    Resolution No. 1558-15  rescinding Resolution 
No. 1471-14 with regard to the Pre-Annexation and 
Development Agreement with El Dorado Arizona Farms, LLC 
and Langley Arizona Farms 150 LLC; Providing for 
Severability; and Declaring an Emergency 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 

Subject:  Resolution No. 1558-15  Meeting Date: August 17,  2015 
Page 1 of 2 

Motion to approve Resolution No. 1558-15 of the Town of Florence, Pinal County, 
Arizona rescinding Resolution No. 1471-14 with regard to the Pre-Annexation and 
Development Agreement with El Dorado Arizona Farms, LLC and Langley Arizona 
Farms 150 LLC. Providing for Severability; and Declaring an Emergency. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
On September 2, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence passed and 
adopted Ordinance No. 620-14 approving the annexation of the property described in 
the blank Town of Florence Annexation Petition for the “Arizona Farms Annexation,” 
Town of Florence Annexation No. 2013-02. 
 
If the Mayor and Council rescind the Arizona Farms Annexation Ordinance, all Pre-
Annexation Development Agreements filed with the Pinal County Recorder must also be 
rescinded.   Adopting Resolution No. 1558-15 will rescind Resolution No. 1471-14 
adopted August 4, 2014, approving a Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement 
between the Town and El Dorado Arizona Farms, LLC and Langley Arizona Farms 150, 
LLC.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
 
None 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   
 
If the Town Council rescinds the Arizona Farms Annexation, staff recommends that 
Resolution No. 1558-15 be adopted thereby rescinding Resolution No. 1471-14. 
 



 

Subject:  Resolution No. 1558-15  Meeting Date: August 17,  2015 
Page 2 of 2 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  
 
Resolution No. 1558-15 



Resolution No. 1558-15  
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 1471-14 WITH REGARD TO THE PRE-
ANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH EL DORADO 
ARIZONA FARMS LLC AND LANGLEY ARIZONA FARMS 150, LLC 
(“OWNERS”); PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND DECLARING AN 
EMERGENCY. 

 
WHEREAS, on August 4, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of 

Florence passed and adopted Town of Florence Resolution No. 1471-14 (the 
“Resolution”) approving a Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement between 
the Town and Owner (the “PADA”), for the property described in the Resolution; 
and  

 
WHEREAS, the Resolution, including the attached PADA, was filed with 

the Pinal County Recorder’s Office under Fee Number 2014-045592 on August 
7, 2014; and 

 
WHEREAS, on September 2, 2014, the Mayor and Council of the Town of 

Florence passed and adopted Town of Florence Ordinance No. 620-14 
approving the annexation of the property described in the blank Town of Florence 
Annexation Petition for the “Arizona Farms Annexation” Town of Florence 
Annexation No. 2013-02; and 
   

WHEREAS, within the statutory 30-day challenge period following 
adoption of Ordinance No. 620-14, petitions were filed in Pinal County Superior 
Court challenging the validity of the Arizona Farms Annexation, which had been 
approved by Ordinance No. 620-14; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Town Council of Florence believes it is in the best interest 

of the residents of the Town of Florence, as well as the residents of the 
unincorporated area included in the Arizona Farms Annexation area, to rescind 
the Resolution along with the rescission of Town of Florence Ordinance No. 620-
14. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the 
Town of Florence, Arizona, as follows: 
 

Section 1. Resolution No. 1471-14, dated August 4, 2014 (with respect to 
the Pre-Annexation and Development Agreement referenced 
in Fee Number 2014-045592) in the official records of Pinal 
County is hereby rescinded, voided and declared to be of no 
further force or effect.  

 
Section 2.  The Mayor, the Town Manager, the Town Clerk and the 

Town's Attorneys are hereby authorized and directed to take 



all steps and to execute all documents necessary to carry out 
the purpose and intent of this Resolution. 

 
Section 3.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion 

of this Resolution is for any reason held invalid, 
unconstitutional, or unenforceable by a court of competent 
jurisdiction in a final non-appealable judgment, such portion 
shall be deemed a separate, distinct and an independent 
provision and such holding shall not affect the validity or 
enforceability of the remaining portions of this Resolution. 

 
Section 4.  Inasmuch as it is necessary for the peace, health and safety of 

the Town of Florence that this Resolution be effective 
immediately upon its passage and approval according to 
A.R.S. §19-142 (B), this Resolution is hereby declared to be 
an emergency measure and effective upon its passage and 
approval. 

 
Section 5. The Town Clerk is hereby directed to record a certified copy of 

this Resolution with the Pinal County Recorder’s Office. 
  

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, 

Arizona, this ___ day of August 2015 by ayes and nays: 
 
AYES: ____________     ABSENT: _____________ 
 
NAYS: ____________      ABSTAINED: __________ 
 
 
 

         ___________________________ 
     Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
____________________   ___________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk   Clifford Mattice, Town Attorney  



MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Mayor and Town Council  
From:  Lisa Garcia, Interim Town Manager 
Copy:  Department Heads 
Date:  August 17, 2015 

Re:  Bi-Weekly Update  

Arizona Forward 
The Town of Florence entry for Silver King Marketplace/Padilla Park has been selected as 
a finalist in the Building and Structure (Historic Preservation) category of Arizona Forward’s 
35th Annual Environmental Excellence Award program.  Finalists receive an Award of Merit 

or a first place Crescordia at the award gala, held on September 12, 2015, at the Chateau 
Luxe.  Finalists will be spotlighted in a special section featured in the Phoenix Business 
Journal on Friday, August 21, 2015.     Mark Eckhoff and I will be attending on the Town’s 
behalf. 
 
Budget/Election Calendar 
The Budget, Special Election, and Primary and General Election Calendar is attached. The 
Calendar shows a black font for items that are solely handled by staff. The red font shows 
the dates the budget committee will meet.  The blue font shows the meeting dates Council, 
as a whole, will meet.   We have included quarterly meetings with Council to discuss the 
issues facing the budget committee, as well as Council goals and priorities.   Please note 
that a public component has been added to the CIP (Capital Improvement Plan) process.  
The advertisements and draft citizen input form is attached for your review and comment. 
 
Dates to Remember 
August 17, 2015, Regular Meeting of Council, starting at 6 pm 
August 24, 2015, Special Meeting of Council, starting at 6 pm 
August 27, 2015, Ready, Set, Go Workshop 1: from 9 am to 12 pm OR 1 pm to 4 pm  
August 31, 2015, Open Meeting Law Training: from 6 pm to 8 pm – please RSVP 
September 3, 2015, Ready, Set, Go Workshop 2: from 9 am to 12 pm OR 1 pm to 4 pm 
September 8, 2015, Regular Town Council Meeting 
September 14, 2015 Special Meeting – Kick off to Council Retreat and Executive Session 

to review Town Manager Applications 
September 21, 2015 Regular Town Council Meeting 
October 13, 2015, CFD Work Session Anthem Parkside: from 6 pm to 8 pm 
October 26, 2015, CFD Work Session Anthem Sun City from 6 pm to 8 pm 
 
League of Cities and Towns 
I will be attending the League of Cities and Towns Conference August 18 to August 21, 
2015.  Jess Knudson will be Acting Manager while I am away.  I will be in communication 
via email and cell phone.  If you need to speak to me, do not hesitate to call.   
Councilmember Woolridge and Anderson will be attending the full conference.   Mayor Tom 
Rankin and former Vice-Mayor Tom Smith will be attending the Wednesday, August 19, 



2015 Award Ceremony.  Both gentlemen will be receiving their 12 year service awards 
which will be presented at a future Council Meeting. 
 
Project Updates 
 
South Wastewater Treatment Plant Lagoon Closure 
On May 4, 201, Council approved a contract with Blount Contracting, Inc., to construct 
grading and drainage improvements for the closure of three existing lagoons at the South 
Wastewater Treatment Plant in an amount not to exceed $99,950. This work has been 
completed and the project closed out with a cost of $89,950.  The project was finalized on 
time with a $10,000 savings.  As Interim Town Manager, I approved a change order closing 
the project with a savings.  This is in the authority of the Town Manager based on the 
project costs not exceeding the amount set by the Town Council. 
 
South Wastewater Treatment Plant Filtration System  
On February 17, 2015, Council approved a contract with Garney Construction for 
improvements to the South Wastewater Treatment Plant Filtration System Project with a 
total cost not to exceed $859,000. As Interim Town Manager, I approved a change order for 
the incorporation of the Water Infrastructure Financing Authority required wage 
determination related to Loan Agreement No. 1, incorporating the specific wage rate 
requirements for compliance to be included with the contract clauses.  This was in the 
authority of the Town Manager based on the compliance issues with the loan documents.  
This change order does not affect project costs or the scope of the project. 
 
Retreat Details 
September 14, 2015 will be a kick off to the upcoming Council retreats.  This first session, I 
have invited all board and commission members to attend as well.  Lance Decker will be 
presenting his book, “Over My Dead Body! A Workbook for Community Involvement”.   This 
meeting will focus on the difference between a toxic community and a healthy community, 
rules of engaging each other as well as citizens involved in the process, and Codes of 
Conduct.   After everyone has been given a chance to read the book, each group will meet 
individually to discuss issues of concern amongst their board or commission members as 
well as the role of community involvement.   The third session is for Council and will be held 
in November for goal setting and strategic planning.      



Town of Florence 

2015/2016 Calendar of Events

Date Ö Task A.R.S Comments

8/7/2015 √ Draft Calendar Complete - Dates may change.  All dates with ARS 
notice must be completed by the date listed

B 8/12/2015 √ Budget Meeting to Review Calendar

B
8/17/2015 Calendar Presented to Council at Manager's Report of Council 

Meeting

B 8/21/2015 CIP Meeting with Public Works  -  

B 8/25/2015 First CIP meeting with staff

B 9/9/2015 Second CIP Meeting with Staff

B 9/16/2015 Budget Committee Meeting for CIP

B 9/23/2015 Public Forum on CIP - Input from Citizens  9 a.m. and 6 p.m.

B 9/28/2015 Council CIP Meeting

B 10/5/2015 Budgets to Department Heads

B 10/16/2015 Budget Returned  by Department Heads

B 10/21/2015 Budget Committee Meetings (two weeks as Necessary)

B
11/2/2015 Work Session with Council Budget update/Special Election 

Information

B 11/18/2015 Budget Committee Meeting 

SE 12/3/2015 Ad to Paper on Public Hearing for Special Election

SE 12/10/2015 Publish  Public Hearing Notice on purposed action including 
amount and purpose

B 12/16/2015 Budget Committee Meeting

SE 12/17/2015 Publish Public Hearing Notice on purposed action including amount 
and purpose

SE 12/21/2015 1st Public Hearing -  on purposed action Special Election

SE 12/21/2015 IGA with County for Election Services

SE 12/21/2015 Resolution - All Mail Ballot Election May 2016

SE 12/31/2015 Publish PH Notice on purposed action including amount and 
purpose

SE 1/4/2016 2nd Public Hearing - Special Election purposed action

SE 1/4/2016 Convene into a Special Meeting to Vote on Expenditure Limit 
Amount

SE 1/4/2016 Call of Special Election 

SE 1/7/2016 Notice of Vote on Expenditure Limitation to paper (include amount 
and purpose)

SE 1/14/2016 Notice of Expenditure Limitation Vote in paper

B 1/20/2016 Budget Committee Meeting

B= Budget, SE = Special Election , P/G  Primary General Election 

1



Town of Florence 

2015/2016 Calendar of Events

Date Ö Task A.R.S Comments

SE 1/31/2016 Call of Election to Florence Reminder

SE 2/1/2016 Require all Political Committee to file Jan 31 Campaign finance 
reports

B 2/1/2016 Budget Update to Council (Work Session) Budget Issues and 
Priorities

B 2/1/2016 Town to receive estimated state-imposed expenditure limitation for 
coming year

SE 2/4/2016 First Publication of Call of Election 1 of 2

B 2/9/2016  Receive estimated Total Net Assessed Valuation from Assessor 
and property tax levy limit worksheet

42-17052 on or before 2/10

SE 2/11/2016  Second Publication of Call of Election 2 of 2

B 2/12/2016  Make property values available for public inspection 42-17055 on or before 2/15

B 2/17/2016 Budget Committee Meeting

B 2/20/2016  Notify PTOC if Disagree with Ptax levy limit 42-17054 within 10 days of receipt

SE 2/25/2016  Send publication of Argument for or against Special Election to 
Paper 

SE 3/2/2016  Presentation of information on vote to exceed state-imposed 
limitation to Council

SE 3/3/2016 AD for Arguments in paper 1 of 2

B 3/2/2016  Presentation of information on vote to exceed state-imposed 
limitation to employees

B 3/16/2016 Budget Committee Meeting

SE 3/17/2016 AD for Arguments in paper 2 of 2

P/G 3/17/2017 Ad to Newspaper on Public Hearing for Home Rule Option 
(primary)  

P/G 3/24/2016 Publish first notice of public hearing for Home Rule Option (primary) 

SE/P Mar/Apr  Presentation of information on vote to exceed state-imposed 
limitation to citizen groups

P/G 3/24/2016 Publish Notice of Town accepting Arguments for or against the 
Home Rule Option (publish  again on 3/30/2016)

P/G 3/30/2016 Publish second notice of public hearing for Home Rule Option 
(primary)

B 4/1/2016 Town receives actual state imposed expenditure limitation numbers

P/G 4/4/2016 Hold first public hearing on Home Rule option

SE 4/15/2015 Post Notice of Sample Ballots Available

SE 4/18/2016 County Voter Registration Closes

SE 4/18/2016 Arguments for publicity pamphlets due

P/G 4/18/2016 Hold second public hearing on Home Rule Option

B 4/20/2016 Budget Committee Meeting

P/G 4/18/2016 Council adjourns to Special Meeting to vote on the proposed Home 
Rule Option

Adopt by Resolution 

2



Town of Florence 

2015/2016 Calendar of Events

Date Ö Task A.R.S Comments
P/G 4/21/2016 Send publication of record of vote to the newspaper  on Home Rule 

Option. Also include the amount of expenditure in excess of state 
imposed limitation and purpose for excess.

P/G 4/22/2016 Submit to Auditor General's Office required Information, including 
summary and detailed analyses 

Time starts when A/G receives

SE 4/22/2016 Send out Publicity Pamphlets

SE 4/25/2016 Send out Mail Ballots

P/G 4/30/2016  Post notice of intention to increase property tax on Town website 9-499.15 60 days before TNT public 
hearing

P/G 5/2/2016  Nomination paper packets must be ready for distribution 16-311 120 days before Primary 
Election

P/G 5/5/2016 Call of Election delivered to the Florence Reminder 

P/G 5/12/20016  Call of Election in Paper 1 of 2

P/G 5/13/2016 Pre Election Campaign Report Due

P/G 5/16/2016 Resolution Calling Election 

SE 5/17/2016 Election Day

B 5/18/2016 Budget Committee Meeting

P/G 5/19/2016 Call of Election in Paper 2 of 2

P/G 5/19/2016 Receive reviewed details and summary analyses and summary 
analysis worksheets from Auditor General 

P/G 5/28/2015 Receive Arguments for or against  Home Rule Option for Publicity 
Pamphlet

P/G 6/1/2016 Candidate filing deadline 16-311 90 days before primary election  

P/G 6/4/2016  Complete preparation of publicity pamphlet; send draft to Auditor 
General Office 

B 6/6/2016  Present Manager's recommended Annual Budget to Town Council 
(work session)

SE 6/6/216 Canvas the votes

B 6/13/2016 Recommended Annual Budget follow-up discussion (work session) -
If necessary

SE 6/16/2016 Post Election Campaign Report Due

B 6/15/2016  Recommended Annual Budget follow-up discussion (work session) -
If necessary

B 6/17/2016  Send ad to publish TNT notice (Exhibit H) with Gen Fund est. 
rev/exp (two dates as shown below) and issue press release

Friday before publishing TNT 
ad

B 6/20/2016  Adopt tentative budget 42-17101 on or before 3rd Monday in July

B 6/20/2016  Adopt alternative expenditure limitation (not required, citizen vote 
on this at the Special Election)

Art. IX, §20(9) not applicable this year; Home 
Rule election failed 8/2014

B 6/20/2016  First reading of property tax levy ordinance (TOF/CFDs) meeting before 2nd reading

P/G 6/20/2016 IGA for Election Services with Pinal County 16-172

B 6/23/2016 Publish 1st TNT notice 42-17107 between 14 and 20 days before 
TNT hearing

B 6/24/2016 Send ad to publish tentative budget, etc. for two consecutive weeks Friday before 1st publication

B 6/24/2016 Post tentative budget on Town Web site for 60 months 42-17103 no later than 7 days following 
initial presentation to Council

3



Town of Florence 

2015/2016 Calendar of Events

Date Ö Task A.R.S Comments
P/G 6/27/2016 Send Publicity Pamphlet to the Printer

B 6/30/2016 Publish 2nd TNT notice 42-17107 between 7 and 10 days before 
TNT hearing

P/G 6/30/2016 Publish adopted tentative budget, notice of hearing, library/website 
addresses

42-17103 after tentative budget adopted, 
2x

P/G 6/30/2016 Campaign Finance Reports due 

B 7/1/2016  Submit information of involuntary tort judgments and appropriate 
documentation to PTOC for consideration

A.A.C. 15-12-20on or before 1st Monday in July

B 7/11/2016 Public hearing on TNT 42-17107 on or before final budget 
adoption

B 7/11/2016 Second reading of property tax levy ordinance (TOF/CFDs)

B 7/11/2016 Public hearing on final budget (TOF/CFDs) 42-17104 on or before 14th day before 
adopting property tax levy

B 7/11/2016 Convene special meeting to adopt final budget 42-17105 after final budget public hearing

B 7/11/2016 Adopt property tax levy ROLL CALL VOTE (TOF/CFDs) 42-17107 on or after TNT hearing date

B 7/14/2016 Send property tax levy to County 42-17151 levy must be adopted by county 
supervisors by 3rd Monday in 

B 7/14/2016 Mail copy of TNT, statement of its publication and result of Council 
roll call vote to PTOC

42-17151 3 days after final property tax 
levy

B 7/15/2016 Post final budget on Town Web site for 60 months 42-17103 no later than 7 days after final 
budget adoption

P/G 7/15/2016 Prepare and mail proof of sample ballot to candidates 16-461 45 days before election

P/G 7/21/2016 Receive nomination papers from write-in candidates. 16-312 Not later than 5:00 p.m., 40 
days before election

B 7/21/2016 Must adopt Tentative Budget 42-17101 Last day to adopt by Law

P/G 7/22/2016 Mail Publicity Pamphlets

P/G 7/24/2016 Post notice that sample ballots are available in clerk's office 16-461 30 days before election - Post in 
all locations required by law 

P/G 7/31/2015 Distribute Early Ballots

P/G 8/1/2016 Voter Registration closes County 29 days before election

P/G 8/19/2016 Publish financial statement in local newspaper 9-246

P/G 8/26/2016 Political committees to file pre-primary campaign finance report 16-913

P/G 8/30/2016 PRIMARY ELECTION DAY 16-551

P/G 9/6/2016 $500 Threshold Termination Statements Due

P/G 9/19/2016  Canvas the votes 16-642

P/G 9/20/2016 Inform Auditor General  of Election Results

P/G 9/23/2016  Prepare and mail proof of sample ballot to candidates 16-461 45 days before election

P/G 9/23/2016  Receive nomination papers from write-in candidates. 16-312 Not later than 5:00 p.m., 40 
days before election

P/G 9/29/2016  Political committees to file post primary campaign finance report 16-913 30 days after primary elections

P/G 10/7/2016  Post sample ballots 16-461 30 days before election - Post in 
all locations required by law 

4



Town of Florence 

2015/2016 Calendar of Events

Date Ö Task A.R.S Comments
P/G 10/10/2016  Voter registration closes County  29 days prior to election

P/G 11/4/2016  Political Committees to file post primary campaign finance report 16-913

P/G 11/8/2016 GENERAL ELECTION DAY 16-551

P/G 11/14-11/28 Canvas the votes 16-642 Not less then 6 days nor more 
than 20 after election.

P/G 12/8/2016 political committee statement of organization post election report 16-913 21 days after election

P/G 2/27/2017 political committee file termination statements $500 thresholds. 16-904

5



 

 

Town of Florence 

 
 

 
News Release 
August 13, 2015 
For Immediate Release  
Contact: Jess Knudson at (520) 868-7541 
 

 
The Town Wants Your Input! 
 
The Town of Florence is updating its Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) and we 
want your thoughts and ideas on projects the Town of Florence should address 
in the next 10 years.    
 
Two public forums are scheduled for Wednesday, September 23, 2015.   The 
first forum begins at 9:00 a.m. and the second forum begins at 6:00 p.m.  The 
forums are held at Florence Town Hall, 775 N. Main Street, Florence, Arizona.    
 
Eligible projects must have a total estimated cost of more than $10,000 and an 
estimated life of 10 years or more.  Examples of eligible projects include street, 
water, drainage, parks, renovation of existing facilities, construction of new 
facilities, and other similar projects.  
 
When finalized by the Florence Town Council, the CIP is used to help shape the 
budget for fiscal year 2016/2017 and beyond.  CIP projects have a wide range of 
funding sources, including grants, designated revenue, bond financing, fund 
balances, and development impact fees.  CIP projects are paid for with one-time 
revenues, instead of ongoing revenues, including sales tax, property tax and 
other funds that are collected consistently every year. 
 
Town staff will be present to listen and document your thoughts for inclusion in 
future meetings with the Florence Town Council on the creation of our new CIP. 
Those attending the public forum can share their thoughts verbally or by 
completing a survey.   
 
For more information about the CIP and these public forums, please contact 
Gabe Garcia, Finance Director, at (520)868-7505. 



 

 

Capital Improvement Plan 
Citizen Input 

 
 
Check no more than three project areas that represent your three highest 
priorities.   
 
Ο Streets     Ο Gym or Multi-Gen Center Ο Territory Square 
Ο Water  Ο Public Safety   Ο Downtown 
Ο Wastewater Ο Arts/Culture    Ο Public Works Facility 
Ο Parks  Ο _______________  Ο _______________ 
 
  

Funding 
 
How should your proposed project(s) be funded? Please offer specifics. 
________________________________________________
________________________________________________
________________________________________________
________________________________________________
________________________________________________
________________________________________________ 
 
 

General Comments 
 

Include any comments about the Town’s CIP and possible future projects. 
________________________________________________
________________________________________________
________________________________________________
________________________________________________
________________________________________________
________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
Thank you for your input! 


	August 17, 2015 Agenda
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7

	6. PRESENTATIONS
	6a. APRA Award for Padilla Park
	6b. Library-Rec Complex Update

	7. CONSENT
	7a. Resolution No. 1529-15 PR 2015 Mission Vision Values
	7b. Resolution No. 1534-15 Bank Signatories
	7c. Proclamation for Child Suport Awareness Month
	7d. Currier Construction Inc. Change Order Requests
	7e. Library Rec Complex Contract Amendment 2
	7f. Garney Construction CO No 2
	7g. McCain Construction LLC CO No 1
	7h. Visus Engineering Construction CO No 1
	7i. Florence Fudge Co. Lease
	7j. Silver King Lease
	7k. July 6, 2015 Council Minutes
	7k. July 13, 2015 Council Minutes
	7k. July 20, 2015 Council Minutes
	7k. July 27, 2015 Council Minutes

	7l i. June 24, 2015 HDAC Minutes
	7l ii. June 18, 2015 PZ Comm Minutes

	8. NEW BUSINESS
	8a. Regulation of Farmers Market
	8b. Ordinance No. 633-15 Rescinding Ordinance No. 619-14 Magic Ranch Annexation
	8c. Resolution  No. 1535-15 Rescinding Resolution No. 1431-14 for Pre-Annexation Development Agreement
	8d. Resolution No. 1536-15 Rescinding Resolution No. 1453-14 for Pre-Annexation Development Agreement
	8e. Resolution No. 1537-15 Rescinding Resolution No. 1454-15 for Pre-Annexation Development Agreement
	8f. Resolution No. 1538-15 Rescinding Resolution No. 1458-15 for Pre-Annexation Development Agreement
	8g. Resolution No. 1539-15 Rescinding Resolution No. 1459-14 for Pre-Annexation Development Agreement
	8h. Resolution No. 1540-15 Rescinding Resolution No. 1460-14 for Pre-Annexation Development Agreement
	8i. Resolution No. 1541-15 Rescinding Resolution No. 1463-14 for Pre-Annexation Development Agreement
	8j. Resolution No. 1542-15 Rescinding Resolution No. 1464-15 for Pre-Annexation Development Agreement
	8k. Resolution No. 1543-15 Rescinding Resolution No. 1465-14 for Pre-Annexation Development Agreement
	8l.  Resolution No. 1544-15 Rescinding Resolution No. 1466-14 for Pre-Annexation Development Agreement
	8m. Resolution No. 1545-15 Rescinding Resolution No. 1467-14 for Pre-Annexation Development Agreement
	8n. Resolution No. 1546-15 Rescinding Resolution No. 1470-14 for Pre-Annexation Development Agreement
	8o. Resolution No. 1547-15 Rescinding Resolution No. 1468-14 for Pre-Annexation Development Agreement
	8p. Resolution No. 1548-15 Rescinding Resolution No. 1472-14 for Pre-Annexation Development Agreement
	8q. Resolution No. 1549-15 Rescinding Resolution No. 1475-14 for Pre-Annexation Development Agreement
	8r. Resolution No. 1550-15 Rescinding Resolution No. 1476-15 for Pre-Annexation Development Agreement
	8s. Resolution No. 1551-15 Rescinding Resolution No. 1477-14 for Pre-Annexation Development Agreement
	8t. Resolution No. 1552-15 Rescinding Resolution No. 1478-14 for Pre-Annexation Development Agreement
	8u. Ordinance No. 634-15 Rescinding Ordinance no. 620-14 Arizona Farms Annexation
	8v. Resolution No. 1553-15 Rescinding Resolution No. 1418-14 for Pre-Annexation Development Agreement
	8w. Resolution No. 1554-15 Rescinding Resolution No. 1443-14 for Pre-Annexation Development Agreement
	8x. Resolution No. 1555-15 Rescinding Resolution No. 1446-14 for Pre-Annexation Development Agreement
	8y. Resolution No. 1556-15 Rescinding Resolution No. 1461-14 for Pre-Annexation Development Agreement
	8z. Resolution No. 1557-15 Rescinding Resolution No. 1462-14 for Pre-Annexation Development Agreement
	8aa. Resolution No. 1558-15 Rescinding Resolution No. 1471-14 for Pre-Annexation Development Agreement

	MANAGER'S REPORT



